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of various solid waste disposal facilities located at various

generating stations in Indiana. The $80.5 million is being held
in escrow by an independent trustee and will be drawn down as
the facilities are built. Because the holders of these notes have
the right to have their nates redeemed on a weekly basis, they

are reflected in Notes payable and other short-term obligations
on our Balance Sheets,

The following table summarizes our Notes payabie and other
short-term obligations.

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Weighted Weighted
Established Average Established Average
(in miltions} Lines Qutstanding Rate Lines Outstanding Rate
Cinergy Corp.
Revolving lines $1,000 3 - =% $1,000 $ 25 2.02%
Uncommitked lines(n 40 - - 65 - -
Commercial paper(® 146 1.18 473 1.81
Qperating companies
Uncommitted lines(1} 75 - - 75 - -
Pollutian contrel notes 193 1.37 147 1.82
Non-regulated subsidiaries
Revolving lines 19 10 5.90 7 i 3,28
Short-term debt 2 4.80 22 22 2.93
Total £351 1.45% $668 1.86%

(1} Quistonding amounts may be greater than established lines as uncommitted lenders are. at times, witling to loan funds in excess of the established fines.
(2} The conwmercinl pager program is limited to 5800 million ond 15 supported by Ciaergy Corp.'s revolving lines of credit,

In our credit facifities, Cinergy Corp. has covenanted to
maintain:

* a consclidated net worth of $2 billion; and

° a ratio of consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total
capitalization not in excess of 65 percent.

A breach of these covenants could result in the termination
of the credit facilities and the acceleration of the related
indebtedness. In addition to breaches of covenants, certain
other events that could result in the termination of available
credit and acceleration of the related indebtedness include:

® bankruptcy;

e defaults in the payment of other indebtedness; and

® judgments against the company that are not paid
or insured.

The latter two events, however, are 5L_|bject to dollas-hased
materiality thresholds.

As discussed in Note 1(Q)(fv), long-term debt increased
in 2003 resulting from the adoption of Interpretation 46. The
debt which was recorded as a result of this new accounting
pronouncement did not cause Cinergy Corp. to be in breach
of any covenants.
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7. Leases

(A) OPERATING LEASES

We have entered into operating lease agreements for various
facilities and properties such as computer, communication
and transportation equipment, and office space. Total rental
payments on operating leases for each of the past three years
are detailed in the table below. This table also shows future
minimum lease payments required for operating leases with
remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year
as of December 31, 2003:

{in millions)

Lease Expense

2001 $ 61
2002 { 64
2003 $ 72
Estimated Minimum Lease Payments
2004 § 41
2005 33
2006 26
2007 21
2008 13
After 2008 37
Total $171




-

(B CAPITAL LEASES

In each of the years 1999 through 2003, our operating
companies entered into capital lease agreements to fund the
purchase of gas and electric meters. The lease terms are for
120 months commencing with the date of purchase and contain
various buyout options ranging from 48 to 105 months. K is
our objective to own the meters indefinitely and the operating
companies plan to exercise the huyout option at month 105.
As of December 31, 2003, our effective interest rate on capital
lease obligations outstanding was 5.2 percent, The meters are
depreciated at the same rate as if owned by the operating
companies. Jur operating companies each recorded a capital
lease obligation, included in Non-Current Liabilities-Other.

The total minimum lease payments and the present values
for these capital lease items are shown below:

-{Jh ml’!!l'a.ns)

Total minimum lease payments(l) $68
Less: amount reprasenting interest (13)
Present value of minimum lease payments $55

(1} Annual minimum lease poyments ore fimmateriel,

8. Financial Instruments
(A) FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

We have entered into financial derivative contracts for the
purpose of managing financial instrument risk.

Qur current policy of managing exposure to fluctuaticns in
interest rates is to maintain approximately 30 percent of the
total amount of cutstanding debt in floating interest rate debt
instruments. In maintaining this level of exposure, we use
interest rate swaps. Under the swaps, we agree with other
parties to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference
between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest amounts calculated
on an agreed notional amount. CG&E has an outstanding
interest rate swap agreement that decreased the percentage
of floating-rate debt. Under the provisions of the swap, which
has a notional amount of $100 million, CG&E pays a fixed-rate
and receives a floating-rate through October 2007. This swap
qualifies as a cash flow hedge under the provisions of Statement
133. As the terms of the swap agreement mirror the terms of
the debt agreement that it is hedging, we anticipate that this
swap will continue ta be effective as a hedge. Changes in fair
value of this swap are recorded in Accumuloted other comprehen-
sive income (loss). Cinergy Corp. has three ouistanding interest
rate swaps with a combined notional amount of $250 miilion.
Under the provisions of the swaps, Cinergy Corp. receives fixed-
rate interest payments and pays floating-rate interest payments
through September 2004, These swaps qualify as fair value
hedges under the provisions of Statement 133. We anticipate
that these swaps will continue to be effective as hedges.
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Treasury locks are agreements that fix the yield or price on
a specified treasury security for a specified period, which we
sometimes use in connection with the issuance of fixed-rate
debt. On September 23, 2002, CG&E issued $500 million princi-
pal amount senior unsecured dehenturas due September 15,
2012, with an interest rate of 5.70 percent. In July 2002,
CG&E executed a treasury [ock with a notional amount of
$250 million, which was desigrated a5 a cash flow hedge of
50 percent of the forecasted interest payments on this debt
offering. The treasury lock effectively fixed the benchmark
interest rate (i.e., the treasury component of the interest rate,
but net the credit spread) for 50 percent of the offering from
July 2002 through the issuance date in ovder to reduce the
exposure associated with treasury rate volatility. With the
issuance of the debt, the treasury lock was settled. Given the
use of hedge accounting, this settlement was reflected in
other comprehensive income (loss) on an after-tax basis in the
amount of $13 million, rather than a charge to net income. This
amount will be reclassified to Interest Expense over the 10-year
life of the related debt as interest is accrued.

See Note 1(K) for additional information on financial
derivatives. In the future, we will continually monitor market
conditions to evaluate whether to modify our use of financiat
instruments to manage risk.

(B} FAIR VALUE OF OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of other financial instruments were
as follows (this information does not claim to be a valuation
of the companies as a whole):

fin millions)

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Carrying Fair Camrying Fair
Financial Instrumants Amount Value Amount Value
First mortgage
bonds and other
long-term debt() $4,971 §5,297 $4,188 $4,399

(1) Includes amounts reflected as Long-term debt due within one year.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values of sach major class of instruments:

(1) Cash and cash equivalents, Restricted deposits, and Notes
paeyable and other short-term obligations
Due to the short period to maturity, the carrying amounts
reflected on the Balance Sheets approximate fair values,

(1) Long-term debt

The fair values of long-term debt issues were estimated
based on the latest quoted market prices or, if nat listed on the
New York Stock Exchande, on the present value of future cash
flows. The discount rates used approximate the incremental
borrowing costs for similar instruments.
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{C) CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the exposure to economic lass that weuld occur as
a result of nonperformance by counterparties, pursuant to the
terms of their contractual cbligations. Specific components of
credit risk include counterparty default risk, collateral risk,
concentration risk, and settlement risk.

(7} Trade Receivables and Physical Power Portfolio

Our concentration of credit risk with respect o trade
accounts receivable from eleciric and gas retail customers is
limited. The targe number of customers and diversified customer
hase of residential, commercial, and industrial customers
significantly reduces our credit risk. Contracts within the
physical portfolio of power marketing and trading operations
are primarily with traditional electric cooperatives and munici-
palities and other investor-owned utilities. At December 31,
2003, we believe the likelihood of significant losses associated
with credit risk in our trade accounts receivable or physical
power portfolio is remote.

(i} Energy Trading Credit Risk

Our extension of credit for energy marketing and trading
is governed by a Corporate Credit Policy. Written guidelines
document the management appraval levels for credit Umits,
avatuation of creditworthiness, and credit risk mitigation
procedures. Exposures to credit risks are monitored daily by
the Corporate Credit Risk function, which is independent of all
trading operations. As of December 31, 2003, approximately
97 percent of the credit exposure, net of credit collateral,
related to energy trading and marketing activity was with
counterparties rated Investment Grade or the counterparties’
obligations were guaranteed or secured by an Investment Grade
entity. No single non-investment grade counterparty accounts
for more than one percent of our total credit exposure. Energy
commodity prices can be extremely votatile and the markat can,
at times, lack liquidity. Because of these issues, credit risk is
generally greater than with other commodity trading.

In December 2001, Enron Corp. (Enron) filed for protection
under Chapter 11 of the U.5. Bankruptcy Code in the Southern
District of New York, We dacreased our trading activities with
Enron in the months prior to its bankruptey filing and filed
a motion with the bankruptcy court overseeing the Enron
bankruptcy seeking appropriate netting of the various payables
and receivables between and among Enron and Cinergy entities,
We entered into a settlement agreement with Enron, which
hecame final in January 2004, See Note 11{C){ii) for
further information.

We cantinually review and monitor our credit exposure to
all counterparties and secondary counterparties. If appropriate,
we may adjust our credit reserves to attempt to compensate
for increased credit risk within the industry, Counterparty cradit
limits may be adjusted on a daily basis in response to changes
in a counterparty’s financial status or public debt ratings.
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(7if) Financiof Derfvatives

Potential exposure to credit risk also exists from our use of
financial derivatives such as interest rate swaps and treasury
lacks. Because these financial instruments are transacted with
highly rated financial institutions, we do not anticipate
nonperfermance by any of the counterparties,

9. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide benafits to retirees in the form of pension and other
postretirement benefits.

Our qualified defined benefit pension plans cover substan-
tiatly all U.S. employees meeting certain minimum age and
service requirements. During 2002, eligible Cinergy employees
were offered the opportunity to make a one-time election,
effective January 1, 2003, to either continue to have their
pension benefit determined by the traditional defined benefit
pension formula or to have their benefit determined using a
cash balance formula.

The traditional defined benefit program utilizes a final
average pay formula to determine pension benefits. These
benefits are based on:

e years of participation;
* age at retirement; and

* the applicable average Social Security wage base or
benefit amount.

Benefits are accrued under the cash balance formula based
upon a percentage of pay plus interest. In addition, participants
with the cash balance formula may request a lump-sum cash
payment upon termination of their employment, which may
result in increased cash requirements from pension plan assets.
Benefits earned under the traditional defined benefit pension
formula ceased accruing at December 31, 2002 only for those
employees who elected the cash balance formula. There was
na change to retirement benefits earned through December 31,
2002 in conveiting to the cash balance fermula. The pension
benefits of all non-union and certain union employees hired
after December 31, 2002 are calculated using the cash
balance forinuta.

The introduction of the defined benefit plan with cash
balance features did not have a material effect on our financial
position or results of operations for 2003.

Funding for the qualified defined benefit pension plans is
based on actuarially determined contributions, the maximum
of which is generally the amount deductible for income tax
purposes and the minimum heing that required by the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. The
pension plans’ assets consist of investments in equity and
deht securities.

Our investment strategy with respect to pension assets is
designed to achieve a moderate level of overall portfolio risk in
keeping with our desired risk cbjective, which is established



through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded
status, and corporate financial condition, The portfolios target
asset allocation is 60 percent equity and 40 percent debt with
specified allowable ranges around these targets. Within the
equity segment, we are broadly diversified across domestic,
developed international, and emerging market equities, with
the targest concentration being domestic. Further diversification
is achiaved through allocations to growth/value and small-,
mid-, and large-cap equities. Within the debt segment, we
principally maintain separate “core plus” and “core” portfolios.
The “core plus” portfolio makes tactical use of the “plus” sectors
(e.g., high yield, developed international, emerging markets,
etc.) while the “core” portfolic is a domestic, investment
grade portfolio. The use of derivatives is currently limited to
collateralized mortgage obligations and asset-backed securities.
Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis
through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability
measurements, and periodic asset/liability studies.

Our qualified pension plan asset allocation at September 30,
2003 and 2002 by asset category was as follows:

Percentage of Fair Value of

Plan Assets at September 30

Asset Category 2003 2002
Equity securitiestl) 62% 50%
Debt securities(2} 38% 50%

(1) Yhe portfolio’s target asset atfocalfon is 60 percent equity with an aflowable range

of 50 percent to 70 percent.
(2) The portfolio’s target asset olfocation is 40 percent debt with an allowabie range of
30 percent to 50 percent.

In additicn, we sponsor non-qualified pension plans
(plans that do not meet the criteria for tax benefits) that
cover officers, certain other key employees, and non-employee
directors. We began funding certain of these non-qualified
plans through a rabbi trust in 1969. This trust, which consists
of equity (63 percent) and debt (37 percent) securities at
December 31, 2003, is not restricted to the payment of plan
henefits and therefore, not considered plan assets under
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers’
Accounting for Pensions. At December 31, 2003 and 2002,

trust assets were approximately $9 million and $8 million,
respectively, and are reflected in our Balance Sheets as

Other investments.

In 2003 and 2002, we offered voluntary early retirement
programs to certain individuals. In accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 88, Employers” Accounting
for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension
Plans and for Termination Benefits (Statement 88), we recog-
nized an expense of $8.5 million and $39.1 million in 2003
and 2002, respectively.

We provide certain health care and life insurance bensfits
to retired U.S. employees and their eligible dependents. These
benefits are subject to minimum age and service requirements.
The health care benefits include medical coverage, dental
coverage, and prescription drugs and are subject to certain
limitations, such as deductibles and co-payments. Neither CG&E
nor ULH&P pre-fund their obligations for these postretirement
benefits. In 1999, PSI began pre-funding its obligations
through a grantor trust as authorized by tha IURC. This trust,
which consists of equity (63 percent) and debt (37 percent)
securities at December 31, 2003, is not restricted to the
payment of plan benefits and therefore, not considered plan
assets under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 106, Employers” Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions (Statement 106). At December 31, 2003
and 2002, trust assets were approximately $64 million and
352 million, respectively, and are reflected in our Balance
Sheets as Other investments.

Based on preliminary estimates, we expect 2004 contribu-
tions of $107 million for qualified pension benefits, In addition,
we expect to make contributicns of $8 millien and $27 million
in 2004 for non-qualified pension benefits and other postretire-
ment benefits, respectively.

Dur henefit plans’ costs for the past three years included the
following components:

Jualitied Pension Benefits

2001

2003

Non-flualified Pension Benefits

Other Postretirement Benefits

(it mitlions) 2003 2002 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Service cost % 31.3 $27.3 $ 27.9 3 3.3 % 2.7 $2.1 $ 4.1 $ 3.5 $ 3.8
Interest cost 85.9 79.2 7.5 6.4 51 4.8 22.4 12.6 17.9
Expected return on

plans’ assets (80.8) (86.3) (81.9) - - - - (0.3) -
Amortization of transition

(asset) obligation {1.0) (1.3) (1.3) - 0.1 0.1 3.3 5.0 5.0
Amortization of prior

service cost 4.8 6.2 4.6 1.3 0.9 1.1 - - -
Recognized actuarial

(gain) loss - (5.4) (3.2) 2.1 0.8 0.6 5.2 1.1 a.1
Vaoluntary early retirement

costs (Statement 88) 8.5 38.5 - - 0.5 - - - -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 48.7 § 98.3 $ 23.6 $13.1 $10.1 $8.7 $35.0 $28.2 £26.8
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets for 2003 and
2002, and a statement of the funded sfatus for both years. We use a September 30 measurement date for our defined benefit pension
plans and other postretirement benefit plans.

Quakified " Noo-Qualified Other

Pension Benetits Pansion Benefits Postretirement Benefits
{¥n mitifons) 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $1,314.9 £1,083.5 $97.8 $70.9 $343.2 $270.4
Service cost 313 27.3 33 2.7 4.1 3.5
Interest cost 85.9 79.2 6.4 5.1 22.4 19.6
Amendments() 0.3 43.3 0.1 4.5 (3.3) (12.3)
Actuarial loss 97.9 156.5 7.4 20.6 54.3 80.2
Benefits paid (72.5) {74.9} (7.4) {6.0) {22.0) {18.2)
Benefit obligation at end of pariod 1,457.8 1,314.9 107.6 97.8 398.7 343.2
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 756.5 875.4 - - - -
Actual return on plan assets 110.3 {48.0) - - - -
Employer contribution 74.0 4.0 7.4 6.0 22,0 18,2
Benefits paid {72.5) {74.9) (7.4) {6.0) (22.0) (18.2)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 877.3 756.5 - - - -
Funded status (580.5) {558.4) (107.8) {97.8) (398.7) (343.2)
Unrecognized prior service cost 35.4 48.4 12.3 13.5 - -
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 255.5 196.2 43.1 37.6 175.7 125.5
Unrecognized net transition {asset) obligation (0.8) (1.9 - 0.1 26.9 33.5
Benefit cost at December 31 $(290.4) $(315.7) $(52.2) $(46.6) ${196.1) $(184.2)
Amounts recognized in balance sheets
Accrued benefit lability $(366.2) $(353.0)  §(100.5) $(29.0) 4(196.1) §(184.2)
Intangible asset 221 32.6 12.3 13.6 - -
Accumulated other comptehensive income (nre-tax) 53.7 4.7 36.0 28.8 - -
Net recognized at end of periad $(280.4)  $(315.7)  §(52.2) ${46.6) $(196.1)  $(184.2)

(1) for 2003, the amount of $0.3 million includes $8.5 miltion of voluntary early retirertent expenses in occordance with Statement 88, as previously discussed. For 2002, the amounts of
543.3 milbion ond §4.5 mitlion include $38.6 million and $6.5 mitlion, respectively, of voluatary early retirement expenses in accordance with Statement 88, as previcusly discussed.

The accumulated henefit obligation for the qualified defined benefit pension plans was $1,237.3 millicn and $1,101.7 million for
2003 and 2002, respectively. The accumulated benefit ohligation for the non-gualified defined benefit pension plans was $102.1 million
and $90.4 million for 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The weightad-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligaticns were as follows:

Qualified Non-Qualified Other
Pension Benefits Pansion Benafits Pastretirement Benatits
{/r millions) 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.25% 6.75% 6.25% 6.75% 6.25% 6.75%
Rate of future compensation increase 4.00 4.00 £.00 4.00 /A N/A
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The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benafit cost for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

Quatified Pension Benefits

Non-Oualified Pension Benefits

Other Postretirement Benefits

(it millions) 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Hscount rate 6.75% 7.50% 7.50% 6.75%% 7.50% 7.50% 6.75% 7.50% 7.50%
Expected return on

plans” assets $.00 9.25 9.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A 3.00 N/A
Rate of future

compensation increase 4,00 4.00 4.50 4.00 4£.00 4.50 N/A N/A N/A

Qur expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on a calculation provided by an independent investment-
consulting firm. The catculation of the expected return is a
two-step process, Capital market assumptions {e.q., forecasts)
are first developed for various asset classes based on underlying
fundamental and economic drivers of performance. Such drivers
for equity and debt instruments include profit margins, dividend
yields, and interest paid for use of capital. Risk premiums for
each asset class are then developed based on factors such as
expected illiquidity, credit spreads, inflation uncertainty and
country/currency risk. Current valuation factors such as present
interest and inflation rate levels underpin this process.

The assumpticns are then modeled via a probability based
multi-factor capital market methedology. Through this modeling
process, a range of possible 10-year annualized returns are
generated for each strategic asset class. Those returns falling
at the 50th percentile are utilized in the calculation of our
expected long-term rate of return. We penodically request a new
calculation for use in validating our current expected long-term
rate of retum.

The assumed health care cost trend rates were as follows:

2003 2002

Health care cost trend rate

assumed For next year 9.00% 7.00%
Rate to which the cost trend

rate is assumed to decline

(the ultimate trend rate) 5.00% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches

the ultimate trend rate 2008 2008

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A
one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend
rates would have the fallowing effects:

One-Parcentage-
Paint Increase

One-Percentage-

{in miltions} Point Decrease

Fffect an total of service

and interest cost components $ 4.1 $ (3.5)
Effect an accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation 52.1 (45.7)

On December 8, 2003, President Bush signed into law the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003 (the Act). The Act introduced a prescription drug
benefit to retirees as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of
retiree health care benefit plans that provide a prescription drug
benefit that is actuarially equivalent to the benefit provided by
Medicare. In January 2004, the FASB staff issued FASB Staff
Position 106-1, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related
to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modemization Act of 2003 (FSP 106-1), FSP 106-1 allows
sponscrs of postretirement health care plans that provide a
prescription drug benefit to make a one-time election to defer
accounting for certain provisions of the Act until further
authoritative guidance is issued by FASB. Alternatively, sponsors
not electing the deferral option must account for the effects
of the Act. We are required to make our election on whether
we will defer accounting for the effects of the Act by the first

"quarter of 2004. We expect that we will not elect the deferral
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option but will account for the subsidy as a reduction of our
accumulated postretirement henefit obligation with actuarial
gain/loss treatment.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement 106, the Act
had no effect on our reported 2003 accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation, measured at September 30, 2003, or our
2003 net periodic postretirement benefit costs. We expect that
the FASB will issue final authoritative guidance on accounting
for the subsidy during 2004. Depending upon the timing of
such guidance and our conclusion of whether or not to defer
reflecting the effects of the Act, our net periodic postretirement
benefit costs reported during the interim periods of 2004
could change.

In January 2004, we announced to employees the creaticn
of a new retiree Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) option,
which will impact the postretirement healthcare benefits
provided by Cinergy. HRAs are bookkeeping accounts that can
be used fo pay for qualified medical expenses after retirement.
The majority of employeas will have the opportunity to make a
one-time election to remain in our current retiree healthcare
program ar to move to the new HRA option. The HRA option has
no effect on current retirees receiving postretirement benefits
from Cinergy. As is the case under the current retiree health
program, employees who participate in the HRA option will
become eligible to raceive their HRA benefit only upon
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retirement on or afier the age of 50 with at least five years of
service. We expect that the impact of the new HRA option will
not be material to our other postretirement benefit costs.

The following table summarizes federal and state income
taxes charged (credited) to income:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Current Income Taxas
10. Income Taxes Federal 335 5163 $120.4
State 24.9 (4.1) 9.3
The following table shaws the significant components of our net Tetal Current Inceme Taxes 58.4 12.2 138.7
deferred income tax liabilities as of December 31; peferred Income Taxes o
e Federal
fin miiions) 2003 2002 Depreciation and other
Deferred Incame Tax Liability property, plant, and
Property, plant, and equipment $1,524.8 $1,373.6 equipment-related items(t 129.4 172.2 42.7
Unamortized costs of reacquiring debt 15.9 13.9 Pension and other
Deferred operating expeanses and postretirement benefit costs 22.9 (17.4) (11.8)
carrying costs 1.6 4.4 Deferred excise taxes - - 14.5
Purchased power tracker 3.9 11.6 Unrealized energy risk
RTC 204.2 213.2 management transactions 6.1 9.0 44.0
Net energy risk management assets 10.0 8.8 Fuel costs 7.2 (22.7) 5.7
Amounts due from Purchased power tracker (4.6) 1.5 8.5
customers-income taxes 47.6 37.4 Gasification services
Gasification services agreement agreement buyout costs (3.2) (2.6) (2.2)
buyout costs 85.8 89.8 Tax credit carryovers (47.0) - -
Other 24.6 14.4 Other-net (39.5) (14.1) 10.9
Total Deferred ¥ncome Tax Liability 1,918.4 11,7671 Total Deferred Federal Income Taxes 71.3 125.9 112.2
Deferred Income Tax Asset State 21.7 30.4 15.4
Unamortized T‘nvestment tax credits 39.3 42,5 fofél _D;e:f;r'redk;;c;:ne}a;eis - 93.0 156.3 1277
Accraed pension and other Cmm s e
postretirement benefit costs 195.6 196.3 Investment Tax Credits-Net (7.9} {8.2} {9.1)
Net energy risk management labilities 3.8 - Total Income Taxes $143.5  $160.3  $357.3
Rurat Utilities Service obligation 27.3 28.2 (2) The increase from 2001 to 2002 in defesred fncome toxes for depreciation antd
Tax credit carryovers 47.0 B ather property, plant, aad equipment-related items includes a change in accounting
Other 41.8 41,9 method for tax purposes related to capitalized cosis.
Total Deferred Income Tax Asset 360.4 308.9

Net Deferred Income Tax Liability $1,558.0 $1,458.2

We file a consolidated federal income tax return and
combined/consolidated state and local tax returns in certain
jurisdictions. Cinergy and its subsidiaries have an income tax
allocation agreement, which conforms to the reguirements of
the PUHCA, The corporate taxable income method is used to
allocate tax benefits to the subsidiaries whose investments
or results of operations provide those tax benefits. Any tax
liability not directly attributabte to a specific subsidiary is
allocated propaortionately among the subsidiaries as required
by the agreement.
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Internal Revenue Code Section 29 provides a tax credit
(nonconventional fuel source credit) for qualified fuels produced
and sold by a taxpayer to an unrelated person during the
taxable year. The nonconventional fuel source credit reduced
current federal income tax expense $83.7 million, $41.6 million,
and $1.1 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of federal
incame taxes (which are calculated by multiplying the statutory
federal income tax rate by book income before federal income
tax) to the federal income tax expense reported in the
Statements of Income.

{in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Statutory federal income
tax provision $186.0 $185.7 $235.3
Increases {reductions) in taxes
resulting from:
Amortization of investment
tax credits (7.9} (8.2) (9.1)
Depreciation and other
property, plant, and
equipment-related differences 4.3 0.2 3.2
Preferred dividend requirements
of subsidiaries 1.2 1.2 1.2
Income tax credits {83.7) {41.6) (2.1)
Foreign tax adjustments 5.1 3.2 (2.1)
Employee Stock Option Plan
dividend (6.5) (3.0) -
Other-net (1.6) (3.5} 6.2
Federal Income Tax Expense % 96.9 $134.0 $232.6

11. Commitments and Contingencies

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL

(7) Qzone Transport Rulemakings

In June 1997, the Dzone Transport Assessment Group, which
consisted of 37 states, made a wide range of recommendations
to the U.5. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to address
the impact of ozone transport on serious non-attainment areas
{(geographic areas defined by the EPA as non-compliant with
ozone standards) in the Northeast, Midwest, and South. Jzone
transport refers to wind-blown movement of ozone and ozone-
causing materials across city and state boundaries.

1. Nitrogen Oxide (NQx) State Implementation Plan
(SIP) Caflt In October 1998, the EPA finalized its ozane
transport rule, also known as the NOx SIP Call. It applied to
22 states in the eastern half of the U.S., including the three
states in which our electric utilities operate, and proposed
a model NOx emission allowance trading program. This rule
recommended that states reduce NOy emissions primarily from
industrial and utility sources to a certain level by May 2003.

In August 2000, the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals for the
District of Columbia (Court of Appeals) extended the deadline
for NOx reductions to May 31, 2004, The states of West Virginia
and Illinois, along with various industry graups (some of which
we are a member), have challenged portions of the final rule in
an action filed in the Court of Appeals. A decision is expected
some time in the first quarter of 2004, It is unclear whather the
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Court of Appeals’ decision in this matter will result in an
increase or decrease in the size of the NOy reduction require-
ment, or a deferral of the May 31, 2004 compliance deadline,

The states of Indiana and Kentucky developed final NOx
SIP rules in response to the NOx SIP Call, through cap and
trade programs, in June and July of 2001, respectively. The
EPA has approved Indiana’s and Kentucky's SIP rules, which
have both become effective, and has conditionally approved
Dhio’s SIP rules, Ohio Environmental Protection Agency is
still promulgating the changes to its rules to satisfy the EPAs
canditions for approval. Cur current plans for compliance with
the EPA’s NOx SIP Call would also satisfy compliance with
Indiana’s, Kentucky's, and Ohio’s SIP rules.

Tn September 2000, Cinergy announced a plan for its
subsidiaries, CG&E and PSI, to invest in poliution cantrol
equipment and other methods to reduce NOx emissions, This
plan includes the following:

¢ install selective catalytic reduction units at several
different generating stations;

e install other pollution control technologies, including
new compuferized combustion controls, at all
aenerating stations;

* make combustion improvements; and

= utilize the NOx allowance market to buy or sell N0x
allowances as appropriate.

The current estimate for additional expenditures for this
plan is approximately $104 million and is in addition to the
$635 million already incurred to comply with this program.

2, Section 126 Petitions In February 1998, several
northeast states filed petitions seeking the EPA's assistance in
raducing ozone in the Eastern U.S. under Section 126 of the
Clean Air Act (CAA). The EPA believes that Section 126 petitions
allow a state to claim that sources in another state are
centributing to its air quality problem and request that the
EPA require the upwind sources to reduce their emissions.

In December 1999, the EPA granted four Section 126
petitions relating to NOx emissions. This ruling affected all of
our Qhic and Kentucky facilities, as well as some of our Indiana
facilities, and required us to reduce our NOx emissions to a
certain level by May 2003. The EPA subsequently extended the
Section 126 rule compliance deadline to May 31, 2004, thus
harmonizing the deadline with that for the NQOy SIP Call.

In April 2003, the EPA issued a proposed rule withdrawing
the Section 126 rule in states with approved SIPs under the
NOx SIP Call, which include the states of Indiana and Kentucky.
The proposed rule states that the EPA will withdraw the Section
126 rule in Ohio once Ohio has a fully approved SIP. As a result
of these actions, we anticipate that the Section 126 rule will he
withdrawn and, as a result, not affect any of our facilities.



CINEiRGY CORP.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Clean Air Act Lawsuit

In November 1999, and through subsequent amendments,
the United States brauaht a lawsuit in the United States Federal
District Court (District Court) for tha Southern District of
Indiana against Cinergy, CG&E, and PSI alleging various
violations of the CAA, Specifically, the lawsuit alleges that we
violated the CAA by nat obtaining Preventicn of Significant
Deterioration (PSB), Non-Attainment New Source Review (NSR)
and Ohio and Indiana SIP permits for various projecis at our
owned and co-owned generating stations. Additionally, the
suit claims that we viclated an Administrative Consent Order
entered into in 1998 between EPA and Cinergy relating to
alleged violations of OQhio’s SIP provisions governing particulate
matter at Unit 1 at CG&E's W.C. Beckjord Generating Station
{Beckjord Station), The suit seeks (1) Tnjunctive relief to require
installation of pollution control technology on various generat-
ing units at CG&E’s Beckjord Station and Miami Fort Generating
Station (Miami Fort Station), and PSI's Cayuga Generating
Station, Gallagher Generating Station, Wabash River Generating
Station, and Gibson Generating Station (Gibson Station), and
(2) civil penalties in amounts of up to $27,500 per day for
each vialation. In addition, three northeast states and two
environmental groups have intervened in the case. The case is
currently in discovery, and the District Court has set the case
for trial by jury commencing in August 2005.

In March 2000, the United States also filed an amended
complaint in a separate lawsuit alleging violations of the CAA
relating to PSD, NSR, and Ohio SIP requirements regarding
various generating stations, including a generating station
operated by the Columbus Southern Power Company {CSP) and
jointly-owned by CSP, the Dayton Power and Light Company
(DP&L), and CG&E. The EPA is seeking injunctive relief and civil
penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each violation. This suit
is being defended by CSP. In Aprit 2001, the District Court in
that case ruled that the Government and the intervening
plaintiff environmental groups could seek injunctive relief for
alleged violations that occurred more than five years before the
filing of the complaint only. Thus, if the plaintiffs prevail in
their claims, any calculation for penalties will not start on the
date of the allegad violations, unless those alleged violations
occurred after November 3, 1994, but CSF would be forced to
install the controls required under the CAA. Neither party
appealed that decision,

In addition, Cinergy and CG&E have been informad by
DP&L that in June 2000, the EPA issued & Notice of Violation
(NOV) to DP&L for alleged violations of PSD, NSR, and SIP
requirements at a generating station operated by DP&L and
Jjointly-owned by CG&E. The NOV indicated the CPA may (1)
issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of
the SIP, or (2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief
and civit penalties of up to 327,500 per day for each violation,

In Decamber 2000, Cinergy, CG&E. and P5I reached an agree-
ment in principle with the plaintiffs regarding the previously
mentioned matters. The complete resolution of these issues was
contingent upon establishing a final agreement with the EPA
and other parties. Although we have continued to negotiate
with the plaintiffs to achieve a final agreement, the plaintiffs
have insisted on commitments from us which go beyond those
contained in the agreement in principle, At this time we believe
it is unlikely that a final settlement agreement will be reached
en these terms. If a final settlement agreement is not reached,
we intend to defend against the allegations, discussed above,
vigorously in court. In such an event it is not possible to
predict whether resalution of these matters would have a mate-
rial effect on our financial position or results of operations.

(ift) Manufactured Gos Plant (MGFP} Sites

Prior to the 1950s, gas was produced at MGP sites through
a process that involved the heating of coal and/or oil. The gas
produced from this process was sold for residential, commercial,
and industrial uses.

Coal tar residues, related hydrocarbons, and various metals
have been found at former MGP sites in Indiana, including at
least 22 sites that PSI or its predecessors previously owned and
sold in a series of transactions with Northern Indiana Public
Servica Company {NIPSCO} and Indiana Gas Company, Inc. (16C).

In a combination of lawsuits and natices of violation, the 22
sites are in the process of being studied and will be remediated,
if necessary. In 1998 NIPSCQ, IGC, and PSI entered info Site
Participation and Cost Sharing Agreements to allocate liability
and responsibilities between them, The Indiana Department of
Environmental Management (IDEM) oversees investigation and
cleanup of all cf these sites. Thus far, PSI has primary respcnsi-
bility for investigating, monitoring and, if necessary, remediat-
ing nine of these sites. In December 2003, PSI entered into a
voluntary remediation plan with the state of Indiana, providing
a formal framework for the investigation and cleanup of the
sites for which PSI has primary responsibility.

PSI notified its insurance carriers of the claims related
o MGP sites raised by IDEM and costs included in the Site
Participation and Cost Sharing Agreements. In April 1998, PSI
filed suit in Hendricks County in the state of Indiana against
its general lability insurance carriers, PSI sought a declaratory

judgment. to obligate its insurance carriers to {1) defend MGP

claims against PSI and compensate PSI for its costs of investi-
gating, preventing, mitigating, and remediating damage to
property and paying claims related ta MGP sites or (2} pay

PSI's cost of defense, The tial court issued a variety of rulings
with respect to the claims and defenses in the litigation. PSL
appealed certain adverse rulings to the Indiana Court of Appeals
and the appellate court has remanded the case to the trial
court. A new trial date has yet to be scheduled. At the present
time, PSI cannot predict the outcome of this litigation,
including the outcome of the appeals,
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P51 has accrued costs related to investigation, remediation,
and groundwater monitaring for those sites where such costs
are probable and can be reasonably estimated. We will continue
to investigate and remediate the sites as outlined in the
voluntary remediation plan. As additional facts become known
and investigation is completed, we will assess if the likelihood
of incurring additional costs becomes probable. Until all
investigation and remediation iz complete, we are unakle to
determine the overall impact on our financial position or results
of operations,

CGRE has performed site assessments an its sites where we
believe MGP activities have accurred at some pofnt in the past
and found no imminent risk to the environment.

(iv) Asbestos Claims Litigation

CG&E and PSI have been named as defendants or
co-defendants in lawsuits related to asbestos at their electric
generating stations. Currently, there are approximately 80
pending lawsuits. In these lawsuits, plaintiffs claim to have
been exposed to ashestos-containing products in the course of
their work at the CG&E and PSI generating stations, The plain-
tiffs further claim that as the property owner of the generating
stations, CG&E and PSI should be held liable for their injuries
and illnesses based on an alleged duty to warn and protect
them from any asbestos exposure. A majority of the lawsuits to
date have been brought against PSI. The impact on CG&E's and
PSI's financial position or resulis of operations of these cases to
date has not been material,

Of these lawsuits, one case filed against PS! has been tried
to verdict. The jury returned a verdict against P51 in the amount
of approximately $500,000 on a negligence claim and for PSI on
punitive damages. PSI recently received an adverse ruling in an
appeal of that verdict and is reviewing whether to appeal the
verdict to the Indiana Supreme Court. In addition, we have
settled a number of other lawsuits for amounts, which neither
individually nor in the aggregate are material to CG&E's and
PSI's financial position or results of operations.

At this time, CG&E and PSI are not able to predict the
ultimate outcoma of these lawsuits or the impact on CG&E's
and PSI's financial position or results of operations.

(B REGULATORY

(1) PSI Retail Electric Rate Case

In December 2002, PSI filed a petition with the IURC
seeking approval of a base retail electric rate increase. PSI has
filed initial and rebuttal testimony in this case and the final set
of hearings took place in November 2003. PSI filed its proposed
order in December 2003. Based on updated testimony filed in
Qctober 2003 and the proposed order, PSI propases an increase
in annual revenues of approximately $180 million, or an average
increase of approximately 14 percent over PSI's retail electric
rates in effect at the end of 2002, An IURC decision is antici-
pated by the end of the first quarter of 2004.
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(i} PSI Fuel Adjustment Charge

In June 2001, PSI filed a petition with the IURC requesting
authority to recover $16 million in under billed deferred fuel
costs incurred from March 2001 through May 2001. The IURC
approved recovery of these costs subject to refund pending the
findings of an investigative sub-docket. The sub-tocket was
apened to investigate the reascnableness of, and underlying
reasons for, the under billed deferred fuel costs, A hearing was
held in July 2002, and in March 2003 the IURC issued an order
giving final approval to PSI's recovery of the $16 million.

(iii) PSI Construction Work in Progress (CWIP) Ratemaking
Treatment for NOx Fquipment

In April 2003, PSI filed an application with the IURC
requesting that its CWIP rate adjustment mechanism be updated
for expenditures through December 2002 related to NOy equip-
ment currently being installed at certain PSI generation
facilities. CWIP ratemaking treatment allows for the recovery
of carrying costs on certain pollution contrel equipment while
and after the equipment is under construction. A final order was
issued in September 2003. The order granted substantially all of
PST's requested relief, leaving only the issue of whether certain
specific equipment qualified for CWIP ratemaking treatment to
be decided in the first half of 2004. This CWIP rate mechanism
adjustment resulted in less than a one percent increase in
customer rates.

In October 2003, PSI filed an application with the IURC
requesting that its CWIP rate adjustment mechanism be updated
for additional expenditures through September 30, 2003, related
to NOx equipment currently being installed at certain PSI gener-
ation facilities. If the application s approved, it will result in
the recovery of an additional $7 million. An order on this third
CWIP update case s expected in the first half of 2004,

PSI's initial CWIP rate mechanism adjustment {authorized
in July 2002} resulted in an approximately one percent increase
in customer rates. Under the IURC's CWIP rules, PSI may update
its CWIP tracker at six-month intervals. The first such update to
PSI's CWIP rate mechanism occurred in the first quarter of 2003.
The IURC's July 2002 order alse authorized PSI to defer, for
subsequent recovery, post-in-service depreciation and te
continue the accrual for AFUDC, Pursuant to Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 92, Regulated Enterprises-
Accounting for Phase-in Plans, the equity component of AFUDC
will not be deferred for financial reporting after the related
assets are placed in service,

{iv) PSI Environmental Compliance Cost Recovery

In 2002, the Indiana General Assembly passed legislation
that, among other things, encourages the deployment of
advanced technologies that reduce regulated air emissions,
while zllowing the continued use of high sulfur Midwest ceal
in existing electric generating ptants. The legislation authorizes
the TURC to provide financial incentives to utilities that deploy
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such advanced technologies. PSI sought IURC approval,

under this new law, of a cost tracking mechanism for PSI's NOx
equipment-related depieciation and operation and maintenance
costs, authority to use accelerated (18-year) depreciation for
its NOx compliance equipment, and approval of a NOx emissian
allowance purchase and sales tracker, In October 2003, PSI
reached a settlement with the other parties to this case that
provides for the relief described previously for most of PSI's
envirgnmental compliance equipment, In December 2003, the
FURC approved the settlement agreement. Previously, the
majority of these costs (the post-in-service depreciation costs)
were being deferred pursuant to the July 2002 CWIP order
described previously, and as a result, the settlement agreement
did not have a material impact on P5I’s results of operations
or financial condition,

{v) PSI Purchased Power Tracker

The Tracker was designed to provide for the recovery of costs
related to certain specified purchases of power necessary to
meet native load customers’ summer peak demand requirements
to the extent such costs are not recovered through the existing
fuel adjustment clause.

PSI s authorized to seek recovery of 90 percent of its
purchased power expenses through the Tracker (net of the
displaced energy portion recovered through the fuel recovery
process and net of the mitigation credit portion), with the
remaining 10 percent deferred for subsequent recovery in PSI's
general retail electric rate case. In March 2002, PSI filed a
petition with the IURC seeking approval to extend the Tracker
process heyond the summer of 2002. A hearing was held in
January 2003, and in June 2003 the IURC approved the
extension for up to an additional two years with the ultimate
determination concerning PSI's continued use of the Tracker
process to be made in PSI's pending retail electric rate case.

In June 2002, PSI also filed a pefition with the TURC
seeking approval of the recovery through the Tracker of its
actual summer 2002 purchased power costs, In May 2003,
the IURC approved PSI's recavery of $18 million related to
its summer 2002 purchased power costs, and also authorized
$2 miltion of deferred costs sought for recovery in PSI's general
retail electric rate case.

{vi) CG&E Trensmission and Distribution Rate Filings

In October 2003, CG&E filed an application with the PUCC
seeking deferral of approximately $173 million, of which approx-
imately $42 million has been incurred as of December 31, 2003,
in depreciation, property taxes and carrying costs related to
net additiens to transmission and distribution utility plant in
service from January 2001 through December 2005, Rates are
frozen in Ohio under the state’s electric restructuring law from
2001 through the end of the market development period. CG&E
has not deferred any of these costs as of December 31, 2003,

CG&E is proposing a mechanism to recover costs related to
net additions to fransmission and distribution utility plant in

service after the end of the market development period. The
mechanism would work in a similar manner to the monthly
customer charge the PUCO approved for CG&E's accelerated
natural gas main replacement program, discussed below in
(vit), which is adjusted annually based on expenditures in
the previous year.

In the alternative electric reliability and rate stabilization
proposal that CG&E filed in January 2004 with the PUCO,
which is described in more detail in Note 17, (G&E made
an alternative proposal to seek deferrals of transmission and
distribution utility plant in service from January 2003 through
December 2004, for the PUCO to declare an end to the market
development period effeciive December 31, 2004, and for CG&E
to file a transmission and distribution base rate case in 2004
to be effective January i, 2005. The alternative proposal alsc
includes tracking mechanisms as described in the preceding
paragraph, which would recover ongoing transmission and
distribution costs,

(vii) CG&E Gas Rate Case

In the third quarter of 2001, CG&E filed a retail gas rate
case with the PUCD seeking to increase base rates for natural
gas distribution service and requesting recovery through a
tracking mechanism of the costs of an accelerated gas main
replacement program with an estimated capital cost of
§716 million over 10 years. An order was issued in May 2002,
in which the PUCO authorized a base rate increase of approx-
imately $15 million, or 3.3 percent overall, effective May 30,
2002. In addition, the PUCD authorized CG&E to implement the
tracking mechanism to recover the costs of the accelerated gas
main replacement program, subject to certain rate caps that
increase in amount annually through May 2007, through the
effective date of new rates in CG&E's next retail gas rate case.
In April 2003, CG&E received approval to increase its rates
under the tracking mechanism by $6.5 million. This increase
was effective in May 2003, CG&E filed another application in
January 2004 to increase its rates hy approximately $7 million
under the tracking mechanism. CG&E expects that the PUCO will
rule on this application in the second quarter of 2004,

(vifi) ULH&P Gas Rate Cuse

In the second quarter of 2001, ULH&P filed a retail gas
rate case with the KPSC seeking to increase base rates for
naturat gas distribution services and requesting recovery
thraugh a tracking mechanism of the costs of an accelerated
gas main replacement program with an estimated capital cost
of $112 million aver 10 years. Through December 31, 2003,
ULH&P has recovered approximately $1.4 millien under this
tracking mechanism. The Kentucky Attorney General has
appealed to the Franklin Circuit Court the KPSC's approval of
the tracking mechanism and the KPSC's orders approving the
new tracking mechanism rates. At the present time, ULH&P
cannot predict the timing or cutcome of this litigation.
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(ix) Gas Distribution Plant

In June 2003, the PUCO approved an amended settlement
agreement between CG&E and the PUCO Staff in a gas distribu-
tion safety case arising out of a gas leak at a service head-
adapter {SHA) style riser on CG&E's distribution system. The
amended settlement agreement required CG&F to expend a
minimum of $700,000 to replace SHA risers by December 31,
2003, and to file & comprehensive plan addressing all SHA risers
on its distribution system. Cinergy has an estimated 190,000
SHA risers on its distribution system, of which 155,000 are in
CG&E's service area and 31,000 are in ULH&P's service area.
Further investigation as to whether any additional SHA risers
will need maintenance or replacement is ongoing. If CG&E and
ULH&P determine that replacement of all SHA risers is appropri-
ate, we currently estimate that the replacement cost could be
up te approximately $70 million. CG&E and ULH&P would pursue
recovery of this cost through rates. At this time, Cinergy, CG&E,
and ULH&P cannet predict the outcome of this matter.

() OTHER

(7} Gas Customer Choice

In January 2000, Investments sold Cinergy Resources, Inc.
(Rescurces), a former subsidiary, to Licking Rural Electrification,
Inc., doing business as The Energy Cooperative (Energy
Cooperative}. In February 2001, Cinergy, CG&E, and Resources
were named as defendants in three class action lawsuits brought
by customers relating to Energy Cooperative's removal from the
Ohio Gas Customer Choice program and the failure to deliver
gas to customers, Subsequently, these class action suits were
amended and consolidated into one suit. CG&E has been
dismissed as a defendant in the consolidated swit, This
customer litigation is pending in the Hamilton County Comman
Pleas Court. The trial court certified a class against CG&E in
November 2003. A trial date has not been set.

In March 2001, Cinergy, CG&E, and Investments were named
as defendants in a lawsuit filed by Energy Cooperative and
Resources. This lawsuit concerns any obligations or liabilities
Investments may have to Energy Cooperative following its sale
of Resources. This lawsuit is pending in the Licking County
Comman Pleas Court. Trial is anticipated to occur in November
2004. In Cctober 2001, Cinergy, CGRE, and Investments initi-
ated litigation against the Energy Cooperative requesting
indemnification by the Enargy Caoperative for the claims
asserted by former customers fni the class action litigation.

We intend to vigorously defend these lawsuits and do not
believe their outcome will have a material effact on our
financial position or results of operations.

(i1} Contract Disputes

Cinergy, through a subsidiary of Investments, has been
involved in negotiations to resolve a customer billing dispute.
The primary issue of contention between the parties related to
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the determinants used in calculating the monthly charge billed
for electricity. Receivables from the customer have been
recorded at their net realizable value and in January 2004,
we settled the dispute, The impact of the settlement was not
material to our financial position or results of operations.
Marketing & Trading was in arbifration with Apache
Corporation (Apache) concerning disputes under an agreement
whereby we marketed natural gas that Apache produced or
acquired in North America. Effective July 1, 2003, Marketing &
Trading terminated its marketing relationship with Apache. The
termination of the marketing relationship ended the arbitration
and all outstanding monetary issues related to the arbitration
were settled. The impact of the settlement was not material to
our financial position or results of operations.

(7ii) Enron Bankrupicy

In December 2001, Enron filed for protection under Chapter
11 of the U.5. Bankruptcy Code in the Southern District of
New York. We decreased our trading activities with Enron in
the maonths prior to its bankruptcy filing and fited a motion
with the bankruptcy court overseeing the Enron bankruptcy
seeking appropriate netting of the various payables and receiv-
ables between and among Enron and (inergy entities. Based on
judicial decisions regarding the permissibility of certain broad
netting arrangements and the results of our mediation, we
entered into a settlement agreement with Enron, which became
final on January 13, 2004. As a result of this agreement, we
paid Enron approximately $14 million of which $12 million was
charged to expense during the third quarter of 2003. We believe
this resolves all of our claims with the Enron entities, except for
one claim being handlad outside the United States proceeding
involving the recovery of an insignificant amount.

(iv) Synthetic Fuel Production

In July 2002, we acquired a coal-based synthetic fuel
production facility, As of December 31, 2003, our net book
value in this facility was approximately $60 million. The
synthetic fuel produced at this facility qualifies for tax credits
in accordance with Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Eligibility for these credits expires after 2007, We received a
private letter ruling from the IRS in connection with the
acquisition of the facility. To date, we have produced and sold
approximately 4.4 million tons of synthetic fuel at this facility,
resulting in approximately $120 million in fax credits, including
approximately $88 million in 20603.

In the second quarter of 2003, the IRS announced, as a
result of an audit of another taxpayer, that it had reason to
question and was reviewing the scientific validity of test
procedures and results that were presented as evidence the
fuel underwent a significant chemical change. The IRS recently
announced that it has finished its veview and has determined
that test procedures and results used by taxpayers may be
scientifically valid if the procedures are applied in a consistent
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and unbiased manner. The IRS also announced that it plans

to impose new testing and record-keeping requirements on
synthetic fuel producers and plans to issue guidance extending
these requirements to taxpayers already holding private letter
tulings on the issue of significant chemical change, We believe
that any new testing or record-keeping requirements impaosed by
the IRS will not have a material effect on our financial position
or results of operations.

(v) Energy Market Investigotions

In July 2003, we received a subpoena from the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission (CFTC). As has been previously
reperted by the press, the CFTC has served subpoanas on numer-
ous other enerqy cempanies. The CFTC request soaght certain
information regarding our trading activities, including price
reperting to energy industry publications. The CFTC sought
particutar information concerning these matters for the period
May 2000 through January 2001 as to one of our employees.
Based on an initial review of these matters, we placed that
employee on administrative leave and have subsequently termi-
nated his employment. We are continuing an investigation of
these matters, including whether price reporting inconsistencies
occurred in our aperations, and have been cooperating fully
with the CFTC.

In August 2003, Cinergy, along with 38 other companies,
was named as & defendant in ¢ivil litigation filed as a purported
class action on behalf of all persons who purchased and/or sold
New York Mercantile Exchange natural gas futures and options
contracts between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2002. The
comylaint atlages that improper price reporting caused damages
to the class. Two similar lawsuits have subsequently been filed,
and these three lawsuits have been consolidatad for pretrial
purposes. Plaintiffs filed a consolidated class action complaint
in January 2004, We believe this action is without merit and
intend to defend this lawsuit vigorously; however, we cannot
predict the outcome of this matter at this time.

In the second quarter of 2003, we received initial and
follow-up third-party subpoenas from the SEC requesting
information related to particular trading activity with ane of
our counterparties who was the target of an investigation by
the SEC. We have fully cooperated with the SEC in connection
with this matter. In January 2004, we received a grand jury
subpoena from the Assistant United States Attorey in the
Southern District of Texas for information relating to the same
trading activities being investigated by the SEC. Specifically, the
Assistant United States Attorney has requested information
relating to communications between a former employee and
another energy company, We understand that we are neither
a target nor are we under investigation by the Department of
Justice in relation to these communications.

At this time, it is not possible to predict the outcome
of these investigations and litigation or their impact on our
financial position or results of operations; although, in the

opinion of management, they are not likely to have a material
adverse effect on our financiak position or results of operations.

(vi) Patents

Ronald A. Katz Technology Licensing, L.P, (RAKTL) has
offered us a license to a portfolio of patents claiming that the
patents may be infringed by certain products and services
utilized by us. The patents purportedly relate to various aspects
of telephone call processing in Cinergy call centers. As of this
date, no legal proceedings have been instituted against us, but
if tha RAKTL patents are valid, enforceable and apply to our
business, we could be required to seek a License from RAKTL or
to discentinue certain activitias. We are currently considering
this matter, but lack sufficient information to assess the
potential outcome at this time.

(vii) Guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, we enter inta various
agreements providing financial or performance assurances to
third parties on behalf of certain unconsolidated subsidiaries
and joint ventures. These agreements are entered into primarily
to support or enhance the creditworthiness ctherwise attributed
to these entities on a stand-alone hasis, thereby facilitating
the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish their intended
commercial purposes. The guarantees have various termination
dates, from short-term (less than one year) to open-ended.

In many cases, the maximum potential amount of an
outstanding guarantee is an express term, set forth in the
guarantee agreement, representing the maximum potential
obligation of Cinergy under that guarantee (excluding, at times,
certain legal fees to which a guaranty beneficiary may be
entitled). In those cases where there is no maximum potential
amount expressly set forth in the gquarantee agreement, we
calculate the maximum potential amount by considering the
terms of the gquaranteed transactions, to the extent such
amount is estimable.

We have guaranteed the payment of $25 million as of
December 31, 2003, for borrowings by individuals under the

‘Director, Officer, and Key Employee Stock Purchase Program.

We may be obligated to pay the debt's principal and any related
interest in the event of an unexcused breach of & guaranteed
payment obligation by certain directors, officers, and key
employees, Most of the guarantees do not have a set termina-
tion date; however, the borrowings associated with the majority
of the guarantees are due in the first quarter of 2005. Cinergy
Carp. has also provided performance guarantees on behalf of
certain unconsolidated subsidiaries and joint ventures. These
guarantees support performance under various agreements and
instruments {such as construction contracts, cperations and
maintenance agreements, and energy service agreements).
Cinergy Corp. may be liable in the event of an unexcused breach
of a guaranteed performance obligation by an unconsolidated
subsidiary. Cinergy Corp. has estimated its maximum potential
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amount to be $104 million under these guarantees as of
December 31, 2003. Cinergy Corp. may also have recourse to
third parties for claims required to be paid under certain of
these guarantees. The majority of these guarantees expire at
the completion of the underlying performance agreement, the
majority of which expire from 2016 to 2019.

We have entered into contracts that include indemnification
provisions as a routine part of our business activities, Examples
of these contracts include purchase and sale agreements and
operating agreements. In general, these provisions indemnify
the counterparty for matters such as breaches of representations
and warranties and covenants contained in the contract, In
some cases, particularly with respect to purchase and sale
agreements, the potential liabitity for certain indemnification
obligations is capped, in whole or in part (generally at an
aggregate amount not exceeding the sale price), and subject to
a deductible amount befare any payments would become due. In
other cases (such as indemnifications for willful misconduct of
employzes in a joint venture), the maximum potential amount
is not estimable given that the magnitude of any claims under
those indemnifications would be a function of the extent of
damages actually incurred, which is not practicable to estimate
unless and untit the event occurs. We have estimated the
maximum potential amount, where estimable, to be 3115 million
under these indemnification provisions, The termination period
for the majority of matters provided by indemnification
provisions in purchase and sale agreements generally ranges
from 2004 to 2009.
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We believe the likelihood that Cinergy would be required
to perform or otherwise incur any significant losses associated
with any or all of the guarantees described in the preceding
paragraphs s remote,

{viii}) Construction and Other Commitments

Forecasted construction and other commitied expenditures,
including capitalized financing costs, for the year 2004 and
for the five-year period 2004-2008 (in nominal dollars) are
$756 million and $4.1 billion, respectively. This forecast
includes an estimate of expenditures in accordance with
the companies’ plans regarding environmental compliance.

12. Jointly-Owned Plant

CG&E, CSP, and DPAL jointly own electric generating units and
related transmission facilities. PSI is a joint-owner of Gibson
Station Unit No. 5 with Wahash Valley Power Assaciation, Inc.
(WVPA), and Indiana Municipal Power Agency (IMPA).
Additionally, PSI is a joint-owner with WVPA and IMPA of
certain transmission property and local facilities. These facilities
constitute part of the integrated transmission and distribution
systems, which are operated and maintained hy PST, The
Statements of Income reflect CG&E's and PSI's portions of ail
operating costs associated with the jointly-owned facilities.
As of December 31, 2003, CGRFE's and PST's investments in
jointly-owned plant or facilities were as follows:

Ownership Property, Plant, Accumulated Constructian
{in miffions) Share and Equipment Depraciation Work in Frogress
CGRE
Praduction:
Miami Fort Station (Units 7 and 8) 54.00% $ 334 4132 $ 2
Beckjord Station (Unit 6) 37.50 45 28 1
Stuart Station() 39.00 308 156 75
Cenesville Station (Unit 4)(1 40.00 76 46 1
Zimmer Station 46.50 1,240 420 16
fast Bend Station 59.00 392 193 3
Kilten Station(V) 33.00 193 108 13
Transmission Various 85 40 -
PS1
Production:
Gibson Statian (Unit 5) 50.05 218 125 48
Transmission and local facilities 94.37 2,466 950 -

(1} Station is not eperated by {GRE,
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13. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

First Secend Third fourth
(in milifons, except per shore araounts} Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
2003
Results of Operations:
Operating Revenuees(l) $1,268 % 034 $1,092 §1,122 34,416
Operating Income 255 138 204 212 809
Income before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles 140 76 112 107 435
Discontinued operations, net of tax(® - 9 - - 9
Cumulative effect of chainges in accounting
principles, net of tax® 26 - - - 26
Net Income $ 166 $ 85 $ 112 £ 107 $ 470
Per Share Data;
EPS
Income before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles 0.81 0.42 0.63 0.60 2.46
Discontinued operations, net of tax( - 0.05 - - 0.05
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles,
net of tax(? 0.15 - - - 0.15
Net Income $ 0.90 $0.47 $ 0.63 $ 0.60 $ 2.66
EPS — assuming dilution
Income before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles 0.80 0.42 0.62 0.59 2,43
Discontinued operations, net of tax(?) - 0.05 - - 0.05
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles,
net of tax(? 0.15 - - - 0.15
Net Income § 0.95 $0.47 $ 0.62 $ 0.59 $ 2.63
2002
Results of Dperations:
Operating Revenues(!) 3 967 $ 907 $1,120 $1,065 $4,059
Operating Income 211 136 239 214 800
Income before discontinued operations and a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle g5 45 132 125 397
Discontinued operations, nat of tax(z) 1 - (1) (25) (25)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax(4} (1n - - - (11)
Net Income } 85 $ 45 $ 131 $ 100 $ 361
Per Share Data:
£ps
Income before discentinued cperations and a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle 0.57 0.27 0.79 0.74 2.37
Discontinued operations, net of tax® 0.01 -~ (0.01) (0.15) (0.15)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax(® {0.08) - - - (0.06)
Net Income $ 0.52 $0.27 § 0.78 $ 0.59 $ 216
EPS — assuming dilution
Income before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle 0.57 0.26 0.78 0.73 2.34
Discontinued operations, net of tax(@ 0.01 - {0.01) {0.18) (0.18)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax(® {0.06) - - - (0.06)
Net Income $ 0.52 $0.26 $ 0.77 $ 0.58 $ 213

(1) £ITF 02-3 required that olf gains end losses on energy trading denvatives be presented or o net basis beginning January 1, 2003, This resulted in substantind reductions in reported
Dperating Revenues, Fuel and purchased and exchonged power expense, and Gas purchosed expense. However, Operating Income and Net Income were not offected by iis change.
For further information on EITF 02-3 see Note 1(Q)[5).

(2} See Note 14 for further explanation,

(3} Cinergy recogmized o guin/(loss) on comudotive effect of chenges in accounting principles of $39 million (ret of tax) and ($13) million (aet of tax) as a result of the reversaf of
accrued cost of reniovel for non-reguioted generating assets aid the change in eccounting of certain energy related contracts from fair value to accriral, See Note 1(Q) ¢vi} for further
information on the effects of changes in eccounting principles.

[4) Upon implementotion of Statement 142, Cinergy recognized @ non-cash impairment charge of ($11) miltion, net of tox, for goodwill related to certain fnternniional assets,

See Note 1(0)(vi} for further information of the effect of a change in accounting principle.
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14. Discontinued Operations

During 2002, we began taking steps to monetize certain
non-core invastments, including renewable and international
investments within Commercial. During the second half of the
year, we either sald or initiated plans to dispose of generation
and electric and gas distribution operations in the Czech
Republic, Estonia, and South Africa. We also sold investments,
which were accounted for under the equity method, in renew-
able inveskments located in Spain and California. In total, we
disposed of approximately $125 million of investments at a
net loss, after-tax, of $7 million in 2002, Included in this net
{nss were cumulative foreign currency translation losses of
approximately 34 million, after-tax.

During 2003, we completed the disposal of our gas distribu-
tion operation in South Africa, sold our remaining wind assets
in the U.S., and substantially sold or liquidated the assets of
our energy marketing business in the Czech Republic.

As a result of the 2003 transactions, assets of approximately
$140 million have bzen sold or converted into cash and liabili-
ties of approximately $100 million have been assumad by buyers
or liquidated. The net, after-tax, gain from these disposal and
liguidation transactions was approximately $9 million (including
a net after-tax cumulative currency translaticn gain of approx-
imately $6 millian).

GAAP requires different accounting treatment for investment
disposals involving entities which are conselidated and entities
which are accounted for under the equity method. The consoli-
dated entities have been presented as Discontinued operations,
net of tax in our Statements of Inceme and as Assets/Liabilities
of Discontinued Operations in our Balance Sheets, The accompa-
nying financial statements and prior year financial statements
have haen reclassified to account for these entities as such.
The disposal of the entities accounted for using the equity
method are not allowed to be presented as discontinued
operations. A gain of approzimately $17 million on the sale
of these entities is included in Miscelfaneous — Net in our 2002
Statements of Income.
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The tahle helow reflects the assets and liabilities, the results
of operations, and the income (loss) on disposal related te
investments accounted for as discontinued operations for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

December 31

(in thousonds) 2003 2002

$22,257 § 95,493
$ 4,445 $(27,152)
$ 4,441 § 1,901

Revenues(l)

Income (Loss) Before Taxes

Income Taxes Benefit (Expense)

Income {Loss) from Discentinued Operations
Income (Loss) from operations, net of tax ~ § 3§ (829)
Gain (Loss) on disposal, net of tax(} 8,883  (24.332)

Total Income (Lass) from
Discentinued Operations § 8,886 $(25.161)
Assets
Current assels
Property, plant, and equipment — nat -

Other assets -

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Long-term debt {including Long-term
debt due within one year) - B4,654
Gther - 17,547

Total Liabilities $11,594 $108,833

(1) Presented for informational purposes only. All resutts of operations are reported
net in our Statements of Income.

(2) For 2002, approximately 317 mitlion of this amount represents a write-down to foir
value, less cost to sell, on nssets classified as held for sale at December 31, 2002,
The remaining loss on disposal for 2002 represents actual losses on completed sales.

§ 4501 % 48,719
78,309
20,237

$ 4,501 $147,265

$11,594 $ 6,632

The losses included in the 2002 discontinued operations
primanily pertain to two investments. In one case, the primary
customer of a combined heat and power plant filed for bank-
ruptcy resulting in a significant reduction in future expected
revenues from the investment. This investment was sold in
December 2002. In the second case, the retail market of a gas
distribution business did not develop as expected, and we
elected to exit the businass rather than invest the additional
capital which would be required to reach z sustainable level
of market penetration. The investment was written down to
its realizable value in December 2002 and was subsequently
sold in April 2003.
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15, Financial Information by Business Segment i transmission and distribution systems. Regulated Businesses
- plans, constructs, operates, and maintains our transmission

We conduct operations through our subsidiaries and manage our and distribution systems and delivers gas and electric energy

business through the following three reportable sagments: ! to consumers. Regulated Businasses alsc earns revenues from

« Cammercial; wholesale customers primarily by transmitting electric powar

through our transmission system.
Pawer Technology primarily manages Cinergy Ventures, LLC
(Ventures), our venture capital subsidiary. Ventures identifies,

= Requlated Businesses; and

® Power Technology.

The following section describes the activities of our business invests in, and integrates new energy technologies into our
units as of December 31, 2003. existing businesses, focused primarily on operational efficiencies
Commercial manages wholesale generation and energy and clean energy technologies. In addition, Power Technology
marketing and trading of energy commodities. Additionally, ! manages our investments in other energy infrastructure and
Commearcial operates and maintains our electric generating telecommunication service providers.
plants including some of our jointly-owned plants. Commercial Following are the financial results by business unit.
is also responsible for all of our internationat operations and Certain amounts for the prior year have been restated to reflect
performs energy risk management activities, trading activities, implementation of EITF 02-3 and other prior year amounts have
and customized energy sotutions. heen reclassified to conferm to the current presentation.
Requlated Businesses consists of PSI's regulated, integrated Financial results by business unit for the years ended
utility operations, and eur other requlated electric and gas December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, are as$ indicated below:

Business Unils

2003
Cinergy Business Units
Regulated Pavrer i Reconciling

(in millions) Commercial Businesses  Technology Total Mt otherlD)  Eliminationst2}  Consolidated
Operating revenues —

External customers 31,630 $2,786 $ - § 4,416 $ - § - $ 4,416

Intersegment revenues 157 - - 157 - {157) -
Cost of sales —

Fuel and purchased and exchanged power

External customers 645 513 - 1,158 — - 1,158
Intersegment costs - 157 - 167 - (157) -

Gas purchased 122 382 - 504 - - 504
Depreciationd®) 135 284 - 419 - - 419
Equity in earnings (losses) of

unconsolidated suhsidiaries 14 4 (3) 15 - - 15
[nterest expense® 94 158 17 260 - - 269
Income taxes 7i5) 148 (1 144 - - 144
Discontinued operations, net of tax( 9 - - 9 - - 9
Cumulative effect of changes in

accounting principlas, net of tax(M 26 - - 26 - - 26
Segment profit (lass)(& 275 211 {16) 470 - - 470

Seqment assets from continuing operations 5,361 8,515 175 14,051 63 - 14,114

Segment assets from discontinued operations 5 - - 5 - - 5
Total segment assets 5,366 8,515(% 175 14,056 63 - 14,119
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 400 14 81 495 - - 495
Total expenditures for long-lived assets 158 554 - 712 - - 712

{1} The All Other category represenls miscellancous corporate items, which are not affocated to business umits for purposes of seqment perfarmance meositement.

12) The Reconciling Eliminations cotegory eliminates the intersegmient revenues of Commercin! and the infersegment costs of Regulated Businesses.

(3) The components of Depreciation include depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intenglble assets.

{4) Interest lncome is deemed immaternal.

f5) The decrease in 2002, as compared lo 2002, in port reflects the effect of tax credits associated with production of synthetic fuel beginning in July 2002,

{6) For further information, see Note 14,

{7) fn 2003, Cinergy recognized @ gain/(loss) on cumulotive effect of chonges In accounting principles of $39 million (net of tax) and ${13) mittion (net of tax) 0s o resuit of the
reversal of accrued cost of removal Jor non-requloted gengraling assets and the cliange in accounting of certoin energy related contracts from fair value to accrual. See Nofe 1(Q)(A)
Jer further Tnformation.

18) Manogement ulilizes Segment profit (loss}, after taxes, to evaluofe segment performance.

f49) The increase in 2003, as compored to 2002, is primarily due to the transfer of generating gssets from two non-regulnted affiliates. See Note 19 for further information.
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Business Units (cant.)

2002
Cinergy Business Units
Regulated Power Reconciling

{in millions) Commercial Businesses  Technology Total AlLOther())  Eliminations(®)  Consolidated
Operating revenues —

External customers $1,419 $2,640 5 - $ 4,059 § - $ - $ 4,059

Intersegment revenues 160 - - 160 - {160) -
Cost of sales —

Fuel and purchased and exchanged power

External customers 532 458 - 990 - - 390
Intersegment costs - 160 - 160 - (160) -

Gas purchased 77 233 - 310 - - 310
Depreciation(?} 150 249 6 405 - - 408
Equity in earnings (losses) of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 20 5 (10) 15 - - i5
Interest expenseld) 102 133 8 243 - - 243
Income taxes 2309 151 {14) 160 - - 150
Discontinued operations, net of tax{t) {25) - - (25) - - (25)
Cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle, net of tax(?} {11) - - (11 - - (11)
Segment profit (loss)@ 116 270 (24) 361 - - 3581

Segment assets from continuing operations 5,691 7,746 155 13,592 93 - 13,685

Seqment assets from discontinued operations 147 - - 147 - - 147
Total segment assets 5,838 7,746 155 13,739 93 - 13,832
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 337 10 70 417 - - 417
Total expenditures for long-lived assets 188 681 1 870 - - 470

(1) The All Other category represents miscelloneous corporate iems, which are not allecated to business units for purposes of segment performance measurement.

(2) The Reconciling Etiminations colegory eliminates the intersegment reventies of Commercial and the intersegment costs of Regulated Businesses.

(3) The componen!s of Depreciction include depreciation of fixed assels and amortization of intangible assefs.

(%) Interest fncome is deemed immateral

(5) The decrepse in 2002, os compared to 2001, in port reflects the effect of tox credits associoted with production of syathetic fuel beginning in Jyly 2002,

(6) For further information, see Note 14.

(7) Upon implemeitation of Stotement 142, Cinergy recognized o non-cash impairment chaige of $11 million, net of tax, for goodiill related to certain intemational assets.
Seg Mote 1(L) for further information,

(8] Management utifizes Segment profit (fess). after toxes, to evaliate segment performance.
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Business Units (cont.)

2001

Cinergy Susiness Units T
Regulated Power Reconciting

(in miflions) Commercial Businesses  Technology Total All 0ther(l)  Eliminations(®)  Consolidated
Operating revenues —

External customers $1,247 $2,703 - $ 3,950 $ - $ - £ 3,950

Intersegment revenues 144 - - 144 - (144) -
Cost of sales —

Fuel and purchased and exchanged power

External customers 546 469 - 1,015 - - 1,015
Intersegment costs - 144 - 144 - {144) -

Gas purchased - 367 - 397 - - 397
Depreciation(3) 130 236 1 367 - - 367
Equity in earnings (losses) of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 9 - (8} 1 - - 1
Interest expense(é 108 142 9 259 - - 259
Income taxes 93 169 (5) 257 - - 257
Discontinued operations, net of tax() (14) - - (14) - - (14)
Segmant profit (loss){®) 188 266 {12} 442 - - 442

Segment assets from continuing operations 4,836 7,512 164 12,512 46 - 12,558

Segment assets from discontinued operations 234 - - 234 - - 234
Total segment assets 5,070 7,512 184 12,746 46 - 12,792
Investments in unconsclidated subsidiaries 256 - 76 332 - - 332
Total expenditures for long-lived assets 764 633 - 1,397 - - 1,397
(1) The All Ot_hér -&g;rept;e_s_ents ﬁf:cp-ll_aneot;orpc-:r;te items, which are not ollocoted to business umits for purposes of segment perfarmance measurement, o
(2} The Reconciling Eliminations category eliminntes the intersegment revenues of Commeartial and the intersegment costs of Regulated Businesses,
(3) The components of Depreciation include depreciation of fixed assets and emortization of intangibie ossets.
(4) Interest income is deemed immateria,
(5) For further information, see Note 14.
(6) Monagement ntitizes Segment profit (foss), after taxes, to evoluate segment performance.
(in millions} Products and Services

. T T Revenues T
) _lﬁili:y Wholesale Commodity

Year Electric Gas Total Electric Gas Total Other  Consolidated
2003 32,156 $626 $2,782 31,227 $210 $1,437 $197 34,416
2002 2,197 436 2,633 1,141 154 1,295 131 4,059
2001 2,101 595 2,696 1,115 61 1,176 78 3,950

(in mittions)

Geographic Areas

Revenues

Year Domestic  International  Consolidated
2003 $4,371 $45 $4,416
2002 4,011 48 4,059
2001 3,013 37 3,950
fin miflions) Lony-Lived Assets

Year Domestic  International Consolidaked
2003 $11,524 $273 $11,797
2002 10,801 303 11,194
2001 10,174 428 10,602
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16. Earnings Per Common Share
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& reconciliation of EPS to EPS — assuming dilution is presented below:

{in thousands, except per shore emounts}

Income

Sharas

EP5

Year ended December 31, 2003
EPS:
Inceme before discontinued operations and cumulative effect
of changes in accounting principles
Bisconlinued operations, net of tax

Net income

Effect of dilutive securities:
Common stack options
Directors” compensation plans
Contingently issuable common stock
Stock purchase contracts

$434,424
8,886
26,462

§ 2.46
0.06
0,15

$469,772

176,535

748
152
851
189

EPS — assuming dilution:
et income plus assumed conversions

$469,772

178,473

$ 2.66

Year ended December 31, 2002
EPS:
Income before discontinued operations and cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle
Discontinued operaticns, net of tax
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax

$396,636
(25,161)
(10,899)

$2.37
(0.15)
(0.06)

Net income

Effect of dilutive securities:
Commen stock options
Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan
Directers’ compensation plans
Contingently issuable common stock

$360,576

167,047

899

3
169
934

{216

EPS — assuming dilution:
Net income plus assumed conversions

$360,570

169,052

$2.13

Yoar ended Decemhber 31, 2001
EPS:
Income before discontinued operations and cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle
Discontinued operations, net of tax

$456,629
(14,350)

§ 2.87
(0.09)

Net income

Fffect of dilutive securities:
Common stock options
Directors’ compensation plans
Contingently issuable commeon stock

EP3 -— assuming dilution:
Net inceme plus assumed conversions

$442,279

159,110

975
152
810

$2.78
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Options to purchase shares of eommon stock are excluded
from the calculation of EPS — assuming ditution when the
exercise price of these options plus unrecognized compensation
expense is greater than the average market price of a common
share during the period multiplied by the number of options
outstanding at the end of the period because they are anti-
dilutive. For the years 2003, 2002, and 2001, approximately
1.6 million, 3.0 million, and 2.1 million shares, respectively,
were excluded from the EFS — assuming dilution caleulation,

Also excluded from the EPS — assuming dilution caleulation
for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, are up to
10.6 million and 10.8 million shares, respectively, issuable
pursuant to the stock purchase contracts issued by Cinergy Corp.
in December 2001 associated with the prefeired trust securities
transaction. The number of shares issuable pursuant to the
stock purchase contracts is contingent upan the market price of
Cinergy Corp. stock in February 2005 and could range between
6.2 and 10.8 million shares,

17. Deregulation

CG&E is in a market development ﬁen'od, transitioning to dereg-
ulation of electric generation and a competitive retail electric
service market in the state of Ohio. The transition pariod is
governed by the Amended Substitute Senate Bill No. 3 (Electric
Restructuring Bill) and a stipulated transition plan adopted and
approved by the PUCO. The Electric Restructuring Bill provides
for a market development pertod that began January 1, 2001,
and ends no later than December 31, 2005,

The major featuras of CG&E's transition plan include:

* Residential customer rates are frozen through
December 31, 2005;

* Residential customers received a five-percent reduction
in the generation portion of their electric rates, effective
January 1, 2001;

* CG&E will provide $4 million from 2003 to 2005 in support
of energy efficiency and weatherization services for low
income customers;

* CO&E will pravide shopping credits to switching customers;

* The creation of a RTC designed to recover CG&E's regulatory
assets and other transition costs over a ten-year period;

* Authority for CG&E to transfer its generaticn assets to one
ar more, non-regulated affiliates to provide flexibility to
manage its generation asset portfolio in a manner that
enhances opportunities in a competitive markatplace;

» Authority for CG&E to apply the proceeds of transition
cost recovery to costs incurred during the transition
period, including implementaticn costs and purchased
power costs that may be incurred by CG&E to maintain
an operating reserve margin sufficient to provide reliable
service to its customers:

* Authority for CG&E to adjust the amortization of its requla-
tory assets and other transition costs to reflect the effects
of any shapping incentives provided to customers; and

* CGRE will provide standard offer default supplier service
(i.e., CG&E will be the supplier of last resort, so that no
customer will be without an electric supplier).

Under CG&E's transition plan, retail customers continue to
receive transmission and distribution services from CG&E, but
may purchase electricity from another supplier. Retail customers
that purchase electricity from ancther supplier receive shopping
credits from CG&E. The shopping credits generally reflect the
costs of electric generation included in CG&FE’s frozen rates.
However, shopping credits for the first 20 percent of electricity
usage in each customer class to switch suppliers are higher than
shopping credits for subsequent switchers in order to stimulate
the develapment of the competitive retail electric service market.

CG&E recovers its generation-related regulatory assets and
certain other deferred transition costs threugh an RTC paid by
all retail customers. As the RTC is collected from customers,
CG&E amortizes the deferred balance of regulatory assets and
other transition costs. A portion of the RTC collected from
customers is recognized currently as a return on the deferred
balance of regulatory assets and other transition costs and as
reimbursement for the difference in the shopping credits
provided to retail customers and the wholesale revenues from
generation made available by switched customers. The ahbility
of CG&E to recover its requlatory assets and other transition
costs is dependent on several factars, including, but net limited
to, the level of CG&E’s electric sales, prices in the wholesale
power markets, and the amount of customers switching to other
electric suppliers,

In January 2003, CGRE filed an application with the PUCO
for approval of a methodology to establish how market-based
rates for non-residential customers will he determined when the
market development period ends. In the filing, CG&E seeks to
establish a market-based standard service offer rate for non-
residential customers that do not switch suppliers and a process
for establishing the competitively-bid generation service option
required by the Electric Restructuring Bill. As of December 31,
2002, more than 20 percent of the load of CG&E's commercial
and industrial customar classes had switched to other electric
suppliers, and the other public authorities group was at
19,95 percent at December 31, 2003. Under its transition plan,
CG&E may end the market development pericd for those classes
of customers once 20 percent switching has been achieved;
however, PUCO approval of the standard service offer rate and
competitive bidding process is required hefore the market
development period can be ended.

p. 110



In December 2003, the PUCD issued an order that the CGAL
application filed in January 2003 would proceed to a hearing
and be consolidated with CG&E's zpplication to defer certain
administrative transmission charges and the application to defer
costs of capital investments made to their transmission and
distribution system during the market development period. As
part of this order, the PUCO requested that CG&E file a rate
stabilization plan to mitigate the effects of market based
pricing on retail customers while the competitive retail electric
market continues to mature. In response to this request, on
January 26, 2004, CG&E filed an offer of settlement, including
an electric reliability and rate stabilization plan. In this
proposal, CG&E has also asked to end the market development
period for all customers effective December 31, 2004.

The major features of CG&E's electric reliability and rate
stabilization plan include:

* The market development period would end for all

customers on December 31, 2004;

* CG&E would begin to collect a non-bypassable Provider
of Last Resort {POLR) charge from all customers effective
January 1, 2005, This charge coutd be increased by up to
10 percent of CG&E's generation charge each year from
2005 through 2008;

* [G&E would offer its current generation rates as its market
based rates until December 31, 2008;

» (GRE would request a transmission and distribution rate
increase effective January 1, 2005;

* CG&E would hegin charging RTC as an explicit wires charge;

* PUCO approval of previously requested transmissian and
distribution deferrals and cost recovery riders (see Note
11(B)(vi)):

* The five percent generation rate reduction for residential
customers would continue through 2008;

* Extend recovery of residential RTC from 2008 through 2010,

The POLR charge would allow for recovery of increased
costs of fuel and purchased power, transmission congestion,
enviranmental compliance, homeland security, taxes and
maintaining an adequate reserve margin.

An evidentiary hearing addressing these issues is scheduled
for the second quarter of 2004. At the current time CG&E is
unable to predict the oukcome of this proceeding or the effects
it could have on its results of operations or firancial condition.
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18. Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during

a period except those resulting from investments by and
distributions to shareholders. The major components include
net income, foreign currency translation adjustments, minimum
pension liability adjustment, unrealized gains and losses on
investment trusts and the effects of certain hedging activities.

We translate the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries,
whose functional currency {generally, the local currency of the
country in which the subsidiary is located) is not the U.S.
dollar, using the appropriate exchange rate as of the end of the
year. Foreign cwrrency translation adjustments are unrealized
gains and losses on the difference in foreign country currency
compared to the value of the U.S. dollar. The gains and losses
are accumulated in comprehensive income. When a foreign
subsidiary is substantially liquidated, the cumulative translation
gain or loss is removed from comprehensive income and is
recognized as a component of the gain or loss on the sale of
the subsidiary in our Statements of Income.

We record a minimum pension liability adjustment associated
with our defined benefit pension plans when the unfunded
accumulated benefit obligation is in excess of our accrued
pension liabilities and the unrecognized prior service costs
recorded as an intangible asset, The corresponding offset is
recorded on our Balance Sheets in Accrued pension and other
postretirement benefit costs. Details of the pension plans’ assets
and obligations are explained further in Note 9.

We record unrealized gains and losses on equity investments
in trusts we have established for our benefit plans. See Note 9
for further details.

The changes in fair value of derivatives that qualify as
hedges, under Statement 133, are recorded in comprehensive
income. The specific hedge accounting and the derivatives that
qualify are explained in greater detail in Note 8(A).
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The elements of comprehensive income and their related tax effects for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 are

as follows:
Comprehensive Income
2003 2002 2001
Tax Tax Tax
Befora-tax {Expense) Net-of-Tax Before tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax Before-tax (Expanse) Net-of-Tax
(doifars in thoitsonds) Amotunt Benefit Amount Amount Benefit Amaunk Amount Benefit Amount
Net income $626,284  3(156,512) $469,772  $518,840 $(158,264) 3360576  $697.785 §(255.506) $442.270
Dther comprehensive
inceme (loss):
Foreign currency
translation adjustment 25,311 (8,649) 16,662 35,574 (14,034) 21,540 4,996 (3,355) 1,641
Reclassification
adjustments {9,437) 3,303 (6,134) 4,377 - 4,377 - - -
Total foreign
currency
translation
adjustment 15,874 (5.346) 10,528 39,951 (14,034} 25,917 4,996 (3.399) 1,641
Minimum pension
lability adjustment (56,238) 22,392 {33,846) (23,031) 9,208 (13,763} (2,636) 1,081 (1,555)
Unrealized gain (loss)
on investment trusts 11,113 (4.3506) 6,757 (8,637) 3,360 (5.277) {1,345) 504 {841)
Cumulative effect of
change in accounting
principle - - - - - - {4,026) 1,526 {z,500)
Cash flow hedges 2,516 {990) 1,526 (32,663} 12,915 (19,748) {4,477) 1,698 (2,779)
Total other comprehensive
income (loss) {26,735} 11,700 (15,035)  (24,380) 11,509 (12,871) (7,488) 1,454 {6,034)

Total comprehensive income  $599,549  ${144,812)  $454,737  $494,460 $(146,755) $347,705  $690,297 §(254,052) $436,245

The after-tax companents of Accumulated otfhrer comprehensive income (loss) as of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 are as follows:

Accumuiated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Classitication

Foreign Minimum Unrealized

Currency Pension Gain {Loss) Total Other
Translation Liability on Investment Cash flow Comprehensive

(dolloss in thousonds) Adjustment Adfustment Trusts Hedges Income (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2000 $(6,072) $ {4,780) $ (43) $ - ${14,895)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - - {2,500} (2,500}
Current-period change 1,641 {1.555) (B41) (2,779} {3,534}
Balance at December 31, 2001 $ {4,431) $ (6,335} $ (884) $ (5,279 $(16,929)
Current-period change 25,917 (13,763} (5,277) (19.748) (12,871)
Balance at December 31, 2002 $21,486 $(20,098) 3(6,161) $(25,027) $(29,800)
Current-period change 10,528 {33,846) 6,757 1,526 (15,035)
Balarnce at December 31, 2003 $32,014 $(53,944) $ 596 $(23,501) $(44,835)
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In July 2003, ULH&P filed an application with the KPSC

19. Transfer of Generating Assets

In December 2002, the IURC approved a settlement agreement
among P31, the Indiana Office of the Utility Consumer
Counselar, and the IURC Testimonial Staff authorizing PSI's

purchases of the Henry County, Indiana and Butler County, Obic,

gas-fired peaking plants from twe non-regulated affiliates. In
February 2003, the FERC issued an order under Section 203 of
the Federal Power Act authorizing PSI's acquisitions of the
plants, which occurred on February 5, 2003. Subsequently, in
April 2003, the FERC issued a tolling order allowing additional
time to consider a request for rehearing filed in response to the
February 2003 FERC order. At this time, the rehearing request is
still pending before the FERC, and PSI cannot predict the
autcome of this matter.

requesting a certificate of public convenience and necessity to
acquire CG&E's 68.9 percent ownership interest in the East Bend
Generating Station, located in Boone County, Kentucky, the
Woodsdale Generating Station, located in Butler County, Chio,
and one generating unit at the four-unit Miami Fort Station
located in Hamilton County, Ohio. In December 2003, the KPSC
conditionally approved this application. The transfer, which will
be made at net book value, will not affect current electric rates
for ULH&F’s customers, as power will be provided under the
same terms as under the current wholesale power contract with
CG&E through at least December 31, 2006. ULH&P will alse seek
regulatory approval for aspects of this transaction from the FERC
and SEC. At this time, ULH&P is unable to predict the outcome
of this matter.
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ELEVEN YEAR STATISTICAL SUMMARY

2003

Dperating Revenues (in thousands)
Income Before Discontinued Operations and Cumulative Effect
of Changes in Accounting Principles (in thousands)
Discontinued Operations, net of tax (in thousands)
Cumtulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Prineiples, net of tax
Net Income (in thousands)
Construction Expenditures (including AFUDC) (Tn thousands)
Capitalization (in thousonds)
Common Equity
Preferred Stock(a)
Subject to Mandatory Redemption
Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption
Preferred Trust Securitigs(e)
Long-term Debt(a)

434,424
8,386
26,467
469,772
711,649

3,700,682

62,818

4,131,%09

2002

$ 4,415,877 § 4,059,352

396,636
(25,161}
(10,899)
360,576
866,193

3,293,476

62,828
308,187
4,011,568

Total Capitalization

$ 7,895,409 % 7,676,059

Other Common Stock Data
Avg. Shares Outstanding (in milfions)
Avg. Shares Outstanding — Assuming Dilution (in miltions)
Earnings Per Share
Income Before Discontinued Operations and
Cumulative Effect of Changas in Accounting Principlas
Discontinued Operations, net of tax
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax
Earnings Per Share Net Income
Earnings Per Share — Assuming Dilution
Income Before Discontinued Operations and
Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles
Discontinued Operations, net of tax
Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles, net of tax
Earnings Per Share — Assuming Dilution
Dividends Declared Per Share
Payout Ratic — Assuming Non-Dilution
Book Value Per Share (yeor-end)

177
178

$ 246 4§
0.05
0.15

3 266 %

$ 243 4
0.05
0.15

$ 263 §

$ 184 %
69.2%

$ 2075 %

Certain amounts in prior years have been reclassified to canform to the 2003 presentation.

(a) Excludes amounts due within one year.

[b) Includes $.12 per share for the cost of reacquiring 90% of CG&E's preferred stock through a tender offer.
(¢) Includes $.69 per shara for an extraordinary item (Midlands windfall profit tax).

(d) Includes $1.54 per share for a write-off of a portion of Zimmer Station.

167
169

2.37

{0.15)

{0.06)
2.16

2.34
(0.15)
(.06)

213

1.80

83.3%
19.53

() As a result of adopting Interpretation 45, we no longer consolidate the trust that held Company obligated mandatorily redeemable, preferred trust
securities of subsidiary, holding solely debb secuiities of the company. This resulted in the removal of these securities from our 2003 Balance Sheet

and the addition to lang-term debt of a $319 million (net of discount) note payable that Cinergy Corp. owes to the trust.
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2001-

3,949,576
456,629
(14,350)

442,279
841,321

2,041,459

62,833
306,327
3,532,556
6,843,175

159
161

2.87
(0.09)

2.84
(0.09)

2.75

1.80

64.7%
18.45

$

$

$

$
$

3

2000

3,752,400

400,684
(1,218)

399,466
334,976

2,788,961

62,834

2,828,792

% 5,680,587

159
160

2.52
(0.01)

2.51
(0.02)

2.50

1.80

71.7%
17.54

1599 1598 1507 1596 1595 1994 1993
$3,426,647  $3,223,494  $3,227,627  $3,276,187  $3,023,431  $2,888,447  $2,833,440
401,527 260,968 253,238 334,797 347,182 191,142 62,547
2,114 - - - - - _
403,641 260,968 253,238 134,797 347,182 191,142 62,547(d)
378,432 370,277 328,153 324,238 326,869 486,734 563,355
2,653,721 2,541,231 2,539,200 2,584,454 2,548,843 2,414,271 2,221,681
- - - - 160,000 210,000 210,000
92,597 92,640 177,989 194,232 227,897 267,929 307,989
2,966,842 2,604,467 2,150,902 2,326,378 2,346,766 2,615,269 2,545,213
$5,713,160 $5,238,338 $4,868,001 $5,105,064 $5,283,506 $5,507,469 45,284,883
159 158 158 158 157 147 144
159 159 159 159 158 148 145
$ 253 % 1.65 % 1610 § 2.00) § 2.22 §% 130§ 0.43(d)
0.01 - - - - - -
$ 2,54 & 1.65 § .61 % 2.00(0) ¢ 2.22 % 130 § 0.43(d)
3 2.52  § 165 § 1.59() § 1.99() $ 220 § 1.29 % 0.43(d)
0.01 - - - - - -
$ 253 % 1.65 § 159 § 1.99M) § 220 § .29 § 0.43(0)
$ 1.80 % 1.80 § 1.80 % 1.74 ¢ 1.72 % 1.50 § 1.46
70.9% 109.1% 111.8% 87.0% 77.5% 115.4% 339.5%
¢ 1670 $ 1606 $§ 1610 $ 1639 §$ 1617 § 1556 §  15.17
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ELEVEN YEAR STATISTICAL SUMMARY

) 2003 w02
Degree Day Data
Service Territory (Avg.)
Heating (10 year average — 5,145) 5,316 5,093
Cooling (10 year average — 1,074) 831 1,357
Employee Data
Number of Employees {vear-end) 7,693 7.823 L
Gas Operations
Gas Revenues (in thousands)
Residential $ 377,394 § 253,470
Commercial 150,714 100,553
Industrial 25,922 17,214
Other 69,210 61,562
Total Retail 623,240 432,799
Wholesale/Storage and Transportation 210,031 154,832
Qther 2,236 2,840
Total Gas Revenues % 835,507 § 590,471
Gas Sales (mcf)
Residential 39,353 35,615
Commeicial 16,804 15,240
Industrial 3,112 2,927
Other 35,790 37,633
Total Retail 95,059 41,415
Wholesale/Storage and Transportation 1,421,001 1,252,783
Total Gas Sales 1,516,150 1,344,198
Gas Customers (Avg.)
Residential 420,790 408,307
Commercial 39,980 38,942
Industrial 1,613 1,569
Other B 42,555 50,1% L
Total Gas Customers 504,938 408,972
Avg. Cost Per Mcf Purchased (centsHa) 611.44 395.99

Certain amounts in priar years have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation,

(a) Exciudes wholesale numbers.
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$ 349,346
148,200
28,761

586,992
60,701

35,211
16,225

3,356
34,711
89,503

1,007,070

427,158
41,772
1,746
24,680
495,356

60,676

7,985
$540,083

1,007,567

67746

5,298

938

8,362

$287,753
110,329
17,784
69,406

485,272

51,909
2,902

38,230
15,829
2,770
43,325
100,154
590,317
690,471

395,799
39,058
1,447
46,833
483,137
436.90

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
4,814 4,361 5,476 5,751 5,451 5,066 5,491
1,151 1,243 361 953 1,215 1,042 1,106
8,950 8,794 7,609 7,973 8,602 8,868 g,227

$210,557 $240,297 $284,516 $272,303 $237,576 $242,415 $269,684
85,169 87,583 121,345 118,994 99,708 114,854 114,957
13,797 17,320 31,168 30,409 28,979 43,490 47,403
61,008 52,589 49,190 46,409 39,588 35,673 31,551
370,621 397,789 486,219 468,115 405,851 436,432 463,595
57,732 45,954 30,212 1,403 1,086 1,306 1,353
3,769 2,755 3,106 4,517 3,915 4,660 4,348
$432,122 $446,498 $519,537 $474,035 £410,852 $442,398 $469,296
32,790 36,256 41,846 44,721 43,153 39,065 43,514
14,474 13,999 19,141 21,199 19,664 20,070 20,370
2,646 2,941 5,240 b,746 6.624 9,025 16,011
41,956 60,031 56,261 52,155 44,848 37,086 32,589
91,866 113,227 122,488 123,821 114,289 105,246 106,484
530,258 353,363 9,372 352 279 296 307
622,124 466,580 131,860 124,173 114,568 105,542 106,791
387,769 404,417 407,128 397,660 389,165 379,953 373,494
38,033 39,332 41,915 41,499 40,897 40,545 40,348
1,457 1,569 1,960 1,961 1,959 2,076 2,176
44,780 16,852 2,709 2,346 2,156 1,575 1,471
472,048 462,170 453,712 443,466 434,177 424,149 417,489
304.78 364.43 380.41 326.50 277.92 333.60 353.74
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ELEVEN YEAR STATISTICAL SUMMARY

2003 2002

Electric Operations
Electric Revenues (in thousands)
Residential $1,147,236 $1,188,161
Commercial 728,818 776,846
Industrial 663,350 699,071
Transportation 25,527 13,560
Othar 136,556 106,339
Total Retait 2,701,487 2,784,877
Wholesale 550,088 395,435
Other 121,657 157,756
Total Electric Revenues $3,383,132 $3,338,068
Electric Sales (milllon kiWh)
Residential 16,368 17,088
Commerciat 12,148 13,161
Industrial 16,653 17,473
Transportation 3,794 2,592
Qther - 2,471 1,811
Total Retail 51,334 52,125
Wholesale 164,595 138,897
Total Electric Sales 215,029 191,022
Electric Customers (Inctuding Transportation) {Avg.)
Residential 1,353,611 1,340,398
Commercial 165,140 164,657
Industrial 6,273 6,468
Other 10,477 8,178
Total Electric Customers 1,535,501 1,518,701
System Capability — Winter (MW}
Commaercial 6,274 7,107
Reaulated Businesses 7,0579 6,004
Electricity Qutput (miillion kWh)
Generated ~- Net
Commercial 26,074 27,363
Regulated Businesses 34,270 13,060
Source of Energy Supply (Capacity %)
Commercial
Coal 66.72% 58.90%
0il & Gas 33.28% 41.10%
Regulated Businesses
Coal 77.76% 92.90%
0il & Gas 21.60% 6.35%
Hydro 0.64% 0.75%
Fuel Cost
Cammercial
Per MMBtu 3 130 3§ 1.32
Regulated Businesses
Per M#MBtu 3 140 § 1.35

Certain amounts in prior years have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation.

() Includes amounts to be purchased, subject to availability, pursuant to agreements with other utilities.

(b) 1993 reflects the refund of $31 million applicable to the IURC's April 1990 rate order.

{c) Regulated Businesses purchased the Henry County, Indiana, and Butler County, Ohio, gas-fired peaking plants from Commerical in February 2003.
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2001

$1.087,638
782,282
710,587
2,798
110,885

2,694,150
441,470
- 79,992

$3,215,652

15,794
13,607
18,022
613
1,720

49,756
119,938

169,694

1,329,708
163,528
6,562
7,601

( 1,507,399

7,084
6,004

24,955
33,627

59.10%
40.90%

92.90%

6.35%
0.75%

s

2000

$1,088,998
775,201
720,610

105,899

2,691,708
372,185
52,455

$3,116,348

15,633
13,596
19,008

1,891

50,128
69,831

119,959

1,304,803
159,965
6,607
7,060

1,478,425

11,249

63,010

86.80%
12.80%
0.4701107 7

771!_1_99 _”19798 1997 1996 1095 1994 1993
$1,127,280  $1,028,314 § 984,891 § 996,959 § 965,278 § 898,763 § 893,089
754,965 722,292 689,091 673,181 661,496 626,333 608,407
725,641 702,208 669,464 657,563 637,090 598,126 584,382
117,284 100,017 111,867 110,003 118,458 96,247 68,3641
2725179 2,552,831 2,455,313 2,437,706 2,382,322 2,219,469 2,154,242
192,406 129,393 208,423 296,600 197,943 194,734 177,754
49,035 46,399 38,488 34,400 32,314 31,846 32,148
$2,966,620  §2,728,623  $2,702,224  $2,768,706  $2,612,579  $2,446,040  $2,364,1440)
16,059 14,551 14,147 14,705 14,366 13,578 13,818
13,102 12,524 12,034 11,802 11,648 11,167 10,963
18,830 18,093 17,321 16,803 16,264 15,547 14,860
1939 1815 1,825 1,811 1,795 1,723 1,732
49,940 46,983 45,327 45,121 44,073 42,015 41,373
49,883 77,759 57,454 12,399 7,769 7,801 7,063
99,823 124,742 102,781 57,520 51,842 49,816 48,436
1,280,658 1,257,853 1,236,974 1215782  1,105323 1174705 1,160,513
156,897 153,674 151,093 149,015 147,888 144,768 142,767
6,486 6,473 6,472 6,470 6,424 6,345 6,263
6.639 6,395 6,280 6,184 5,955 5,733 5,678
1,450,680 1,424,395 1,400,819 1,377,451  1,355590 1,331,548 1,315,221
11,221 11,221 11,221 11,221 11,351 11,181 11,181
59,389 56,920 54,850 52,659 52,458 50,330 49,078
86.77% 86.77% 86.77% 86.77% 85.78% 85.57% 85.57%
12.83% 12.83% 12.83% 12.83% 13.82% 14.03% 14.03%
0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40%

$ 126§ 125 $ 131 0§ 130§ 140 $ 144§ 147
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

QUARTERLY STOCK DATA

Jud 4th

Quarter 2nd

2003

High $35.87 $38.75 $36.99 $38.86
Close 33.65 36.79 36.70 38.81
Low 29.77 33.25 33.14 35.19
Dividends per share 46 46 46 46
2002

High $35.75 $37.19 $36.21 £34.19
Close 35.75 35,99 31.43 33.72
Low 31.00 34.25 25.40 28.25
Dividends per sharg 45 45 45 45

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Cinergy Corp.

13% East Fourth Street
Cincinnaty, Ohio 45202
Web site; www.cinergy.com

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at the
Northern Kentucky Convention Center

One West Rivercenter Boulevard

Covington, Kentucky

on Tuesday, May 4, 2004,

at 9:00 a.m. Eastern Daylight Time.

COMMON 5TOCK

Cinergy's commoen stock, traded under the ticker symbol CIN,
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Cinergy has unlisted
trading privileges on the Boston, Chicago, Cincinnati, Pacific
and Phitadelphia exchanges, As of Jan. 31, 2004, there were
62,506 comman stock shareholders of record.

FORM 10-¥

Shareholders may obtain a copy of Cinergy’s annual report to
the Securities and Exchange Commission (Form 10-K), without
charge, by contacting Investor Relations or by visiting our
Web site at: www.cinergy.com/investars.

REINVESTMENT PLAN INQUIRIES
National City Bank

Reinvestment Services-Loc. 5352
P.0. Box 94946

Cleveland, Ohio 44101-4946
Tokl-free phone: 1-800-325-2945
Fax: (216) 257-8357

OTHER SHAREHOLDER ACCOUNT INQUIRIES
Mational City Bank

Sharehotder Services-Loc. 5352

P.0. Box 92301

Cleveland, Ohio 44101-4301

Toll-free phone: 1-800-325-2045

Fax: (216} 257-8508

E-mail address for all services:
shareholder.services@nationalcity.com

INVESTOR CONTACT

Brad Arnett

Director, Investor Relations
139 East Fourth Street 26AT
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
(513) 287-3024

Fax: (513) 287-1088

E-mail; barnett@cinergy.com

DIRECT STOCK PURCHASE AND DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
Cinergy's Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan
nrovides investors with a convenient method to purchase shares
of Cinergy Corp. common stock and te reinvest cash dividends
in the purchase of additional shares of Cinergy Corp. common
stack, without incuning brokerage fees, Shareholders may
automatically reinvest all or a partion of their cash dividends
in Cinergy common stock at prevailing market prices.

Shareholders may also purchase additional shares by making
payments of at least $25 at any one time, but nct more than
$100,000 per calendar year, Currently, there are about 31,850
shareholders participating in the plan.

The plan is open to anyone wishing to participate. Those
who do not currently own shares on the company's records
must complete an enrollment form and make an initial
minimum investment of $250. An election form must be
completed by anyone who wishes to change dividend
reinvestment participation.

Complete details about the plan are contained in the
plan‘s prospectus. To receive a copy of the prospectus and
an enroflment form, contact National City Bank.

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS

Shareholders can have their dividends electroniczlly transfarred
to their checking or savings accounts. To receive an enrollment
form, contact National City Bank.

DTHER INFORMATION

Transfer agent and registrar for Cinergy Corp. common and
CG&E and PSI preferred shares:

National City Bank

Stock Transfer Dept.~Loc. 5352

P.0. Box 92301

Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900
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CINERGY.

the pawer of change

Cinergy Corp.

139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohia 45202
wiw.cinergy.com

Cinergy Corp. has a balanced, integrated portfolio consisting of two
toze businesses: regulated operations and commercial businesses.
finergy's requiated delivery operations in Ohio, Indiana, and Kentucky
serve 1.5 million electric customers and about 500,000 gas
customers. In addition, its Indiana requlated operations own 7,000
megawatts of generation. Cinergy's commercial business unit is a
Midwest leader in low-cost generation owning 6,300 megawatts of
capacity with a profitable balance of stable existing customer portfo-
lios, new custamer origination, marketing and trading, and industrial-
site cogeneration. The “into Cinergy” power-trading hub is the most
liquid trading hub in the nation.
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THE FACES of LEADERSHIP

WE ARE OPENING THE DOORS OF OUR BOARDROOM SO YOU CAN MEET THE
MEMBERS OF OUR BROARD OF DIRECTORS FACE TO FACE. WE BELIEVE FEW PEOPLE
REALLY UNDERSTAND THE ROLE THAT DIRECTORS SERVE IN AN ORGANIZATION
AND wHAT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MEANS. AFTER READING
THL PAGES THAT FOLLOW, WE HOPE THAT YOU WILL COME AWAY WITH A BETTER
UNDERSTANDING OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES, AS WELL AS THE
SPIRIT OF ACCOUNTABILITY THAT WE CHOQSE TO NURTURE. ALSO, WE WANT YOU

TO SEE HOW YOUR BOARD AND MANAGEMENT TEAM WORK TOGETHER FOR YOU.

Members of the Cinergy Corp, Board of Dirvectors at work: James E. Rogers, Phillip R. Cox, Dudley S. Taft,
Micliael G. Browning, Mary L. Schapiro, Themas E. Petry, George C. Juilfs, John J. Schiff Ir., and Philip R, Sharp
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PURPOSE,

= Jo transforim the bves of millivns of peaple by providing reliable, reasonably priced and

environmentally responsibile energy and related services.

MISSION:

= [y be the investment of chaice, supplier of choive, employer of choice and a leader by choice.

LONG-TERM STRATEGILES!:

= Maintain a balanced integrated portfolio to manage risk through all economic and commaodity cycles.

= hnprove our low-cost position.

= Fxecute on our regulatory initiatives that balance both customer and sharcholder interests.
= Increase market share and marging in our competitive businesses through customer-focused

arigination in our regional markets.

* Auintain a strong balance shect to ensure low-cost access to capital markets,
e Continue a disciplined opportunist approach to increasing our scale and scope and making the

corpuration fitler, not just bigger.

CORPORATE PROFILL:

BALANCED, INTEGRATED PORTFOLIOS

REGULATED

ENERGY MERCHANT

BUSINESS
DESCRIPTION

Otlegrated utility serving Tndiana, PSI
Enerpy (P81, and electric and gas
transimission and distribution {T&D)
companies serving Southwest Ohio
and Northern Kentucky, Cincinnad
Cras & Eleetric (CG&E S and Union
Light Fieat & Power (ULH &)

Midwest leader of low-cost genciation,
customer origination and energy
commaoditics trading

NOTABLE
STATISTICS

* [elait electric sates are: 35 percent
incfustriaf, 33 percent vesidential,
32 percent commercial and public
authoritics

= 700 megawatts bow-cost generation

v fop-quartile T&D cost leadership
posilion

PRODLUCTS

AND SERVICES

= Eleclricity gencration

e Llectricity transmission
= Electricity distribution
= Gas distribation

= Approximately 90 percent of gross
margins fram supplying exisiing
customer porifolios

* Production costs 25 percent below
regional benchimark average

= £,300 megawalts low-cost generation

* Eleclricity generation and opcration

of coal, gas, cogeneration and
renewable power plants

» Wholesale energy marlketing, trading
and risk manageiment

= Customized energy solutions
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( LETTER ro STAKEHOLDERS

DEAR FELLOW INVESTORS, CUSTOMERS, EMPLOYEES
AND OTHERS WHO HAVE A VESTED INTEREST IN OUR SUCCESS —
OUR SUPPLIERS,; PARTNERS, REGULATORS AND COMMUNITIES:

In 2002, we redoubled our efforts on the attributes that distinguish us from others in our
industry: low-cost, efficient operations, financial stability, a low-risk profile, constructive
regulatory outcomes, value-building customer relationships, and leadership on corporate
governance and environmental issues.

On behalf of Cinergy’s 7,800 employees, T made commitments to you in these areas
last year. As you read this letter, you will see that our promises made were promises kept,
Our people made this happen. They make me proud to be a member of the Cinergy team.
Before discussing owr performance, I believe it is important that you understand why we
took the actions we did in 2002. Three factors increased our urgency to work harder on the
things that distinguish us, One factor was the sluggish economy’s impact on our businesses.
Lproving the cash fow from our core regulated and energy merchant businesses continued
to be particularly important during these times.

A second factor was the contraction in the wholesale gas and power markets brought on
by the withdrawal of many competitors from these markets. Qur focus on profitably adding
new customers within and around our asset footprints also made sense in this environment.

A third factor was the continning uncertainty around the move to deregulation and the
future structure of our industry. We are experiencing unparalleled regulatory and legislative
challenges as each state contemplates differing pricing models for retail energy services.
Simultaneously, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) is proposing new rules

to ensure fair regional and national wholesale markets.

James E. Rogers, 55, is chairman, president and CEQ of Cintergy Corp. He las been a director since 1993 and

chairs the Executive Committee. Mr. Rogers served as vice chairman, president and chief eperating officer of Cinergy
Jrom 1994 10 1995, He was named CEQ in 1995 and chairman in 2000. Prior to the formation of Cinergy in 1994,
Tie was PSI Energy Inc’s chairman, president and CEQ, Prior to joining PSI in 1988, he was executive vice president
of Enron Corp,, Houston, Texas. Before that, he was a partner in the Washington, D.C., office of Akin, Gump, Strauss,
Hauer & FPeld. He was also deputy general counsel for litigation and enforcement of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC), and served as assistant to the chief trial counsel at the FERC. He was a law clerk for the Kentucky
Suprenie Court and assistant attorney general for the Commonwealth of Kentucky, representing consumers before

the Puldlic Service Commission. Mr. Rogers is also a director of Fifth Third Bancorp and Fifth Third Bank, and

Ditke Realty Corporation. He attended Emory University in Atlanta, Ga., and holds B.B.A. and J.D. degrees from

the University of Kenfucky,

Wourds frr talics are defined i the Glossary of Teras on page 114,
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These three factors are as prevalent today as they were a year ago. While they pose
challenges, they also may create opportunities to expand our cash flow and profits in 2003,
We believe a do-nothing, wait-and-sec approach is sometimes the worst option in these
changing times. However, missteps in this environment are scverely punished, so we will
remain cautious, patient and disciplined in pursuing these opportunities.

In what could become a long period of chronic uncertainty, T believe it is important
to focus on what is within our control as we work with policymakers to shape our industry’s
future.

A STRONG POSITION FOR 2003 AND BEYOND

We are well positioned to benefit from improvements in the economy, more robust encrgy

markets, and the inevitable clarity that will come from responsible regulation at both the

slate and federal levels. Our plans for growing carnings and dividends in the future are built

upon our operating and financial successes. In 2003, we will:

= Add new customers and grow our core operations.

» Reinforce our key relationships with our investors, customers, suppliers, regulators,
communities and employees.

v Capitalize on opportunities in the underserved wholesale energy markets being created

by the exit of weaker competitors.

In these uncertain times, we must become ¢ven better stewards of our capital. In the
recent past, when the price/earnings rafios of certain energy comoanies soared and the cast of
debt declined, it was easier to acquire assets and even companies in our industry. Regrettably,
some companies must have forgotten that acquisitions have to be profitable throughout
alt economic cycles. Those who failed to remember this are now overburdened with debt
and some face bankruptcy.

We intend to invest in earnings-producing businesscs that thrive in all market conditions.
At the same time, we will be steadfast in protecting our balance sheet and credit ratings.

2002 CONSISTENT, ACCOUNTABLE PERFORMANCE

We consistently met or exceeded our stakeholder expectations, These included above-average
industry returns for our investors, competitive prices and retiable service for our customers,
good benefits and fair wages for our eniployees, continuing commitments to support the

well being of the communities we serve, and protecting the environment.

'—_

TOTAL STTAREHOLDER RETURN: CINERGY VS. MAJOR ENERGY INDICES

2000 2001 2002 2000-2002
Cinergy 57.0% 0.7% 6.5% 68.5%
S&P Supercomposile Flectric Tndex 49.7% -8.5% -14.3% 17.3%
S&P 500 Flectric Index 53.5% -8.29 -15.0% 19.8%
Philacdelphia Utihty Index 50.6% -13.0% -18.4% 6.9%
S&P 500 Tndex -9 1% -11.9% -22.1% -37.6%

Words e tedics wre defmed in e Glossary of Terns on page 114,
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In 2002, we produced a total shareholder return (TSR) of 6.5 percent. This exceeded
our return in 2001, and it was substantially better than the total returns of our peers.

We beat the S&P Electric Supercomposite Index (47 utilities of all sizes) by 21 percentage
points, the S&I Electric Index (27 utilities of all sizes) by 22 percentage points, and the
Philadelphia Utility Index {20 large utilities) by 25 percentage points. In fact, as indicated
in the table at the bottom of the facing page, Cinergy has outperformed its peers and the
5&P 500 Index in each of the last three years.

2002 Results

On Jan. 23, 2003, Cinergy reported 2002 earnings of $2.68 per share on a diluted basis, before
one-time charges totaling $0.55 for early retirement and other employee severance programs,
charges related to certain investiments, and a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle. This comypares with 2001 earnings of $2.75 per share on a diluted basis. Including
one-lime charges, 2002 earnings were $2.13 per share on a diluted basis.

On average, owr industry saw earnings estimates lowered more than 20 percent during
the year. Fortunately, we weie able to overcome some of the effects of the weak economy and
depressed wholesale prices. As a result, our carnings (prior to one-time charges) were just
6 percent below analysts’ estimates made at the beginning of 2002.

Although we had $0.55 in one-time charges in 2002, from 1999 to 2001 we averaged net
one-time charges of only $0.01 per share, We work hard to avoid such charges, because we
want our investors to value us on the basis of our ongeing earnings capabilities.

As a result of this performance, and after considering our overall financial position, on
Jan. 14, 2003, our board of dirvectors increased our annual dividend by 2.2 percent, from
$1.80 (o $1.84. T'heir confidence in our ability to sustain and grow our dividend is boosted by
the facl that we are nearing the end of our nitrogen oxide (NOx) environmental compliance
program. As a result, our free cash flow will increase as we wind down this program. This

means we can finance our growth without necessarily having to access the capital markets.

PROMISES MADE, PROMISES KEPT
Credible leadership comes from making and keeping promises. In last year’s letter, I listed six
main abjectives for 2002, ['m listing them again along with the significant progress made on

cach one. This way, you will readily see that we are living up to our promises.

LOW-COST, EFFICIENT OPERATIONS

Having low-cost, eificient operations is deeply ingrained in our corporate culture. This
mindser sustains us across all business cycles, especially during the down cycles. We do our
best to avoid shorl-term cost-cutting decisions that could have negative long-term effects,
This has paid oft with lower custonmer prices, long-term job protection for employees and

mereaseed cash flows for investors.
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This culture is one reason why our power production expenses are 25 percent lower than
our regional peers’ 1It's also why we have the lowest non-fuel operaiing expenses of the top 253
pawer producers in 2000 and 2001. (The 2002 rankings will not be availzble until after the
publication of this report, but we believe we will have a “thrce-peat”) Furthermore, our
operation and maintenance (OM) expenses for our clectric transinission and distribution
{(Tel)) operations arc 14 percent lower than the average expenses of our regional peers.

Although our overall operating cosls have always been among the lowest in our industry,
our adminisivative and general (Ac-G) expenses are not as competitive as we would like, Qur
goal 15 to rank among the top 25 percent of our peer companies in managing these costs
over the next 18 months.

A key abjective in 2002 was to strengthen our already low-cost position through
continued aggressive cost managenent plans in all areas of the company. Actions taken
included employee voluntary early retirement programs, establishment of a shared services
area to cost-etfectively deliver our routine and day-to-day support services, and further
streamlining of our supply chain.

Although our employces create productivity improvements every day, it has been
several years since we critically examined our major business processes company-wide.

In 2003, we again will be laser-focused on the processes where we spend the most money.
We will look for ways both o cut costs and increase productivity.

Peak Performance in a Cost-Control Culture

In 2002, demand on our system for power reached all-time highs. Thanks to the tireless
efforts of our employees, we consistently met our customers’ varying needs for electricity
throughout the year. On a normal day, our customers’ demand peaks at an average of about
7,800 megaivaits. But on a hot summer day, that peak may exceed 10,000 megawatts. Last
year, we had 36 days where demand exceeced 10,000 megawatts. Six days exceeded 11,000
megawalts, and we set a new system peak of 11,305 megawatts on Aug, 1, 2002,

This commitment to operational excellence by our power operations employees was
recognized by Electric Light & Power magazine, a leading industry publication. Tt named
cur Gibson Generating Station in Indiana the top-producing, coal-fired power plant in the
nation for 2001, Gibson Station scored first for net genteration, and also ranked among the
top-producing plants for capacity and capacity factor. Higher cfficiency allows us to serve
the daily power nceds of our customers and also to sell the excess power in the regional
wholesale markets during off-peak periods.

Another key objective in 2002 was to match the availability of our generation fleet more
closely with the demands of our customers. On a second-by-second basis, we improved
our load forecasting precision, which improved margins in our merchant business. We will
concenlrate on improving these blocking-and-tackling skills in 2003.

I our regulated operations, we successfully opened our new Business Service Center —
a customer call center providing greater convenience for our larger business and commercial
customiers. We can now help these customers more cfficiently and at a lower cost, and meet

their needs with the expertise they require.

Woids in italics are defined in the Glossary of Terins on page 14,
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One example of the dedicated performance our customers have come to value is provided
by CG&E Mcter Reader Velda Bronston, who has worked the past 14 years without missing
a day of work or having a chargeable accident. She reads over 11,00C meters each month in
all kinds of weather, She walks her entire route and about half of the meters she reads are
inside homes and buildings, which means they are more difficult to reach. Peak performance
requires commitment and the discipline to pay attention to details, Velda embodies the
entire Cinergy team’s connmitinent o customer service excellence and safety.

FINANCIAL STABILITY

A key objective last year was the continued strengthening of our balance sheet. We took
decisive and timely actions by issuing equity, reducing capital spending, and improving
cash {low from operations. These actions supplemented our already strong liguidity position
with $1 billion in revalver capacity.

We raised $784 million in new shareholder equity from December 2001 through January
2003, We issued $316 million of mandatorily convertible securities, and sold $375 million of
commeon stock. Throughout the yeay, we raised $93 million from employee benefit plans and
the Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP).

Our corporale credit is rated BBB+ by Standard & Poor’s, Baa2 by Moody’s, and BBB+ by
Fiteh, These credit agencies have affirmed our investment-grade ratings with stable outlooks.
We are proud to have maintained these ratings when over half of our peers experienced
ratings downgrades or were put on negative credit watch.

We also continued to scll certain nei-core assets in 2002. These sales achieved after-tax
proceeds of approximately $100 million, which we used to pay down short-term debt. In
addition, after closing on the sale of our remaining wind power assets in 2003, we will have
only $76 million of consolidated international debt remaining. Only $15 million of this is
obligated for payment by Cinergy rather than by income from the projects.

A LOW-RISK PROFILE

We are concentrating on our core operations — regulated and energy merchant. Purther, our
risks are very identifiable and manageable due to our balanced integrated portfolio business
madel, Qur customer supply contracts for electricity are met with the output from the largest,
non-nuclear generation fleet in the nation.

Our custoner porifolios are diverse and include both retail and wholesale electric and
gas customers. As an example, our retail clectric sales are 35 percent industrial, 33 percent
residential, and 32 percent commercial and public authorities.

We have low wark-to-market {fair value) accounting exposure. In our customer origination
business, only 10 percent, or 73 megawatts, of our originated power contracts are accounted
for at fair value. Only two of those contracts have a remaining term longer than five years.
Because almost all of our trading is short-term (96 percent of the terms are less than 60 days),
we realize almost all of our results within the year the trades are executed.
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Therefore, we have very little forward price exposure. Moreover, our average daily value-
al-risk (Vak)is about $2.1 million, or less than $0.01 per share. Finally, we have minimal
cottiterparty risk, as approximately 97 percent of our customers are investment-grade, and
we monitor this risk continuously.

In 2003, we will continue to monitor and strengthen our enterprise-wide risk-manage-
ment activities.

CONSTRUCTIVE REGULATORY OUTCOMES

We had three key regulatory objectives in 2002: to ensure an adequate supply of generating
capacity to meet customer demand in Indiana, to comply with applicable federal and state
environmental mandates, and to achicve constructive rate treatment of the costs associated
wilh the implementation of these programs.

In December 2002, the [ndiana Utility Regulatory Commission (IURC) aporoved the
transfer of approximalely 800 megawatts of natural gas-lfired merchant peaking plants from
subsidiaries of Cinergy Capilal & ‘Irading to PSI. The FERC also approved the transfer on
Feb. 4, 2003, Prior to the dedication of these assets to Indiana consumers, our Indiana asset-
backed power reserve margin approached zero. The TURC believes that a 15 percent minimum
reserve margin is necessary to assure system reliability.

The IURC approved summer 2002 power purchases for PSI and permitted recovery of
our demand and energy charges of $27 million through either the purchased power tracker
or fuel clanse adjustmeni mechanism,

T the past few years, we have devoled a substantial percentage of our operating cash
flow to projects designed to ensure compliance with federal and state envirenmental rules
regulating poser plant emissions. These projects, when completed in 2005, will reduce
nitrogen oxide emissions by approximately 60 percent. These reductions will enable us
to mceet, il not exceed, federal and state air quality standards.

Indiana allews utilities to increase customer prices to recover financing costs while
constructing qualifying environmental projects. PST will implement these price increases
cvery six months on its environmental Constrisction Work in Progress (CWIP), This recovery
nmechanism allows PST to carn a cash veturn on qualifying environmental construction
expenditures and helps redce the regulatory lag commonly associated with large projects.

These investments included the addition of new generating capacity, air emissions
controls, and the ongoing maintenance and upgrade of our transmission and distribution
system, for a total of $1.3 billion. To recover these investments {made on behalf of our
¢clectric customers in Indiana), PSI filed for a rate increase of approximately $225 million
in December 2002, We anticipatce that the rate increase will be effective in the first half of
2004, [Towever, even with this increase, PSs electric rates will remain among the lowest
in both the Midwest and nation, a further demonstration of balancing shareholder and
customer neceds.

At the same time that we are pursuing recovery of the costs of operating a fully regulated
utility in Tndiana, we are pursuing recovery of the costs of operating as a provider of last
resort (POLR) in the deregulated electric market in Ohio. In early January 2003, we filed an
application with the Public Urilities Commission of Ohio {PUCO]) to establish a pricing

Wonds i italics wrabefinred i the Glussary of Toenis on prge 114,
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methodology that will ensure full compensation for all of the risks of providing POLR service.
We anticipate that the PUCO will rule on our application by the fall of 2003.

Natural Gas Rate Cases

As a result of our constructive regulatory relationships, we achieved another key objective

in 2002: successtully resolving our natural gas rate cases in Qhio and Kentucky. In Kentucky,
the Public Service Commission approved a gas distribution base rate increase for ULH&P
of $2.7 million in January 2002, In May 2002, the PUCO approved a base rate increase for
CO&L of $15.1 million.

While both base rate increases are important, they are not the whole story. In conjunction
with cach of these rate increases, the state cominissions approved a very constructive raie
adjustieni rider lor our Accelerated Main Replacement Program to improve safety and
reliability. We have already replaced more than 200 miles of aging cast-iron and bare-steel
gas pipeline. We will replace another 600 miles over the next six years. These riders recuce
the regulatory lag associated with recovering these investments.

VALUE-BUILDING CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

Retail Customers: Reliability and Service

In the retail markets, we serve about 1.5 million electric customers and 500,000 natural gas
customers, About 45 percent have the ability to select their electric commodity supplier, and
more than 70 percent can choose their gas commodity supplier.

liven where our custoniers have a choice, we still take care of their distribution and related
service needs. Our success in serving customers depends on providing reasonable prices
and reliable service. Our current electric rates are 25 percent below the naticnal average, and
our delivered gas prices are among the lowest in the region. We intend to maintain this cost
and pricing advantage.

Because we deliver service around the clock, our customers judge us on our ability to
respond to oulages, especially ones caused by severe weather. [n September 2002, a tornado
tore through our Indiana service territory, interrupting service to almost 39,000 customers.
We used our state-of-the-art Trouble Call/Outage Management Systern and its digital mapping
and advanced analytical tools to pinpoint the areas where our crews needed (o work to restore
power to our customers as rapidly as possible. With this system, Cinergy’s average customer
outage restoration times have been reduced by over 10 percent during the last 12 months,
and this achicvement has not gone unnoticed by our state regulators,

The storm severely damaged two and completely destroyed a third high-voltage trans-
mission lower Lransmittinng power from one of our major generating stations. All three towers
were restored and quickly returned to service as our people worked around the clock putting
our system back together,

But our peopic dider’t rest. A neighboring utility with significant system damage requested
our assistance. We responded with 11 crews who spent the better part of four days helping to

restore our neighbor’s system,
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n additien to the appreciation of local officials and our neighbor, we received a pat
on the back from Indiana’s governor. A few days after work was completed, Brian Vance,
Cinergy/PS1 area operations manager, decided to take his family out to dinner at a local
restaurant, They never expected to meet Governor Frank (’Bannon, who had also stopped
in while visiting the area, When the governor learned that Brian was with Cinergy, he
personally thanked him and asked him to convey to all of the people of Cinergy the state’s
gratitude for their quick response to the devastating storm.

Expanding Service Options for Our Retail Customers
To us, being good stewards means that our customers should always be able to take us
for granted, but we can never take them for granted.

Over the past vear, we continued to expand the options and services we offer. By finding
the right combination of people, processes and technologies, we can offer our customers
more scrvices to meet their needs while holding down our costs.

We liave convenient online services and e-billing, so customers can manage their accounts
and access their billing Information via the Internct (e-Dilling will be available to all Indiana
customers by the end of 2003), We have autoimated phone service, which allows customers
to check their bill amount and duc date, as well as the amount and date of their last payment.

Additionally, we replaced 11 comumercial payment offices with a network of 48 pay stations
throughout our service territory. A pay station is an autharized retailer that accepts Cinergy
bill payments and transmits the data te our billing system on a daily basis. Our customers
are now able to pay their bills at local businesses. Many of these businesses have extended
hours and locations that are closer to where our customers live and work.

The efforts of our customer service employees continue to pay off. Our own customer
satisfaction surveys and those of independent research firms show that we continne to provide
quality customer service. Our employees are working hard to make us the lcader in this area.

Wholesale Customers: Solutions and Service

In the wholesale markets, we serve 40 eleciric customers, such as the city of Hamilton,

Ohio, the cities of Bristol, Danville, Martinsville and Salem, Va., and Wabash Valley Power
Association. We also provide commodity, storage and transportation services in the wholesale
natural gas markets.

These customers want assurances of reliable encrgy supplies, In many cases, they want an
energy expert to operate their physical energy-producing facilitics and provide solutions to
their energy problems, and that’s shat we do. 'The wholesale power and gas markets have
changed profoundly over the last decade. First, deregulation shifted the balance of power to
the customer. Second, customer demands changed as new cntrants created many new products
and scrvices, However, these companics’ difficulties over the Jast 12 to 18 months and their
pullback from this market left some wholesale customers disoriented and nervous about

the future,

Words i Htalics are defined in the Glossary of Terms ou page 114.

10


file:////4iile

Against this backdriop, one of our key objectives in 2002 was to increase margins and
market shaie in both the power and gas wholesale markets. We didn’t make as much progress
adding new customers in the whelesale power market as we had hoped, but we modestly
improved contributions to earnings by expanding the products and services delivered to
our existing custoniers.

Late in 2002, we began to see signs that customers were starting to vegain their confidence
in the power markets and in reliable suppliers, such as Cinergy. They are again learning to
value our long history of serving our regulated customers, our physical assets, and our recent
success in cogeneralion and wholesale energy supply.

For 2002, we were required to change the way we account for and report the valve of
long-term wholesale energy contracts, This is the previously mentioned fair value accounting.

[ view this as a very positive change, as it better aligns earnings and actual cash over time,

Gaining Traction in the Wholesale Natural Gas Markets

In the more mature wholesale gas markets, we will benefit from the extension of our market-
ing relationship with international energy producer Kerr-McGee, Cinergy will continue ta
market most of Kerr-McGee's domestic gas production through June 2008, a total volume of
approximately 650 million cubic feet (Mingf) per day. This represents approximately 16 percent
of our average total daily physical gas marketed of 4 billion cubic feet (Bef) per day.

In addition, we added gas storage services that will better allow us to serve the growing
market. ‘Thanks to the efforts of cur Houston gas marketing team, we also completed more
than 1,500 transactions for very short-term comimodity and service products in the sid-
markel for gas producers and wholesale customers. We are benefiting as many of our
competitors cxit from this sector.

The most important lesson we've learned during the evolution of these new markets is
that true, lasting value can only be created when customers and suppliers build it together.
Given the extreme uncertainty in the regulation of wholesale energy markets, we must continue

to create flexible structures that support and honor these relationships.

LEADERSHIP ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
We've worked hard to achieve corporate governance leadership. As I note in the essay on
carporate governance that follows this letter, we believe that good governance is grounded
in a dedicated, independent and engaged board that balances the interests of all of our
stakeholders, Additionally, in the next section of this report, “The Faces of Leadership,”
we feature our hoard members and their views about Cinergy’s key attributes and corporate
governance practices,

We continue to lcad the effort to secure multiple-emissions legislation for coal-fired
power plants. If enacted, this legislation would collapse the jumble of new dean air regulations
that our plants face into a single set of aggressive but manageable reduction targets.
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Both independently and through my chairmanship of the Edison Electric Institute’s CEQ
Environmental Policy Committee, T have worked for four years to make this proposal a reality.
We were gratified to have President Bush announce during his Januwary 2003 State of the
Union address that securing passage of a multiple-emissions bill will be a top priority for
his administration. We will work with the administration, Congress, and the environmental
community to pass this important legislation this year.

Our effort to gain certainty in the area of environmental regulation extends to the
judicial arena as well. Throughout 2002, we worked to reach a settlement of the United States’
New Souice Review lawsuit. We hope that in 2003 we can put this lawsuit behind us.

CINERGY: SUSTAINABLE STEWARDSHIP

[ believe that our most distinguishing attributes, which I listed at the stact of this letter, are
the foundation of Cinergy’s growing reputation for professionalism, outstanding customer
service, superior financial results, and exemplary corporate citizenship. To us, sustainable
stewardship means consistently creating value for all of our stakeholders while we juggle
their sometimes competing demands,

I am grounded in the clarity of our noble purpose: to transform the lives of millions
of people by providing reliable, reasonably priced and environmentally responsible encrgy
and related services.

I am motivated by the steps the board of directors took this year toward cnsuring that
Cinergy would have best-in-class corporate governance practices today and in the future.
These practices, coupled with the commitment and personal integrity of cach member of the
board, support my confidence that we will continue to do our absolute best to deliver value
for you, our stakeholders.

[ am inspired by the genuine and continued excitement our people have about their work,

It is great to see the pride they have in acting as stewards of our resources, Every employee
has a direct stake in our success, As the largest single group of Cinergy sharcholders, they have
skin in the game. Additionally, more than half of executive management’s total compensation
is tied to short- and long-term business results.

[ am committed to continuing to build a talented and diverse team and to developing
new diverse faces of leadership at Cinergy. Today, we have leaders who take the execution
of our purpose and mission personally and who demonstrate a passion and zeal for our
success. | am thankful for the loyalty and support of all of our stakeholders, especially our
investors, customers and employees. As I said last year, I genuinely cherish the opportunity
to serve as a leader of this company and am mindful of the duties and obligations of my

personal stewardship.,

(nces & Sy

James E. Rogers
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Feb. 14, 2003

Words i italics are defined i the Glossory of Tersis ont page 174.
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FOUNDATION O GINERGY'S GROWING REPUTATION FOR PROFESSIONALISM, OUTSTANDING
. CUSTOMER SERVICE, SUPERIOR FINANCIAL RESULTS AND EXEMPLARY CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP.”
James E. Rogers, Chairinan, President and Chief Executive Officer




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE!
THE FACES of LEADERSHIP

By Jisn Rogers, Chairman of the Board

We are opening the doors of our beardroom
s0 yolu can mect the members of our board of
directors tace Lo lace. We believe few people
really understand the role that divectors

serve in an organization and what corporate
HOVErINce neans,

Alter reading the pages that follow, we
hope that you will come away with a better
understanding of corporate governance practices,
as well as the spirit of accountability that we
choose to nurture. Also, we want you to see
how your board and management team worlk
together for you.

[ 2002, stakeholder-centered corporate
gavernance became a vital indicator of corporate
performance and shave price valuation, It's
common sense. A company that is focused on
being accountable to all of its stakeholders and
has sound governance practices is more likely
to create value for all in both the short and

long term.

WHAT 1S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE?
There arc many delinitions of corporate gover-
nance, Qur definition has three key components:
board independence, processes and practices
that foster solid decision-making by both
management aud the board of directors, and
bakaneing the interests of all of our stakeholders
— our investars, customers, employees, the
communities we serve ang the environment.
Corporate governance in itself is a separate
[unction from management. kt is where the board
works directly on behalf of vou, the owners of
the compauny, as well as the other stakeholders,
each of whoi has a vested interest in Lhe success

of our company.

Regardless of the delinition, corporate gover-
nance works best when practiced by directors
who have integrity and a strong commitment

to the success of the company. Ours do.

A CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TRADITION
With the merger in 1994 of CG&E and PSI to
create Cinergy, we used this opportunity to
rethink the new company’s corparate governance
practices. We enlisted the expertise of Professor
Jay W. Lersch, the Louis E. Kirstein Professor

of Human Relations at the Harvard University
School of Business, a leading expert on corporate
governance, both then and now. He led the
directors through team-building exercises around
the creation of new governance structures

and processes based on the then current best
practices for corporate boards.

Many of the steps we took then included the
adoption of many “new” practices that are just
being required today. The best example is our
board’s establishment in 1994 of a corporate
governance committee — one of the first in
the nation, Additionally, Cinergy's new board
commillees adopted charters to crystallize their
thinking about their roles and responsibilities
in the new company.

We haven’t fixed any of these practices in
stone, Instead, they continue to evolve to meet
the needs of a more complex and faster-moving

environment,

INDEPENDENT AND LEAD DIRECTORS
COMMITTED TO SUCCESS

We believe the key driver of effective corporate
governance is a board with independent directors

who are thoughtfully engaged and committed to
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the suecess of the company. Curs is. In fact, T am
the only member of managenient on the board.

In ihe past year, the board net three times in
exccutive session (without my presence) chaired
by our independent, co-lead directors, Michael
Browning and Dudley Talt. Further, on four of
our {olal of [ive committees, the chairpersons
who are the “lead directors” in their conumittee’s
arca of expertise -— Audit, Compensation,
Corporate Governance and Public Policy —
are independent directors. With this lead-director
structure, we believe it is unnecessary at this time
to separate the roles of chairman and CEO of
our company.

Cinergy's directors and officers have a vest-
ed interest in the company’s long-term success.
Board members are required to hold Cinergy
stock valued at twice the amount of their board
retainer; our execulive officers must hold Cinergy
stock valued at three times their base salary; and
I'm requiired to hold company stock valued at five
times nyy base salary. Additionally, we adopted a
policy prohibiting exccutive ofticers and directors
from sclling common stock acquired by exercising
performance-based options until 90 days after
they feave the company or board.

A way to measure that commitment is
whether the board regularly reviews and rates
its CEQ, the effectiveness of the board itself
and the members” individual eftectiveness, We
do. These reviews lead 10 a greater emphasis
o areas where the surveys show we have

oppaortunitics to impreve.

PROMOTING ENGAGEMENT

My primary duly as chairman of the board is

to safeguard the integrity of the board’s practices
and processes and to create an environment of
engagement — where openly challenging the
prevailing point of view is not only welcomed,

but also encouraged,

Only with an open and healthy exchange
of views can we reach the best decisions for cur
stakeholders. The effectiveness of corporate
governance is driven, in part, by processes and
practices that commit the board members to
this exchange.

We believe it’s vital to present independent,
external views at our board meetings. We regularly
have a CEO of a competitor, a joint venture
partner, a state or federal regulator, an industry
expert, or an equity or fixed-income analyst
as a guest speaker at our scheduled meetings.

Typically, the speaker meets with our board
and our top managers at a dinner the night
before the board meeting, at the meeting itself
or at our annual strategic retreat, Over the last
eight years, our board has heard 65 presentations
by these outside subject-matter experts.

The insights from these experts challenge
us, They support our commitment to fight
complacency and not settle for conventional
thinking. We will continue to seek ways to
eypand the board’s point of view about our
company and our changing industry beyond
that of their own experience and expertise and

the opinions of management.

IMPROVING OUR PROCESSES
AND PRACTICES
In 2002, we held 13 board meetings and 25 com-
mittee meetings, a lot by comparative standards.
To keep our discussions active between meetings,
we deployed a state-of-the-art, secure online
corporate governance system that, regardless of
our location, allows us to communicate and hold
discussions with each other, while simultaneously
accessing and reviewing company information,
We were the first board in our industry to use
this tool.

Working with Dudley Taft, chair of the
Corporate Governance Committee, and his entire
committee, we reexamined all of our practices

to ensure that we would be in full compliance
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with the proposed rules of the New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE), the U.S, Securities
and Fxchange Commission (SEC) and

The Sarbanes-Oxfey Act of 2002,

As a resull of this review, we adopted
corporate governance guidelines and a code of
business conduct and ethics for directors, oflicers
and employees. We also terminated the company’s

shareholder rights’ plan, and we reviewed and

amended cach of our committee charters last year.

We were the fourth company in the nation
and the first utility company to announce in
2002 that we would expense stock options
beginning with the 2003 cycle, Morcover, our
options overhang, which is the size of the option
pool as a percentage of cutstanding shares, is
less than 10 percent, compared 1o an average
of 15 percent [or the top 200 companies on the
5&P 300 index.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PORTAL

To ensure that our stakeholders fully understand
the mission and purpose of our board, and the
role our directors serve, we created a corporate
governance portal on the Cinergy corporate Web
site: www.cinergy.com/governance. There, vou
will find much of the informaticn referenced
above, including our board conmimittee charters.
We invite vou o access this information, review
what we have done, and give us suggestions for

improving it.

BALANCING STAKEHOLDER NEEDS!:
“OUR TRUE NORTH”

At the core of our definition of corporate
governance is our commitment to aif of our
stalkeholders. This is our true north. In 1995,
we broke lrom the pack: we decided to hold
ourselves Lo high performance standacds built

around satisfying muitiple stakeholders.

Your board and management team base
their decisions on this multiple-stakeholder
approach. This isn't casy, nor is it conventional.
in my letter to stakeholders in Cinergy’s 1996
annual report, [ wrote: “We are willing te make
the tough choices, but we arc umwilling o accept
falsc tradeofTs. .. between serving the interests of
shareholders and honoring our commitments to
our employecs, customers, communitics and the
environment.... Bvery decision I make as CEO
will continue to be based on creating value for
all of cur stakcholders.” T'his approach has served
us well, especially during these tumultuous times
in our industiy.

A good example of the way we balance stake-
holder needs is in the eavironmental arena. For
our communilties, regulators, and environmental
stakeholders, we are pushing for comprehensive
legislation to detine the rules to reduce multiple
emissions from our coal-fired power plants.
These rules would do two things: replace the
camplex and conﬂicting rules governing emissions,
and achieve even greater emissions reductions.

White we realize that veducing emissions is
good public policy, we also recognize that these
new rules would result in an increase in energy
prices for our customers, We are mindful that
these rules must be phased in with manageable
limetables to minimize and smoaoth out the price
impact on our customers.

Finally, our fixed income and equity investors
would also benefit from the certainty gained from
understanding the environmental “rules of the
road.” Long-lerm ceriainly allows our board
1o plan more prudently for the lavge capital
expenditures required to meet these new rules.
This assures both balance sheet and credit
ratings integrity for our invesiors and us.

We have never wavered from our stewardship
to all of our stakeholders. [n this era of demands
for greater corporate accountability, we believe
it is incumbent upon all companies to adhere to

these standards.
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LEADING BY EXAMPLE

"The actions we have taken sinee the formation
al Cinergy have cnabled us to be a leader in
satisfying the new NYSE, SEC and legislative
requirements, bul don’t take our word for it.

In an independent assessment of our
carporate governance performance and practices,
Cinergy received a Corporate Governance
Quotient (CGQ) of 99.6 percent, or essentially
100 percent, according to Institutional
Sharcholder Services (1S5), the leading provider
ol proxy voling and corporale governance
scrvices, 1S5 applics over 60 criteria to analyze
and compute cach company’s CGQ,

Not only does Cinergy lead the 499 other
companics in the $&P 500 index, and the utilities
group, our CGQ sits atop the 30, companies
that make up the Dow Jones Industrial Average
{DJIA), according to analysis by Solomon Smith
Barney in carly 2003. These are some of the
largest, most profitable and best-managed
companics in America,

Additionally, Cinergy was one of only six
companics out of the S&1? 500 Lo receive S&P’s
1op score for financial transparency and informa-
tion disclasure on its SEC reporting dacuments
(annual report, SEC Form 10-K and proxy
statemient). This achievement underscores our
commitiment to provide financial information
that is truly understandable, insightful, accurate
and uselul.

CovernanceMetrics International (GMI),
which monitors corporate governance at 2,000
U.S. and inlernational companies, recently
began similar ratings of corporate governance
practices of the S&P 500, Cinergy's GMI rating
is 9.0 out of 10, well above the average range for
all GMI-rated companics and well above the 7.0
average rating for GMT-rated electric campanies.
Among the arcas most highly rated were board
accountability and behavior, financial disclosure,

and sharcholder rights.

The recoguition by these independent
olganizations underscores our commitment
to providing our stakeholders transparency in
the quality of our earnings, our financial state-
ments, and our operations, As I said in last year’s
letter, Cinergy’s actions will be consistent with

the spirit as well as the letier of the law.

A POWERFUL COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE
We believe that stakeholder-focused corporate
governance leads to higher investor confidence,
more stable earnings, and a better share price.
This has been confirmed by two recent studies,

McKinsey & Company found that 76 percent
of institutional investors said they would pay a
premium price for ctfective corparate governance.
Researchers at The Wharton School who have
been studying companies “that look out
for sharehalders” from 1990 to 2000 found that
governance-focused companies had, on average,
8.5 percent higher stock market returns than
companies that didn’t look out for shareholders.

We recognize that even the best corporate
governance practices, coupled with the best
intentions of the board and management
practices, will not completely insulate any
company from the risks of its decisions and
unpredictable market cycles. However, adopting
and practicing good corporate governance
principles puts the board and management
in a much stronger position to deal with these
uncertainties when they arise.

In summary, stakeholder-centered governance
is synonymous with true accountability. If done
right, it can be a powerful competitive advantage.
More important, it’s simply the right thing to
do with respect to protecting your interests.

You have made an investment in us, and
we value that investment. We believe that our
governance practices are essential to ensure

your continued trust and confidence.
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PUBLIC POLICY COMMITTEE!
PUBLIC POLICY LEADERSHIP

Phil Cox has been a Cinergy director since 1994 and has served as chair of the Public Policy
Committee since May 2002. This committee focuses on the impact current and emerging
public policy issues may have on Cinergy and the energy industry — the so-called stroke-
of-the-pen decisions. “In an industry that is experiencing the unparalleled uncertainties that
we face today, our biggest uncertainties — whether defined as risk or ambiguity — are future
regulatory or legislative actions. As such, we must always be proactive and at the forefront

of the major current and emerging public policy issues,” Mr. Cox says.

AN INDUSTRY VOICE IN MAJOR PUBLIC DEBATES

This committec has a long history of establishing Cinergy as a national public policy leader.
Cinergy was the first utility to adopt a formal environmental leadership pledge and to support
the Clean Air Act Amendments. The company has significantly reduced power plant emissions
over the last 12 years and helped shape the national debate on comprehensive energy and
covironmental Jegislation,

Cinergy is committed to reducing future emissions and has spent over $600 million on
environmental controls in the 1990s, and by the end of 2003, will have spent over $800 million.
Cinergy has been an advocate for greater reductions but realizes the timeline must be right to
ensure affordable, reliable energy supplies. Other major public policy issues in which Cinergy
has been a leader are carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions and climate change.

STAKEHOLDER-FOCUSED CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

This committee guides the company’s development of its balanced workforce initiative,
employee development, and work-life focus programs. As a result of these efforts, for six
consecutive years, Cinergy has been included on Working Mother magazine's list as one of
the 100-Best Companies for Working Mothers,

This committee also guides Cinergy Foundation, the contributions of which are aimed at
improving education, health, economic development, and the arts in the communities Cinergy
serves. In 1998, the foundation announced a grant program partnering communities and schoals
Lo improve student performance. The BASICS (Building Assets and Support for Innovative
Communities and Schools) program has provided $3 million to schools and communities
over three years. It has increased test scoves, provided professional development opportunities
for tcachers and involved entire communities in the education of their young people.

Phillip R. Cox, 56, has been a Cinergy director since 1994 and a director of CG&E from 1994 to 1995, He has served
as Public Policy Contmitice chair since May 2002 and is alse a member of the Corporate Governance Committee.

He is also a director of Cinergy Foundation. Mr. Cox is president and chief executive officer of Cox Financial Corp.,
Cincinnati, Ohio. He is aiso a member of the board of divectors of Broadwing Inc., Long Staton Manufacturing
Conipany, Touchstane Mutual Funds, and the Cincinnati branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland. Mr. Cox
haids a B.S. in political science and psychalogy from Xavier University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE!:

PRACTICING GOOD GOVERNANCE

Dudley "(aft has been a Cinergy dirvector since 1994 and has served as chair of the Corporate
Governance Committee since that time. By charter, this committee is made up entirely of
independent outside directors, who identify and recommend individuals to be nominated

to serve as directors, and who conduct the board’s annual self-evaluation.

COMMITTED TO CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

Lstablished in 1994 with the merger of CG&E and PSI to form Cinergy, this committee

has the important distinction and legacy of being one of the first corporate governance
conmumittees in the nalion. As such, over the years, it has focused on progressively enhancing
Cinergy’s corporate governance processes and practices, work that has gained national
independent recognition as highlighted in this report.

While the board of directors regarded itself as highly productive and functional with a
keen understanding of Cinergy’s businesses, it knew there was always room for improvement.
Under Mr. Taft’s leadership, this comumittee retained a leading consultant to independently
cvaluate the board composition and to assess strengths and weaknesses. This in-depth work
resulted ina realignment of the board committees, improved practices for director recruit-
ment, and a new director compensation program paid in both cash and stock,

The committee also developed Cinergy's new corporate governance guidelines as well as
a code of business conduct and ethics for directors, officers and employees. This committee
also researched the steps necessary to accelerate the termination of the company’s shareholder
rights’ plan, which was viewed as an impediment to increasing shareholder value, The full
board approved both of these items in August 2002.

STAKEHOLDER-FOCUSED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

“Tt is vilal that a responsible and transparent governance system is in place to ensure an
appropriate focus on relevant, meaningful information and issues. Corporate governance is
about addressing the needs of all of our stakcholders,” Mr. Taft says, “It’s the investors, yes,
but it’s more about creating value for our customers, our employees, our suppliers and the
communities that we serve, as well as the environment. If we think about creating value for
all of our stakeholders, we realize that every tough decision is a tradeoff. Finding the right

balance for our slakcholders is what good governance is all about.”

Dudley S. Taft, 62, has been a Cinergy divector since 1994 and served as a director of CGeE from 1985 to 1995.
He has sevved as chair of the Corporate Governance Conimitree since 1994, He is also a member of the Executive
Committee. Mr. 'laft is president and chief executive officer of Taft Broadcasting Co., Cincinnati, Ohio. He is also

a member of the board of divectors of Fifth Third Bancorp, Tribune Company, The Union Central Life Insurance
Campany, and U.S. Playing Card Company. Mr. Taft hoids a B.A. degree from Yale University and an L.L.B. degree
Jrom the University of Virginia Law School.
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TO ENSURING THAT ALL COMPENSATION COSTS ARE CLEARLY RECORDED [N OURl FINANCIAL

stateMments.” | Michael Browning, Compensation Commiiter Chair




COMPENSATION COMMITTEE!

PAY for PERFORMANCE

Michael Browning has been a Cinergy director since 1994 and has served as chair of the
Compensation Committee since 1999. Under Mr. Browning’s leadership, this committee
evaluated, and in July 2002, through commeon sense argument, gained full board approval
of expensing the cost of employee stock option grants, beginning with the 2003 grant cycle.
Cinergy was the fourth company and the first utility company in the United States to take
this aclion.

[n addition, the committee recommended a policy prohibiting executive officers and
directors from selling conunon stock acquired by exercising options until 90 days after they
leave the company or board.

WHY WE ARE EXPENSING STOCK OPTIONS
“Cinergy’s decision (o expense stock options reflects our ongoing commitment to ensuring
that all compensation costs are clearly recorded in our financial statements,” Mr. Browning
says. “Additionally, in making this change, we have taken the necessary steps to ensure that
our financial statements and disclosures are clear in the presentation of stock options as
an expense.”

Under Mr. Browning’s leadership, this committee began the year by recommending that
the company’s standard, one-size-fits-all retirement program be redesigned. In late 2002,
employees were given the choice to participate in cne of two new cash balance retirement
programs. The new programs offer employees more flexibility and a choice of retirement
plans that arc morc in line with our competitors’ and peers’,

TIGHTLY LINKING PAY TO PERFORMANCE

This committee also established objective individual incentive compensation goals for covered

employees that more divectly link with the company’s core strategies (highlighted on page 2).

In addition, the full board approved restatements of the annual incentive program (AIP) and

the long-term incentive program (ITIP), which were submitted to shareholders in May 2002.
[n November 2002, this committee conducted a session to evaluate executive compensation

governance best practices at some of the nation’s leading corporations. During this session,

the commiltee reviewed an updated charter, which incorporated the latest in governance

developments in this area. The charter was subsequently approved by the full board in

December 2002.

Miciiael G, Browning, 56, has been a Cinergy director since 1994 and a director of PSI since 1990. He has served as
chair of the Compensation Committee since 1999 and is also a member of the Corporate Governance and Executive
Comimittecs. Mr. Browning is chairman and president of Browning Investments Inc.,, Indianapolis, Ind., which is
engaged in real estate development. His prior corporate board memberships include Conseco Inc., NBD Indiana Inc.,
MC Equtities Inc., and Enmniis Broadeasting. Mr. Browning holds a B.S. degree in business administration from the
University of Noire Dame.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE;
FINANCIAL TRANSPARENCY

Mary Schapire has seived as chair of the Audit Comunittee since May 2002. In January,

the committee and management decided to transition Cinergy’s internal audit work to
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) in recognition of a desire for separation between the internal
and external auditors. In March, senior management received a list of 42 detailed guestions
concerning the company’s auditing practices and processes from Ms. Schapire, incoming
committee chair. In response, answers were compiled and distributed to the full board to
drive an improved understanding of the auditing process.

Int April, the committee recommended to the board the replacement of Arthur Andersen
LLP as independent auditors with Deloitte & Touche LLP (D&T) — an action the board
subsequently took in April. Additionally, and under Ms. Schapire’s leadership, the committee
developed a well-defined scope of work for D&T.

IMPLEMENTING BEST PRACTICES

In May, the committee held a best practices session led by Harvard University profcssors

to analyze the roles and responsibilities of the committee, in concert with the roles of the
internal and independent auditors. This work led to the development of a list of action
items to implement throughout the year, The committee also conducted a comprehensive
and in-depth review of Cinergy’s off-balance sheet exposures, which were found to be within
Cinergy’s acceptable risk tolerances.

Under Ms. Schapiro’s leadership, the committee met nine times in 2002 (versus three in
2001). Among actions taken, she led the full committee in reviewing carnings statenients with
management and the internal and independent auditors prior to release; discussing the process
for the new CEO/CFO certifications required under The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; and
holding private committee meetings with PwC and D&T at the conclusion of each live meeting.

ANTICIPATING RULE CHANGES

In the fourth quarter of 2002, the committee reviewed and recommended approval of a new
charter. Though it recognized its charter would change as rule proposals were finalized, the
committee believed it was important to be out in front of these changes. The committee began
a process of mapping out its work for the following year and, ne doubt, the pace will pick

up even more in 2003. “We stay on the path of market integrity and investor protection in
virtually everything we do. That’s what drives us,” Ms. Schapiro says.

Mary L. Schapiro, 47, has been a Cinergy director since 1999 and was elected chair of the Audit Commitice in
May 2002, She also serves on the Public Policy Commitice and is o divector of Cinergy Foundation. Ms. Schapiro
is vice chairsman of NASD, Washington, D.C., which is responsible for the regulation of all wmember brokerage firms
and individual registered representatives as well as oversight of The NASDAQ Stock Market Inc. Before thai, she
served as chair of the Commodity Butures Trading Commission (CFTC) from 1994-1996, and from 1988 ro 1994,
she served as commissioner of the Securiiies and Exchange Commission (SEC). Ms. Schapiro holds a bachelor’s
degree from Franklin & Marshall College, and she received her [.D. degree front George Washington Universily.
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“UINI’.R(;\’ IS5 STRONG COMPARED TO LTS COMPETITORS AND PEERS. IT 1S COMMITTED TO BEING
ALOW-COST LEADER AND 10 MAINTAINING ITS LOW-RISK PROFILE. [T HAS EARNINGS

AnD rinanNciaL stasiLiTy, A SOLID GROWTH STRATEGY, A sAre mivinenn aNp
rr s pEING REcoaNized ror sEing A CORPORATE GOVERNANCE LEADER”

Tom Petry, Mewiher of the Execntive and Compensation Commitiees
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE!
ENSURING EXECUTION

Tom Petry has been a Cinergy director since 1994 and serves on the Compensation and
Executive Committees, The Executive Committee had a busy year taking actions to further
strengthen Cinergy’s already strong balance sheet, enhance corporation-wide risk management
capabilities and sharpen the company’s focus on its core businesses: regulated operations

and energy merchant.

CINERGY S DISTINGUISHING FACTORS

“Cinergy is strong compared to its competitors and peers. It is committed to being a low-cost
leader and to maintaining its low-risk profile. It has earnings and financial stability, a solid
growth strategy, a safe dividend and has long been recognized for being a corporate governance
leader,” says Mr. Petry, who is using his extensive prior experience as chairman and CEQ of

a publicly traded company and memberships on other corporate boards to help guide this
committee’s agenda.

A committee priority was the preservation of Cinergy’s credit quality. As a result of man-
agement’s extensive efforts to drive an understanding of Cinergy’s solid business model and
low-risk profile with all of the major credit ratings agencies, in 2002, Cinergy’s credit ratings
were affirmed and stable outlooks were assigned. Another committee priority was the develop-
ment of an enterprise risk-management framework, including the hiring of a chief risk ofticer.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE AND COST LEADERSHIP
To further strengthen Cinergy’s already strong balance sheet, the commiittee reviewed manage-
ment’s recommendations to improve the company’s cost leadership position in the industry.
This review included the creation of a shared services organization to improve routine
service-delivery processes and the use of new technologies to improve supply chain and
financial accounting systems. One goal is to have Cinergy rank in the top 25 percent of
companies in the utility industry for cost leadership in administrative and general expenses
aver the next 18 months.

Cinergy has been much less affected than our peers by the headlines and events that have
impacted utility company stock prices. Even so, price movements of the entire sector can
still affect our stock price. 'To help mitigate stock price volatility, the committee is leveraging
Cinergy’s current strength in the utility industry with a strategy to attract more traditional
investors focused on long-term growth, consistent dividend yields and earnings performance,

Thomas E. Petry, 63, has been a Ginergy divector since 1994 and a divector of CG&E from 1986 fo 1995, He serves on
the Compensation and Executive Committees. Mr. Petry served as chairman of the board and chief executive officer of
Eagle-Picher Industries Inc., a diversified manufacturer of industrial and automotive products in Cincinnati, Ohio, il
his retirement in 1998, He also serves as a director of The Union Central Life Insurance Company and of U.S. Bancorp.
My. Petry holds an M.B.A. degree from the Harvard Graduate School of Business and a B.S. degree in mechanica!
engineering from University of Cincinnati,
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“WIIEN YOU LOOK AT W HERE WE'Y1 BEEN SINCE THE CGEE AND PSI MERGER IN 1994 AND WHAT

WE HAVE ACCOMPLISHED SINCE THEN, THAT CONTE

T AND HARD WORK ILLUSTRATE WIIY WE NOW
rno ourseves wirn TIHHE RIGHT BUSINESS MODEL, THE RIGHT
MISSION 10 crearvk vaLug vor our stakenorners, THE RIGH'T TACTICAL
PLANS, sano THE RIGH'T PEQPLE vo sxkcuss tHem.”

i George Juilfs, Member of the Compensation and Public Policy Comniittees




STRATEGY FOCUS!
A BUSINESS MODEL that WORKS

George Juilfs has been a Cinergy director since 1994 and is a member of the Compensation
and Public Policy Committees. He uses his experience as president and CEO of a large
Cincinnati-based manufacturing company to help his fellow Cinergy board members
articulate Cinergy’s strategy and business model.

LEARNING FROM THE PAST, POSITIONED FOR THE FUTURE

“When you look at where we've been since the CG&E and PSI merger in 1994 and what we
have accomplished since then, that context and hard work illustrate why we now find ourselves
with the right business model, the right mission to create value for our stakeholders, the right
tactical plans, and the right people to execute them,” Mr. Juilfs says.

He notes that from 1995-1996, Cinergy delivered on what it promised and had onc of
the highest markei-to-book ratios in the industry. By harvesting the merger and re-cngineering
savings, the company achieved more than 10 percent earnings growth and its credit ratings
were upgraded. The company then organized into four business units to reduce costs, better
understand emerging markets and prepare for a deregulated world.

From 1996-1999, Cinergy built several growth platforms, including negotiating the Ohio
restructuring legislation and navigating one of the most volatile encrgy markets in history.
To find growth opportunities in the non-regulated energy segment, the company developed
initiatives in the energy merchant, internaticnal, technology and energy services arcas. By
1998, Cinergy had sold or shut down many of these ventures, while maintaining investments
in a select few — cogeneration, infrastructure services, and new technologics — all the while
making significant capital investments in its regulated and energy merchant operations.

In the energy merchant business, the company’s most challenging years were 1998 and
1999, two vears that saw huge and unexpected price swings in the wholesale power market.
These experiences galvanized the company’s resolve to commit itself to this business with a
new focus and strategy.

THE RIGHT BUSINESS MODEL AT THE RIGHT TIME

“The lessons learned over the last several years led to the development and emergence in 2000
of the current balanced integrated portfolio model,” M. Juilfs says, “This strategy has allowed
the company to avoid the recent missteps of many of its competitors and peers who focused
on single and highly speculative value propositions.”

George C. Juilfs, 63, has beent a Cinergy director since 1994 and a director of ClUieE from 1980 to 1995, He serves on
the Compensation and Public Policy Committees. He is also a director of Cinergy Foundation. Mr. Juilfs is chairman
and CEO of SENCORP, Newpert, Ky, a private holding company, international in scope, with subsidiaries that
manufacture and market powered fastening systems and commercialize health care technologies. He Is also the past
chairman of the board of directors of the Cincinnati branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland. Mr. Juilfs
attended the University of Cincinnati College of Business Administration,

29



<«

SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT RELY ON DIRECTORS TO ASK CONSTRUCTIVE, PROBING
QUESTIONS. IT'S UP TO US TO ENCOURAGE OUR FELLOW DirpcTors To0 YVOLUNTEER
DIEFEFERENT VIEWPOINTS anpo LISTEN witH AN 0PEN MIND TO OTHERS,
ENGAGING IN A HEALTHY DISCUSSION OF THE COMPANY, ITS TRACK RECORD, THE INDUSTRY

AND TIIE WAY TORWARD.” } Tnck Scliiff Jr., Member of the Audit and Compensation Commitices
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CONSTRUCTIVE DISCUSSION:
DIRECTOR STEWARDSHIP

Jack Schiff has been a Cinergy director since 1994 and serves on the Audit and Compensation
Cormittees. As chairman, president and CEO of a regional property casualty insurer and

an experienced outside director for other public companies, he brings a unique perspective
on how corporate boards should function, what the role of directors should be and what
constitutes good corporate governance.

CONSTRUCTIVE, PROBING QUESTIONS
“Shareholders and management rely on directors to ask constructive, probing questions.
If’s up to us to encourage our fellow directors to volunteer different viewpoints and listen
with an open mind to others, engaging in healthy discussion of the company, its track record,
the industry, and the way forward,” Mr. Schiff says. “As [ participate in this process, 1 often
draw on other board experiences which complement and directly relate to my current
responsibilities as a Cinergy director. I’'m thankful to the companies on whose boards 1 have
served for the opportunities I've had to gain years of accumulated knowledge about these
publicly held businesses and then apply that knowledge to my current board stewardship.”
Consistent with this thinking, Mr., Schiff notes that Cinergy Chairman Jim Rogers informs
board members about commentaries from the financial community and regularly brings in
industry experts, CEOs of competing companies, and federal and state regulators, so that the
board has the benefit of many insights as they consider Cinergy’s future course.

A WIDE RANGE OF INDEPENDENT VIEWPOINTS

“On the Cinergy board, constructive discussion is consistently and actively encouraged,

and directors are exposed to a wide range of independent points of view,” he says. “Cinergy’s

management and board started down this road long before it became popular. Of course,

our challenge is to continue this culture so that we are always open to improving our

decision-making processes.” Mr. Schiff notes that Cinergy’s culture drives good director

stewardship two ways:

o1 | being clear about the role of the board and the goals of its meetings, and then supporting
achievement of those goals by bringing together the right number of independent directors
to contribute diverse perspectives, experience and expertise; and

02 | having directors who are genuinely interested in the company and who have a direct
stake in its success. Cinergy compensates its directors for the significance of their insights
and contributions as well as their time.

Jokn J. (Jack) Schiff Jr., 59, has been a Cinergy direcror since 1994 and a CG&E divecior froim 1986 to 1995, He serves
on the Audit and Compensation Committees. Mr. Schiff is the chairman, president aird CEQ of Cincinnati Financial
Corporation and The Cincinmati Insurance Company, Cincinnati, Ghie. He is a member of the board of dircctors of
two other local companies. Mr. Schiff holds a B.S. degree in risk and insurance from The Olifo State University,
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“Cinerey's PROACTIVE anv NO SURPRISES APPROACH 1o working
WITH UEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND REGULATORS IIAS EMARLED TITE CREATION
OF UNIQUE, INNOVATIVE AND FLEXIBLE RATEMAKING AND COST-RECOVERY MECITANISMS TITAT

BENEFIT GUSTOMERS AN SHAREHOLDERS,” | Phil Sharp, Member of the Audit and Publlic Policy Conmnittees
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CONSTRUCTIVE RELATIONSHIPS:
A MULTIPLE STAKEHOLDER APPROACH

Phil Sharp has been a Cinergy director since 1995 and serves on the Audit and Public Policy
Committees. As a former U.S. Congressman representing Indiana’s 2nd District for 20 years
and a political science college professor, Mr. Sharp has a unique perspective and philosophy
for managing and cultivating relationships at the federal, state and local level. These skills and
insights have proved to be invaluable in building constructive relationships with lawmalers,
elected officials and regulators.

CONSTRUCTIVE REGULATORY OUTCOMES

“Cinergy’s proactive and ‘no surprises’ approach in working with federal, state and local
governments and regulators has enabled the creation of unique, innovative and flexible
ratemaking and cost-recovery mechanisms that benefit customners and sharcholders,” says
Mr. Sharp. “Cinergy also has local managers located throughout its service territory. They
serve as customer, community and economic-development representatives ensuring local
needs are addressed on a face-to-face basis.”

As a result, the company has had great successes in the regulatory arcna, and ironically,
in a period of deregulation, Cinergy has achieved its greatest regulatory achievements, which
help mitigate political risk and drive cash flow to create shareholder value.

This stability was important Jate last year when Indiana state regulators approved the
transfer of two of Cinergy’s unregulated merchant peaking plants to PSI, to ensure a reliable
supply of electricity for PSI customers.

A COMMUNITY-CENTERED APPROACH
PSI also filed for a rate increase in Indiana, and one of the recovery items is for environmental
compliance. With our constructive regulatory viewpoint, which takes into consideration the
importance of economic development in the communities we serve, even if the full rate amount
were to be approved, PSIs rates will still be some of the lowest in the Midwest and nation,
Cinergy’s no surprises approach also helps the company as state legislatures tackle utility
oversight measures and new standards for service reliability, especially as federal regulators
redesign the way high-voltage electric power is transmitted throughout the Midwest and
nation. Cinergy’s proactive stance in maintaining constructive relationships also helps it
anticipate lawmakers’ next moves in the national debate over comprebensive energy and
environmental legislation.

Philip R. Sharp, 60, has been a Cinergy director since 1995 and serves oni the Audit and Public Policy Cannittees.

He is also a divector of Cinergy Foundation. He is a sewior research fellow at the fohn F. Kennedy School of Gevermnent
at Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass. He is a former member of the U.S. House af Representatives representing
Indigna’s 2nd Congressional District from 1975-1995 and was a ranking memdber of the House Energy and Connicrce
Committee, He is @ member of the board of divectors of the Flectric Power Research Institute and a member of the
National Commission on Energy Policy. He has served on the Energy Secretary’s advisory board and as chainnan of the
Energy Secretary’s Electric System Relinbility Task Force. He holds B.S. and Ph.D. degrees from Georgetowst University.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

In arder of appearance: Jawnes L. Tirner, Aichacl . Cyrus, Janies E. Rogers, Theadore B, Mivphy 1,
R. Foster Diacan, Marc E. Manly, William J. Grealis, aned Frederick f. Newtow I

JAMES L. TURNER, 43
Execulive vice president

ol Cinergy and chief execu-
tive officer of Regulated
Businesses. Joined Cinergy
in 1995,

MICHAEL J. CYRUS, 47
Exccutive vice president
of Cincrgy and chief
executive officer of Energy
Merchant. Joined Cinergy
in 1998.

R. FOSTLR DUNCAMN, 48
Executive vice president
and chicf financial officer.
Joined Cincrgy in 2001,

JAMES E. ROGERS, 55
Chairman of the board,
president and chicf
executive officer. Joined

P51in 1988,
MARC E. MANLY, 51

txecutive vice president,
chief legal officer and
assistant secretary of
Cinergy and PSI. Jained
Cinergy in 2002

THEODORE R. MURPHY 11, 45
Senior vice president and
chict risk officer. Joined
Cinergy in 2002.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

WILLIAM J. GREALLS, 57
Executive vice presiclent.
Joined Cinergy in 1995,

FREDERICK ). NEWTON 111, 47
Executive vice president and
chief administrative officer.
Joined Cinergy in 2003,

JAMES B. ROGLRS, 55
Chairman of the board,
president and chief cxecutive
officer. Joined PSI in 1988,

WENDY L. AUMILLER, 51
Treaswrer. Joined CG&E
n 1980,

JOHN BRYANT, 56

Vice president of Cinergy
and president of Cinergy
Global Resources. Joined
Cinergy in 1998,

MICHAEL J. CYRUS, 47
Executive vice president of
Cinergy and chief executive
officer of Energy Merchant.
Joined Cinergy im 1998,

R. FOSTER DUNCAN, 48
Exocutive vice president
and chicf financial officer.
Joined Cinergy in 2001,

DOUGLAS PB. ESAMANN, 45
President, PSI,
Joined PSI in 1979,

M. STEPHEN HARKNESS, 54
Vice president of Cinergy and
chiel operations & linancial
oflicer of Lnergy Merchant.
GREGORY C. FICKE, 50 Joined PSIin 19790,
President, CG&LE.
Toined CG&LE in 1978, JULIA 5. JANSON, 38
Corporate secrelary.

BENNETT L. GAINES, 49 Joined CG&E in 1987.

Vice president and
chicf technology officer
Joined Cinergy in 2003.

MARC E. MANLY, 51
Execulive vice president,
chief legal oliicer and
assistant secretary of
Cinergy and PSI. jJoined
Cinergy in 2002,

WILLIAM j, GREALIS, 57
Execulive vice presicent.
Joined Cinergy in 1995,

J. JOSEPH HALE fR., 53
Vice president, corpoerate
colmunications, and
president, Cinergy
Foundation. Joined
PSIin 1992,

THEORORE R MURPEY 11, 45
Senior vice president and
chief risk officer. Joined
Cinergy in 2002,

COMMITTEES of the BOARD of DIRECTORS

FREDERICK J. NEWTON 111, 47
Lxecutive vice president and
chief administrative officer.
Joined Cinergy in 2002,

RONALD R. REISING, 42
Vice president, inance.
Joined Cinergy in 2002,

BERNARD F. ROBERTS, 50
Vige president and comp-
troller. Joinced PS1in 1974

JAMES L, TURNER, 43
Fxecutive vice president
of Cinergy and chiel
exceutive efficer of
Regulated Businesses.
Joined Cinergy in 1995

TIMOTHY J. VERHAGEN, 56
Vice president, human
resowrees. Joined Cinergy
in 2001.

EXECUTIVE AUDIT
COMBMITTEE
Mary L. Schapiro®
Johu . SchifT Jr.
Philip R Sharp

COMRMITTEE
James L. Rogers®
Michacl G. Browning
Thamas E. Petry
Dudley 5. Taft

COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE

Michael G Browning?
George C. Juilfs
Thomas I, Petry

John ). Schilf ).

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Dudley S, Taft”

Phillip R, Cox

wichael G. Browning

PUBLIC POLICY
COMMITTEE
Phillip R, Cox*
George C. Juills
Mary L. Schapice
Philip R. Sharp

T Committee Chair
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KEY METRICS of our LEADERSHIP TEAM

THE FOLLOWING METRICS ILLUSTRATE THE MIX OF
TALENT AND EXPERIENCE AMONG OUR LEADERSHIP TEAM.

AGE

YEARS OF CINERGY SERVICE

O 64%  40-50 Years of age
o 36%  51-60 Years of age

B 52% (-3 Years of service
o 8%  6-10 Yeurs of service
o 40% 104 Years of service

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE

ADVANCED EDUCATION

0 60%  Members with careers
primarily in the utility
industry

o0 40%  Members with careers

primarily outside the
utility industry

o 80%  Members wirh
advanced degrees

o 20%  Members withour
advasiced degrees
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A TRIBUTE to RETIRED DIRECTORS and EXECUTIVES

THOSE WHO CAME BEFORE 1S
GOT US TO WHERE WE ARE TODAY...

We recognize three divectors and five exceulives who
retired in 2002 because these individuals played pivotal
roles in growing PSI and CG&L, and in shaping
Cincrgy into the company that it is today.

Tack Randolph, our chairman emeritus, retired
after 43 years of service to our companies. Jack joined
CG&E in 1959 and held various management and
exccutive posts, culminating in president and CEO
in 1986 and chairman of the board in 1993,

Jack led CG&E through its 150th anniversary,
and in 1991, the successful conversion of Zimmer
Station from a planned nuclear plant to one of the
cleanest and most efficient coal-fired plants in the
nation — an action that saved CG&E ratepayers and
shareholders millions of dollars. He was also the
architect of the merger with PSI 1o form Cinergy.

He then sevved as Cinergy chairman and CEO until
1995 and then as chairman of the board unti) 2000.

His support, valued counsel and many con-
tributions to the company and board of divectors
are immcasurable and greatly appreciated, and we
offer our most sincere thanks for all that he has
given and accomplished in his remarkable career.

John Hillenbrand and Jim Baker retived from our
board. A devaled business, community and paolitical
leader, john had served on the PSI board since 1985
and chaired our Public Policy Committee since it
was formed in 1986, Qur stakeholder approach and
corporate and social responsibility activities, as well
as ouwr leadership on the enviromment, are :eally the
result of John's insights into these arcas, which formed
the foundation for cur current focus on sustainability.

Jim Baker joined the PSI board in 1986 axd
chaired our Finance Committee, which became our
Audit Committee with the formation of Cinergy in
1994. As a former chairman and CEQ with a global
perspective, Jim devoted the better part of his life
to promoting the value of business ethics, including
authoring a book on the topic. We're grateful for
Jim'’s devotion to our hoard and his leadership of
our Audit Committee, which 16 years ago adopted
the highest standards and ethics to ensure integrity,
honesty and openness in our financial dealings,

Larry Thomas, vice chairman of PSL, vetived after
35 years with our companies, He began his career in
1967 as a customer service trainee in Columbus, Ind..

and worked his way up to a variety of stafT positions —
accauntant, auditor, district manager and avea manager.
His exccutive experience included senior vice president
and chicf operations officer, president of the FEnergy
Delivery business unit, and CEQ of the Power
Technology and Infrastructure Services business unit
{where he led Lhe creation of our venture capilal
group), and most recently vice chairman of PSL

Jetry Vennemann, vice president, general counsel
and assistant secretary since 2000, relired after 24
years with CG&E and Cinergy. Jerry joined Lhe Legal
Deparument of CG&L in 1979 and had legal affairs
responsibilitics for corporate, finance, and mergers and
acquisitions, 1lis counscl and advice during this period
af growth for our companies is greatly appreciated.

Chuck Winger, vice president of corporate devel-
opment, retired after 22 years with our companies, 1e
joined PSLin 1980 in the finance arca and ultimately
rose to vice president and chief {inancial officer. Tn
2000, he served concurrently as acting chief financial
officer and vice president of corporate development.
He truly set the standard for excellence in our
financial operations.

Don Ingle retived as president of Powcer
Technotogy and Infrastructure Services, a portlolio of
nanregulated energy services companies. Dan joined
Cinergy in 1999 as a conlract consultant and helped
“explore the franticr” He led the team

©

the company
that built the $29 million district cooling business that
generates and delivers chilled water to air condition
downtown Cincinnati buildings. e also served as
president of the Energy Services business unit.

Paul King, excculive vice president of power oper-
ations, retied after 37 years with CG&li and Cinergy.
Paul began his carcer in 1965 as a co-op emploves al
Miami Fort Generating Station. Key positions he held
included station manager ol Zimmer Station, where
he oversaw the building of the plant and its successful
conversion [rom nuclear to coal, and vice president of
pawer operations and (uels, Paul is a major reasen the
Cinergy generating (leet enjoys the national reputation
for operational excellence that it has today.

Keeping Cinergy successtul is something these
eight individuals took personally. Their commitment
and dedication set the examples by which all of us
should learn and live,
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

1n this repart Cinergy (which includes Cinergy Corp. and all of
our regulated and non-regulated subsidiavies) is, at times, veferved
to i1 the first person as “we', “our”, or "us”.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING
FORWARD-LOCOKING INFORMATION

This decument includes forward-logking statements within the
meaning of Scction 27A of the Sccurities Act of 1933 and Section
21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Forward-looking stale-
ments are based on management’s beliefs and assumptions. These
forward-looking statenents are identified by terms and phrases

oo oo 1"«
1

such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “intend

» o L moa o »u

ue’, “should”, “coull”, “ntay”, *plan”, “projeet’, “predict”, “will"} and

W » o

estimalte’, “expect”, “contin-
similar expressions.

Forward-logking statements involve risks and uncerlainties
that may cause actual results to be materially different from the
results predicted, Factors that could cause actual results ta differ
materially from those indicated in any forward-looking stalement
include, but are not Hmited to:

a

Faclors affecting operalions, such as:
1 | unusual weather conditions;
2 | catastrophic weather-relaled damage;

unscheduled generation outages;
unusual maintenance or repairs;
unanticipated changes in fossil fuel costs, gas supply costs,

3
4

3

or availability constraints;

>

environmental incidents, including costs of compliance
with existing and [uture environmental requirements; and
7 | eleciric Lransmission or gas pipcline system constraints,

State, federal, and local legislative und regulatary initiatives.

The timing and extent of the entry of additional competition
in clectric or gas markets and the cffects of continued industry
conselidation threugh the pursuit of mergers, acquisitions, and
strategic alliances,

Regulatory factors such as changes in the policies or procedures
that set rates; changes in our ability (o recover expenditures

for environmentat compifance, purchased power costs and
mvestments mace under traditional regulation through rates;
and changes to the frequency and timing of rate increases.

Financial or regulatory accounting principles or policics imposed
bv governing bodies.

313

Palitical, legal, and economic conditions and developments in
the United Stawes 1U.S.) and the (oreign countries in which
we have a presence. These would include mflation rates and
monetary uctuations.

Changing markel conditions and other faclors related to physical
energy and linancial frading activities. These would include price,
basis, credit, liquidity, volatility, capacity, transmission, currency
exchange rates, interest rates, and warranty risks.

The performanee of projects undertaken by our non-regulated
businesses and the success of clforts o invest i and develop
new apportunities,

Availability of, or cost of, capital.

LEmployee worklorce factors, including changes in key executives,
collective bargaining agreements with union employecs, and
worl stoppages,

Legal and regulatory delays and other obstacles associated
wilh mergers, acquisitions, and investments in joint ventures.

Cosls and clfects of legal and administrative proceedings,

settlements, investigations, and claims. E
found in Note 11 of the Notes to Financial Stalemcenls,
Changes in international, federal, state, or local legislative

camples can he

requiretnents, such as changes in tax laws, tax rates, and
environmental laws and regulations.

Unless we otherwise have a duty to da so, the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) rules do not require forward-
looking statemients to be revised or updated Cwhether as a result
of changes in actual results, changes in assumptions, or other
factors alfecting the statements), Our forward-looking statements
reflect vur best beliefs as of ihe time they are made and may not
be updated ter subsequent developments,

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related
notes inchuded clsewhere m this report. The results discussed helow
are nol necessarily indicative of the results 1o be expected in any
future periods.
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REVIEWof FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

In the Review of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

section, we explain our general operating environment, as well

as our liquidity, capital resourees, and results of operations.

Specifically, we discuss the following:

g factors affecting current and future operations;

o what our expenditures for construction and other commitments
were during 2002, and what we expect them to be in 2003-2007;

 potential sources of cash for futare capital expenditures;

o why revenues and expenses changed from period to period; and

o how the above items affect our overall financial condition.

ORGANIZATION

Cinergy Corp., a Delaware corporation created in October 1994,
owns all outstanding common stock of The Cincinnati Gas &
Electric Company (CG&E} and PSI Energy, Inc. (PSI), both of
which are public utility subsidiaries. As a result of this ownership,
we are considered a utility holding company. Because we are a
helding company with material utility subsidiaries operating in
multiple states, we ave registered with and are subject to regulation
by the SEC under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935,
as amended {PUHCA}. Our other principal subsidiaries are:

a Cinergy Services, Inc. (Services);

» Cinergy [nvestments, Inc, (Investrnents);

a Cinergy Global Resources, Inc. {Global Resousces); and

n Cinergy Wholesale Energy, Inc. {Wholesale Energy).

CG&E, an Ohio corporation, is a combination electric and
gas public utility company that provides service in the southwestern
portion of Ohio and, through its subsidiaries, in nearby arcas
of Kentucky and Indiana. CG&E's principal subsidiary, The
Union Light, Heat and Power Company (ULH&P), is a Kentucky
carporation that provides electric and gas service in northern
Kentucky. CG&E's other subsidiaries are insignificant to its vesuits
of operations.

In 2001, CG&E began a transition to electric deregulation
and customer choice. Currently, the competitive retail electric
market in Ohio is in the development stage. CG&E is recovering
its Public Utilities Commission of Chio (PUCQO) approved costs
and retail electric rates ave frozen during this market development
period. See the Retail Market Developments seciion for a discussion
of key elements of Ohio deregulation.

PSI, an Indiana corporation, is a vertically integrated and
regulated electric utility that provides service in north central,
central, and southern [ndiana.

The following table presents further information related to
the operations of our domestic utility companies (our operating
companies):

Principal Line(s) of Business

CG&E and subsidiaries
o Generation, transmission, distribution, and sale of electricity
u Sale andfor transportation of natural gas

Ps1
« Generation, transinission, distiibution, and sale of electricity

39

Services Is a service company thal provides our subsidiaries
with a variety of cenfralized administrative, management, and
support services. Investments helds most of aur demestic non-
regulated, energy-related businesses and investments, including
gas marketing and trading operations. Glabal Resourees holds
most of our international businesses and investments.

Whelcesale Energy, through a wholly-owned substdiary,
Cinergy Power Generation Services, LLC, pravides electric
production-related construction, operation, and maintenance
services lo certain affiliates and non-afGliated (thivd partics.

We conduct operations through our subsidiaries and manage
thigugh the following three business units:
= Energy Merchant Business Unit (Energy Moerchant);

o Regulated Businesses Business Uit (Regulated Businesses); and
s Power lechnology and [nfvastruciure Secvices Business Unit,

Ser Note 16 of the Notes (o Financial Statements lor [inancial
information by business segment.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

COMPARATIVE CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

At December 31, 2002, Cinergy’s consolidated cash and cash
equivalents totaled $221.1 million compared 1o ST million
at December 31, 2001. This increase was primarily attributable
to increases in cash from operating activities and o the proceeds
received from the manetization of certain npn-core investments.

These increases were partially offsel by addilional construction
expenditures, including our operating companics” environmental

compliance programs, and by additional ibvestiments.

Operating Activities

Our cash flows provided fram operaling activitics were
5996 million, 5718 millien, and 5632 million for the years ended
Deeember 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. The tarill-based
aross marging of our operating companics continue to be the prin-
cipal source of cash {rom operating activities. The diversificd retail
customer mix of residential, commercial, and industrial classes and
a commodity mix of gas and cleetric services provide a reasonably
predictable gross cash flow,

For the year ended December 31, 2002, our nel cash provided
by operating activities increased, as compared 1o 2001, primacily
due to increases in income after adjusting for increases in non-cash
items such as depreciation, favarable working capital Nuciuations,
and deferred income taxes, The increase o deferved income
taxes, in part, reflects a change inacconnting methadology for
tax purposcs related to capitalized costs, which increased current
tax deductions. Current tax obligations were also reduced by
increases in tax credits associated with the production and sale
of synthetic fuel.

Our net cash provided by operaling activitics increased
for 2001, as compared to 2000, prinarily as a result of increased
income and a net cash inflow from working capital Quctuations,




REVIEWof FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS

Financing Activities

Our linancing activitics pravided cash inflows of 83 million,
5867 million, and 161 million for the vears ended December 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. For the vear ended December 31,
2002, our net cash provided by linancing activities decreased, as
compared o 2001. This decrease was primarily due to the net
proceeds received in 2001 from the isswance of Preferred trirsi
secrrifies and [rom new debt isswances, which were used to fund
the purchase of new peaking generation facilities and environmental
compliance expenditures. The payment of common stock dividends
and the vepavinent of both long- add short-lerm debt reduced cash
proceeds recagnized in 2002 [rom the issvances ol commaon stock
and new Jong-term debit.

For the vear caded December 31, 2007, our cash provided by
financing activities increased, as compared to 2000, primarily due
to the net proceeds fram the issuance of Preferred trust secnrities
and praceeds from debt issuances o fund the purchase of new
generating facilities and environmental compliance expenditures.

Investing Activifies

Our cash {lows used in investing activities were $889 million,
$1.6 billion, and $782 million for the vears ended December 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. For the vear ended December 31,
2002, our net cash used in investing aclivities decreased, as com-
paved to 2001, This decrease was primarily the result of our 2001
acquisiiion of peaking weneration facilitics, imcereased capital expend-
itures related to environmental compliance programs, and other
nen-cere investments. Proceeds from the sale of certain non-core
investments in 2002, were olfsel by expenditures for our operating
companies’ capital pragrams, including engoing environmental
campliance, additional investments tn cogencration projects,
and capital expenditures related 1o the purchase of a svathetic
{uel production facility.

Our net cash used in investing activities increased in 2001, as
compared 10 2000, as a result of an increase in capital expenditures
related to envirenmental compliance proajects and the acquisition
of additional peaking generation facilities,

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Actual construction and other commitied expenditures (including
capitalized financing costs) for 2002 were $988 million. Our lore-
casted canstruction and other committed expenditures [in nominal
dollars) are §75%9 mlhon for the year 2003 and 3.1 billion for

the five-vear period 2003-2007,

This forecast includes an estimate of expenditures in accord-
ance with our plans regarding Nitrogen Oxide {NOy) emission
cantrol standards and other environmental campliance (excluding
implementation af the rentative LL3. Enviconmental Prolection
Ageney [EPA) Agreement), as discussed tn Note 111} of the
Notes to Financial Statements. In 2002, we spent 5239 miliion
Mot MOy and other environmental campliance projects, Forecasted
expenditures for NOy and other environmental compliance
projects (in nominal doltlars) are approximately $200 million for
2003 and S440 nyillion for the 2003-2007 period. All forecasted
amounls and the underlying assumptions are subject to risks
and uncertaintics as disclosed i the Cautionary Statements
Regarding Forward-Looking nformation.
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Environmental Contnitient and Comtingescy Isstees

EPA Agreemenl  On Lecember 21, 2000, Cinergy, CO&E, amd
PSIreached an agreement in principle with the United States, three
nartheast states, and two epvironmental groups for a neyotiated
resolution of Clean Air Act {CAAY Amendments claims and other
related matters brought against coal-fired power plants owned and
aperated by Cinergy's operating companies. The estinsated cost [or
capifal expenditures associated with this setllement is expected w0
be approximately S700 million, These capital expeaditures arc in
addition to ongoing elforts to maintain and enhance emissions
control equipment at our power plants. See Note L1111 of the
Noles to Financial Statements for a discussion ol the agreement
in principle and related environmental issues.

Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) Sites 11t November 1998,
PS[entered into a Site Participation and Cost Sharing Ayreereut
with Noerthera Indiana Public Service Company and [ndiana Gas
Company, [nc. related to contamination al MGP sites, which PSI
or its predecessors previously owned. Until investigation and
remediation aclivities have been completed on the sites, we are
unable 10 reasonably estimate the total cost and impact on our
financial position or results of operations. In relation to the MGP
claims, P81 also filed suit against its general liability insurance
carriers, Subsequently, PSI sought o declaratory judpgment io
obligale its insurance carviers to 1) defend MGP claims against
P'SE, or (2] pay PSIs costs of defense and compensate PSI for its
costs of investigating, preventing, miligating, and remediating
damage to property and paying claims refated to MG sites. At
the present time, we cannot predict the outcome of this liligatian.
See Nole 1 Hg) of the Nekes te Financial Statements for further
information on MGP sites,

Ambient Air Standards  [n 1997, the EPA revised the
National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for owone
and fine particulale matter, State ozone non-atlainment arca
designations are due 1o the EPA in April 2003, Fine particulate
non-attainment designations are expected in the 2004-2006 time-
frame, Fine particulate matter refers to very small salid or liquid
particles in the ir, Tollowing identification of non-attafiiment
arcas, cach indivichual state will identily the sources of emissions
and develop emission reduction plans. These plans may be
state-specitic ar regional in scope. Under the CAA, individual
states have up 1o 12 vears lrom the date of designation tw secure
cimissions reductions from sources contributing to the problem.

We may face further reductions of NOy. sulfur dioxide
{50.), and particulate eimissions due (o the implementation
af the fine particulate matter and 8-hour uzone NAAQS as
required by the EPA. However, we cannal predict the exact
amount and timing of these reductions at this time. Nonetheless.
we expect that compliance costs with these new standards will
e significant.
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Regional Haze The EPA published the final regional haze
rule on July 1, 1999. This rule established planning and emission
reduction timelines for states to use to improve visibility in national
parks throughout the U.S, The ultimate effect of the new regienal
haze rule could be requirements for (1) newer and cleaner tech-
nologies and additional controls on particulates emissions, and
(2) reductions in SO, and NOy emissions [rom utility sources.

If more utility emissions reductions are required, the compliance
cost could be significant. In August 1999, several industry greups
(swimg of which we are a member) filed a challenge to the regional
haze rule with the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals for the District
of Columbia (Court of Appeals). On May 24, 2002, the Court of
Appeals set aside a partion of the EPA’s rule, holding that the rule
improperly forced states to require emissions controls without
adequate consideration of an individual source’s impact on
visibility impairment. We currently cannot predict the timing or
outcome of the EPA’s response 1o the Court of Appeals’ ruling.

In July 2001, the EPA proposed guidance to implement
portions of the regional haze rule. This guidance recommends
that states require widespread installation of scrubbers 10 reduce
S0, emissions. We currently cannot determine whether or how
the EPA will modify the scope of this gnidance, or whether the
states in which we operate will adopt the EPA's proposed guidauce,

Global Climate Change [n December 1997, delegates to
the United Nations’ climate summit in Japan adopted an agreement,
the Kyoto Protocol (Protocol), to address global warming. The
Protacol establishes legally binding greenhousce gas emission
{man-made pollutants thought to be artificially warming the earth’s
atmosphere) targets for developed nations. On November 12, 1998,
the U8, signed the Protocol; however, it will not be effective in the
U.S. until it is approved by a {wo-thirds vote of the U.S. Scnate,
which we currently believe is unlikely, as the Bush Administration
is opposed to the Protocol and has not submitted it to the Senate
for ratification.

A total of 108 nations, including the European Union, Japan,
and Canada have ratified the Protocol. If the Protocol goes into
cffect, we do not anticipate that our operations will be impacted
so long as the 1.8, remains outside the Protocol agreement. In
addition, there are still major uncertainties concerning the Protocol
including how the Protocol will be implemented, the level and
timing of greenhouse gas emissions reductions, the extent to which
greenhouse gas trading would be allowed, and whether companies
would be allowed to comply with emission reduction requirements
through agricultural, geologic, or oceanic sequestration, or threugh
projects in the U.S. and abroad to reduce other greenhouse gas
emissions (such as methane). Because of these uncertaintics, we
cannot, at this time, identify specifie impacts of the Protocol on
our operations, even if the U.S. should change its conrse and ratify
the Protocol.

1 February 2002, the Bush Administration announced a
voluntary global climate change initiative that calls for industries to
undertake veluntary activities to reduce the intensity of greenhouse
gas emissions. The Bush Administration initiative also called for
increased funding of scientific research and for increased research
and development, Tn response to President Bush’s call for industries
to take voluntary actions, we signed a commitment with the EPA
to participate in its Climate Leaders program. As a participant, we
are committed to conducting an annual inventory of our corporate
greenhouse gas emissions, to developing a greenhouse gas emission
reduction goal, and 10 repotting annually on our corporate-wide
greenhouse gas emissions and cur progress teward achieving our
greenhouse gas reduction goal.
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Our plan for managing the potential risk and wicertainty
of regulations relating to cdinmate change includes the [ollowing:

o

implementing cost-cffective greenhouse gas emission reduction
and ollsetting activitics;

funding research of more cfficient and alternative electric
generating technologies;
funding research to better understand the causes and

consequences of climate change;

encouraging a global discussion of the issues and how best
to manage thei; and

advocating comprehensive legislation for fossil-fired power plants,

El

On December 14, 2000, the EPA
made a determination that additional reguladun ol mereury
emissions from coal-fired power plants was appropriate. Tt is

Alr Toxics Regulation

currently developing a Maximum Achievabie Control Technology
(MACT) standard for mercury, Although the issue is highly
uncertain, there is some possibility that the EPA may alse seck

to establish MACT standards lor other pollatants such as acul
gases, metals, and organics. The EPA is expected to issue drafl
regulations in December 2003, and final rules by December 2004,
with reductions required as soon as December 2007 We currently
cammot predict the outcome or costs relating 1o the UPA’s determi-
nation and subsequeni regulation.

At this time, we cannol predict the exact mereury Livget
that the EPA will finalize nar the specific complianee timing. In
addition, the form of the standard and the availability of exibility
mechanisis is alse nol yet knowen. Nonetheless, we have analysed
various mercury MAC| regulatory scenacios and have initially
estimated total capital compliance costs of between $500 million
and $700 million for wercury emissions coutrol equipment. This
range corresponds to an cmissions reduction target between
50 and 90 percent per power plant.

Asbestos Claims Litigation  CGE&LE anl PS1 have been named
in lawsuits related 1o Asbestos at their eleciric generating stations,
In these lawsuits, plaintiffs claim (o have been expused to Asbestos
containing products in the course of their work at the CG&E and
PSI generating stations. The plaintifls [urther claim that, as the
property owner of the generating stations, CG&E and P81 should
be held liable for their injuries and itlnesses based on an alleped
duty to warn aud protect them from any Ashestos cxposure, A
majority of the lawsuits to date have been brought against PSIL
The impact on our financial position or resulls of operations of
these cases Lo date has not heen material, See Note TT(hY of the
Notes to Financial Statements for a discussion of Asbestos claims
and related cascs.

Pensions

We maintain qualified defined benefit pension plans covering,
substantially all of owr UK. employees meeting cevtain minimum
age and scervice requitements. Pl assets consist of investments
in equity and fixed income securities. Fuuding for the qualified
detined benefit pension plans is based upon actuarially determined
contributions that take into aceount the amoeunt deductible for
income tax purposes and the minimum contribution required ander
the Employer Retirement Income Securily Act of 1974, as amended.
Due to the dechne in market value of the investmuent portfolio over
the last few years, assets held i trust Lo salisfy plan obligations have
decreased. Additionally, recent decreases in long-term interest rales
have the effect of increasing the measwred ligbility for Toding

purposes. As a result of these events, future funding abligations
could increase substantially. Based on ]Bl'climin;n'y cestinates, we
expect to fund approximately 333 million for e colendar year

2003, Contributions {or the calendar year 2002 were $4 million,



REVIEWof FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS

Other Investing Activities
Cur ability to invest in growth initiatives is limited by certain
legal and regulatory requirenients, including the PUHCA, The

PUHCA limils the tvpes ol non-utility businesses in which Cinergy

and other registered holding companies under PUHCA can inves!
as well as the amount of capital that can be invesled in periissible
non-utility businesses. Also, the timing and amount of investments
in the non-uvtility businesses is dependent on the development

and favorable evaluations of opportunitics. Under the PUHCA
restrictions, we are alloswed Lo invest or commit to invest in

cerlain non-utility businesses, including:

1. Exempt Wholesale Generators (EWG) and Foreign Utility
Conmpanies (FUCO)
Lreergy Regulatory Commission {FERC), devoted exclusively to

An EWG is an entity, certified by the Federal

owning andfor operating, and sclling power from one or mare
electric generating facilitics. An EWG whase generating facilities
are located in the U.S. is lmited to making only wholesale sales
of electricity.

A FUCG is a company all of whaose utility assets and opera-
tions arc located outside the U.S. and which are used for the
generation, trausmission. or distribution of electric energy lor
sale at retail or whalesale, or the distribution of gas at retail. A
FUCO may not derive anv income, directly or mdirectly, from the
generation, lransmission or distribution of electric energy for sale

Contractual Cash Qbligations
The following table presents our significant conlractual cash

or the distribution of gas at retail within the U.S. An entity claiming
status as a FUCO must provide notification thercof to the SEC
under PULICA.

In day 2001, the SEC issued an order under PUHCA
authorizing Cinergy to invest {including by way of guarantees}
an aggregate amount in EWGs and TUCOs equal w the sum of
(11 our average conselidated retained carnings from time {o time
plus (2) 52 billion. As of December 31, 2002, we had invested o1
committed to iivest $1.2 bijlion in EWGs and FUCOs, leaving
available investment capacity under the May 2001 ovder of
521 billion.

2. Qualifying Facilitics and Energy-Related Non-Utility
Entities
and other registercd holding companies (o invest and/or guarantee

SEC regulations under the PUHCA permit Cinergy

an amuunt equal to 13 percent of consolidated capitalization
(consolidaied capitalization is the swim ol Noies payable cod other
shori-terin obligaiions, Loug-ternr debt [including amounts duc
within onc year), Preferred Trust Securities, Crtnnidative FPreferred
Stock Q]'Srlbsidinr‘i(’s, and wtal Coennnon Stock Lty in domestic
quatifving cogencration and small power production plants
{qualifying facilities) and certain other domestic enevgy-related
non-utility entitics. At December 31, 2002, we had invested and/or
guaranteed approximately SG.7 billion of the $1.3 billion available.

obligations:

Payments Due

fin niifions) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total
Notes payable and ather shori-term ebligations S 321 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - S LMY 8 608
Lease abligations 47 37 30 26 23 74 237
Long-term debl (including anmounts

due within one year) 191 813 2040208 333 a7y 2,351 1270
Preferred trust securitics 7 5 2 - 3lo - 333
Fuel purchase contracts 362 310 453 302 293 1,323 3813
Power purchase contracts 2313 377 2534 148 34 216 3626
Total 53,041 51,947 5945 51,011 S1L,0% 54,341 312,979

1) Incledes Vieriable Rie Polturion Control Notes depicied acconting to schediled sraeatics, which the holders Dave ihe vight 1o have sedeesned o any business

day, with the rermannder beiny wedeemualle annadiv. See Variable Rate Pallution Coutrol Noies,

127 Tuchudes 6500 Delenturcs dug Asgrest 12026, seflected os duitivineg i 2005, as the Joterest sate rosets on Angust 1, 2005,

13) Inchedes 6.90% Debentires die fune 1, 2025, rejlected ns inaturing in 2005, us the debentures are putable to CGeSE af the aption of the holders on June 1, 2005,

f) Firm connmitments are discloseed on a gross basis and ave not petteed against fivar seles with Tike counterpartios for purposes of this dischzure,
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Guarantees

We are subject to an SEG order under the PUHCA, which
limits the ameunts Cinergy Corp. can have outstanding under
guarantees at any one time to $2 billion, As of December 31, 2002,
we had $526 million outstanding under the guarantees issued, of
which approximately 88 percent represents guarantees of abliga-
tions reflected on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amount
outstanding represents Cinergy Corps guarantees of liabilitics
and commitments of its consolidated subsidiaries, unconsolidated
subsidiaries, and joint ventures. See Note 1i(b) of the Notes to
Financial Statements for a discussion of guarantees in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation
No. 45, Guaraiter’s Accounting and Disclosure Requivesnents for
Guarantees, Including hndivect Guarantees of Indebreduess of Gthers
{FIN 43), FIN 45 requires disclosure of maximum potential
liabilities for guarantees issued on behalf of unconsolidated
subsidiaries and joint ventures and under indemmification clauses
in various contracts. The FIN 45 disclosure is different from the
PUHCA restrictions in that it requires a calculation of maximum
potential liability, rather than actual amounts cutstanding; it
excludes guarantees issued by consolidated subsidiaries; and it
includes potential liabilities under indemnification clauses.

Collateral Requirements

Cinergy has certain contracts in place, primarily with trading
counterparties, that require the issuance of collateral in the cvent
our debt ratings are downgraded below investment grade. Based
upon our December 31, 2002 trading povtiolio, if such an event
were to occur, we would be required to issuz up to approxunately
$69 million in collateral related to our gas and power trading
operations.

CAPITAL RESOIIRCES

Cinergy meets current sl fulure capital requarcments throunl:

= internally generated Funds;

m cash and cash equivalents on hamd {5221 million as of
December 31, 2002});

n issuance of debt and cquity sceurities;

u bank financing under new aned existing facilities; and

= monetization of assets.

We helieve that we bave adequalte financial yesourees 1o mcel
our fulure needs.

Notes Payable and Other Short-term Obligations

We are required to secure authority Lo issue shore-term dels
from the SEC under the PUTICA and the slale llli|i1y CoTnission
al Chio. The SEC under the PUNCA regulates the Bsuanee of
short-term debt by Cinergy Corp, P8I and ULNER The PUCO
has regulatory jurisdiction over the issuance of shorl-tenn deint
by CG&E.

Cinergy Corp.s short-term borrowing consists primarily of
unsecured revolving lines of credit and the sale of conumercial
paper. Cinergy Corp’s 51 billion credit facilities and $800 million
commercial paper program also support the short-term horrowing

needs of our operating conpanies. In addition, we maintain
unconuuitted Hnes of credit, These facilities are not lirmy sources
of capital but rather informal agreements to lend money, subject
to availability with pricing determined at the time of advanee,

A summary of aur outstanding short-terst berrowings, including
variable rate pollution control bonds is as tollows:

Short-term Borrowings as of December 31, 2002

 Available
Revolving
Established Standby Lines of
{in millions) Lines Quistanding Unused Liguidity! — Credit
Cinergy Corp.
Revolving lines 51,000 § 23 5975 S8 “494
Uncommitted lines 65 - 65
Commercial paper 2! 800 473 327
Operating companies
Uncommitted lines 75 - 75
Pollution control notes 147
Non-regulated subsidiaries
Revalving lines 7 1 6 6
Short-term debt 22 22 -
Total 56068 5300

(1) Standby Fquidity is reserved against the vevolving lines to support the cormmerciel paper prograny and easstarding lotters of crodit {canrently SU23 miflion aid

S8 nitlhion, respeciively)

(2} The commercial paper progran: is supported by Cinergy Corp’s revolviig lines.
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REVIEW of FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS

Qur short-term regulatory authority at December 31, 2002,
wus as follows:

(i aiffions i Authority  Qutstanding
Cinergy Corp. 55,000 S498
Operating companies 1,271 147

Cinergy Corp., nnder the PUBCA, was granted approval Lo
increase total capitalization twhich excludes Retatned carmings and
Accnnlated other compreliensive mcome iloss)l by 85 billion.
Qutside this requirement, Cioergy Corp. is nut subject 1o specilic
regulatory debt autherizalions.

For the purposcs of quantifying regulatory anthority, short-
term debt includes revolving credir borrowings, incommitted

credit ine barrowings, and commercial paper.

At December 31, 2002, Cinergy Corp. had 5394 million remaining unused and available capacity relating to its S1 hillion revalving

credit facilities. These revolving credit Lacilities include the following:

et sniflions)

Outstanding
Established and Unused and
Credis Facility Expiration Lines Cormmitted Available
36d-day senior revolving! T April 2003 i
Direct borrowing 3 [ N
Cammercial paper support A3
‘lotal 30d-day facilily 600 73 127
Threc-year senior revelving May 2004
Direct borrowing 25
Commercial paper suppert
Letter of Credit support g
Total three-year Facility 400 I 367
Total credit facilitics 51,000 - 5306 - 5491

(1) Chsergy Corp. has historically jollovwed the proctice of rencwing its 364-day fneilin: upon expivation

In our credil facilities, Cinergy Corp. has covenanted to
nmaintain:
o 3 consolidated net worth of 52 billion; and
a a ratjo of consolidated indebtedness w consolidated 1otal
capitalization nof in excess of 63 percent.

Abreach ol these covenants could result in the terminalion of
the credit [acilities and the acceleration of the related indebtedness.
[n addition 1o breaches ol covenants, certain other events that could
resudt in the termination of available credit ancd acceleration of the
related indebtedness include:

n hankiptey,
a defaults 1 the payment of other judebtedness: and
= judgments against the compaiy that are not paid ar insured,

The latter Lwo events, however, are subject to dollar-based
maleriality threshelds.

Variable Rate Pollution Control Notes

CG&E and PST have issued certain variable rate pallution
control notes (tax-exemim netes ablained to linance equipment
or land development for pollution control purposesh. Because the
holders of these notes have the right to have their notes redeemed
on a daily, monthly, or annual basis, they are reflected in Noves
payable ard other shori-term obligations on ouwr Consolidaled
Balance Sheets. In October 2002, CG&E and PSI redecimed 584 mil-
lion and $47.6 million, respectively, of variuble rate pollution
controf netes. At December 31, 2002, CG&F had $112 million and
PSI bad 335 million outstanding in variable rate pallution control
notes, clasified as short-term debt Any short-teem poihstion
control note borrewings outstanding de not reduce the unnsed
and available shovt-term debt regulatory autherity of our operating
cempanics. See Notes 4 and 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements

for additional information regarding pollution control notes.

Operating Leases

We have entered o operating lease agreements for various
lacilities and propertics such as computer. communication and
transpartation equipment, and otfice space. See Note 7a) of the
Notes to Financial Statenents for additional Information regarding
operating leascs.


file:///ariable
file:///-ariable
file:///-ariable

Rl

Capiial Leases

Qur operating companies are able to enter into capital leases
subject to the authorization limitations of the applicable siate utility
commissions. New financing authority is subject to the approval
of the respective conunissions. In May 2002, ULH&P recejved
approval from the Kentucky Public Service Commission (KPSC} to
enter inta an additional $25 million of capital lease obligations for
the period ending Decernber 31, 2004, In June 2002, PSI received
approval from the [ndiana Utility Regulatery Commission (ITURC)
to enter into an additional $140 million of capital lease obligations
for the period ending December 31, 2003, In December 2002,
CG&E received approval from the PUCS to enter into an additional
$74 million of capital lease obligations for the period ending
Decernber 3!, 2003. See Note 7(b) of the Nates ta Financial
Statements for additional information regarding capital leases.

Long-term Debt

A summary of our long-term debt authorizations at
December 31, 2002, is as follows:
Used Available

(in iliions} Authorized

Cinergy Corp.
PUHCA fotal
capitalization $5,000 51,750 §3,250
CG&E
State Public Utility

Commission 300 500 -

PSs1
Statc Public Utility
Commission 300 48 452

ULH&P
State Public Thility
Commission

1
i
i
~
w

We are required to secure authorily to issue long-term delbt
from the SEC under the PUHCA and the state utility commissions
of Ohia, Kentucky, and Indiana, The SEC under the PUHCA regn-
lates the issuance of long-term debt by Cinergy Corp. The respec-
tive state utility commissions regulate the issuance of long-term
debt by our operating companies. In June 2000, the SEC issued an
order under the PUHCA authorizing Cinergy Corp., over a five-
year period expiring in June 2005, to increase its total capitalization
based on a balance at December 31, 1999 (excluding Retained
earnings and Accrinudated other compreliensive inconte (loss)) by an
additional 55 billion, through the issuance of any combination of
equity and debt securitics, This increased authorization is subject to
cerfain conditions, including, among others, that commeon equity
comprises at least 30 percent of Cinergy Corps consolidated capital
structure and that Cinergy Corp., under certain circamstances,
maintains an investment grade rating on its senior debt obligations.

In July 2002, CG&E filed a shelf registration statement with
the SEC for the issuance of up to $700 million in any combinalion
of unsecured debt securities, first mortgage bonds, or preferred
stock. This shelf registration statement became clfective in
September 2002, and CG&E subsequently sold $500 million of
senior unsecured debentures thereby reducing the standby capacity
of its shelf registration statement with the SEC to $200 million.

PSI maintains shelf registration statements with the SEC sith
autherity remaining to issue 5400 million in unsecured debenturcs,
$205 million in first mortgage bonds, and $40 million in preferred
stock, ULH&P may issue up to 520 million in secured or unsecured
debt sccurities and up to $20 million in first mortgage bonds.
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On January 15, 2003, Cinergy Corp. filed a shelfl vegistration
statement with the SEC with respect to the issuance of common
stack, preferred stock, and otlier securities including senior unse-
cuted delbt securitics in an aggregate oftering amount of $750 mil-
lien. This vegistration statement becarne clfective in Sy 2003,
and on February 53, 2003, we sold $175 million of Cinergy Corp,
common stock.

In February 2003, botly CGEY and PST filed shelf registration
statements with ihe SEC for the issuance of unsecured debi securi-
ties, first mertgage bonds, o preferved stock. These (lings will
increase the available amounts {or these sceuritios under the SEC
shelf registration statements by 3300 million and §35 millipn fur
CG&E and P8I, respectively.

Our operating companies are also subject 10 the varions stake
public utility commissions for authority 1o issue securities, In
December 2002, CG&E filed an application with the PUCD seeking
authorization to issuc sccured and unsconred debt seeurities in any
combination up tean aggregate amount of $500 million lor the
period ending December 31, 2003, In January 2003, the PUCQO
granted this request.

In Ocraber 2002, PSI filed a petition with the [TURC for the
purpose of securing authorization and approval Lo issue pramissory
notes to Cinergy Corp, for the acquisition of the Butler County,
QOhio and Henry County, [ndiana peaking plants. On Janwary 22,
2003, the TURC granted this request and on February 5, 2003, 1751
issued the notes.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing

Cinergy uses special-purpose entities (SPE) tom time o
time to facilitate financing of various projects. SPLEs are entities
often created for a single speciticd purpose, for example, ty
facilitate securitization, leasing, bedging, rescarch and development,
and reinsurance, or other transaclions or arrangements. e to
our laclk of control of these entitics, a substantive invesiment by
unrelated parties, and varivus other oriteria, Cinergy does not
consolidate these SPEs. The FASB issued Interpretation Mo, 46,
Cousolidntion of Varinlle Iatercst Gutities Unterpretation 46) in
January 2003. This interpretation will significantly change the
consolidation requircments for SELs and may impact certain of
our SPEs, Refer ta Accounting Chauges for furiher information.

The following deseribes our major off-balance sheet
financings excluding the investments Cinergy holds io various
unconselidated subsidiaries which are accounted (or under
the equity method (sce Note (b} of the Notes (o Financial
Statements). Cinergy Corp. has guaranteed approximately
58 million of the debt of these entities.

(i) Power Sales  Cinergy Capital & Trading, Inc. (Capital &
Trading) is a 10 pereent owner of two SPLs 1hat were created to
facilitate power sales to Central Maine Power (Central Maine).
The SPEs raised capital to purchase Central Maine's existing power
supply contracts from two independent power producers. e
SPEs restructured the terms of the agreements, resulling in power
sales contracts for approximately 45 MY, ending iu 2009, and
35 MW, ending in 2016. Since the SPEs bave no generalion sources,
pawer purchase agreements were entered into with Capital &
‘Irading with near equivalend terms, The total debt outstanding
at December 31, 2002, within these Lwo SPEs is approximaiely
5233 million. This debt is non-recourse to Cinergy and Capital
& Trading in the event ef non-performance by Central Maine,

A portion of the cash flows received by the $PLs (rom Central
Maine is reserved to pay the intevest and principal on the debi.
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Capital & Trading provides various services, including certain
credit support facilities. The maximum exposure under the capped
credit facilities is approximately $25 million. There is a non-capped
facility, but it can only be catled upon in the cvent the $PE breaches
representations, vielates covenants, or ather unlikely events.

Capital & lrading accounts for its 10 percent interest in both
SPEs under the equity method of accounting,

(i1) Leasing  Cincrgy had an arrangement with an SPE
thal had contracted to buy several combustion turbines from
an unrelated party. Cinergy entered this arrangement with the
intention of leasing these turhines after construction, In the
second quarter of 2002, Cinergy exercised its aption o purchase
the contraciual rights 10 two of the turbines and subsequenuy
sold those rights o third partics. Cinergy recognized a loss of
approximately &7 million on this sale. The rights to the remaining
turbines remained with the 5PE,

[ the fourih quarter of 2002, Cinergy decided not to pursus
the leasing arrangement with the SPE We incurred a charge of
approximately $14 million for the cancellation of the leasing
arrangement.

(iti) Sales of Accounts Receivable
operating companics replaced their existing agreement to sell

[n February 2002, our

cerlain of thetr accounts receivable and related coliections. Cincrgy
Corp. formed Cinergy Receivables Company, LLC (Cinergy
Receivables) to purchase, on a revolving basis, nearly all of the
retail accounts receivable and refated collections of our operating
compartics. Cinergy Corp. does nat consolidate Cinergy Recelvables
since it meets the requirements to be accounted for as a qualifying
SPE. The sales of receivables are accounted for under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, Accotnting for Transfers
and Servicang of Financial Assets ond Extinguisharent of Lialilitics
{Statement 140), For a more detailed discussion ol our sales of

accounts reccivable, sce Note 6 of the Notes to Financial Statements.

Securities Ratings
As of January 31, 2003, the major eredit ratings ageneies rated

our securities as follows:

Fitchth  Moody’s'®*  S&P+

Cinergy Corp. T T

Corporate Credit BRB-+ Baa2 BBB+

Senior Unsceured Debt BBB-+ Baal BBB

Commercial Paper -2 -2 A-2

Preferved Trust Securitics BRB+ J3aa2 BRB
CO&E

Semnor Secured Delst A- A2 A-

Senivr Unsecured Delt RIHB+ BBaal BEB

funior Unsecured ebl B3T3 aa2 BEB-

Preferred Stock BBB Baal BBL-

Commercial Paper 12 -2 Nol Rated
PS1

Senior Sccured Debt A- Al A-

Senior Unsecured Debt BR3-- Baal BBB

Junior Unsecured Debt BBB Baal B33

Preferred Stock B3 Baa} BRELG-

Commercial Paper F-2 P-2 Not Rated
ULIT&P

Senior Unsecured Debl Not Rated  Baal B3

(1) Fateh IBCA Fieh!

124 Afoody’s fvesiors Service { Uvody 5

i3) Stanrelard e~ Poor's Ratings Services 15011

The dowest frvestivent grade credii rating for Fiteh (s BBS-
whil SCP is BRB-.

- Mowde's is Fund,

[n April 2002, dMoody’s attirmed the credil ratings of Cineigy
Corp. and its operating subsidiarics, CG&L and 1PSI Moody's also
removed Cinergy Corp. from review for possilile downgrade, and
assighid stable outlooks to the debt and preferred stock of Cinergy
Corp.and alt of its operating subsiciaries,

In June 2002, S&P affivmed Cinergy Corpls corporaie credit
rating, the rating ol the company’s commercial paper program, and
the secured debl ratings of CG&E and PSIL while lowering the credit
ratings on other issuances. $&P removed all of the Cinergy Corp.,
CG&E, and PST ratings from CreditiVatch with negative implica-
tions and assigned a stable autlook.

Adso in June 2002, Fireh allirmed the credit ratings of Cinergy
Corp. Fitch also changed the rating outlook en these securitivs
trom negative 1o stable and allirmed the ratiogs of CGRE and PSIL

These seeurities ratings may be revised or withdrawn at any
time, and cach rating should be evaluated independently of anv
other rating.
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Equity Securities

Under the SEC’s june 2000 QOrder, Cinergy Corp. is permitted
to increase its totel capifalization by $5 billion (as previously
discussed). The proceeds from any new issuances will be used
for general corporate purposes,

In November 2001, Cinergy Corp. chese to reinstitute the
practice of issuing new Cinergy Corp. comnmon shares to meet its
cobligations under the various employee stock plans and the Cinergy
Corp. Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan.
This replaces the previcus practice of purchasing open market
shares to fulfill plan obligations. See Note 2{(a) of the Notes to
Financral Statements for additional information on issued shaves,

I Decernber 2001, under aa existing registration statement,
Cinergy Corp. issued approximately $316 million notional amoune
of combined securities (Income PRIDES), a component of which
is stock purchase contracts. These contracts abligate the holder
to purchase common shares of Cinergy Corp. in, and/or before,
February 2005. See Note 2{e} of the Notes to Financial Statements
for additional information regarding the stock purchase contracts,

In February 2002, Cinergy Corp. issued 6.5 million shares of
comunon steck with net proceeds of approximately $200 million.

In July 2002, Cinergy implemented a policy that prohibits
executive officers and directors from selling shares of Cinergy Corp.
commeon stock acquired thraugh the exercise of stock options
(except to the extent necessary to pay the exercise price andfar
any accompanying tax obligation) until 90 days after they leave
the company or board.

On January 15, 2003, Cinergy Corp. filed a registration state-
ment with the SEC with respect to the issuance of common stock,
prefetred stock, and other securities in an aggregate offering
amount of $750 million. On February 3, 2003, Cinergy sold 5.7 mil-
lion shares of comman stock of Cinergy Corp. with net proceeds
of approximately $175 million under this registration statement,

Dividend Restrictions

Cinergy Corp.s ability to pay dividends to holders of iis
conumoen stock is principally dependent on the ability of CG&E
and P51 to pay Cinergy Corp, common dividends, Cinergy Corp.,
CG&E, and P'SI cannot pay dividends on their common stock
if their respective preferred stock dividends or preferred trust
dividends are in arrears. The amount of common stock dividends
that each company can pay is also limited by certain capitalization
and carnings requirements under CG&E’s and PSI's credit instru-
ments. Currently, these requirements do not impact the ability
of either company to pay dividends on its common stock.

Other

Where subject to rate regulations, our operating companies
have the ability to timely recover certain cash outlays through
regulatory mechanisins such as fucl adjustment clause, purchased
power tracker { Tracker), gas cost recovery, and construction work
in progress {CWIP) ratemaking. For further discussion see Electric
Industry and Gas Industry.

As opportunities arise, we will continure to monetize certain
non-core investments, which would include our international
and renewable assets operated by Global Resources and other
technology investments,
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RESULTS OF QPERATIONS

Swmmary of Results
Electric and gas gross margins and nel income for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001, ard 2000 were as Tollows:

(int thonsands) 2002 2001 2000

Electric gross margin $2,400,458 52,250,041 52,220,084
(Gas gross margin 247,978 231,007 267,304
Met income 360,576 42,279 399,466

Net income for the year ended Decomiber 31, 2002, was
$361 million (52.13 per sharc on a diluted basis) as compared
to 5442 million ($2.75 per share on a diluked basis) for the same
period last year. Income befare taxes for the period was $558 mil-
licn compared to 5718 million for the prior year, Increased gross
margins were offset by the recognition of costs assuciated with
employee severance programs, charges related to the write-ofl of
certain investments, and higher operating costs, Increased gross
margins were also offset by a cumwulative effect of a change in
accounting principle related o the implementation of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Guadwill aned Other
fntangible Assets (Statement 142).

Drituted carnings per share for the year ended December 31,
2001, was $2.75 as compared 1o $2.50 for the year ended December
31, 2000, ncluded in 2000 results were previously reported one-
time charges totaling 8.11 per share related 1o a tentative ngreement
reached with the EPA and a limited early retivement program
{LERP) offered to employces during 2000.

The increase in 2001 carnings was primarily attributable
to increased electric gross margins within Energy Merchant’s
origination, marketing and trading scgment, and reduced operating
expenditures. Partially offsetting this increase were lower clectric
gross marging within owr regulated operations, mainly driven by
mild weather and a slowed economy, and increased depreciation
and interest expenses associated with new inveslinents. Gas gross
marging decreased for the year ended December 31, 2001, as
compared to 2000, primarily as a result of mild weather.

The explanations below follow the line items an she
Consolidated Statements of Income. [However, ondy the line
items that varied significantly fvom prior periods are discussed.

Electric Operating Revenues

{irr millions) 2002 2001 2000

Retail $2,771 52,691 52,692
Wholesale 3,970 382 2,615
Transportation 13 3 -
Other 158 hill 52
Total $6,912 58,250 $5,3549

Eleciric opernting revenes decreased for the year ended
Deceniber 31,2002, as compared to 2001, Increases in retail sales,
including transportation, were offset by an overall reduction in
wholesaie sales.

Cinergy’s wholesale sales decrease primarily reflects a
reduction in the average peice per megawatt our (MWh) realized
on non-firm whelesale transactions related to our operating
companies’ energy marketing and trading activities. Non-firm
power is power without a graraniced commitment for physical

delivery:
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Retail revenues increased due to increased dWh sales.
attributable to weather and increased customer usage, Also
contributing to this increase were changes in rate (aritf adjustments
associated with demand-side management, Tracker, CAWVIT, and
tuel cost recovery programs. The cost of fuel for PST's retail
cusiomers is passed on dollar-for-dollar under the state mandated
fuel cost recovery mechanism,

Other Electriv operating reveirues increased lor the v

ended December 31, 2002, as compared 1o 2001, The increase is
due primarily to third party coal sales and also reflects transmission
revenues associated with the Alidwest Independent Transimission
System Operalor, e, (Midwest [SO} which began operations in
carly 2002.

Flectric operaiing revennes increased fov the year ended
December 31, 2001, as compared to 2000, mainly due o an
increase in volumes and average price per MWh realized on
non-rm wholesale transactions relaled to energy marleting
and trading actlivities.

Gas Operating Reveiries

tiy prilljons 2002 2001 2000
Retail $ 386 S 57T S 429
Wholesale 4,481 4,068 2454
Transportation 47 40 36
Qther 3 8 3
Total 54,917 54,6603 52,942

Gros aperattag revenies increased for the vear ended Decembier
31, 2002, as compared W 2001, The increase was primarily the
result of increased volumes sold by Cinergy Marketing & Trading,
P {Marketing & Trading), slightly oftsct by a kawer price receive
per thousand cubic fect (micft, Wholesale natural gas commodity
spot prices were 16 percent lower on average than the vear ended
Deceinber 31, 2001.

Retail gas revenues decreased primarily due to a lower price
received per mef delivered. The lower price reflects a substantial
decrease in the wholesale gas commodity cost, which is passed
dircctly to the retail customer dollar-for-dollar under the was cost
recovery mechanism that is mandated by state law, Partially
offsciting this decrease in retail gas revenues was an increase in
CG&FE’'s and ULH&Ds base vates approved in May 2002 and
January 2002, respectively.

Gas eperaling revenites increased [or the vear ended
December 3, 2001, as compared to 2000, primarily resulling
from the increased volumes sold by Marketing & Trading. Retail
gas revenues incicased primarily due to a higher price received
per mef sold. The higher price reflects a substantial increase in
the wholesale gas commodity cost during the first siv menths
of 2001.

Other Revenues

Other revenes increased for the vear ended [Yecember 31,
2002, as Cm‘npz\md to 2001. This increase is primarily due to the
sale of synthetic (uel, which began in July 2002,

Operating Expenses
tin maiifions) 2002 2001 2000
Iuel $ 865 5 579 5 TAD
Purchased and

exchanged power 3,647 5,227 2379
Gas purchased 4,669 4,132 2,675
Operation and

mainlenance 1,298 1013 1112
Deprecialion 414 KPR 342
Taxes other than

income taxes 263 L 268
Total ﬂ,] 56 S12053 57,236

Fuel  Fuel represents the cost of coal, natural gas, and oil

that is used to generate electricity. The lollowing table details the
changes o fuel expense for the vears ended December 31, 2002
and 2001:

Vi iltions 1 2002 2001
Prior year’s fucl expense $779 STel
Iicrease {Dverease) due (o changes b1
Price ol fuel (8) N
Deferred tuel cost (5) B
AWh generation 23 128}
Gther 7610 [T}
Cuwrrent yeat's fuc] expense $865 ' 779

(1 ncludes coses of thivd pevty coad sales tfrongdi owr macketing and

rmdl‘ng [INGRII

Purchased and Exchimnuged Power
power expense decreased for the vear ended December 31, 2002, as

Purchased and exchanged

compared to 2001, The decrease primarily reflects a reduction in
the average price paid per MWh as wholesale deetric an-peak
commodity prices were approximately 23 percent lower on average
as compared to 2001,

Purchased and exchanged power expense increased for the
vear ended December 31, 2001, as comyprared to December 31, 2000,
primarily due o an increase in purchases ol non-firm wholesale
power, reflecting higher sales volames and higher prices paid
per M\Wh,

Gas Purchased  Gas purchased expense increased for the
year ended December 31, 2002, as comypared to 2001, The increase
primarily reflects higher gas volumes purchased by Marketing &
Trading. Increased volames purchased were partially offset by
decreases in the average cost of mef purchased. Whelesale natural
gas Cﬂllllﬂudilj' SPU[ l‘l'i\?l’s were 16 !‘CI'CL‘“‘ l(_'l‘\'CI‘ an ﬂ\‘C\'dgL’
tar the vear ended 1Jecember 31, 2002, as compared 1o 2061

Gas purchased expense increased far the year ended
December 31, 2001, as compared o 2000, prinarily due to
an merease 1 gas conunodity tradimg volumes.
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Operatien and Maintenance Operation and maintenance
expense increased for the year ended December 31, 2002, as com-
pared to 2001, The increase reflects the recognilion of costs associ-
ated with employee severance prograins, which began in the second
quarter of 2002, Also contributing to this increase were higher
transmission costs, increased costs of employee compensation and
benefit programs, and expenditures related to process improvement
and performance measurement initiatives. The increase also veflects
increased amartization of demand-side management expenditures,
increased operating costs for certain of our non-regulated invest-
ments, and includes costs associated with the production of
synthetic fuel, beginning in July 2002,

Operation and maintenance expense decreased for the year
ended December 31, 2001, as compared to 2000, duc in part to
one-time charges related to a tentative agreement reached with the
EPA in late 2000 and the LERP offered daring 2000, as part of a
corporate restructuring initiative. This decrease 1s also attributable
to a sale of emission allewances, due to decveased clectric genera-
tion, and reflects the reduction in amortization of demand-side
management costs, veselting from the expiration of the agrecment
in May 2000,

Depreciation  Depreciation expense increased for the yeats
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, as compared to prior years.
These increases were primarily attributable to the addition of
depreciable plant, including the acquisitions of non-regulated
peaking generation in 2001 and a synthetic fuel project in 2002,

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes  Tnxes other than income
faxes cxpense increased for the year ended December 31, 2002,
as compared to 2001. This increase is primarily attributable to
increased property taxes. This increase also reflects other tax
changes associated with deregulation in Ohio.

Tnxes other than incoine faxes expense decreased for the year
ended December 31, 2001, as compared to 2000, primarily due
to reduced property tax expense and other tax changes associated
with deregulation in Ohio.

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
Equity in eainings (losses) of vicosnsolidated subsidiaries

increased for the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to

2001, primarily due to changes in the market valuation of certain

investrents and the dissolution and write-off of subsidiaries

in 2001,

Miscellaneots — Net

Miscellnneors — net decreased for the year ended December 31,
2002, as campared to 2001, prunanly reflecting the write-off of
technology investments and costs accrned related to the termina-
tion of a contract for the construction of combustion turbines,
Partially offsetting this decrease were net gains realized from the
sale of equily investiments in certain renewable energy projects.

Miscellaneous — wet increased for the year ended December 31,
2001, as compared to 2000, due in part to gains associated with the
demuiualization of one of our medical insurance carriers. This
increase also reflects income associated with capitalized financing
costs of PSI’s polluiion control projects.
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Interest

{nterest expense decreased for the year ended December 31,
2002, as compared to 2001, primarily as o result of lower interest
rates.

Interest expense increased for the year ended December 31,
2001, as comparcd to 2000, mainly due ta debl issuances principally
associated with the acquisition of additional peaking generation.
Partially otfsetting this increase was a decrease it short-term
infevest rates.

Preferred Dividend Requirement of Subsidiary Trist

Preferred dividend requirenicnt of subsidicary triist relates o
guarterly payments 10 be mace 1o holders of Cinergy's preferred
trust securities, which were issued in December 2001,

Incormne Taxes

Bacoiie taxes expense decreased for the year ended December
31,2002, as compared 10 2001, This decrease was primarily due o
the decrease in taxable income. Also contributing to this decrease
were tax credits associated with the production und sale ol synthetic
tuel beginning July 2002.

Income taxes expense increased for the year ended
December 31, 2001, as compared o 2000, primarily due 1o
an increase in taxable incoine,

Discontinued Operations

In 2002, Cinergy sold andfor classilicd as held for sale,
several nen-core investnients, Pursuant o Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. Ldd, Arceenfing jor the tmpaiviment of
Long-iived Assets {Statement 1443, these investments have been
classified as discontinued operations in our financial statements.
See Note 15 of the Notes 1o Financial Statements for further
information.

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle

In 2002, Cinergy recoguized a Ciomulutive gffeet of a change
in accounting principle of approximately $11 million (net of tux)
as a result of an impaivment charge for goodwill related 1o the
implementation of Statviment 142, See Note 14 of the Notes to

Financial Statements for (urther information.

FUTURE EXPECTATIONS/TRENDS

T the Future Expectations/Trends section, we discuss cleciric
and gas industry developiments, market risk sensitive instraments
ach of these

and positions, mflation, and accounting matlers,
discussions will address the current status and potential Amure

impact on our results of operations and linancial condition.

ELECTRIC INDUSTRY

The utility industry has traditionally eperated as a regulated
monopoly but is transitioning to an environment ol increased
wholesale and retil competition. Regulatory and legislitive
decisions being made at the federal and state levels are aimed

at promoting custonter choice and ave shaping this transition.
Customer choice provides the customer with the ability te select
an encrgy supplier (the company that generates or supplies the
commeodity} in an open and compelitive markeplace. In particular,
the FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NOPR)
proposing significant changes o enhance wholesale competition

and creale more customer oplions, amony ether inillives,


file:///vith

REVIEWof FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULLS of OPERATIONS

The cvents and cireumstances with California, Enron Corp.,
(Enron), and others, are significantly influcncing the transition
to increased wholesale and retail competition. In 2002, wholesale
electric markets were characterized by lower prices, decreased
liquidity, and the near evaporation of mid- to leng-term markels,
Developers cancelled turbine arders and abandoned existing power
projects. Several trading operations announced plans to curtail
or exit their wholesale (rading activities. Credit rating agencics
downgraded many industry participants. kn this period of
unprecedented change and uncertainty, encrgy industry partici-
pats are re-evatuating their strategies and business models.

Whelesale Markef Developments

FERC NOPR on “Retnedying Unndue Discriniination thiough
Open Access Transmission Seryice and Standard Electricity Market
Design”  In July 2002, the FERC issued a WOPR on “Remedying
Undue Discriminatior: through Open Access Transmission Service
and Standard Electricity Market Design” that proposed significant
changes, intended by FERC, to enhance whaolesale competition,
enable efficient transmission system developimen, provide correct
pricing signals for imvestment in transmiission and generation
facilities, and create more customer options. Market monitoring
and market power mitigation proposals are also critical parts of
the proposals for standardized power market rules, As part of this
process, the FERC proposes to amend its regulations under the
Federal Power Act, to modify the pro-forma open access transmis-
sion larill established uirder the FERC’s Order Na. 883. FERC
proposes to require all public utilities with open access transmission
tariffs to file modifications to their tariffs to implement its proposed
standardized transmission services and standardized wholesale
electric market design. On November 13, 2002, Cinergy submitted
initial NOPR comments to the FERC as part of this proceeding,
generally supporting the FERC’s pro-competitive goals but
suggesting modifications and sensitivity to some regional
differences, Pursuant to FERC’s procedural directives, Cinergy
anticipates filing additional commients on this NOPR with the
EERC in the fitst quarter of 2003.

The FERC issued a news release on January 13, 2003, stating
its intention to issue an additional dacument on this NOPR in April
2003, The FERC also indicated that it would seek comments on the
new document from interested parties. As a result, it is likely that
the original timeline included in the NOPR will be delayed. We
continue to evaluate this NOPR, but at this time, cannot determine
the impact to either our financial position or results of operatians.

FERC NOPR on New Sitandards of Conduct Regulations  In
September 2001, the FERC issued a NOPR propasing ta promulgate
new standards of conduct regulations that would appls, uniformly,
to natural gas pipelines and transmitting public utilities. ‘The FERC
is propusing (o adopt one set of standards of conduct to govern the
relationships between regulated transmission providers and all their
energy affiliates, broadening the definition of an affiliate covered by
the standards of conducr from the more narrow definition in the
existing regulations. At this time, we are unable te predict cither the
outcorne of this procecding or iis effect on Cinergy.
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Supply-side Actions  [n December 2001, the JURC approved
PST’s plan for converting its Noblesville generating station from coal
to natural gas, which will increase the electric generating capacity
at the plant from approximately 100 megawatts (MW) to 3080 MY,
The conversion is expected to be completed in June 2003, In addi-
tion Lo increasing capacity, upon completion of the project, overall
emissions to the emvironment will he reduced. Also, in December
2001, Ps1 filed a petition with the IURC 1o acquire the Butler
County, Ohio and Henry County, [ndiana peaking plants from
subsidiaries of Capital & Tradihg. In December 2002, the IURC
approved P5s purchase of the two plants, and on February <, 2003,
the FERC issued an order approving ilie transfer. Sce “Transfer of
Generaling Assets to 51 for additional intermaton.

Demand-side Actions  Pursuant to Ohio’s customer choice
legislation cnacted in 2001, four percent of CG&E's residential cus-
tomers and 23 percent of CG&E’s non-residential retail customers,
in terms of annual energy consumption, had switched electric
suppliers as of December 31, 2002, CG&L currently has no plans to
replace these customers by acquiring aew retail customers, although
CG&E reserves the flexibility to veplace load in the wholesale
market, to the extent it chooses. For a further discussion an Chio
deregulation, see Retail Market Developments in this section.

[n August 2002, we experienced a recoed peak load of 11,303
MW. We niet customer demands with our ewn supply and planned
purchascs from other regional electric supplicis.

Retaif Market Developments

Currently, regulatory and legislative initiatives shaping the
lransition (o a competitive retail market ave the responsibilities of
the individual states. Many stales, including Ohic, have cnacted
electric utility deregulation legislation, [n gencral, these initiatives
have sought to scparate the electric utility service into its basic
componenis (generation, ransmission, and distribution} and offer
each component separately for sule. This separation is referved
to as wnbundling of the integrated services. Under the customer
choice initiatives in Ohio, we continwe (o transiit and distribute
clectricity; however, the customer can purchase electricity [rom
any available supplier, and we are compensated through a trans-
portation charge. The following scctions further discuss the
current status of federal and state energy policies and deregulation
legislation in the states of Ohio, Indiana, and Kentucky, each of
which includes a portion af our service territory.

Federal Update
Energy Bill  President Bush, in conjunction with the woerk

of an inter-agency energy task force headed by Vice President
Richard Cheney, developed a numbesr of recommencdations ta
address the energy security needs of America. The VLS. House of
Representatives passed its version of energy security legislation
(H.R, 4} in 2001, and the ULS, Senate passed its version [, 517 on
April 25, 2002. Aflter significant debate, the bill died in a confesence
committee becanse differences could not be resolved. While the
Bush Administration has urged Congress to take up similar legisla-
tion during 2003, it is unclear how quickly Congress will move (o
enact & bill. Last year’s versions of the cnergy bill included a provi-
sion to repeal the PUTICA, which Cinergy supported. 1t is tikely that
carly versions of the energy bill will include PUHCA repeal, but it is
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too eatly to determine if an energy bill with electricity provisions
will pass Congress this year.

Clear Skics Legislation At the end of the 1o7th Congress,
President Bush requested the introduction of legislation that
would create a dear roadmap for envivonmental laws, allowing
the nation to meef air goals but providing certainty for electric
utilities with coal-fired generation. That legislation is expected to
be re-infroduced in this session of Congress, and President Bush,
in his 2003 State of the Union address, expressed that passage of
his Clear Skics legislation was a top priovity. Cinergy has been a
promoter of this legislation, as it will create a clear roadmap of its
environmental requirements while providing the time necessary
to make required environmental improvements.

The importance of Clear Skies legislation is that it would
replace unpredictable environmentat regulations with set targets
and timetables, allowing the industry adequate time to access
needed capital and build environmental improvement projects.
Clear Skies legislation would seck an overall 70 percent improve-
ment in emissions from power plants over a phased-in reduction
schedule beginning in 2010 and stretching to 2018. The leaders
of the U.S. Senate Environmental Commnittee have promised to con-
sider the legislation early in 2003; however, timing for consideration
is less certain sith the U.S. House of Representatives. Therefore, the
prospects for passage of the Clear Skies legislation are unclear.

Ohio  1n July 1999, Chio Governor Robert Taft signed
Amended Substitute Senate Bill No. 3 {Electric Restructuring Bill},
beginning the transition to electric deregulation and customer
choice for the state of Ohio. The Electric Restructuring Bill created
a competitive electric retail service market effective January 1, 2001
The legislation provides for a market development period that
began January 1, 2001 and ends no later than December 31, 2003,

TIn May 2000, CG&T reached a stipulated agreement with the
PUCQ staff and various other interested partics with respect ta its
proposal to implement electric customer choice in Ohio efiective
January 1, 2001, In August 2000, the PUCO approved CG&E’s
stipulation agreement. Subsequently, two parties filed applications
for rehearing with the PUCO. In October 2000, the PUCO denied
these applications. One of the parties appealed to the Ohio Supreme
Court in the feurth quarter of 2000, and CG&E subscquently
intervened in that case. In April 2002, the Ohio Supreme Court
affirmed the PUCO’s stipulated agreement with CG&E with respect
to implementing electric customer choice. The Qhio Supreme
Court ruling leaves CG&E's transition plan entirely mtact.

Under CG&E's transition plan, retail customers continue
to receive transportation services from CG&E but may purchase
electricity from another supplier. Retail custoners that purchase
electricity from another supplier receive shopping credits from
CG&E. The shopping credits generally reflect the costs of electric
generation mcluded in CG&E’s frazen rates. However, shopping
credits for the first 20 percent of electricity wsage in cach customer
class to switch suppliers, ave higher than CG&E’s electric generation
costs in order to stimulate the development of the competitive retail
electric service market,

CG&E recovers ifs regulatory assets and other transition
costs through a Regulatory Transition Charge (RTC) paid by alt
retail customers. As the R1C is collected from customers, CG&E
amoriizes the deferred balance of regulatory asscts and ather
transition costs. A portion of the RTC collected from customers
is recognized currently as a return on the deferred balance of regu-
latory assets and other transition costs and as reimbuisciment for
the difference in the shopping credits provided to customers and
the wholesale revenues from switched generation, The ability of
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CGE&L to recover its regulatory assets and other transition cosls is
dependent on several factors, including, but not liniteed Lo, 1he
level of CG&E's electric sales, prices in the wholesale power markets,
and the amount of customer switching to other electric supplicrs,
Cn Janwary 10, 2003, CG&LE liled an application with the
PUCO for approval of a methodalogy to establish Tiow market-
based rates for non-residential customers will be determined when
the market develapment period ends. Tn the filing, CGR) secks
to establish a market-based standard service offer rate for non-
residential customers that do not switch supplicrs, and a process
for establishing the competitively-bid generalion service option
required by the Electric Restructuring Bill, As of December 31,
2002, more than 20 percent of the load in cach of CG&
residential customer classes has switched to other clectric supplicrs,
Under {ts transition plan, CG&E may end the market development

5 1an-

peried for those classes of customers once 20 pereent switching
has been achieved; however, PUCO appraval of the standard
service offer rate and competitive bidding process is required
before the market development period can be ended, CG&E s
not requesting 1o cnd the market development period for non-
residential customers at this thme. We ave unable o predict the
outcome of this proceeding.

A FERC order, that was clfective April 2002, allowed Cineray
to jointly dispatch the regulated generating assets of PS]in conjunc-
tion with the deregulated generating assets of CGEL, The order
also authorizes the wansfer of the CG&E generating assels to a
non-regulated aftiliate, However, Cinergy has determined that it
can realize the benefits of the new joint dispateh agreement withoot
transfereing CG&Is genvration assels, and therefore we do not plan
to transfer CG&s generating assels o a non-regulated affiliate in
the foresecable future. For further discussion ol the joint dispatch
agreement, see Termination of Operating Agreemen,

Indianra  In 2002, Indiana kwimakers anticipated the creation
of an Lnergy l’oliﬂy Commission to assist in the creation ol a com-
prehensive energy plan. However, no such commission was formed
and, as a result, there ave no current plans Tor electric deregulation

in Indiana.

Rentucky Throughout 1999, a special Kentucky Flectricity
Restructuring Task Force {Task Foree), convened by the Kentucky
legislature, studied the issues of electric deregutation. Dn Tanuary
2000, the Task Force issucd a final report to Kentucky Governor
Paul Patton recommending thal Iawmakers wait uniil the 2002
General Assembly before considering any deregulation that would
open the state’s clectric industry to competition. The state legish-
ture did not take any action in 2002 to move Kentucky towards
clectrie deregulation.

Other States At the end of 2000, approximately one halfl
of the states and the District of Columbia bad adopted deregulation
plans, owever, recent cvents are signilicantly influenciog political
and legislative activity. At the end of 2001, cight of The states
decided to delay or suspend their deregulation aclivities, No
additional states adopted deregulation plans during 2002.

Other  Under geaerally accepled accounting principles
(GAAP), owr operating companics apply the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standurcds Ne. 71, Acvornting
for the Effects of Certaiin Types of Regudation (Statenyem 71) 1o the
applicable rate-regulated portions of their businesses. ' Me provi-
sions of Statement 71 allow our operaling companivs (o capitalize
{record as a deferred asset} casts that sweuld normally be charged
to expense. These costs are classificd as regulalory asscis in the
accompanying financial statements, and the majority have been
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approved by regulators for future recovery frem customers through
our rales. As of December 31, 2002, our operating companies have
approximately 1 billion of net regulatory assets, of which more
than 90 percent has been approved for recovery,

Excepl with respect to the genetation asscts of CG&E, as of
I3ecember 31, 2002, our operating companies continue to meel
each of the eriteria required for the application of Statement 71.
However, to the extent other states implement deregulation
legistation, the application of Statement 71 will need to be reviewed.
Based on owr operating companies’ current regulatory orders and
the regulatory envirenment in which they currently operate, we
belicve the future recovery of regulatory assets recognized in Lhe
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,
2002, is probable. See Note 1(c) of the Motes te Financial
Statements for a further discussion of our regulatory assets.

Midwest ISO
Historical
whalesale power marketplace, the FERC approved the formation

As part of the effort to create a competitive

of the Midwest [SO during 1998. In that same year, Cincrgy agreed
10 join the Midwest I1SCY in preparation for mecting anticipated
changes In the FERC regulations and future deregulation require-
ments, The Midwest SO was established as a non-profil organiza-
tion to maintain functional control over the combined transmission
systems of its inembers.

On December 15, 2001, the Midwest 150 mitiated startup of
its operations with the provision of & variety of support or stand
alone services to its transmission owning members, The Midwest
18O achieved full startup, incuding iImplenentation of aril{
administration, on lebruary 1, 2002. Although the Midwest 150
continues to develop, modify, and enhance s various operating,
practices, it has assumed functional control of the transmission
svstems of its member companics, including the Cinergy utilities.
This wransfer of control was implemented without significant
impact on Lhe operations of Cinergy's transmission systems.

FERC Orders  In December 2001, the FERC approved the
proposal of the Midwest [SO to become the [irst FERC-appioved
Regional Transmission Organization (R10) and denied a similar
proposal from the Alliance Regional Transmission Organization
(Alliance RTQJ on the basis that the propasal lacked sufficient
scope. The FERC encouraged the former Alliance RTO companies
ta explore joining the Midwest 1SO. Certain former Alliance RTO
companies have joined or announced intent to join the Midwest
150 The remaining former Alliance RTO companies have
announced that they swill join the DI [nterconnection, LLC (PTA).

I its July 17, 2002 open meeting and subsequent orders, the
FERC reaffirmied its expectation that the Midwest 15O and PIM
implement a common wholesale market between them by Octoher
1, 2004. FERC also imposed more immediate deadlines upon the
Midwest 1SC3, PIM, and various other parties to establish ceviain
protocols, including the climination of pancaked transmissian
rates belween the Midwest [5O and PJM, necessary (o establish
a *virtual” single regional transmissivn organization among the
Midwest 150 and PJM companies. Pancaked transmission rates
are multiple transmission charges imposed for a single fransaction
crussing between multiple ransmission providers. As part of the
FERC wrders, the FERC has opened an investigalion, under Section
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206 of the liederal Power Act {Section 2061, into the justness and
reasonablencss of the “through and out” transmission rales of the
Sidwest IS0 and PJAL. Cinergy is parlicipating in the Section 206
hearing, along with the other transmission owners whao are mem-
bers, or potential members, of the Midwest 180 or PIM. Pursuam
to an order issued in July 2002, the PERC indicated thal it plans 1o
Issuiie a decision by July 31, 2003, As part of 1his proceeding, Cinergy
1s advocating the removal of pancaked transinission Fales helween
the Midwest £50 and PIN, including all of the [ormer Alliance RTO
companies, as well as lost revenue recovery [or transmission owners
whe are alfected by the removal of the pancaked transmission rates.
At this time, Cinergy cannot determine the impact of cither the
FERC orders or the related Section 206 investigation upon cither
our financial position or results of operations.

I13 related activity, the FERC issued an order in December
2001, in respanse Lo protests of the Midivest 8Os propused
methedology related o the calculation of its administrative adder
fees [or the services it provides, Cinergy and a number of other
parties filed protests (o the proposed methodology, suggesting,
among other things, that the methodolegy was inconsistent with
the wansmission owners’ prior agreement with the Midheest 18O
and selectively allowed only independent transmission companics
to choose which unbundled administrative adder services they
wished to purchase from e Midwest 150, A partial settlement
was renched in the FERC proceeding, resolving the issues addressed
by Cinergy’s protest in @ manrer favorable to Cinergy, Most active
parties in the FERC proceeding liled comments in suppurt of
the settlement. The only contested issuc under the seitlement
tnvolved an agreed upon deferred accounting and regulatory asset
mechanisnt to be established as o backslop 1o guard against any
under-recovery of assessed administrative fees in relail ratemaking
proceedings. The settlement agreement was neither approved nor
denicd approval by the FERC by December 31, 2002, Cineryy aniic-
ipates that the settlement will necd 1o be renegotiated i early 2003
and resubmitted to the FERC for approval. Cinergy alse anticipales
that the dMidwesl 150 transmission members will reach a similar
settfement with the Midwest 150, and that such agrecmunt will be
approved by the FERC without material vhange.

[n late 2001 and carly 2002, the FERC issued its Opinion
Mo, 453 and 433-A orderntg, among ether things, that tansmission
service for bundled retail custemers (e, customers who cannet
select an alternative energy provider] shall be provided under the
Midwest ISONs open access transmisston tariff, and that the Midwest
[S(Y's charges for its administrative services shall apply 1o bundled
vetail customers. PSIand other partics have appealed these orders
Lo the LS. Court ol Appeals, challenging the application of the
Nlicwest ISO's tarill, and the Alidwest 18O charges for its adminis-
trative services to bundled retail customers. We cannoet predict
cither when the court will #ssue its opinion in the appeal or the
oulcome of the appeal.

On November 22, 2002, 1he FERC issued an order condition-
ally approving the Midwest [S(s recovery of costs associated with
the establishinent of financial transmission vights, and the develop-
ment of energy markets within the Midwest 150 operating area
The FERC's order suspended the preposced rates and made them
ctfective November 23, 2002, subject to refund, and set for a hearing,
the issues identified below. The FERCTs order expressed the expecta-
tion that 1he Midwest [5O board of direciors will guard against
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any unreasonable ¢osts being incurred by the Midwest ISO. The
Midwest 150 had proposed to assess a withdrawalfexit fee on any
transmission owner member who withdraws from the Midwest [ISO
tor its propertionate share of any unrecovered deferred costs. The
Midwest ISO transmission owners, including Cinergy, filed a protest
with the FERC, challenging the cost allocation and the impleimenta-
tion of an exit fee within the Midwest 150 proposal. The FERC
subsequently set these issues for a hearing.

In fuly 2002, the FERC issued a NOPR that proposed
significant changes to the electricity wholesale market, At this
time, we are unable to determine the impact of the NOPR on the
Midwest ISO and Cinergy. See FERC NOPR on Remedying Undue
Discrimination through Open Access Transmission Service and
Standard Electricity Market Design for further discussion.

State Regulatory Agencies Filings  This past suramen, PSI
and the other investor-cwned transmission companies in Indiana
who are members of the Midwest 1SO, requested approval from
the IURC to defer, for subsequent recovery from their respective
Indiana retail electric customers, the applicable costs incurred
by the campanies for adminisirative services provided by the
Midwest [5Q.

The actual costs for 2002 were approximately $6 million aud
53 million for PSI and CG&E, respectively, and are deferred on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002, A settlement
was reached between the Indiana Office of the Utility Consumer
Counselor, PSI, and the other parties to the [URC proceeding
providing for the requested rate and deferred accounting treatment.
The settlement was approved by the [URC on December 11, 2002,
PSI anticipates that its recovery of these deferred amounts will
commence with the [URC’s order in PSDs upcoming retail electric
rate case. For the market development period, CG&E is authorized
to racover these costs in Ohia through its regulatory transition plan.

Significant Rate Developments

PSI Reiail Rate Case  In December 2002, PSI filed a
petition with the IURC seeking approval of a base retail electric
rate increase, PSI's proposed increase reflects an average increase
of approximately 16 to 19 percent aver PSIs current retail ¢lectric
rates. If approved by regulators, PSI estimates the rate request will
become effective in early 2004. PSI plans to file inital testimony
in this case in March 2003. An JURC decision is expected in the
first quarter of 2004,

Traunsfer of Generating Assets to PSI  In December 2001, PSI
filed a petition with the TURC requesting approval, under Indiana’s
Power Plant Construction Act, to acquire the Builer County, Ohio
and Henry County, [ndiana peaking plants from their current
owners, subsidiaries of Capital & Trading, to address its need for
increased generating capacity. In September 2002, PSI reached a
seltlement agreement with varicus parties, authorizing PSI te
purchase the two peaking plants. [n December 2002, the IURC
issued an order approving the settlement agreement and providing
state anthorization to transfer the plants.

In September 2002, PS] and the applicable Capital & Trading
subsidiaries filed applications with the SEC under the PUHCA and
the FERC, under the Federal Power Act, requesting authorization
for the transfer. However, in October 2002, the SEC notified PSI
that the transaction is exempt from the SEC’s jurisdiction under
the PUHCA, and accordingly, PST and the Capital & Trading sub-
sidiaries withdrew the SEC application. In October 2002, several
parties intervened and filed protests in the proceeding before the
FERC, oppostng the transfer. Cinergy timely filed an answer
to these protests.

53

On February 4, 2003, the FERC issued an arder under Section
203 of the Federal Power Act, anthorizing PSEs proposed acquisition
of the Herry Counlty, Indiana and Butler Gounty, Qbio pas-lired
peaking power plants. This action was the final regulatory approval
needed for the transfer, which occurred on February 3, 2003,

On January 8, 2003, the JURC issued an order authorizing PSI]
to defer post-in-service depreciation and carrying cosls associated
with these peaking plants and P51's Noblesville generaling station
until the costs are reflected in PSIs base vates afler its next rate case.
Pursuant to Statement of Financinl Accounting Slandards No, 42,
Regudated Enterprises-Acegrutting for Phase-in Plans (Statement 92},
the equity component of allowance [or funds used during construc-
tion (AFUDC) will not be deferred for linancial reporting. Also,
PSLis allowed to retain off-system sales profits associated with the
three plants but will be required to credit such all-system sales
profits (other than 30 MWs of Henry County capacity committed
to whaolesale) to customers from January 1, 2001, until the effective
date of PS's next retail base rate change. See Supply-side Actions
for additional detail.

Puschased Power Tracker  1n hay 1959, PS! filed a petition
with the JURC secking approval of a Tracker. This request was
dasigned 1o provide for the recovery of costs related to purchases
of power necessary to meed native load requirements to the
extent such costs are nol recovered through the existing fuel
adjustment clause,

A hearing was held before the TURC in Febroary 2001, 1o
determine whether it was appropriate for PS! to continue the
‘Tracker tor future periods, In April 2001, a favorable order was
received extending the Tracker for two years, through the summer
of 2002. PS1 is authorized to seek vecovery of 90 percent of ils pur-
chased power expenses through the ‘Tracker (et ol the displaced
energy portion recavered through the fuel recovery process and
net of the mitigation credit portion), with 1he remaining 10 percent
deferved for subsequent recovery in PSIs nexl general rale case, In
Macch 2002, P51 tiled a petition witli the FURC seeking approval 1o
extend the Tracker process beyond the summer ol 2002, A hearing
was held en January 16, 2003, We cannot predict the outeome of
this procceding at this time.

In June 2002, PS] also Gled a petition with the ITURC seeking
approval of the recovery through the Tracker of s actual sumner
2002 purchased power costs. A hearing en this matter is scheduled
for the first quarter of 2003,

2002 Purchased Power Costs  [n day 2002, the 1URC
approved a settlement agreement between P81 the TURC stadt, and
the [ndiana Office of the Utility Consumer Counselor pertaining to
P8I’ 2002 purchased power arrangements. This agrecment allonved
PSI to purchase the output of the Henry County, Indiana and
Butler County, Ohio peaking plants througly December 31, 2002,
‘The parties also agreed 1o not challenge the recovery of costs [
the purchiase of power from Lhese plants, as well as the costs of
additional summer 2002 purchases needed lor reliability purposes,
through PST's Tracker and fuel recovery mechanism. Before PS1 can
begin recovering its summer 2002 purchased power costs through
its Tracker, however, it must obtain an order authorizing such {rom
the IURC in PSI's summer 2002 "lracker case. The hearing relating
to PSI's stunmer 2002 Tracker case is scheduled For the first quarter
of 2003. If approved, recovery of PSPs sumaimer 2002 purchased
power costs via the Tracker will likely begin in the sceond quarter
of 2003 and extend over a 12 month period.
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We have 527 million of 2002 purchased pawer costs deferred
for recovery at December 31, 2002, Of the §27 million, 524 million
has been requested through the Tracker, and the recovers of the
remaining 53 million will be requested in PST's next retail rate case.

The tyansfer of the Henry County, Indiana and Butler County,
Ohie peaking plants to P51 will decrease PS['s need for purchased
power by a like amount. However, S will continue to have
purchased power requirements and will continue to seek [URC
approval Lo utilize its Tracker to recover the costs of such purchases.

Terinination of Operating Agieement  Upon consummation
af the merger between CG&L and PSI Resources, Inc. in 1994, an
operating agreernent entered inta between CG&E, PST, and Services
was filed with and approved by the FERC. This agreement was
established to provide lor the coordinated planning and cperation
ol the two regulated entitics” generation and transnission systeims,

In Oclober 2000, CG&E, PSIL and Services tiled a notice of
lermination of the operating agreement with the FERC. The reason
for the termination filing was that, with the inlroduction of deregu-
lation in the state of Qhio, the companics no lenger share the
common characieristics that formed the hasis for the operating
agreenient. In December 2000, the FERC ruled that the companies
have the contractual right to terminate the operating agreernent.
Additionally, the FERC cstablished a termination effective date of
May 22, 2001, and sct a May 1, 2001, hearing date on the issuc of
the reasonableness of \crmination.

Certain parties appealed the FERCs December 2000 decision.
In March 2001, the IURC initiated an investigation proceeding into
the termination of the operating agreement. In May 2001, the
parties lo the FERC proceeding reached aselllement resolving
lermination issues and vertain compensation and damage issues,
The settlement agrecment was approved by the FERC in June 2001
and delaved the termination of the existing operating agreement
until a new successor agreement has been approved by the FERC

[n August 2001, the parties 1o both the JURC investigation
procecding and the previous FERC proceeding entered into two
compiementary settlement agreements. Both agreements addressed,
among other things, the terms and conditions of a proposed new
joint generation operating agreement and a propused new join
tansmission aperaling agreement. The TURC settlement agreement
was approved by the IURC in September 2001, Both the [URC and
the FERU settlement agreements wore conditioned upon FERC
acceplance of the proposed successor agreements. Cinergy lled the
successor agreements with the FERC in October 2001 and in March
2002, the FERC approved the successor agresments. The successor
agreciments allow Cinergy o jointly dispatch the vegulated generat-
ing assets of PST in conjunction with the deregulated gencrating
asseis of CG&R. Undler these agreements, transters of power
between PSTand CG&E are generally priced at market rates, The

successor agrecments were implemented elfective in April 2002
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PSI Fuel Adjustment Charge  PS[ defers Tuel costs that are
recoverable in future periods subject to IURC approval under a fucl
recovery mechanism. In June 2001, the [URC issued an order in g
P51 fued recovery proceeding, disaliowing approximately 14 million
ol deferred costs. Oa June 26, 2001, PSI formally requested tzat
the IURC reconsider its disallowance deciston. In Augast 2001, the
IERC indicated that it would reconsider its decision. In August
2002, the TURC issucd its final ruling sllowing 1°S] to [uily recover
the $1-4 million.

In June 2061, PST filed a petition with the TURC requesting
anthority 1o vecover $16 million in under billed deferred fuel
costs incurred fromy March 2001 through hay 2001, The [URC
approved recovery of these costs subject to refund pending the
findings ol an investigative sub-docket, The sub-docket was

apened to investigate the reasonableness of, and underlving reasans
for, the under bifled deferred Gael casts. A hearing, was held In

July 2002, and we anticipate a decision in the first quarter of 2003,

CWIP Ratemaking Treatment for NOy Equipment
the thivd quarter o 2601, PS] filed an application with the IURC

]]Lll’il]g

requesting CWIP ratemaking weatnent for costs related 1o NO,,
equipment currently being installed at certain PSI generation
facilitics. CAWIP ratemaking treatment allows fTor the recovery ol
carrving costs on the equipment during the construction peried,
BSI liled its case-in-chief testimony in January 2002, [n July 2002,
the TURC approved the application allowing, PSI 1o commence
CWIP ratemaking treatment fer its NOy cquipment investiments
made through December 31, 2003, Inidally this rate adjusiment
will result in approximately a one percent imcrease in customer
rates, Under the TURCS CWIP rules, PSI may update its CWIP
tracker at six-month intervals. The JTURC's July order also
authorized P51 to defer, for subsequent recovery, post-in-sorvice
depreciation and to continue the acerual for AFUDC. Purstant to
Statement 92, the equity camponent of AFLDC will not be delerred
lor financial reporting.

in Octeber 2002, PSIfiled its first six-manth CWiP tracker
update with the TURC resquesting approximately 511 mitlion of
additional revenuc asseciaied with investments made Januasy 1,
2002 through June 30, 2002, Tor NQy emission reduction equip.
ment. The TURC autherized the recovery of these incremental
expenditures in an erder issued on January 29, 2003, The
cnmulative annual revenue 1o be recovered under this tracker

is 528 million.
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GAS INDUSTRY

ULH&P Gas Rate Case

In the second quarter of 2001, ULH&P filed a retail gas rate
case with the KP3C seeking to increase base rales for natural gas
distribution services and requesting recovery through a tracking
mechanism of the costs of an accelerated gas main replacement
program with an estimated capital cost of $112 million over the
next 10 years. A hearing on this matter was held in November 2001
and an order was issued in January 2002. In the order, the KP5C
authorized a base rate increase of $2.7 million, or 2.8 percont
overall, to be effective on January 31, 2002. In addition, the KPSC
authorized ULH&P to implement the tracking mechanism to
recover the costs of the accelerated gas main replacement program
for an initial period of three years, with the possibility of renewal
for the full 10 years. Per the terms of the order, the tracking mecha-
nism will be set annually. The first filing was made in March 2002
and was approved by the KPSC in an order issued in August 2002.
ULH&P filed an application for a certificate of public comvenience
and necessity with the KPSC in November 2002, to do cast iron and
bare steel main replacement work in 2003 at an estimated cost of
$14.1 million. The Kentucky Attorney General (Attarney General)
has appealed the KPSC’s approval of the tracking mechanism to
the Franklin Circuit Court (Court) and has also appealed the
KPSC’s August 2002 order appraving the new tracking mechanism
rates. The KPSC's August 2002 order requites ULH&P 10 maintain
records of the revenues collected under the tracking mechanism
to enable ULH&P to vefund such revenues, in case the Attorney
General’s appeal is upheld and the KPSC orders a refund. Amounts
collected 1o date under this tracking mechanism are not material.
ULH&P filed an application for rehearing with the KPSC in
September 2002, in which ULH&P requested that the KPSC elimi-
nate this requirement. In October 2002, the KPSC issued an order
granting ULH&P’s application for rehearing in part. The KPSC's
order clarified that ULH&P must maintain its records of the
revenues collected under the tracking mechanism in case a refund
is ordered at a later date; honvever, the KBSC's order stated that it
will not addvess the issue of whether to order a refund unless the
Court rules that the KPSC lacked the requisite authority to approve
the tracking mechanism. As a result, ULH&P will not record these
revenues as subject to refund unless the Court so rules. At the
present time, we cannot predict the eutcome of this litigation.

CGeE Gas Rate Case

Tn the thivd quarter of 2001, CG&E filed a retail gas rate
case with the PUCO seeking to increase base rates for natural gas
distribution service and requesting recovery through a tracking
mechanism of the costs of an accelerated gas main replacement
progrant with an estimated capital cost of $716 million over the
next 10 years, CG&E entered into a settlement agreement with most
of the parties and a hearing on this matter was held in April 2002,
An order was issued in May 2002, in which the PUCQO approved the
settlement agreement and authorized a base rate increase of appiox-
imately 515 million, or 3.3 percent overall, to be effective on May
30, 2002. In addition, the PUCQ authorized CG&E to implement
the tracking mechanism to recaver the costs of the accelerated gas
main replacement program, subject to certain rate caps that
increase in amount anavally through May 2007, through the
effective date of new rates in CG&E’s next retail gas rate case. The
PUCO’s order was not appealed. In the fourth quarter of 2002,
CG&E filed an application to increase its rates under the tracking
mechanism by approximately $8 million or 2.4 percent. The PUCO
is investigating the application and we expect that the increase will
become effective in May 2003,
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Gas Prices

While natural gas prices remained moderate for most of
2002, prices began to escalate during the fourth quarter, We
expect prices to continuce to rise througheut the 200272003 winter
season. Price movenen) will be driven by the eflects of weather
conditions, availability of supply, and changes in demand and
storage inventories. Currently, neither CG&E nor ULHEDP profit
from changes in the cost of gas. Natural gas purchase costs are
passed directly to the customer dollar-for-dotlar under the gas
cost recovery mechanisim that as nandated under state L,

In March 2002, ULFIED filed an application with the KI's<
requesting approval of a gas procurciment-hedging program
designed to mitigate the offects of gas price volatility on customers.
In June 2002, the KPSC approved the pilot program for the
2002/2003 heating season, subject 10 certain restrictions, The
approved hedging progran allows the pre-arranging of beltween
0-65 percent of winter heating scason base load gas requirements.
ULH&P made advance arrangements for approximately 23 percent
of its winter 2002/2003 base load requirements under the program.

In July 2001, CG&L filed s application with the PUCO
requesting approval of its gas procurcment-hedging program. This
request was subsequently denied. Flowever, i denying CG&Ls
request for pre-approval of a hedging program, the PUCO order
provided clarification that prudently incurred hedging costs are a
valid component of CU&Es yas purchasing strategy. As & result,
CG&E has hedged approximalely 30 percent of its winter 2002/2003
base load requirements. CG&E will seck PUCG approval tor its
hedging program cn an after the {act hasis. At this time, we cannot
predict the outcome of this request,

CG&E and ULH&P use primarily lixed price forward con-
tracts and contracts with a cciling and floar on the price. These
contracts cmploy the normal purchases and sales esemption, and
do not nvolve Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
L33, Accounting for Derivative [astruments and Hedging Activity
(Statement 133), hedgues.

MARKET RISK SENSITIVE INSTRUMENTS
AND POSITIONS

Energy Commmiodities Sensitivity

The transactions associated with Energy Merclants energy
marketing and trading activitics give rise to vavious risks, including
matket risk. Market visk represents the potential risk ol loss [rem
adverse changes in market price of electricity or other envrgy
conumnodities. As Errergy Merchant continues 1o develop its encrgy
marketing and trading business (and due to its substantial invest-
nient in generation assets), its exposure 1o movements in the price
of electricity and other energy commuoditics may become greater.
As a result, we may be subject to increased future carnings volatility.

The energy marketing and leading activities ol Energy
Merchant principally consist of Marketing & Trading's nalural
gas marketing and trading operations, Cinergy Glubal "Trading
Limited’s (Glohal Trading) Eurapean natural gas und power Lrading
operations, and CG&F's and PSIs power marketing and trading
operations, In April 2002, CG&E and PSI executed anew join
operating agreement whereby new power marketing and trading
contracts of the participants since April 2002 are originated on
behalf of CG&E. See the Termination of Operaling Agreenment
section for additional information,
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Our domestic operations narket and trade over-the-counter
{an mformal market where the huving/selling of commodities
occurs) conbracts tor the purchase and sale of electricity (primanly
in the Midwest region of the ULS,), natural gas, and other coergy-
related products. In addition, vur domestic operations also market
and trade natural gas and other energy-related products on the New
York Mercantile Exchange. Global Trading's operations trade over-
the-counter contracts for the purchase and sale of natural gas and
electricity (both primarily in the United Kingdom), Glebal Irading
also trades natural gas on the [nternational Petralewn Exclanpe.
Many of the contracts in both the accrual and trading portfo-
lios commit us to purchase or sell electricity, natural gas, and other
energy-related products at fixed prices in the future. The majoritv
of the contracts in the natural gas and other energy-related product
portfolios are financially settied contracts (i, there is no physical
delivery related with these ites), Tn addition, Energy Merchant
also markets and Lrades over-the-counter option vontracts, The
use of these types of commaodity instruments is designed (o allow
Energy Merchant to-
a manage and ccanomically hedge contracual commitments:
u reduce exposure refative o the volatility of cash market prices:
n take advantage of selected arbitrage opportunitics; and
1 priginate customized transactions with municipalities and

Clld*l]SL‘ customers.

Energy Merchant structures and modifies its net position
to caplure the following:
o expected changes in luture demand;
a1 seasonal market pricing characteristics;
= overall market sentiment; and
= price selationships between different ume periods and
Lrading regions.

At times, a net open position s created or is allowed 1o
continue when Faergy Merchant believes futare changes in prices
and matket conditions may possibly result in profitable positions.
Position imbalances can also occur due Lo the basic lack of liquidity
in the wholesale power market. The existence ol net epen positions
can patentially result in an adverse impact on our financial conei-
tion or results of operations, This potential adverse impact could be
realized if the market price of clectrie power does nat react in the
manuer or direction expected. Cinergy’s Risk dManagement Contre)
Policy contains limits associated with the overall size of nel open
positions for each trading operation and for Cinergy in total.

Value at Riske (VaR}  Energy Merchant measures the narket
risk imherent in the trading portfolio empliving YaR analysis and
other methodologies, which utilize forward price curves in electric
power and natural gas markets to quantify estimates ol the magni-
tude and probability of future value changes related to open
contract positions. VaR is a statistical measure used to quantify
the potential change in v value of the trading portfolio over a
particular period of time, with a specitied likehhood of vcaurrence,
due to mrket movement. Energy Merchant, lhl'uugh some ol
our non-regulated subsidiaries, markets physical natural gas and
clectricity and trades devivative commadity instraments swhich
are usually settled in cash including: forwards, lutures, swaps, and
aptions. Any transaction, whether settled physically or (inancially,
that is included in our far value power and gas accounting results
is included in the Val calculation.

Our VaR is reported based on a 93 percenl confidence inter-
val, utilizing a vne-dav holding period. This means that on a given
day fone-day holding periody there is a 95 percent chanee teonfi-

dence level that our trading purtfn]io will not change mare than
the stated amount. Gur VaR madel uses the variance- covariance
statistical modeling technique and historical volatilities and
correlations over the past 21-wading day period, Dring 2002,
Cinergy revised the sample horizen used tor caleulating historical
volalility and correlation [or power prices from 200 trading days
tor 21 trading days. This revision wos made to be cansistent with the
calculation methodology used for natuval gas and to comply with
the commen practice in the industry of using a 23-trading day
sample period lor pewer. The 2001 YaR inforimation included
the chart below has not been restated to reflect this change. The
average Valk lor 2001 was caleulated using a simple quarterly

average. The 2002 average Valk was caleulated nsing an average of

trading davs over the entive vear. The high and low Yall for 2001
were hased on quarterly Valt caleulations. The high and Jow VaR for
2002 were based on an entire year of trading day calculations. The
market prices used to caleulate Vall are obtained from exchanges
and over-the-counter markels when available, established pricing
madels and other factors including market velatility, te tine valoe
af money, and location differentials. The NVaR for Cinergy's trading
portiolie is presented in the table below:

Vall Associated with Energy Trading Contracts

{dolinrs in nullions) 2002 2001
Percentage of Percentage of
Operating Qperating
Trading VaR Income ‘Trading VaR Incame
93t% confidence level, nne-day halding period, one-tailed
December 31 $l.6 0.2% S 6.0 0.6%
Average for the twelve months ended December 31 2.1 0.3 7.4 0.8
High for the twelve inenths ended December 31 37 0.5 1.9 1.3
Low for the twelve months ended December 31 0.5 0.1 4.9 0.3
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Changes in Fair Value The changes in fair value of the energy risk management assets and liabilities for the vears ended December 31,
2002 and 2001, are presented in the table below:

Changes in Fair Value

{ini millions) 2002 200[4-
Fair value of contracts cutstanding at the beginning of period: $18 S{78)
Inception value of new contracts when entered (1} [ 29
Changes in fair value attributable to changes in valuation techniques and assumptionst! 14 10
Other changes in fair value® 89 33
Option premiums paid/(received) 20 15
Contract reclassifications '» 14 -
Contract acquisition 13! (16) .-
Contracts settled (o) (n
Fair value of contracis outstanding at end of period $795 S8

(1) Repiesents fair value, recognized in income, aitributable to fong-rerv, structured contracts, priviarily in power, whicl is recovded on the dane a deal is stgued.
These couitracts are privaarily with end-use costomers or munticipalivies thar seek 1o it thedr visk to power prive volarificy, While cops nod fleers ofien exise
1 such contracts, the amewt of pover supplied con vary frow bour to ftour to virror the costeners” foad volntiliong See Accormting Changes i mdditiveal
infossnation regarding inception gains.

(2) Represents changes in faiv value recognized in ineoine, cansed by chaviges in asswmptions uscd in caleadating Juir valwe or changes in modeling weebhiyues.

(3) Represents changes in faiv value, recognized in income, prisnarvily attributable to fluctwations in price. This amaunt includes both realized and wnvcalized guins
ou eitergy trading coniracts,

(4) Includes veclassificorions of the sextlepient value af coitracts that fave been tevminated as a resilt of connferparty son-pesforaiance (o Non-Crrerent Liabifities - -
Other. These contracts ne fouger have price risk and are thevefore not considered cuergy trading contracts,

(3} Capital & Trding acquired a porifolio of gas contracts mnd fuventary i July 2002, This amount represents the fuivvalue of wed Euergy risk ssonageonen

liabilities nssinmed. There was ne inception gain or loss recagnized at the date of acquisition.

The fellowing table presents the expected maturity of the Cuergy risk manngement assets and Energy visk mirnagenient
linbilities as of December 31, 2002:

fis miitlions) Fair Value of Contracts at December 31, 2002
Marturing Tonal
Source of Fair Value ™ 2003 2004-2005 2006-2007 T'herealter Fair Value
Prices actively quoted 333 5(23} 5 5 - sl
Prices based on models
and other valuation methods 23 26 7 9 63
Total 556 5 3 57 59 575

[1) Active guotes are considered to be available for two years for standand electricity teansactions and three years for staudurd gas transactions, Now-stuudand
transactions wre classified based o the extent, if any, of mwodeling wsed in deierimining fair valie. Long-teron tansactions can fuve portions in botlt categorfes

depending ou the tenor.

Concentrations of Credit Risk Energy Trading Credit Risk  Cinergy's extension of credit for
Credit risk is the exposure to economic loss that would energy marketing and trading is governed by a Corporate Credig
occur as a result of nonperformance by counterparties, pursuang Policy, Written guidelines document the management approval
to the terms of their contractual obligations. Specific companents levels for credit limits, cvatuation of creditworthiness, and credit
of eredit risk include counterpacty default risk, collateral 1isk, risk mitigation procedures. Exposures Lo credit risks are monitored
concentration rislk, and settlement risk. daily by the Corporate Credit Risk function. As of December 31,
2002, approximately 96 percent of the credit exposure related 10
Trade Receivables and Physical Power Portfolio Qur concen- energy trading and marketing activity was with counterpartics
ration of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable from rated Investment Grade or the counterpartics obligations were
electric and gas retail custoiners is limited. The large number of guaranteed by a parent company or other cotity rated Tnvestment
customers and diversificd customer base of residential, commercial, Grade. Mo single nen-investment grade counterparly accounts
and industrial costomers significantly reduces our credit risk. for more than ene percent ol cur lotal credit exposure. Inergy
Contracts within the physical portfolio of power marketing and commodity prices can be extremely volatile and the marlet can, m
tracling aperations are primarily with the traditional electric times, lacl liquidity. Because of these issues, eredit risk is generally
cooperatives and municipalitics and other investor-owned utilities. greater than with other commodity trading,

At December 31, 2002, we believe the likelihood of significant losses
associated with credit risk in our trade accounts receivable or our
physical power portfolic is remote.
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In December 2001, Envon filed for protection under Chapter
11 of the U5, Bankrupiey Code 1n the Southern District of New
York. We degreased our trading aclivities with Enron in the menths
prior to its bankraptey filing. We intend te resohve any contract
differences pursuant to the terms of those contracts, business
practices, and the applicable provisious of the Bankruptey Code,
as approved by the court. While we cannot predict the resolution
of these maliers, we do nol belicve that any cxposure retating to
those contracts would have @ material impact o our financial
position or results o’ operations,

We continually review and monitor our credil expasure to
all cotinterparties and secondary counterparties. If appropriate.
we may adiust our credit reserves to atlempl o compensate for
increased credit risk within the fndustry. Counierparty credit
limits may be adjusted oo a datly basis in response o changes
in a counlerparty’s financial status, or public debt ratings,

Financial Derivatives  Potential exposure (o credit risk
alse exists [rom our use of financial derivalives such as currency
swaps, fm'eign cxc]'lzmg,c torward contracts, interest rale swaps,
and treasury locks. Because these financial instruments are
transacted with high]y rated financial institutions, we do not
anticipatc honperlormance by any of the comuerpaitics.

Risk Management YWe manage, o a portlolio basis, the
market 1isks 1 our energy marketing and trading transactions
subject to parameters established by owr sk Policy Committee,
Cur market and credit risks are monitored by the Global Risk
Management function to ensure compliiee with stated risk man-
agement policies and procedures. The Global Risk hManagement
[unction operates independently from the husiness units and other
corporate functivns, which originate and actively manage the
market risk exposures, Policies and procedures aze periodically
reviewed 1o ensure their responsiveness Lo changing market and
business conditions. Credit risk mitigation practices inchude
requiring parent company guarantecs, various forms of collateral,

and e use of mutual nettingfcloseout agreements.

Exchange Rafe Sensitivity  Cinergy has cxposure to fluciue-
tions in exchange rates between the US. dollar and the currencies
of loveign countries where we have investments, When it is appro-
priate we will hedge our exposure to cash llow transactions, such
as a dividend payment by one of our foreign subsidiaries.

Iuterest Rate Sensitiviy  Our net exposure to changes in
interest rates primarily consists ol short-terim debt instruments
and certain pollution contrel debt. The following tabic rellects
the different instruments used and the methad of benclmarking
interest rates, as of ecomber 31, 2002

Interest Benchmark

(10 miffions)

2002

Short-term Bank Loans/Commercial Paper s Short-term MMoney Market 8523
o L[BOR:

Pallution Control el s Daily Market 147

n Auction Rate

) Lovdon huter-Bank Offred Rate {LIBOR)

The weighted-average interest rates on the above instruments
at [december 31,2002, were as follows:

2002

Short-term Bank Loans/Commercial Paper 1.9%
Pallution Control Debt 1.8%

Al Drecember 31, 2002, forwaid vield curves project an
increase in applicable short-tevm interest rates over the next
{ive vears.
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The following table presents principal cash repayments, by maturity date and other selected information, for long-lerm Fxed-rate debt,

other debt, and capital lease obligations as of December 31, 2002:

Bxpected Maturity Date

{dollars in wmillions)

Fair
Liabilities 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thercalter Total Value
Long-term Debiin 5176 5812 5201 ans $328 5367 52,088 w3072 53,1606
Weighted-average interest rate' 6.2% 3.6% 6.6% 6.7% 7.6% 6.2%% 6,34
Other'» $ 15 s 3 5 3 s 7 5 7 5263 5 20y § 35
Weighted-average inkerest rate!'? 6.7% 3.9% 6.0% 5.3% 5.440% 6.3% 6,349
Capital Leases
Fixed-rate leases s 4 S 4 s 4 S 4 s A s 22 S 43 §
Weighted-average interest rate!? 3.8% 5.8% 5.8% 5.7% 5.7% 5.2 334

(1) Long-term Debt inciudes amounts reflected as Long-term debr due within one yeor,

(2) The weiphted-average interest rote is colcadated as follows: (1) for Long-rerns Debe aned Otlien, the weighted-mverage interest vate is brsed on idie interest vtes

nt December 31, 2002, of the debt that is maturing in the yenr reported; and (2} for Capital Leases, the weighted-average interest rate is basel ap the dverage

interest rate of the lease payments innde during the year veporfed.

(3) Long-terin Debi velated to investments nitder Global Resonrces

(4) Includes 6.30% Debenivres die August 1, 2026, reflected as maturing in 2003, as the inferest vete vescls on August 1, 20605
(5} fncliedes 6.90% Debesrures due June I, 2023, reflected as maturing in 2003, as the debenneres are putable te CGE at the opiion of te ftolidees o Jone 1, 3005,

Our current policy in managing exposure to fluctuations
in interest rates is to maintain approximately 30 percent of the
total amount of outstanding debt in floating mterest rate debt
instrumients. In maintaining this level of exposure, we use interest
rate swaps. Under the swaps, we agree with other parties to
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed-rate
and floating-rate interest amounts calculated on an agreed upen
notional amount, CG&E has au outstanding intercst rate swap
agreement that clecreased the percentage of floating-rate debl,
Under the provisions of the swap, which has a notional amount
of 5100 million, CG&E pays a fixed-rate and receives a floating-rate
through Cctober 2007. This swap qualifies as a cash flow hedge
under the provisions of Statement 133, As the terms of the swap
agreement mirror the terms of the debt agreement that it is
hedging, we anticipate that this swap will continue to be effective
as a hedge. Changes in fair value of this swap are recorded in
Accinidated other compreliensive incone (loss), beginning with
aur adoption of Statement 133 on January 1, 2001, Cincrgy Corp.
has three outstanding interest rate swaps with a combined notional
amount of $250 million. Under the provisions of the swaps,
Cinergy Corp. will veceive fixed-rate interest payments and pay
floating-rate interest payments through September 2004, These
swaps qualify as fair value hedges under the provisions of Statement
133. We anticipate that these swaps will continue to be effective
as hedges. See Note (1) of the Notes to Financial Statements for
additional information on financial derivatives. In the future, we
will continually monitor market conditions to evaluate whether
to modity our leve] of exposure o fluctuations in interest rates,

INFLATION

We belicve that the recent inflation rates do not materially impact
our financial condition. However, under existing regulatory prac-
tice, only the historical cost of plant is recoverable from customers,
As a result, cash flows designed to provide recovery of historical
plant costs may not be adequate to replace plant in future years.
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ACCOUNTING MATTERS

Critical Accounting Policies

Preparation of financial statements and relited disclosures
in compliance with GAAP requites the use of assumptions and
estimates. In certain instances, the application of GAAP requires
judgments regarcing future cvents, including the likelihood of
success of particular initiatives, legal and regulatiry challenges, andd
anticipated recovery of costs, Therelor, the possibility exists for
materially different reported amounts wider different conditions
ar assumptions, The following discusses celevant aeeounting
palicies and should be read in conjunction with the Notes to
Financial Statements.

Eair Value Accounting for Energy Marketing and Trading
We use fair vetue accounting far energy trading contracts, which
is required, with certain exceptions, by Statement 133, Short-term
contracts used in our trading activitics are generally priced using
exchange based or over-the-counlter price quotes, Long-(ernmn
contracts typically must be valued using model pricing due tw the
lack of actively quoted prices. The periad for which actively quoted
prices are available varies by commodity and priving point, but is
generally sherter for elecivichty than gas. Use of madel pricing
requires estitnation surrounding factors such as volatility and future
price expectations beyond the actively quoted portien of (he price
curve, In addition, somie contracts do not Tinee lxedd notienal
amounts and therefore must be valued using estimutes of vohames
to be consumed by the counterparty. See Changes in Fair Value for

additional information.
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We measure these risks by using complex valuation tools, both
cxternal and proprietary, which allow us 1o model prices for periods
for which active quotes are unavailable. These models are dynamic
and are continuously updated with the mosl recent data to improve
estimates of fulure expectations. We measure risks for contracts that
dao nol contain fixed notivnal amounts by obtaining historical data
and projecting expected consumption. These models incorporate
expectations surrounding the impacts that weather may play in
future consumption. The results of these measures assist us in
managing such risks within cur portfolio. We also have a Corporate
Risk Management function within Cincrgy that is independent of
the marketing and trading function and is under the oversight of
a risk policy conmnittee comprised primarily of senior company
executives. This group provides an independent evaluation of both
farward price curves and the valuation of chergy contracts. See

falue at Risk for additional infornation.

There is inherent risk in valuation modeling given the
complexity and volatility of energy markets. Fair value accounting
has risk, including its application to short-term contracts, as gains
and losses recorded through its use are not yet vealized. Therelore,
it is possible that results in future periods may be materially
different as contracts are ultimatiely settled.

For financial reporting purposes, assets and labilities
associated with energy trading {ransactions accounted for using
fair value are reflected on our Censolidated Balance Sheets as
Energy risk anagement assets curreit and men-current and Energy
risk nmanagenent labilities cirrent and non-curren, classificd
pursuant to cach contract’s tenor, Net gains and losses resulting
from revalvation of contracts during the period are recognized
currently in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Retail Customer Revesrue Recognition  Our retail revenaes
mchide amounts that are not vet billed to custamers, Custemers
are billed throughout the menth as both gas and clectric meters are
read. We recognize revenues for retail energy sales that have not vet
been billed, but where gas or electricity has been consumed. This is
termed “unbilled revenne” and is a widely recognized and accepted
practice for utilities. In making our estimates of unbilled revenue
we use complex systems Lhal consider various factors, incdluding
weather, in our caleulstion of retail customer consumption at the
end of each month. Given the use of these systems and the facl
that custamers are billed monthly, we believe it is unlikely that
materially different results will occur in futuwre periods when
revenue is billed. Relaled receivables are sold under the accounts
receivable sales agreement and therefore are not reflected on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets, See Note 6 ol the Notes to
Financial Statements for additional information. The amount
of unbilled revenues as of December 31, 2002, 2001. and 2000,
were $153 million, 172 million, and 3231 million, respectively.
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Regulatory Accounting  Our operating companics are
regulated utility companies. Except with vespect Lo the lectyic
generation-related assets and liabilitics of CG&E, the companies
apply the provisiens of Statement 71 I accordance with Malement
71, regulatory actions may result in accounting treatment ditferent
{rom that of non-rate regulated companies. The deferral of cosls
fas regulatory assels) or accrual of relund obligations (as regulatory
linbilities) may be appropriate when the fulure vecovery of such
costs or making of vefunds is probable. In assessing probability,
we censider such [actors as regulatory precedent and the current
regulatory environment. To the extent recovery of costs is no longer
deemed probable, related regulatory assets would be required to be
recognized in current period carnings.

Al December 31, 2002, regulatory asscls totaled 5603 million
lor CGEE, including its subsidiaries, and 5118 miillion for PSIL
Current rates include the recovery of $398 million for CG&L,
including its subsidiaries, and 5360 million for PSL Of the $38 mil-
lion not yet approved far recovery by P8I, 342 million relates (o
reorganization costs incurred in connection with the merger with
CG&E. Deferral of these costs for subsequent recovery was previ-
ously authorized by the TURC. PSTwill request recovery of these
cosls 11 ils rate testimony expected to be filed in darch 2003
Should the ICRC deny recovery of those costs, a charge to
current period carnings woutd be required, See Mote 1{ch of
the Notes Lo Financial Stateinents for additional detail regarding

|'Cgu]:l[()1‘y asscts.

Pensioit and Otlier Postietirenient Benefits  Cinergy’s
reporled cosls of providing pension and other postretirement
benefits {as described in Note 9 of the Notes to Financial
Statements) are dependent upon numerous faclors resulting
from actual plan experience and assumptions of futare cxperience,

Pension costs associated with our defined benefit pension
plans, fur example, are impacted by employee demographics
{including age, compensation levels, and employment periods),
the level of contributiens we make to the plan, and earnings on
plan assets. Changes made o the provisions of the plan mav
impacl current aid future pension cests. Pension casts may also
be significantly affected by changes in kev actuarial assumptions,
including anticipated rates of relurn on plan assets and the discouat
rales used in determining the projected benelit obligation and
pensicn costs,

In accovdance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 87, Emplayers’ Accounting for Pensions (Matemeni
877, changes in pension obligations asseciated with the above
factors may not be immediately recognized as pension costs on
the income statement, but may be deferred and amortized in the
future over the average remaining scrvice period of active plan
participaits 1o the extent that Statement 87 recognition provisions
are triggered. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and
2000, we recorded pension costs for our defined benefit pension
plans {including carly retirement program costs recognized in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No, 88, Employers’ Accotnting for Setteiments and Curtailments
af Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Ternsination Beuefris
(Statement 88)) of approximately 568 millien, 532 mitlion, and
Sd4 million, respectively.
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CQur pension plan assets are principally comprised of
equity and fixed income investments, Differences between actual
portfolio returns and expected refurns may result in increascd or
decreased pension costs in future periods. Likewise, changes in
assumptions regarding current discount rates and expected rates
of return on plan assets could also increase or decrease recorded
pension costs.

In selecting our discount rate assumption we considered
rates of return on high-quality fixed-income investinents that are
expected to be available through the maturity dates of the pension
benefits. In establishing owr expected long-term rate of return
assumption, we utilize analysis prepared by our investment advisor.
Qur expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets is
based on our targeted asset allocation assumption of 60 percent
equity investments and 40 percent fixed income investments,

Qur 60 percent equity lnvestment target includes allocations to
domestic, international, and emerging markets managers, Qur
asset allocation is designed to achieve a moderate level of overall
portfolio risk in keeping with Cinergy’s desired risk objective. We
regulatly review our asset allocation and periodically rebalance
our investiments to our targeted allocation as appropriate,

We base our determination of pension cost on a market-
related valuation of assets that reduces year-to-year volatility, This
market-related valuation recognizes investment gains or losses over
a five-year period from the year in which they occur. Investment
gains or losses for this purpose are the difference between the
expected return calculated using the markei-related value of assets
ane the actual fair value of assets.

Based on our assumed long-term rate of return of 9 percent,
discount rate of 6.73 percent, and various other assumptions, we
estimate that our pension costs assaciated with our defined benefit
pensicn plans will increase from $29 million (excluding Statement
88 cosis) in 2002 to approximately $53 million in 2003. Modifying
the expected long-term rase of return on our pension plan assets by
.25 percent would change pension costs for 2003 by approxihmately
$2 million. Modifying the discount rate assumption by .25 percent
would change 2003 pension costs by approximately $3 million.

Other postretirement benefir costs are impacted by employee
demographics, per capita claims costs, and health care cost trend
rates, Other postretirgment benefit costs may also be significanty
atfected by changes in key actuarial assumptions, including the
discount rates used in determining the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation and the postretivement benefit casts, In accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106,
Employers’ Accounting for Postretivemnesit Benefts Other Thai
Fensions (Staternent 106), changes in postrefirement bencfit
obligations assaciated with these factors may not be immediately
recognized as postretirement benefit costs but niay be deferred and
amortized in the future over the average remaining service period
of active plan participants to the extent that Statement 106 recogni-
tion provisions are triggered. For the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000, we recorded other postretirement benefit
costs of approximately $29 million, $27 million, and $25 million,
respectively, in accordance with the provisions of Statement 106,
Based upon a discount rate of 6.75 pereent and various other
assumptions, we estimate that our other postretivement benefit
costs will increase from $29 million in 2002 10 approximately
$35 million in 2003.
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Impnirment of Long-fived Assets  Currenl accounting
standards reguire long-lived assets by measured for lnapairmenl
whenever indicators of impairment exist. If deemed impaired
under the standards, assets ave writlen dowwn to i value with
a charge te current period carnings. As a producer of clectricity,
Cinergy, CG&E, and PSE are owners ol generating plants which
are largely coal-fired. At December 31, 2002, the carrying value
of these generating plants is 34 billion far Cinergy, $2 billion for
CG&E and 52 billion for PSL As a cesult of the various cindssions
and by-products of coal consumrtion, the companies are subject
to extensive environmental regulations and are currently subject
to a number of environmental contingencies, See Note 11 ot the
Notes to Financial Statements for additional information. While
we canmot predict the potential affect the resolution of these
matters will have on our financial position or results of uperations,
we believe that these assets are not impaired. In making this
assessment, we consider such factors as the expeeted ability to
recover additional investment in caviromuvental complionce
expenditures, the relative pricing of wholesale electricity in the
region, the anticipated demand, and the cost ol Tuel, We will
continue to cvaluate these assets for impairment when events or
cirewmstances indicate the corrying value may not be recoverable,

Accounting Changes

Energy Trading  The Emerging Issues ‘Task Foree (ENT'F)
has been discussing several issues related e the accaunting and
disclosure of energy trading activities woder E[TF 98-10, Accoindting
for Cantracts nvolved in Energy Trading and Risk Mcaviogenient
Activities (EUTF 98-10}, In Qclober 2002, the EITE reached consen-
sus in EITF lssue 02-3, Accounting for Contracts fuvolved in Eneryy
Trading aied Risk Managewent Activities to (a} vesciind BIUVF 98-10,
(b) generally preclude the recognition of gains al the inception
of new derivatives, ang (¢} require all realized and unreafized
gains and losses on energy trading derivatives to be presented
net in the Consolidated Statements of Income, shether or not
settled physically.

The consensus to rescind EITE 98-10 will requive all enerpy
trading contracts that do not qualify as derivatives 1o be accounted
for on an accrual basis, rather than al fair value. 'The consensus was
immediately effective for all new contracts executed alter October
25, 2002, and will require a cumulative efleet adjustment Lo income,
net of tax, on January L, 2003, for all contracts execoted on or prior
to Qctober 25, 2002, The cumulative cffect adjustment, on a net of
tax basis, will be a [oss of approximately S13 million, which includes
primarily the impact of coal contracts accomnted lor at fair valae,
gas inventory accounted for at fair value, and certain gas contracts,
We expect the value of these items to be realized when the contracts
settle. The general restriction on recognition of inception gains is
not expecied 1o have a material impact on our futare financial
position or results of operations.

The consensus to require all gains and Tesses on energy
trading derivatives to be presented net in the Consolidated
Statements of Income is effective beginning January 1, 2003, and
will require restatement (or all periods presented. This will resuli
in substantial reductions in reported Operating Reverees, Fael
and purchased and exchanged power expense, and Gas purchased
expense. However, Operating Income and Net Incone will not be
affected by this change, Pro-lerma Operating Revenes for the year
ended December 31, 2002, under this requirement woukd have
been approximately $4 biliion.
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Business Combinations and Intangible Assets  In June 2001,
the FASB issucd Statement ol Financial Accounting Standlards
No 141, Business Combinations {Statement 141}, and Statement

142, Statement 141 requires ail business combinatiens initiated after

June 30, 2001, o be accounted [or using the purchase method. With
the adoption of Statement 142, goodwill and ether intangibles with
indefinite lives will no longer be subicet to amortization. Statement
142 requires that goodwill be assessed for impairment upon adop-
tion and at least annuaily tereafter by applying a fair-valuc-based
lest, as apposed to the undiscannted caslhy [k test applied ander
prior accounting stancards, This test must be applied at the
“reparting unit” level, which is not permitted to be broader
than the current business scgments discussed in Note 16 ol Lhe
Notes 1o Financial Statements, Under Statement 142, an acquired
intangihle asset should be separately recognized if the benetit of
the intangible asset is obiained through contractuai or other legal
vights, or il the intangible asset can be sold, translerred, Heensed,
rented, o exchanged, regardless of the acquiret’s intent to do so,
\We began applying Statermient 341 in the third quarter of 2001
and Statement 142 in the first quarter of 2002, The discontinuance
of amertization of goodwill, which began in the first quarter of
2002, was not material to our financial position or results of
operations. \We finalized owr transition impairment test in the
lourth quarter of 2002 and have recognized a non-cash impairment
charge of approximately S11 million 1net of tax} for goodwill related
ter certain of cur international assets. This charge reflects a general
decline in value of international ussets. Additionally, Cinergy’s
combined heat and power plants located in the Czech Repubiic
faced downward pressure wn their selling prices tar electricity due
te the continued restructuring of the market m that country. In
calawdating this impairment charge, the fair vatue of the reporting
unit was determined through both discounted cash flow analysis
andt offers being considered on certain businesses within the report-
ing unit. This wmount is reflected in the Consolidated Statements
of Income as a Cimudative effect of a change in accorting priviciple,
st of i While Statement 142 did not require the initial transition
impairment test (o be campleted untl Drecember 31, 2002, 14
requires any transition impairment charge 1o be rellected as
of [anuary 1, 2002, Ay such, Note 11 of the Notes Lo Finaneal
Statemients reconciles Net Tncome and Earnings Per Sheare lyom the
amounts otiginally presented in the st quarter of 2002 1o the
amaunts revised for this change, We will continue w perferm
goodwill iupairment tests anmually, as required by Statement 1412,
or when circumstances indicate that the fairvalue of a repurting

unit has declined significantiv.

Assef Retirement Obligations  n July 2000, the FASE issuvd
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting
Jor Asset Retivemeni Qbligaifons (Statement 143}, which requives
fair value recognition ol legal obligations associated with the
retirement or removal of long-lived assets at the time the abliga-
tions ave incurred. The initial recognition of this lability will be
accompanied by a correspanding increase in property, plant, and
cquiprent, Subsequent to the indtial recognition, the liability will
be adjusted for any revisions to the expected cash Nows af the
retirement ohligation (with corresponding adiustiments te property,
plant. and equipmentd, and far accretion of the liabiliy due to the

passage of time trecognized us an eperating expensel. Additional
depreciation expense will be recorded prospectively for any property.,
phant, and equipment increases. We adapted Stalement i43 on
January 1, 2003, The impact ol adoption on our results of epera-
tions will be reflected as a cumulative effect adinstment to income,
net of b,

We currently accruie costs of removal on many long-lived
assets through depreciation expense it we believe removal of the
assers al the end of their useful life is likelv. The SEC staff has intor-
prreted Statemend 143 10 disallow the accrual of cost ol remaval
when no obligation exists under Statement 143, even il reinevai of
the asset is likely. Any amounts curvently recorded o Accionufaied
depreciation must be removed through the cwsulative etfect adjust-
ment on fanuary 1, 2003, However, i aceruing, €05t of removal s
allowed (or ratemaking purposes and Statement 71 is applicabie,
accuimulated cost ol removal will not he reversed upon adoption of
Statement 143, Rather, the amount of accrued cast of removal will
remain, but will be disclosed in all future seriods. Qur eperating
companies, except for the generation assets of CGEL, expect fo
continue (o accrue costs of removal under Statement 71

We are Hnalizing our evaluation of the impact of adopring
Statement 143, However, we have not determined whether its
impact will be material pending 1al vesolution of certain fegal
conclusions and {11 final calculations on the amount of accunulat-
ed cost of removal to be reversed upen adoption for CG&E's

generation asscts,

Derivatives  During 1998, the FASE Issucd Staterment |33,
This standard was elfective for Cinergy beginning in 2001, and
requires us to record duerivative instruments, which are not exempt
under certain pravisions of Statement |33, as assets or labilities
measured at faiv value (e, mark-to-market). Cur financial state-
menty reflect the adaption of Statement 133 in the livst quarler
ol 2001, Since many of our derivatives were previausly required

1o use fair value accounting. the elfects of implamentation were
not material.

Gur adoption did not reflect the potential impact of apphing
fair value accounting to selected clectricity optiens and capacity
cantracts. We had not historically accounted for these instements
al falr value hecause they were intended as cither hedges ol peals
period expusure or sales contragts served with phyvsical generation,
neither of which were considered trading activitics, AL adoption,
we classilied these contracts as normal purchages or sales based on
our interpreiation of Staiement 133 and in the absence of definitive
guidance en such contracts. In June 2001, the FASB stalt issued
guidance on the application of the normal purchases and sales
exemption to clectricity contracts containing characteristics of
optiens, While inany of Lhe eriteria in this guidance are congsistent
with the existing goidance in Statement 133, soime criteria were
added. We adopted the new guidance in the thivd quarter of 2001,
and the effects of implemeniation for these conrracts were not
material to our [inancial position av tesults ol operations, We will
continue to apply this guidance w any new electricity conlracts that
meet the definition of a derivative.
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In December 2001, the FASB staff revised the current guid-
ance to make the evaluation of whether eleciricity contracts qualify
as normal purchases and sales imore qualitative than quantitative.
This new guidance uses several factors to distinguish between
capacity cantracts, which qualify for the normal purchases and
sales exemption, and options, which do not. These factors include
deal tenor, pricing structure, specification of the source of power,
and vartous other factors. We adopted this guidance in the thivd
quarter of 2002, and its impact was not material to our financial
vosition or results of operations.

In October 2001, the FASB staff released final guidance on
the applicability of the normal purchases and sales exemption to
contracts that contain a minimum quantity (a forward component)
and flexibility to take additional quantity at a {ixed price {an aption
component), While this guidance was issued primarily to address
optionality in fuel supply contracts, it applics to all derivatives
(subject to certain exceptions for capacity contracts in electricity
discussed in the previous paragraphs). This gnidance concludes that
such contracts are not eligible for the normal purchases and sales
exenption due to the existence of optionality in the contract. We
adopted this guidance in the second quarter of 2002, consistent
with the ansition provisions. Cinergy hias certain contracts that
contain fixed-price optionality, primarily coal contiacts, which we
reviewed to determine the impact of this new goidance. Due to a
lack of liguidity with respect to coal markets in our region, we
determined that our coal contracts do not meet the net scttlement
criteria of Statement 133 and thus do not qualify as derivatives.
Given these conclusions, the results of applying this new guidance
were not material to our financial position or results of operations.

In May 2002, the FASB issued an exposure draft that would
amend Statement 133 to incorporate certain implementation
conciusions reached by the FASB staff. We do not believe the
amendments, as currently drafied, will have a material effect
on our financial position or results of operatians.

Asset Impairment  In August 2001, the FASB issued
Statement 144, which addresses accounting and reporting for the
inpaininent or disposal of long-lived assets. Statemneitt 144 was
effective beginning with the first quarter of 2002, The impact of
implementation on our financial position or results of operations
was not material.

Exit Activifies I August 2002, the FASE issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Dispasal Activities (Statement 146),
Statement 146 addresses accounting and reporting for the
recognition of exit costs, including, but not limited to, one-time
employee benefit terminations, contract cancellations, and facility
consclidations. This staternent requires that such costs be recog-
nized only when they meet the definition of a liability under GAAPR.
However, Statement 146 applies only to exit activitics initiated in
2003 and after. Al costs recorded through December 31, 2002, are
unaffected by this pronouncement. The impact of implementation
on our financial pesition or results of operations is not expected
to be material.
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Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation \We have histori-
cally accounted for our stock-based compensation plans under
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting
Jor Stock Issued to Employecs (APB 25), In July 2002, Cinergy
announced that it would adopt Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, Acroumting for Stock-Based Cowmpensation
(Statement 123) for all employece mwards granted or medified after
January 1, 2003, and would begin measuring the compensation cost
of stock-based awards under the fair value method. In December
2002, the FASB issued Stateent of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 148, Accointing for Stock-Based Compensation- trausition aisd
Disclostere { Statement 148}, which amends Statement 123 aud APB
Cpinion MNo. 28, Interii Financial Reporting Statement 148 pro-
vides alternative methods of 1rapsition to Statement 123 and more
expanded disclosures abow the method of accounting lor stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the methodd used
on reported results in both annnal and inlerim financial statements.
We adopted Statement 148 on January 1, 2003, and have adopted
the transition provisions that reguire expensing aptions prospec-
tively in Lthe year of adoption, consistent with the original pro-
nouncement. Existing awards will continue 1o follew the intrinsic
value methaod prescribed by APB 25, The impact ol adoption
on our financial position and results ﬂi.ﬂpl.'l';ﬂ.iﬂl'l.\', assiming
award levels and fair values similar 1o past years, is dal malerial,
This change will primarily impact the accounting [or stock options
and other performance based awards related to the Cinergy Corp.
1996 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan and Cinergy Corp.
Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan. See Note 2 ol the
Notes to Financial Statements for adklitional information,

Guaragntees  In November 2002, the FASE issucd
Interpretation No. 45, Grarantor’s Avcovnting ured Disclosuie
Requiremenis for Guarantves, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebteduess of Others (Interpretation 45), Interpretation 45
addresses accounting and reporting ebligations under certain
suarantees. [t requires a guarantor o recognize, at the inception
of a guarantee, a lability for the fair value of the obligalion
undertaken in 1ssuing the gaarantee, The initia! recognition and
measurement provisions of Interpretation 43 are apphcable to
guarantees issued or modilied after ecember 31, 2002, [ However,
the incremental disclosure requirements in Inlerpretation 45 are
effective for this annual report. The impact of implememation
on our financial position or results ol operations is not expected
to be material. For a further discussion of guarantees, see
Note 11(b) of the Notes to Financial Statements,

Cousolidation of Special Purpose Entities  'The FASE issued
Interpretation 46 in January 2003, This interpretation will signifi-
cantly change the consalidation requirements for SPEs. We have
begun reviewing the impact of this interpretation but have not yet
concluded whether consolidation of certain SPEs will by vequired.
There are two SPEs for which consolidation may be required. These
SPEs have individual power sale agreements to an unrelated third
party for approxinately 43 MW, ending in 2009, and 33 MW, end-
ing in 2016. In addition, the SPEs bave individual power purchase
agreements with Capital & Trading o supply the power. Capital &
Trading also provides various services, including certain credil
support tacilities.



REVIEW of FINANCIAL CONDITION gnd RESULTS of OPERATIONS

Cinergy's quantifiable exposuve tw loss as a result of involve-
ment with these two SPEs is $28 wmillion, which includes invest-
ments in Lhese entities of $3 million and exposure under the
capped credit facilities of approximately 525 million. There is nlso
a non-capped facility, but it can only be called upon in the event
the SPL breaches representations, viclates cavenants, or other
unlikely events.

If appropriate, consolidation of all assets and liabilities of
these wo SPEs, at their carrying valaes, will be required in the third
quazler of 2003, Approximately $225 million of non-recourse debt
wauld be included in ow Consolidated Balance Sheets upan initial
consolidation. However, the impact on ouf tesulls of operations
would be expected to be imnaterial.

Cinergy believes that its accaunts receivable sale facility, as
discussed in Note 6 of the Notes to Financial Stalements, would
remain unconsolidated since it involves transfers ol financial assets
to a qualifying SPE, which is exempted lrom consolidation by
Statement 140 and this Interpretation.

Othier Matfers

Voluseary Early Retirement Programs (VERP)  Throughout
2002, Cinergy offered various VERP ta the fellowing cmployee
groups:

Number of Number of
Employees Employees
Employee Group Offered YERP Elected VERP
Man-union 279 213
Utility Workers Unian
of Americath 70 Al
International Brotherhood
of Electrical Workers
(%1393 and #1347} 73 a8
Total 424 302

(1) Union was formcrly uamed Hie Independens Utifities Unjon,

As a result of the employees accepring a VERP in 2002,
Cinergy recorded an expense ol approximately 543 millioa.

New Business Initiatives  In the third quarter of 2002,
Capital & Trading completed an acquisition of a coal-based
synthetic fuel production facility which converts coal feedstock
innta synthetic fuel for sale (o a third party, The cost of this
acquisition was approximately 560 million, The svuthetic fudd
produced at this facility qualifics for tax credits in accordance
with Section 29 af the Internal Revenue Code. Fligibility far these
tax cvedits expires in 2007, We anticipate these tax credits will
henefit our net income.
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Federal Tax Law Changes  In March 2002, President Bush
sigied into law the Job Creation and Waorker Assistance Act of 2002,
also known as the Teonomic Stimulus Package, The primary benefit
Lo Cinergy is the allowance of additional first-vear depreciation
deductions (or lax purposes, equal to 30 percent of the adiusted
tax basis of qualificd property. This provision applies o qualifving
additions alter September 11, 2001, The provisions of this bill will
not have a material impact on our fiuancial position or results
of operations.

Indinua tax Law Changes  In June 2602, the Indiana
Legislature passed a bill, which was signed by the Governor,
containing new lax kaw provisions in Indiam that apply 1o buth
utility and non-utility companies with operations in the state.
Aler review of the new provisions, we do not helieve that these
changes will materially impact Cinergy.

PUCO Review of Financinl Condition of Ohio Regilated
Utilities  In October 2002, as the result of recent tinancial prab-
lems experienced by certain public utility companies and the
current state of the econemy, the PUCO issued an order initiating
a review of the finandial condition of the 19 large public ulilities
(gas, clectric, and telecommunication) serving Ohio customers,
including CG&E. The PUCO intends to identily available measuares
to cnsure that the regulated operations of the Qhie public utilities
are not adversely impacted by the parent or alfiliate companies’
unregulated operations. The PUCO requested initial comments
and reply comments by November 12, 2002, and November 22,
2002, respectively, regarding hosw the review should be conducted
and on the polential measures the PUCO couki Lake 1o protee
the financial condition of the regutated utilities. CGEL filed
comiments; however, we cannot predict the outcome of this
review al this tine.

Shareholder Rights Plan  1n July 2000, Cinergy Corp.s buard
of directors approved a Sharcholder Rights Plan, Under the plan,
each sharcholder ol record on October 30, 2000, received, as a
dividend, a vight to purchase from Cinergy Coip. one share of
common stack at a price ol $100. The rights were scheduled to
expire in October 2010,

As part of ts dedication to ensure a leadership position in
adopting corporate governance practices that ave considered best
n class, in August 2002 Cinergy Corp)s buard of directors approved
a resolution (o accelerate the termination date af the company’s
Sharcholder Rights Plan. Under the resolution, the company
terminated the plan, eflective September 16, 2002, The company
also amended the contract with the plan’s agent and notified the
SEC and the New York Stock Exchange of the change.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of INCOME

(i thousands, except per share antounts)

2002

2001

2000

Operating Revenues (Nate 1{q)(i))

Electric $ 6,912,349 $ 8,255,847 35,359,358
Gas 4,916,919 4662910 2,9:41,753
Other 130,813 78,240 45,u65
Total Operating Revenites 11,960,081 12,997,009 8,397,080
Operating Expenses
Fuel and purchased and exchanged power {Note 1(q)(i}) 4,511,891 06,005,803 3,139,274
Gas purchased (Note 1(q) (i) 4,668,941 1,431,899 26740119
Operation and maintenance 1,298,398 1,013,326 1,112,255
Depreciation 414,004 J7E,30Y 341,927
‘Taxes other than income taxes 263,002 127,652 268,310
Total Operating Expenses 11,156,236 12,053,079 7,530,251
Operating Income 803,845 443,930 860,829
Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries 15,261 1,191 6,231
Miscellaneous — Net 12,288 39,672 13,382
Interest 249,906 265,792 223,015
Preferred Dividend Requirement of Subsidiary Trust (Note 3) 23,832 1,067
Income Before Taxes 557,656 718,137 636,727
Incoine Taxes (Note 10) 157,320 255,978 251,607
Preferred Dividend Requirements of Subsidiaries 3,433 3,433 o rhERs
Income Before Discontinued Operations and Cumulative Effect
of a Change in Accounting Principle 396,903 458,826 AN0E35
Discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 15) (25,128} 116,517) [1,064)
Cumulative cffect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax (Note 14) (10,899) - -
MNet Income % 360,576 S 12,279 50 394,160
Average Common Shares Outstanding 167,047 159,110 158,938
Earnings Per Commmon Share {(Note 17)
Income Before Discontinued Operations and Cumulative Etfect
of 2 Change in Accounting Principle $ 2.37 § 2.88 s 2,52
Discontinued operations, net of tax {0.15) (0.10) I
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax {0.06) - -
Net [ncome 8 2,16 g 278 5 251
Earnings Per Common Share — Assuming Dilution (Note 17)
Income Before Discontinued Operations and Cumulative Effect
of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 2,34 $ .85 S 2.51
Discontinued operations, net of tax (0.15) (0.1 o.on
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax (0.06) - -
Net Income $ 2.13 3 275 S 2.50
Dividends Declared Per Common Share § 1.80 3 1.80 s 1.8

The acrompanying rotes are an integl part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSBTS
December 31
(i thousaids) 2002 2001
Current Asscls
Cash and cash equivalents $ 221,083 S 111L,067
Restricted deposits 8,116 8,035
Notes reccivable (Note 6) 135,873 RIM PR
Accounts receivable less accumulated provision fur doubtiul accounts
of 516,374 at December 31, 2002, and 334,110 at December 31, 2001 {Nate 6] 1,292,410 1,116,223
Materials, supplics, and fuel (Note 1M 319,456 239,608
Energy risk management current assets (Note 1{m)) 464,028 Jd9 307
Prepayments and other 118,208 110,102
Total Current Asscts ﬁ9,]74 2,005,667
Property, Plant, and Lquipment — at Cost
Utility plant in service 8,641,351 5,089,961
Construction wark in progress 469,300 Ak, 560
Total Utility Plant T 9,110,651 8,354,521
Non-regulated property, plant, and cquipment 4,704,904 1178087
Accumulated depreciation 3,160,881 4,840,757
Net Property, Plant, and Equipment —&618?674 8,191,851
Other Assets T
Regulaiory assets (Note 1{c)) 1,022,696 1.013.863
Investments in unconsalidated subsidiaries 417,188 332,027
Energy visk management non-current asseis (Note [{m?} 162,773 134,443
Other investments 163,351 164,153
Goodwill 43,717 33,387
Other intangible asscts 14,736 22104
Other 273,099 258,120
Tatal Other Assets 2,098,060 1.980.341
Assets of Discontinued Operations {Note 15) 1,120 61,934
‘Total Assets $13307,028 612,299,813

The arconipanying notes dre o integral part of these consofiduted Jinancial statenents,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LTABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
December 31

(i thousands) 2002 2001
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,321,968 SoL024a12
Accrued taxes 254,823 195,970
Accrued interest 64,340 56,216
Notes payable and other short-term obligations (Note 5) 667,973 1,114,955
Long-term debt due within one year (Note 4) 191,454 118,131
Energy risk management current liabilities (Note 1(m)) 407,710 429,794
Other 108,056 125,036
Total Current Liabilities 3,016,324 3,125,220
Non-Current Liabilities N
Long-term debt (Note 4) 4,080,768 3,596,730
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) 1,471,872 1,202,042
Unamortized investiment tax credits 118,005 137,385
Accrued pension and other postretirement benefit costs {Note 9) 626,167 198,80 |
Energy risk management non-current liabilities (Note 1(m)} 143,991 135,619
Other 183,613 157,760
Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,624,506 5,518,337
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations (Nole 15} 1,707 13,637
N Total Liabilities 9,642,537 BIHY,191
Preferred Trust Securities (Note 3) T
Company obligated, mandatorily redeemable, preferred trust securities
of subsidiary, holding solely debt securities of the company 308,187 300,327
Cumulative Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries T ‘ )
Not subject to mandatory redemption 62,828 (2,833
Common Stock Equity (Note 2}
Common Stock — 5.01 par value; authorized shares — 600,000,000
outstanding shares — 168,663,115 at December 31, 2002, and
159,402,839 at December 31, 2001 1,687 1,544
Faid-in capital 1,918,136 1,619,639
Retained carnings 1,403,453 1,337,135
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 19) (29,800) (16,529
Total Common Stock Equity 3,293,476 2611459
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 11) T
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $13,307,028 $12,299 813

The accompanying notes are ait infegral part of these consolidated financial sintements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of CHANGES in COMMON STOCK EQUITY

Accumulated Totat
Other Common
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Stock
iin thousands, exvepi per sharc @mounis) Stock Capital Earnings [ncomie {Loss) Equity
2000
Beginning balance (158,923,399 shares) £1,589 $1,547,554 31,064,319 5 (%t} $2,653,721
Comprehensive income:
Net income — - 399,466 - 399 460
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
effect of 52,755 (Note 19)
Foreign currency lranslation adjustiment (Note 10)) - - - 2,074 2,074
Minimum pensien liability adjustizent - - - (1.099) {1,090
Unrealized gain {loss) on investnient trusts - - - (2,129} {2,129)
‘Total comprehensive income 398,312
Issuance of common stock — net (44,262 shares) 1 1,769 1,770
Treasury sharcs purchased (1,764,758 shares) - (3,969) - - {3,969)
Treasury shaves reisswed (1,764,758 shares) - 11,008 - - 11,008
Dividends on common stock {S1.80 per share) - - (285,242) - {285,242)
Other - 12,791 570 - 13,361
Ending balance (158,967,661 shares} 51,390 51,619,153 51,179,113 SE10,893) 52,788,961
2001
Comprchensive income:
Nel income - - 442,279 - 442,279
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax effect
of 51,434 (Note 19)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (Note 1(r}) - - 1,641 1611
Minimum pension liability adjustment - - - (1,533} {1,533)
Unrealized gain (loss} on investment trusts - - (841} (8411
Cumulative effect ol change in
accounting principle (Note 14) - - - (2,500} {2,500)
Cash flow hedges (Note 1(1)) - - - (2,779 ({2,779
Toial comprehensive income 36,245
Tssuance of comman stock — net (435,178 shares} 4 9,896 - - 9,900
Ticasury shares purchased (344,034 shares) - (10,015) - - {10,013}
‘Iyeasury shares reissued (344,034 shares) - 9,157 - - 9,157
[Nividends on commen stock (5180 per share) - - (286,289 - (286,289)
Stock purchase contracts (Note 2(c)) - (23,200) - {23,200
Other - 11,668 2,032 . 16,700
Ending balance (159,402,839 shares) $1,594 51,619,659 $1,337,135 5(16,929) 52,941,459
2002
Comprehensive income:
Met income - - 360,576 — 360,576
Other comprehensive income (loss),
net of tax effect of $13,575 (Note 19)
Foreign currency translation adjustment,
nct of reclassification adjustments (Note 14}) - - - 25917 25,917
Minimum pension liability adjustment - - - (13,763) (13,703}
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment trusts — -~ - (5,277) (5,277)
Cash flow hedges (Note 1{1)} - - - (19,748) (19,748)
Total comprehensive income 347,705
Issuance of coimmon stock — net 9,260,276 shares) 93 267,768 - - 267,861
Dividends on common stock (§1.80 per share) — - [298,292) - (298,292)
Other - 30,709 4,034 - 34,743
Ending balance (168,663,115 shares) 51,687 51,918,136 $1,403,453 5(29,800) 33,293,476

The accampanying untes are an integral part of these consolidated fivancial statenients,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of CASH FLOWS

(i thowsans) 2002 2001 2000
Operating Activities i
Net income 3 360,576 S 42279 S 399,400
Items providing or (using) cash currently:
Depreciation 414,004 370,399 A1927
Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax 25,428 16,317 1,069
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 10,899 - -
Change in net position of energy risk management activities (43,202) {90,850) (22,333)
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits — net 148,467 123,806 H 7,104
Gain on sale of investment in unconsolidated subsidiarics (16,518) .- -
Equity in earnings of unconsolidaied subsidiaries (15,261} {1,1494) {6,231)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction {12,861} {8,n28) {3,813}
Regulatory assets defervals (110,867 (141,324) (99,661
Regulatory assets amortization 116,512 119,311 92,830
Accrued pension and other postretiretment benefit costs 127,366 34,216 38,519
Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Restricted deposits (61) (1,409 {35067)
Accaunts and notes receivable, net of reserves on receivables sold {236,226) 302,902 (U60,048)
Materials, supplies, and fuel (83,458) {81,398) 16,269
Prepayments (10,041) {14,35%) {16,0:46)
Accounts payable 307,860 (466,97 3) 761,708
Accrucd taxes and interest 66,971 (42,105} 23,737
Qther assets (15,793} (21,675) (2:1,364)
Other liabilities (37,596} (19,373} (1,677}
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 996,199 717,814 632,1H5
Financing Activities T
Change in short-term debt (476,982) 27,951 383,122
Tssuance of long-terin debt 649,020 Q3(L7HA 126,120
Tssuance of preferred trust securitics - 306,327 -
Redemption of long-term debt (138,379) (131,413) [23:4,247)
Retirement of preferred sioclk of subsidiaries (3) (n (29,393)
Issuance of common stock 267,861 9,900 1,770
Dividends on common stock (298,292) (286,289) {2853,242)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 3,225 867,203 lal 130
Investing Activities o
Construction expenditures (less allowance for equity funds uged
during consiruction) (857,104) (%58,870) {331,890)
Acquisitions and ather investments (118,375) (708,229 (250,111}
Proceeds from sale of subsidiarics and equity investments 86,071 - - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (889,408) {1,067,099) (782,340}
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 118,016 18,0103 1,135
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 111,067 93,054 31,419
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period § 221,083 $ 111,067 S 93,054
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest (net of amount capitalized) $ 253,266 S 271,323 S 236,104
Income taxes $ 57,739 S 133,092 AZ 16,350

The nccompanying notes are dir integial part of these consolidared financial statentents.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of CAPITALIZATION

December 31

tin thousands) 2002 2001
Long-term Debt (¢xcludes curvent portion]
Cinergy Corp.
Other Long-term Debt:
6.3 % Debentures due Decemnber (6, 2008 $ 200,000 200,600
6.123% Lchentures due April 13, 2004 200,000 200,000
6.2> % Debentures due September 1, 2004 {Executed interest raie swaps of $230 million
setat London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 2.4:1%) 512,554 500,31
Total Other Long-term Debt 912,554 900,311
Unamortized Premium and Discount — Net (165) (153)
Total — Cinergy Corp. N 912,389 900,086
Cinergy Glebal Resources, Inc,
Other Long-term Oebt:
6.20 % Debentures due November 3, 2008 150,000 150,000
Variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.75%, duc July 2012 12,792 14,042
Variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.5%, duc July 2009 5,281 3,840
Variable interest rates ranging between the 3 month Praguc Inter-Bank Qffered Rate plus 0.55%
to the 3 month Fure Inier-Bank Offered Rate (EURIBOR) plus 4.12%, maturing March 2004
(o Aarch 2003 - 1732
Fixed interest rales 6,1%-7.4%, mataring March 2003 to May 2003 - 14,271
Fixed interest rales ranging bebveen 6.35% and 9.911%, maturing September 2014 o Sepltember 2019 33,277 13,420
Fixed interest rate of 11.3%, maturing November 2023 (o Novenber 2024 17,850 17,850
Variable interest rate of FURIBOR plus 1.2%, maturing November 2016 63,675 32,274
Total Other Long-term Debt 282,875 266,449
Unamortized Premiuim and Discount — Net (193] (227)
Total — Cinergy Global Resources, Ing, T 282,682 266,222
The Cincinnati Gas & Clectric Campany (CG&E) and Subsidizaries
CG&E
FFirst Mortgage Bonds:
645 % Serics due February 15, 2001 110,000 110,000
7.2(1 % Series due October 1, 2023 265,500 265,200
3.5 % Series due January 1, 2024 (Pollution Control} 46,700 16,700
3% 9% Sevies due January 1, 2024 (Pollution Control) 48,000 48,000
Total First Mortgage Bonds 470,200 470,200
Other Long-term Debt:
Ligquid Asset Motes with Coupon tixchange due October |, 2007
{ Executed interest rate swap sel at 6.87% through maturity commencing at Ociober 19, 20007 100,000 100,000
6.0 % Debentures due April 1, 2008 100,000 100,000
6.90 " Debentures due June |, 2025 (Redeemable af the option of the holders on June 1, 2005) 150,000 150,000
8.28 % Junior Subordinated Debentures due July 1, 2025 100,000 100,000
6.35 % Debentures due June 13, 2038 {Intercst rate rescts fune 15, 2003) - 100,000
3.70 "0 Debentures due Seplember 15,2012 500,000 -
Series 2002A, Ohio Air Quality Development Revenue Refunding Bonds,
due September I, 2037 (Pollution Contral) 432,000
Series 20028, Chio Air Quality Development Revenue Refunding Bonds,
due September 1, 2037 (Pollution Control) 42,000 -
Series 19934, 6.50% Collateralizved Pollutien Contral Revenue Refunding Bonds,
due November 15, 2022 12,721 12,721
Total Qther Long-term Debt 1,046,721 362,721
Unamortized Premium aod Discawnl -— Nei (1‘.5671) (2,209)
Total — CG&E Long-term Debt ’ 1,5 15,060 1,130,712

The accompanving nales wre an nilegral part of these cousolidated financial sigicimenis,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of CAPYTALIZATION (continued)

S —
December 31
(in thousands) 29_0?___ - 2001
The Union Light, Heat and Power Company {ULH&P)
Other Long-term Debt:
6.11 % Dcbentures due December 8, 2003 ) - S 20,000
6.50 % Debentures due April 30, 2008 20,000 20,000
7.6 % Debentures due July 15, 2025 15,000 15,000
7.875% Debentures due September 15, 2009 20,000 20,000
Total Other Long-tern1 Debt 55,000 73,000 -
Unamaortized Premium and Discount — Net (347) (379)
Total — ULH&P Leng-term Debt 54,633 741,621
Total — CG&E Consolidated Long-term Debt 1,569,713 [,107,333
PSI Energy, Ing, (PSI)
First dortgage Bonds:
Serics 27, 5% % due February 15, 2028 (Pollution Contrel) 50,000 30,000
Series AAA, 7Y% % due February 1, 2024 30,000 30,000
Series BBB, 8.0 9% due July 15, 2009 124,665 124,065
Series CCC, 8.85% due January 15, 2022 53,055 ERALER)
Series DD, 8.31% due September 1, 2032 38,0600 38,000
Series EEE;, 6.65% due Jung 15, 2006 325,000 323,000
Total First Mortgage Bonds 620,720 620,720
Secured Medium-term Notes:
Series A, §.37% to 8.81%; due November 8, 2006 to June 1, 2022 34,300 34,300
Series B, 6.37% to 8.24%, due August 13, 2008 1o August 22, 2022 70,000 [ 26,000
AN (Scries A and B, 7.623% weighted-average interest raie and
1 3.9 year weighted-average remaining life)
Total Secured Medium-term Notes 104,300 160,300
Cther Long-term Lebt:
Series 20004, Indiana Development Finance Authority Environmental Refunding Revenue Bonds,
due May 1, 2035 44,025 025
Scries 20008, Indiana Development Finance Authority Environmental Refunding Revenue Bonds,
due April 1, 2022 10,000 10,000
6.35% Dcbentures due November 15, 2006 50 a0
6.30% Synthetic Putable Yield Securities due August I, 2026 (Interest rate resets August 1, 2003) 50,000 30,000
7.23% Junior Maturing Principal Sccurities due March 15, 2028 2,658 2,658
6.009% Rural Utilities Service Obligation payable in annual installments 82,025 83,001
6.52% Senior Nates due March 15, 2009 97,342 97,312
7.85% Debentures due Qctober 15, 2007 265,000 265,000
Series 20024, Indiana Development Finance Authority Livironmental Refunding Revenue Bonds,
due March 1, 2031 23,000 -
Series 2002B, Indiana Development Finance Authority Euvironmental Refunding Revenue Bonds,
due March 1, 2019 24,600 -
Total Cther Long-term Debt 398,700 552,074
Unamortized Premium and Discount — Nel (7,736) {8,010)
‘Total — PSI Long-term Debt 1,315,984 1,125,089
Total — Consolidated Long-term Debt $4,080,768 £3,396,730

The accomipanying notes are an inlegral part of these consolidated financial siatements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of CAPITALIZATION (coutinted)

December 31

(i thousands} 2002 2001
Preferred Trust Securities
Company nblig:llcd. 11'1;!|1(|;1l01‘i|)' redeemable, pl‘efel'l'ed trust securitics Ufsubsidinr};
holding solely debt securities of the company (Note 3) $ 308,187 5 300,327
Cumulative Preferved Stock of Subsidiaries -
Shares
Par/Stated Authorized Outstanding at Mandatory
Value Shares December 31, 2002 Series Redemptiot
CG&E S100 6,000,000 204,819 A% — 170 Mo $ 20,485 5 20480
PSI 5100 2,000,000 347,545 3%~ 60 No 34,754 Ad,708
ey 525 3,000,000 303,34 4,16% — 4,32% No 7,589 7,989
Total Cumulative Preferred Stocl of Subsidiaries % 62,828 S 02,833
Commean Stock Equity
Common Stack — $.01 par valug; authorized shares — 600,000,000; outstanding
shares — 168,663,115 at December 31, 2002, and 139,402,839 at December 31, 2001 3 1,687 5 1,594
Paid-in capital 1,918,136 1,619,639
Relained earnings 1,403,453 1,337,135
Accumulated aother compl‘chtnsi\'c income (loss) (Nole 19) (29,800} (16,929}
Total Comtmon Stock Equity 3,293,476 2,941,459
Total — Consolidated Capitalization $7,745,259 56,907,319

The accompanying noies ave it integrad peve of these consolideted firancial stitements.
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RESPONSIBILITY for FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the accuracy; ebjectivity, and
consistency of the financial statentents presented in this report,
The Consolidated Financial Statements of Cinergy Corp. (Cinergy)
canform to generally accepted accounting principles and have also
been prepared 10 comply with accounting policies and principles
prescribed by the applicable regulatory authorities.

To assure the reliability of Cinergy’s financial statements,
management maintains a system of internal controls, This system
is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safe-
guarded, that transactions are executed with matagement’s
authorizaiion, and that transactions are properly recorded so
financial statements can be prepared in accordance with the
policies and principles previously described.

Cinergy has established policies intended to ensure that
employees adhere to the highest standards of business ethics,
Management also takes steps to assure the integrity and objectivity
of Cinergy’s accounts by careful selection of managers, division
of responsibilities, delegation of authority, and communication
programs to assure that policies and standards are understood.

An interaal auditing program is used to evaluate the
adequacy of and conipliance with internal controls. Although
nao cost effective internal contral system will preclude all ervors
and irregularities, management believes that Cinergy’s system
of internal controls provides veasonable assurance that material
errors or irregularities are prevented, or would be delected
within a timely pericd.

Cinergy’s Conselidated Financial Statements liave been
audited by Deloitte & leuche LLE which lis expressed its opivion
with respect to the fairness of the stalements. The auditors’
examination included a review of the system of internal controls
and tests of transactions to the extent they considered necessary
10 render their opinion.

The Board of Directors, throngh its audit commitiee ol
outside directors, meets periodically with management, internal
auditors, and independent auditors 1o asstee that they are canrying
out their respective responsibilitics. The audit commiitee has
full access to the internal and independent auditors, and meets
with them, with and without management present, 1o discuss
auditing and financial reporting nratters.

(rnces & Ly

James E, Rogers
President and
Chicf Executive Officer

1. Faster Duncan
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Oflicer

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Cinergy Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets and staternents of capitalization of Cinergy Corp. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the refated
consolidated statements of income, changes in common stock
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management, Qur responsibility
is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance ywith auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
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[n1 our opinien, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the linancial position of
Cinergy Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
and the resulls of their operations and their cash flows lor cach
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As discussed in Note 14 to the fimucial statemients, Cinergy
Carp. changed its methocl of acceunting for goodwill to canform
to Statement of Financial Acconnting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” effective Janmary 1, 2002,

DeloitHo +hgueon. t o

DELQITTE & TOUCHL LLP
Cincinnali, Chio
February 12, 2003



NOTES to FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In this report Cinergy {which includes Cinergy Corp. and all of our
regulated and non-regulated subsidiarics) is, at tines, referred o in
the first person as “we”, “vwr’, or “us’.

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) NATURE OF GPERATIONS

Cinergy Corp., a Delawarc corporation created in October 1294,
owns all outstanding common stock of The Cincinnati Gas &
Electric Company (CG&E) and PS) Enersy, lnc. (P81, both of
which are public utility subsidiarics. As a result of this ownership,
we are considered a utility holding company. Because we are a hold-
ing, company with material wtility subsidiarics operating in multiple
states, we are registered with and are subject to regulation by the
Sceurities and Exchange Commission {SEC) under the Public
Urility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended (FUHCA}.

Our other principal subsidiaries ave:

a Cinergy Services, Inc. (Services);

s Cinergy lnvestments, Ine, (lnvestments):

s Cinergy Global Resources, Inc. {Global Resources); and

a Cinergy Whaolesale Energy, Inc. (Wholesale Energyl.

CG&E, an Ohio corporation, is a combination clectric and
gas public utility company that provides service in the southwestern
rortion of Ohie and, through its subsidiaries, in nearby arcas
of Kentucky and Indiana, CG&L's principal subsidiary, The
Union I,ight, Fleat and Pawer Company (ULH&P), is a Kentucky
corporation thal provides electric and gas service in northern
Kentucky, CG&LEs other subsidiacies are insignificant ta its
results of operations.

In 2001, CGEL began a transition to electric deregulation
and customer chuice, Currently, the compelitive retail electric
market in Ohio is in the development stage, CG&L is recovering
its Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO) approved costs
and retail electric rates are frozen during this market development
period. See Note 18 for a discussion of key elements of Ohia
deregulation.

PSI an [ndiana corporalion, is a vertically integrated and
regulated electric ukility that provides service in morth central,
central, and scuthern Indiana.

The following table preseats further information related o
the operations of our domestic utility companics (our aperating
COmpames):

Principal Line{s) of Business
CG&E and subsidiaries
3 Generation, transmission, distribution, and sale of electricity
3 Sale and/or transportation of natural gas
Ps|
a Generation, lransmission, distribulion, and sale of electricity
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Services is a service company that provides our subsiciarics
with a vacicty of centralized administrative, management, and
support services, Investments holds mast of our damestic non-
regulated, energy-related businesses and investments, inclading
gas marketing and trading operations. Global Resources holds
most of our fnternational businessus and fnvestntents,

Wholesale Energy, through a wholiy-cwned subsidiary,
Cinergy Power Generation Services, LLC (Generation Services),
provides clectric production-related construction, operation,
and maintenance services to certain affiliates and non-affiliated
third parties.

We conduct operatiens through our subsidiaries and
manage through the felkowing three business units:

s Encrgy Merchant Business Unit (Encrgy Merchant);

¥ Regulated Businesses Business Unit (Regulated Businesses); and

n Power lechnology and Infrastructure Services Business Unit
(Power Technology).

For urther discussion of business units see Note 16,

{b) PRESENTATION
Management makes estimates and assumptions when preparing
financial statements under generally accepted accounting principles
1GAAP). Actual results could difler, as these estimates and
assumptions involve judgment. These estimates and assumptions
aifect vartous matlers, including:
u the reported amounts of wsscts and liabilities in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets at the dates ol the consolidated tinancial statciments:
a the disclasure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates
of the consolidated financial statements; and
= the reported amounts ol revenues and expenses in our
Comsolidated Statements of Income during the repoerting periods.

Additionally, we have reclassilied cerlain prior-year amounts
in our consalidated financial statements for comparative purposes,
We use three different methods Lo report invesiments in
subsidiaries or other companics: the consolidation method, the

equity mcthod, and the cost method.

(i) Cousolidation Meiliod

W use the consolidation method when we own a majority
of the voting stock of or have the ability to contral a subsidiary.
We eliminate all significant intercomipany transaciions when we
consolidate these accounts. Qur consolidated (inancial stateinents
include the accounts of Cinergy and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(if) Equity Method

\We use the equity method to report investments, joint
ventures, partnerships, subsidiaries, and affiliated companies
in which we do not have control, but have the ability to exercise
influence over operating and linancial policies (generally, 20 to
30 percent awnershipl. Under the equity method we report:

our investment in the entity as favestinents in unconsolidured
suebisidliaries in onr Consolidaied Balange Shecets; and

our percentage share of the carnings from the entity as Equaty in
earaings (losses) of wnconsolidated subisidiarics in our Consolidated
Statements of [ncome.



file:///Vhtilesaie
file:///vhoiiy-owned

POl

(iii} Cost Method

We use the cost method to report investments, joint ventures,
parmerships, subsidiaries, and affiliated companies in which we
de not have control and are unable to exercise significant influence
over operating and financial policies {(generally, up to 20 percent
ownership). Under the cost method we repaort our investments in
the entity as Other investments in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(c) REGULATION

Our operating companies and certain of our non-utility sub-
sidiaries must comply with the rules prescribed by the SEC under
the PUHCA. Our operating companies must also comply with

the rules prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) and the state utility commissions of Ohio, Indiana,

and Kentucky.

Our operating companies use the same accounting policies
and practices for financial reporting purposes as non-regulated
companies under GAAP. However, sometimes actions by the FERC
and the state utility commissions result in accounting treatment
different from that used by non-regulated companies. When this
accurs, we apply the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 71,
Accaunting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation (Statement
71}. In accordance with Statement 71, we record regulatory
assets and liabilities {expenses deferred for future recovery fraom
customers or obligations to be refunded to custorners) an our
Consclidated Balance Sheets.

Comprehensive electric deregulation legislation was passed
in Ohio on July 6, 1999, As required by the Jegislation, CG&E
tiled its proposed transition plan for approval by the PUCO an
Dccember 28, 1999, On August 31, 2000, the PUCC approved a
stipulation agreement relating to CG&E's transition plag, This plan
created a Regulatory Transition Charge (RTC), designed e recover
CG&E’s generation-related reguluory assets and transition casts
over a 10-year period which began Jouvary 1, 2001, Accardingly,
Statemcent 71 was discontinued for the generation purtion of
CG&P’s business and Statermentt of Pinanciad Accoumting Standards
MNo. 101, Regiddated Enterpris
of Application of FASE Staivutesnt No. 71 was applicd. The eltect
of this change on eur consolidated Gnancial statements was
immaterial. Except with respect {o the generation-related assets
and labilitics of CG&E, as of December 31, 2002, our opurating
companies continue to meet the criteria of Statement 71, However,

— Accosrirting Jar the Discontinmintion

1o the extent other states implement deregulation legislation,
the application of Statement 71 will need to be reviewed. Based
on onr eperating cempaiies’ current regulatory orders and the
regulatory enviremment i which they currently operale, the
recovery of regulatory asscts recognized in the accompanying
Consolidated Batance Shcets as of December 31, 2002, s probable.
For a further discussion of Ohio deregulation see Note 18.

Qur regulatory assets and amaunts authorized tor recovery
thraugh regulatory orders at Decemiber 31, 2002, and 2001, are
as tollows:

2002 2001
CG&E CG&E
and and

{in miillions) subsidiaries PSI Cinergy subsidiarics  PSI Cinergy
Amounts due from customers — income taxes<t $ 53 $ 25 $ 78 S 37 3 5 5§ 62
Gasilication services agreement buyout costs 6 - 240 240 - 214 2l
Post-in-service carrying costs and deferred

operating expenses 1817 1 42 43 - ) 39
Coal contract buyout costs 3165 10 10 - 26 26
Deferred demand-side management costs - 3 3 v 9
Deferred merger costs 1 51 52 6 30 62
Unamontized costs of reacquiring debt 9 30 39 1 33 13
Coal gasification services expenses (6 - 4 4 - 8 8
RIC recoverable assets#1) 537 - 537 st - 511
Other 4 13 17 P 3 12
Total regulatory assets $605 $418 $1,023 3593 L1423 51,016
Authorized for recovery® 5598 3360 $ 958 5573 §379 & us2

(1) The various regulntory commissions overseeing the regilated business operations of our operating compantics regulate income tax provisions reflecied i costonner

rates, It nccordance with the provisiois of Statemeit 71, we have recorded ner regrlarory assets for CGE-E and subsidinrics nnd PSE

(2) PST venched an agreement with Dynegy, Tuc. to purchase the remininder of its 25-year cantraci Jor conl gasification scrvives. b wecordanee with i ordder from

the Tndiena Utility Regulatory Conunission (JURC), PSI begnn recovering this asset over atr 18-year peried that commenced upon the terssination of the wog

services ngreement in 2000.

[3) In August 1996, PSI entered iuto a coal supply agreeneny, which expived Decentber 31, 2000. The agreenent provided for o biyowt chrge, which is being

recovered threngi the fieel adjustment clause.

(4} In Augusi 2000, CGSE's deregulation transition plart was approved. Effective [nnary 1, 2001, a REC went into effect and provides for recnvery of alf ihies
existing generation-related vegularery nssets and varfous transition costs ever a 10-year peried. Beause a separate chiorge provides for vecovery, these assets

were aggregated and are included as o single amovnt in tlus presestation. The classificntion of all trnssission and disizibation refited regefatosy assets

has remained the sae.

(5) At Diecesaber 31, 2002, these ennionnts were being recovered through rates charged to customers over a peviod ranging from 1o 50 years for CGEE aned

subsidiaries and I to 31 years for PSI
(6) Regulatory assers earning a return of December 31, 2002,

(7) For PSI, ainount tncludes 310 million that is not yet auuthorized for recovery and currently iz not caruing a vetwrn ai Decembor 31, 2002,



NOTES to FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{d) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

We define cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Shects
and Censolidated Statements of Cash Flows as investments with
maturities of (hree mouths or less when acquired.

(e) OPERATING REVENUES, ENERGY PURCHASIS,
AND FUEL COSTS

Qur operating companies record Operating Revenies and associated
cxpenses for clectric and gas service when they provide the service
o custeimers, Customers ace billed throughout the month as both
gas and electric meters ave vead. We recognize revenues for retail
energy sales that have not yet been billed, but where gas or electricity
has been consumed. This is termed “unbilled revenue” and is a
widely recognired and accepied practice for ulilities. In making
aur estimates of unbilled revenne we use complex systems that
consider varicus factors, including weather, in our calculation of
retail customer consumption at the end of each month. Given the
usc of these systemns and the fact that customers are billed monthly,
we believe it is unlikely that materially different vesults will occuar
in future periods when revenue is billed, Related receivables are
sold under the aceounts receivable sales agreement and thercfore
are not reflected on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 6
for additional information. The amount of unbilled revenues for
Cinergy as of December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $133 mil-
lion, 5172 million, and $231 million, respectively.

The expenses assaciated with these clectric and yas services
include:
o fuel used to generate electricity;
a ¢lectricity purchascd from others;
n natural gas purchased from others; and
o transportation costs associated with the purchase of fuel,

electricity, and natural gas.

These expenses are showwn in aur Consolidated Statements
of Income as Fuel and pirrchased and exchanged power expense
and Gos prrehased expense. Any portion of these costs that are
recoverable or refundable to customers in fulure perieds is
deferred in cither Accotnts recetvable or Accotitts payable on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Indiana law limits the amount of fucl costs that PST can
recaver to an amount that will net result in carning a return in
excess of that allowed by the IURC. Due to deregulation in the
state of Ohiy, the recovery of [uel custs in retail electric rates has
been frozen.

PST utilizes a purchased power tracking mechanism (Tracker)
approved by the TURC for the recovery of costs related to purchases
of power necessary to meet native load requirements to the extent
such costs are not recovered through the existing fuei adjustiment
clause, See Note 11{m] for additional infarmation.
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(f) invENTORY

Natural gas inventory for Cinergy Marketing & Trading, LP
{Marketing & TTrading) (s accounted for at fair value. All ather
inventary is accounted (or at the fower of cost or market, cost
being determined through the weighled-average methed. Elfective
January 1, 2003, Marketing & T}'u[[ing‘s gas invenlory will be
adjusted to the cost method with a cumulative eflect adjustment,
as required by Emerging Issues Task Force (EUTF] Issue 02-3,
Accoiruting for Contracts Involved in nergy Trading and Risk
Metagement Activicies (EITF 02-3) See 1<giti) below tor
additional discussion of the impacis of EITTF 02-3.

(g) PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, Plant, and Equipnrent includes the utility and non-
regulated business properiv and equipment that is i1 use, l)eing
hetd for tuture usc, or under construction. We seport our Properiy,
Plant, and Equipineni au its oviginal cost, which includes:
o naterials;
7 salaries;
w payroll taxes;
s fringe henelits;
s financing costs of funds used during construction (described
below in (i) and G1); and

= other miscellancous amounts.

We capitalize costs for regutated property, plant, and equip-
ment that are associated with the replacement or the addition
of equipment that is considered a property unit. Property units
are intended Lo describe an item or group of items. The cost of
normai repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred. When
regulated property, plant, and equipment is retired, Clnergy
charges the original cost plus the cost of retirement, less salvage,
to accumutlated depreciation. A gain or loss is recorded on the sale
ol regulated property, plamt, and equipment il an enlire operating
unil, as defined by the FERC, is sold. A gain or loss is recorded
on noi-regulated property, plant, and equipment whenever there
is a related sale or retivement,

In August 2000, the generation assets of CG&IL were released
{rom the first mortgage indenture lien. CG&E's transmission
and diswibution assets, and any generating assets added alter
August 2000, vemain subject to the lien of the first mortgage
bond indenture. The utlity property of PST s also subject to
the lien of its [irst mortgage bond uwlentuie,

(h) DEPRECIATION

We determine the provisions for depreciation cxpense using the
straight-line method. The depreciation sates are based on periodic
studies of the estimaled uselul fives and the net cost to remove the
propeyties. Inclusion of cost ol remeoval o depreciation rates will
be discontinucd for all non-regulated properly beginning in 2003
as a result of adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 143, Acconrting for Asset Retiversent Obligations {Statement
1433, See (q7ii) below for additional discussion of this change.
Our operating companics use camposite depreciation rates, which
are approved by lhe respective state cotmmissions. The average
depreciation rates for Preperty, Plant, and Egquipment, cxcluding
softwate, for the vears ended Deeember 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

were theee pereent.
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(i} ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING
CONSTRUCTION (ABUDC)
Our operating companies finance construction projects with
borrowed funds and equity funds. Regulatery authorities allow us
fo record the costs of these funds as part of the cost of construction
projects. AFUDC is calculated using a methodology authorized by
the regulatory authorities, The borrowed funds component of
AFUDC, which is recorded on a pre-tax basis, for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, were $10.1 million, 8.4 mil-
lion, and $8.2 million, respectively.

With the deregulation of CG&E’s genevation assets, the
AFUDC method is no longer used to capitalize the cost of funds
used during generation-related construction at CG&E. Sce (j)
below for a discussion of capitalized interest.

{j} CAPITALIZED INTEREST

Cinergy capitalizes interest costs for non-regulated construction
projecis in accordance svith Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards Ne. 34, Capitafization of Inferest Cost (Statement 34).
The primary differences from AFUDC ave that Statement 34
methedology does not include a component for equity funds
and does not emphasize short-term borrowings over long-term
borrowings, Capitalized interest costs, which are recorded on a
pre-tax basis, for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
were $7.2 million and $7.1 million, respectively. The amounts for
2000 were Immaterial.

{l) FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accornting
for Incenze Trrxes, requires an asset and liability approach for
financial accounting and reporting of income taxes. The tax effects
of differences betiveen the financial reporting and tax basis of
accounting ave reported as Deferred income tax assets or labilities
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and are based on currently
enacted incomne tax rates.

[rvestment tax credits, swhich have been used 1o reduce our
federal incowe taxes payable, have been deferred for financial
reporting purposes. These deferred investment tax crediis are being
amortized over the useful lives of the property to which they are
related. For a further discussion of income taxes see Note 10.

(1) FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

We use derivaiive financial instruinents te manage:
o funding costs;

o exposure to fluctuations in interest rates; and

u exposure to foreign currency exchange rates.

We account for derivatives under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instrunients and Hedging Activities (Stateiment 133), which requires
all derivatives that arc not exempted to be accounted for at fair
value. Changes in the derivative’s fair value must be recognized
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are
met. Gains and losses on derivatives that qualify as hedges can
(a} offset related fair value changes on the hedged item in the
income staternent for fair value hedges; or (b} be recorded in other
comprehensive income for cash flow hedges. lo qualify for hedge
accounting, {inancial instruments must be designated as a hedge
{for example, an offset of forcign exchange or interest rate risks)
at the inception of the contract and must be effective at reducing
the risk associated with the hedged itern. Accordingly, changes in
the fair values or cash flows of instruments designated as hedges
must be highly correlated with changes in the fair values or cash
flows of the related hedged items.
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From: time to time, we may nse foreign currency contracls
(for example, a contract obligating onu party to buy, and the other
to seil, a specified quantity of a foreign currency for a fixed price
at a future date} and currency swaps (for example, a contrael
whercby two parties exchange principal and interest cash flows
denominated in different currencies) to hedge foreign currency
denominated purchase and sale commmitmaents (cash flow hedges)
and certain of our nct investments in ['r.n'uip,n npcr;llinns {net
investment hedges) against currency exchange rate fluctuations.
Reclassification of unrealized gains or losses on foreign enrrency
cash flow hedges from other comprebensive income veaurs when
the underlying hedged item is recorded in income,

We also use interest rate swaps (an agreement by bvo parties
to exchange [ixed-interest vate cash Hows for loating-interest rale
cash flows) and treasary locks (an agreement that fixes the yicld or
price on a specifie easury security for a specific period, which we
sometimes usc in connection with the issuance of fixed-rate debit).
Through December 31, 2000, we utilized the acerual method 10
account for these interest rate swaps and treasury lucks. Accordingly,
gains and lasses were caleulated based on the current period
difference between the fixed-rate and the floating-rate interest
amounts, using agreed upon notional amoeunls, These gaing and
losses were recognized in owr Consolidated Statements ol lncame
as a component of Literest over the lite of the agreenient. litfective
with our adoption of Statement 133 in the first quarter of 2061,
we began accounting for all decivatives (induding interest rate
swaps and treasury locks) using {ir value accounting, and we
assess the effectivencss of any interest rate swaps and/or treasury
locks used in hedging activitics.

At December 31, 2002, the ineffectivencss of instruments
that we have classificd as cash Tow hedges of variable-rate debt
imstruments was nol materiah. Reclassification of wnrealized gains or
losses on cash flow hedges of debt instraments from Acetmidated
other coinprehensive iicotiie (loss) occurs as inlerest is acerued on
the debt instrument. We currently estimate that on an aller-tax
basis, 85 million of unrealized losses will he reclassilicd as a charge
to faterest during the twelve-month period ending December 31,
2003. See {q}( v/ below for further discussion of Statement 133,

(m) ENERGY MARKETING AND TRADING

We market and trade electricity, matuval gas, coal, and olher
energy-related products. YWe designate ransactions as scerual or
trading at the time they are originated, Contracts are cassified as
accrual only when we () have he intent and projected ability to
fulfill substantially all obligations from company-owned assets,
and {b) meet the requirements o consider (he contract a nermal
purchase ot sale under Statcient 133 (il derivative), or meet the
requirements te consider the contract non-trading under ECT'E
Issue 98-10, Accounting for Contracts bvelved in Enerey Troding and
Risk Managermient Activitivs (EITF 98-10) (if not a derivative under
Statement 133), Such classification is gcnur;ally Iimited 1o the sale
of generation to third parctics when i1 is not required o mcet nalive
Joad requirements (end-use customers within ovr public utility
companies’ franchise service 1ervitoryl. All other energy contracts
{excluding efectiic, coal, and gas purchase contracts for use in
serving our native load requirements) are classified as Cading.

Gas trading is comprised of ransactions [or which gas is physically
delivered 1o a customer (physical gas trading), as well as tramsac-
tions that are financial in nature for which delivery rarely vecars
{financial gas trading). Since Cinergy owns no gas production and
has imited wransmission capabilities, all gas transactions {(other
than procurement and sale of gas to retail customers) are consid-
ered trading whether physicad or financial,
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We account for accrval transactions by recognizing revenucs
and costs when the underlving commedity is delivered and trading
transactions using the [air value methad of accounting. Under the
fair value method of accounting, unrealized trading transactions are
shown at fair value in our Consclidated Balance Sheets as Enrergy
risk nigaagenteni assetsand Evergy risk mmnagenient Habilities, [n
October 2002, the EITF reached a consensus in EITE 02-3 to rescind
EITF 98-10. This decision will require that non-derivalive contracts
currently accounted for at fair vaine be accounted for an an accrual
basis in the future. See {q)(i} below tor further discussion.

We reflect unrealized gains and losses, resulting from changes
in fair value, on a net basis 1n Operating Revenires, Por physical
gas trading and for all power trading, we recagnize both revenues
and costs on a gross basis in Operating Revenses and in Trel and
purchased and exchanged power expense and Gas prirchased expense,
respectively, when (ransactions arve settled. For financial gas trading,
realized gains and losses are recorded on a net basis in Operaring
Revenies when transactions are settled. EITT 02-3 will also require
realized and unrealized gains and losses on all cnergy trading
derivatives to be presented net in Operating Revenees, beginning
in 2003. See (q}(i) below for further discussion,

Although we intend to sewle acerual contracts with company-
owned assets, occasionally we setile these contracts with purchases
on the open trading markets, The cost af these purchases could be
in cxcess of the assoclated revenues. We recognize the gains or losses
on these transactions as delivery occurs. Due to the infrequency of
such setlements, both histarical and projected, and the fact that
physical settlement to the customer suill vecurs, we continue 1o
apply the normmal purchases and sales exemption to such physical
contracts that constitute devivatives. Open market purchases may
occur for the following reasons:

s generaling station outages;

a least-cost alternatives

s native load requirements; and
a extremne weather.

We anticipate thal some of the electricity obligations, even
though consiclered trading contracts, will ultimately be settled
using company-owned generation, The cost of this gencration is
usually below the market price at which the trading portfolio has
been valued. Tire potential for earnings velatility [rom period o
period is increased due to the risks associated with marketing and
trading electricity, natural gas, and other energy-refated products.

We value contracts in the trading portitolio using end-oi-the-
period fair values, ulilizing the following Iactors (as applicable):

a closing exchange prices (that is, clasing prices for standardired
electricity and natura! gas products traded on an arganized
exchange, such as the New York Mercantile Exchange);

o broker-dealer and over-the-counter price quotations; and

n meded pricing (which considers time value and historicat
volatility factors of electricity and nalural gas).

78

(ll) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
We account for business combinations using the purchase method.
Goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite lives are no longer
amortized. Prioy to January 1, 2002, we amortized goodwill ona
stratght-line basis over its estimated useful life, not to exceed 40
vears, The discontinuance of this amortization was not material to
our financial position or results of operations. Goadwill s assessed
for impairment annually, or when circumstances indicate that

the fair value of a veporting unit has declined significantly, by
appiying a fair-value-based test. This test is appled at the “reporting
unit” level, which is not breader than the current business segiments
discussed in Note 16. Acquired intangible asscts are separately
recognized it the benefit of the intangible asset is obtained through
contractuat or ather legal rights, or il the inkangible asset can be
sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, regardless of
intent to do so.

{0) IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment swhen cvents or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving value ol such
asscts may not be recoverable, The determination of whether an
impairment has occurred is based on an estimate ol undiscounted
future cash flows attributable to the asse1s, as compared with

the carryiug value of the assets, If an impairment has ocenrred,
the amount of the impairment recognized is determined by
cstimating the fair value of the asscts and recording a provision
tor an impairment loss if the carrying valuc is greater than the
fair value. Until the assets are disposed of, their estimated fair
value is reevaluated when circumstances ov events change.

{n 2002, Cinergy sokl andfor classificd as held for sale,
cerlain non-core invesliments, Pursuant to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144 Accounting for lupainment of
Leng-Lived Assels (Stalement 1441, these investments have been
classified as Discomtinued operativns, net of tex in our consolidated
financial slaterments. See Note 15 for further information.

(p) STOCK-BASED GOMPENSATION

We have historically accounted for our stock-hased compensation
plans using the intrinsic value method under Aceounting Principles
Board (APBY Opinion No. 25, Accotnting for Stock Issued to
Lrptopees TAPB 251 (see Note 2 for further information on o
stock-based compensation plans). In July 2002, we announced that
we would prospectively adept the fair value recognition provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Acconnting
for Stock-Based Contpenrsation {Statement 123}, as amended by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standavds No. 148, scconnting
for Stock-Based Courpensation-Trausition and Disclosure {Statement
148), for all employee awards granted or modified afler Januvary 1,
2003. The following table illustrates the effect on our Net Incowe
and Earnings Per Share (EPS) If the fair value based method had
been applied to all eutstanding and wnvested awards in each peried.
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(i wiittiquis, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31
2002 2001 2000
8361 S442 5399

Net income, as reported
Add: Stock-based employee
compensation expense

included in reported net

income, net of related

tax effects. 24 13 9
Deduct: Stock-based employee

compensation expense

determined under fair

value based method for

all awards, net of related

tax cffects. 23 13 9
Pro-forma net income $ 362 5 442 $ 399
EP5 — as reported $2.16 §2.78 $2.51
EPS — pro-forma 52.17 $2.78 52.51
EPS assuming dilution —

as reported $2.13 5275 $2.50
EPS assuming dilution —

pro-forma $2.14 $2.75 52.50

In cstimating the pro-forma amounts, the fair value method
of accounting was not applied to options granted prior to January
1, 1995, This is in accordance with the provisions of Statement 123,
as amended by Statement 148. As a result, the pro-forma effect on
Net Income and EPS may not be representative of future years. In
addition, the pre-forma amounts reflect ceriain assumptions used
in estimating fair values. These falr value assumptions ave described
in Note 2.

(q) ACCOUNTING CHANGES

(i) Energy Trading

The EI1F has been discussing several issues velated 1o the
accounting and disclosure of energy trading activities under EI'TY
98-10. In October 2002, the EITFE reached consensus in EITF 02-3,
to {a) rescind EITF 98-10, (b) generally preclude the recognition of
gains at the inception of new derivatives, and (c) require all realized
and unrealized gains and losses on energy trading derivatives to be
presented net in the Consolidaicd Statements of Income, whether
or not settled physically.

The consensus to rescind EITF 98-10 will require all energy
trading contracts that do not qualify as derivatives to be accounted
for on an accrual basis, rather than at faiv value, The consensus was
immediately effective for all new contracts executed after Qctober
23, 2002, and will require a cumulative cffect adjustment to income,
et of tax, on January 1, 2003, for all contracts executed on or prior
to October 25, 2002. The cumulative effect adjustment, on a net of
tax basis, will be a loss of approximately $13 million, which includes
primarily the impact of coal contracts accounted for at fair value,
gas inventory accounted for at fair value, and certain gas contracts.
We expect the value of these items to be realized when the contracts
setile. The general restriction on recognition of inception gains is
not expected to have a material impact on our future financial
position or results of operations.
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‘The consensus to require all gains and losses on cnergy
trading derivatives to be presented net in the Consolidated
Statements of lncome is elfeetive heginning fanury 1, 2003, and
will reqrire restatemient foe all periods presented, This will result
in substantial reductions in reported Operating Revennes, Puel
and purchased and exchaniged power expense, andl Gas parchised
expense. Flowever, Operating hiconte nud Net Bicopre will not he
affected by this change. Pro-forma Operating Revenues for the
lwelve months cnded Decomber 31, 2002, under this cequivement

would have been approximately S billion.

(ii) Business Combinations and Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the FASB issucd Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards Na. 141, Business Comliinetions {Statement
141), and No, 142, Goehwitl and Otfer Ttangible Asseis (Statement
142}, Statement 141 requires all business combinations indtiated
after June 30, 2001, ta be accounted for using the purchase method.
With the adoption of Statement 112, goodwill ang sther intangibles
with indefinite lives will no Jonger be subject to smortiration,
Statement 112 requires that goodwill be assessed for impairment
upon adoption and at least annually thevealier by applying a (air-
value-based test, as opposed Lo the undiscounted cash low test
applied under prior accounting standards. This test must be applied
at the “reporting unit” level, whiclt is not permitled 1o be broader
than the current business segments discussed in Note 16, Under
Statement 142, an acquired intangible asset should be separately
recognized if the benelit of the intangible asser is obtained throagh
cantractual or other legal riglits, or i the intangihle assct can be
sold, transterred, licensed, vented, or exchanged, regardless of the
acquirer’s intent to do so.

We began applying Statement L1 in the third quarter of
2001 and Statement 142 (o1 the first quartey of 2002, The discan-
tinuance of amortization of goodwill, which begiy in the first
quarter of 2002, was not material to our fnancial position or
results of operations. We linalized aur transition impairment test
in the fourth quarter of 2002 and have recognized s non-cash
impairment charge of approximately S11 million {net ol 1ax)
for goodwill related to cerlain of our international assets, This
charge reflects a general decline in value of international assets.
Additionally, Cinergy’s combined beat and power plants located
in the Crech Republic faced downward pressure in their selling
prices for electricity due to the continued restructuring of the
market in that country. In calculating this impairment chirge,
the fair value of the reporting unit was determined through
both discounted cash flow analysis and offers being considered
on certain businesses within the reparting unit. This amount
is reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Ticome vs a
Cunndative effect of o change i accounting principle, net of tex.
While Statement 142 did not require the initial transition
impairment fest to be completed until December 31, 2002, it
requires any transition impairent charge ta he reflected as
af January 1, 2002, As such, Note T reconciles Net Incomie and
EPS from the amounts originally presented in the first quarier
of 2002 to the amounts revised for this change, We will continue
to perform goodwill impainment tests annually, as required by
Staternent t42, or when circomstances indicate that 1he fair
value of a reporting unit has declined significanily,



NOTES te FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iii) Asset Retirement Obligations

En July 2001, the FASE issued Statement 143, which requires
tair value recognition of legal ubhigations associated with the
retirement or removal of long-lived assets atl the time the obliga-
tions are incurred. The inittal recognition of this liability will be
accompanied by a cotresponding increase in property, plant, and
equipment. Subscequent to the initiad recognition, the Lability will
be adjusted for any revisions to the expected cash flows of the
retirement obligation (with corresponding adjustments to property,
plant, and cquipment), and for accretion of the Lability due to the
passage of time (rccognized as an operating expense). Additional
depreciation exgense will be recorded prospectively for any praper-
ty, plant, and equipment increases. We adopied Stalement 143 on
January 1, 2003, The impact of adoption on our resulls of apera-
tions will be reflected as a cumulative etfect adjustment to income,
net of tax.

We carrently acerue costs of removal on many long-lived
assets through depreciation expense it we believe removal of the
assets at the end of their nseful life is tikely. The SEC staff has
intcrpreted Statement 143 to disaliow the acernal of cost of removal
when ne obligation exists under Statement 143, even il renvoval of
the asset 15 likely, Any amounts currently recorded in Accivmradared
depreciation must be removed through the cumulative effect adjust-
ment on January 1, 2003, However, if accruing cost of removal is
atlowed for ratemaking purposes and Statement 71 is applicable,
accumulated cost of removal will not be reversed upon adoption of
Staternent 143, Rather, the amount of accrued cost of reinoval will
remain, but will be disclosed in all future periods, Our apetating
companies, except for the generation assets of CG&E, expect (0
continue to accrue costs of removal under Statement 71,

We are finalizing owr evaluation of the impact of adopting
Staternent 143, However, we have not deteymined whether its
impact swill be material pending (a) resolution of certain legal
conclusions and (b} final calculations on the amount of
"ICCUI'I'IUI'(“C(! cost UfTC]I](]\’ﬂ] to 1)(‘ l'('\:(‘]'.‘;i'd Llpﬂ[] ild('JPtiDl]

for COG&E’s yeneration assets.

(iv} Derivatives

During 1998, the FASD issued Statement 133. This standard
was effective for Cinergy beginning in 2001, and requires us to
record derivative instruments, which are not exempt under certain
provisions of Statement 133, as assets or liabilities, mcasared at fair
value (i.c., mark-to-market). Qur financial statements rellect the
adoption of Statement 133 in the first quarter of 2001. Since many
of our detivatives were previously required to use faiv valae
accounting, the effects of implementation were not imaterial.

Cuwr adoption did not reflect the potential impact of applying
fair value accounting to selected clectricity options and capacity
contracts, We had not historically accounted for these instruments
at fair value because they were intended as either hedges of peak
period exposure or sales contracts served with physical generation,
neither of which were considered trading activities. At adoption,
we classified these contracts as normal purchases or sales based on
our inferpretation of Statement 133 and in the absence ol definitive
guidance on such contracts. In fune 2001, Lhe FASB stail issucd
guidance on the application ol the narmal purchases and sales

exemption o clectricity contracts containing characteristics of

8o

options, While wany of the criteria in this guidance ace consistent
with the existing mdance in Statement 133, sonie crideria were
added, We adopted the new guidance in the third quarter of 2001,
and the effects of implementation for these contracts were not
material to our financial position or results of operations. We will
cantinue 1o apply this gaidance to any new electricity contracts
that meet the definition of a derivative.

In December 2001, the FASE stall revised the current guid-
ance to make the evaluation of whether electricity coniracts quahify
as normal purchases and sales more qualitative than quantitative.
T'his new guidance uses several factors ta distinguish between
capacity contracts, schich qualify for the normal purchases and sales
cxempiion, and options, which do not. These factors inchade deal
Lenar, pricing structure. specification of the source of power, and
various other factors. We adopied this guidance in the thivd quarter
of 2002, and its imipact was not malerial o owr (inancial position
of results of operations.

I October 2001, tie FASB stalf released final guidance on
the applicability of the normal purchases and sales exemption 1
centracts that contain a mininmum quantity [a forward compenent)
and #lexibility Lo tale additional quantity at a [ixed price {an option
compenent). While this guidance was issued primarily to address
aptionality in Tuel supply contracts, it applies 1o all derivatives
{subject o certain exceplions for capacily contracts in clectricily
discussed In the previaus paragraphst. This guidance concludes that
such contracts are nol eligible for the normal purchases and sales
exemption due to the existence of optionality in the contract, e
adopted this guidance in the second quarter ol 2002, consistent
wilh the transition pravisions. Cinergy has corlain contracts that
contain fixed-price optionality, primarily coal contracts, which we
revicwed to determine the impact of this new guidance. Due to a
lack of liquidity with respeet 1o coal markets in our region, we
determined that our coal contraces do nat meet the net settlement
criteria of Statement 133 and thus do not qualify as derivatives,
Given these conclusions, the results of applying this new guidance
were not malerial Lo our linancial position or resulls of aperations.

In May 2062, the FASE issued an exposure dratt that would
amend Statement 133 to incorporate certain implementation
conciusions reached by the FASE staff, We do aot believe the
amcndments, as currently drafted, will have a material elfect
o our flirancial position or results of operations.

(v) Asset Impairment

In August 2001, the FASE issued Staterment 114, which
addresses accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal
of long-lived assets. Statement |-k was elfective beginning with
the frst quarter of 2002, 1The impact of implementation en our
financial position or results of operativng was not malerial.

(vi) Exit Activities

In August 2002, the FASE issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 146, Accennting for Coits Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activitics {Statement LIGY Statoment 1416
addresses accounting and reporting lor the recognition of exit
costs, including, but not limited to, one-time emplovee benefit
termivations, contract cancellations, and facility consolidations.

“This statement requires that such costs be recognized only when
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they meet the definition of a liability under GAAP. However,
Statement 146 applics only to exit activities initiated in 2003 and
after. All costs recorded through December 31, 2002, are unaffected
by this pronouncement. The impact of implementation on our
financial position or results of operations is not expected to

be matetial.

{(vii} Accounting for Stock- Based Compensation

We have historically accounted for our steck-based compen-
sation plans under APB 25, In July 2002, Cinergy announced
that it would adopt Statement 123 for all employee awards granted
or modified after January 1, 2003, and would begin measuring the
compensation cost of stock-based awards under the fair value
method. In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement 148, which
amends Statement 123 and APB Opinion Na. 28, Interim Finoicial
Reporting Statement 148 provides alternative methods of transition
to Statement 123 and more expanded disclosures about the method
of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the
effect of the method vsed on reported results in both annual and
interim financial statements. We adopted Statermnent 148 on January
1, 2003, and have adopted the transition provisions that require
expensing options prospectively in the year of adoption, consistent
with the original pronouncement, Existing awards will continue to
follow the intrinsic value mcthod preseribed by APB 23, The impact
of adoption on our financial position and results of operations,
assuming award levels and fair values similar to past years, is not
material. This change will primarily impact the accounting for stock
options and other performance based awards related to the Clnergy
Corp. 1996 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (LTIP) and
Cinergy Corp. Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan, See
Note 2 for additional information.

(viii) Guarantees

In November 2002, the FASH issued lnterpretation No. 45,
Guanrantor’s Acconnting and Disclosure Reguirements for Guarantees,
Incliding Indirect Guarantees of Indelbtedness of Others {Interpretation
45). Interpretation 45 addresses accounting and reporting obliga-
tions under certain gnavantees. Tt requires a gnarantor w recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of
the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial
recognition and measuremernt provisions of Interpretation 45 are
applicable to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002,
Howevet, the incremental disclosure requirements in Interpretation
45 are effective for this anomal report. The impact of implementa-
tion ou our financial position or resulis of operations is not
expected to be material, For a further discussion of guarantees,
see Note 11(b}).

(ix}) Consolidation of Special Purpose Entities

The FASE issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of
Variabfe Tuierest Entities in January 2003. This interpretation
will significantly change the consolidation requirements for
special purpose entities (SPE}. We have begun reviewing the
impact of this interpretation but have not yet conchuded whether
consolidation of certain SPEs will be required. There are two
SPEs for which consolidation may be required. These SPEs have
individual power sale agreements to an unrelated third party for
approximately 45 megawatts (MW), ending in 2009, and 35 MW,
ending in 2016, In addition, the SPEs have individual power pur-
chase agreements with Cinergy Capital & Trading, [ne, (Capital &
Trading) to supply the power. Capital & Trading also provides
various services, including certain credit support facilities.
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Cinergy's quantifiable exposure to loss as a result of involve-
ment with these two SPEs is 528 million, which includes invest-
ments in these entities of $3 million and exposure under the
capped credit facilities of approximalely 525 million. Thure is
also a non-capped facility, but it can only be called upon in the
event the SPE breaches representations, violates covenants, or
other vnlikely events,

If appropriate, consolidation of all assets and Lialalities of
these two SPEs, at their carrying values, will be required in the
third quarler of 2003, Approximately $225 million ol non-recaurse
debt would be included on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
upon initial consolidation. However, the impact on our resulis
of operations would be expected to be immaterial.

Cinergy believes that its accounts veceivable sale facility, as
discussed in Note 6, would remain unconsolidaled since it involyes
transfers of financial assets o a qualifying SPE, which is exempted
from consclidation by Stateiment of Finaneial Accounting Standards
No. 140, Aceorrting for Trausfers aind Servicing of Finaticiel Assets
and Extinguistinents of Liabilities (Statemens 110) and this
interpretation,

(I‘) TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY

We translate the assets and liabilitics of Toreign subsidiaries,
whose functional currency (generally, the local currency ol the
country in which the subsidiary is Jocated) is not the United States
(U.S.]) dollar, using the appropriate exchange rate as of the erd

of the year. We translate iIncome and expense ems using the
average exchange rate prevailing during the month the respective
transaction accurs, We record (ranslation gains and losses in
Accndated ather compreliensive incosie (loss), which is a compo-
nent of commen stock equity. When a forcign subsidiary is sold,
the cumulative translation gain or lass as of the date of sale is
removed lrom Accurmidated other comprehensive income (loss)

and is recognized as a component of the gain or loss on the

sale of the subsidiary in our Consolidated Statemeuts of Income,

(s) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Cinergy and its subsidiarics engage in related party transactions.
These transactions, shich are eliminated upon consolidation,

are generally performed at cost and in accordance with the SEC
regulations under the PUHCA and the applicable state and federal
commission regulations. The significant related parly transaclions
are disclosed below.

Services provides our regulated and non-regulated sub-
sidiaries with a variety of centralized admimistralive, management,
and suppart services in accerdance wilh agreements approved by
the SEC under the PUNCA. These costs were 5472 million, $483
million, and 54792 million for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, and 2000, respectively.

Generation Services, which began aperations on January 1,
2001, supplies clectric production-related construction, operaticn
and maintenance services t cerlain of our subsidiaries pursuant
to agreernents approved by the SEC under the PUEICA, The cost
of thesc services were $179 million and 392 million for the years
ended December 31, 2002 axd 2001, respectively.
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NOTE 2 COMMON S$TOCK

{a) CHANGES IN COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDING

The following table reflects information related to shares ol commen stack issued for stock-based plans,

Shares
Authorized for

[ssuance under Shares Used to Grant or Settle Awards

Plan 2002 2001 2000
1TTP 14,500,000 674,005 73235 93,825
Cinergy Corp. Stock Option Plan (SOP) 3,000,000 870,867 263,070 108,941
Cinergy Corp. Emplovee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan 2,000,000 4,912 237,847 2718
Cinergy Corp, UK Sharcsave Scheme 75,000 4,878 121 -
Cinergy Corp. Retirement Plan [or Divectors 173,000 1,768 29,135 9,433
Cinergy Corp. Directors’ Equity Compensation Plan 73,000 196 1,858 130
Cinergy Corp, Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan 200,600 - 14,211 -
Cinergy Corp. 401(k) Plans 06,469,373 964,615 69,300 -
Cinergy Corp. Dircet Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan- 3,000,000 657,543 619,834 333,932
Cinergy Coip. 101¢k) Excess Plan 100,000 - - -
Director, Gllicer, and Key Employee Stock Purchase Program 2,110,817~ - - 1,627,788
Cinergy Corp, 2001 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Sub-Scheme 7,000,000 - - -

(1) Plan does not contaist i authorizaion finir, The anmber of shaves presenued reflvees amouints registered wivh the SEC as of Decenber 31 2002,

121 Shares Issued prior to April 2000 were for the previous Cineigy Covp. Daovderd Reouvestiment el Stock Prochase Pha, wiieh iz ne funger aetinve,

1.3} Plan anthorvized o pucimunr amennt of 830 mitlion of Cinergy Corp. common stock to be purchased. The sember of shares presemied reflects amonnts registercd

with the SEC as of December 31, 2002 See Note 201 for wdditional infornation.

We retired 422,908 sharves of common stock w1 2002, 72,739
shares in 2001, and 32,988 shares in 2000, mainly representing
shares tendered as pavment for the exercise of previcusly granted
stock oplions.

T April 2001, Cinergy adopted the Direet Stock Purchase and
[Jividend Reinvestiment Plan, & plan designed o provide investors
with a convenient method to purchase shares of Cinergy Coirp.
common stock and to reinvest cash dividends in the purchase of
additional shaves. This plan replaced the Dividend Reinvestmen
and Stock Purchase Plan.

[n November 2001, Cinergy chose to reinsiitule the practice
ol issuing new Cinergy Carp. coommon shares to satisfy obligations
under its various employee stock plans and the Cinergy Corp.
Direct Stock Purchase and Dhvidend Reinvestment Plan, This
replaces our previous practice of purchasing shares in the open
market to fulfill certain plan obligations.

[ January 2002, Cinergy regislered 100,000 shares of
common stock under the Cinergy Corp, 401(k) Excess Plan,

[n Pebruary 2002, Cinergy sold 6.5 million shares of
Cinergy Corp. comman stock with net proceeds of approximatcly
5200 million.

Cinergy Corp. owns all of the common stock of CG&E
and PSI.
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(b} DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS

Cinergy Corp’s ability o pav dividends to holders ol its common
stock is principally dependent on the ability of CGEE and PSI 1o
pay Cinergy Corp, commn stack dividends. Cinergy Corp., CG&E.
and PSI canmot pay dividends on their common stock i their
respective preferred stock dividends or preforred trast dividends
are in argcars. The amount of comman stock dividends that each
conipany can pay is also limited by certain capitalization and
carnings requirements under CG&E's and PSPs credit instruments.
Currently, these requivements do not impact the ability of either
company to pay dividends on its common stock,
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(c) STOGK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

We currently bave the following stock-based compensation plans:
= LTIR;

SOP;

= Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan;

s UK Sharesave Scheme;

» Retirement Plan for Directors;

= Directors’ Equity Compensation Plan;

a Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan;

a 401{k) Excess Plan; and

= 200} Long-Term Incentive Compensation Sub-Scheme.

The LTIR, the SOP, and the Employee Stock Purchase and
Savings Plan are discussed belosw. The activity in 2602, 2001,
and 2000 fot the remaining stock-based compensation plans
was 1ot significant,

We have historically accounted for our stock-based
compensation plans it accordance with APT 25, However, we
will prospectively adopt the fair value recognition provisions
of Statement 123, as amended by Statement 148, effective with all
employee awards granted or modified afier Janvary [, 2003. See
Stock-Based Compensation in Note 1{p) for additional inforation
on costs we recegnized in 2002, 2001, and 2000, related to stock-
based compensation plans, and for our pro-forma disclosure
assuming compensation costs for these plans had been determined
at fair value, consistent with Statement 123, as amended by
Staternent 148.

(i) LTiP

The LTIP was originally adepted in 1996 and was subsequent-
ty amended effective January 2002, Under this plan, certain key
employees may be granted incentive and non-qualified stock
options, stock appreciation rights (SAR), restricted stock, dividend
equivalents, the opportunity to earn performance-based shares
and certain other stock-based awards. Stock options are granted
to participants with an option price equal to or greater than the
fair market value on the grant date, and generally with a vesting
pericd of either three or five years. The vesting period begins on
the grant date and all options expire within 10 years from that date.
The numbet of shares of common stock issuable under the LTTP
is limited to a total of 14.5 miilion shares.

Entitlement to performance-based shaves is based on
Cinergy’s total sharehalder return (TSR) over designated Cycles
as measured against a pre-defined peer group. Target grants of
performance-based shares were made for the following Cycles:

(i thotesards)

Grant  Performance Target
Cycle Date Period Grant of Shares
v 1/2001 2001-2003 301
VI 1/2002 2002-2004 343
VI 1/2003 2003-2003 371

Participants may earn additional performance shares if
Cinergy’s TSR exceeds that of the peer group. For the three-year
performance period ended December 31, 2002 (Cycle IV), approxi-
mately 817,000 shaves were earned, based on our velative TSR.
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(i} SOP

‘The SOP is designed w align executive compensation with
sharehalder interests. Under the SO incentive and non-qualilied
stock options, SARS, and SARs in tandem with stock aptions may
be granted to key employees, officers, und outside directors. Uhe
activity under this plan has predominantly consisted of the issuanee
of stock options. Optioos are granted with an eption price equal
1o the fair narket value of the shares on the grant date, Options
generally vest over five years at a rate of 20 percent per year,
beginning on the gram date, and expire 10 years from the grant
date, The total number of shares of commim stock issuable under
the SOFP may not exceed 5 million shares, No stock aptions may
e granted under the plan afier Qctober 24, 2004,

(iii) Emnployee Stock Purchase and Savings Plon

The Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan allows
essentially all full-time, regnlar employees to purchase shares
of commeon stock pursuant to a stock option feature. Under the
Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan, afler-tax unds are
ation during a 26-month

withheld from a participant’s compens
affering period and arc deposited in nn Interest-bearing accound.
At the end of the offering period, participanis may apply amounts
deposited in the account, plus interest, toward the potchase of
shares of common stock. The purchase price is equal 1095 pereent
of the fair market valuc of a share of cammuon stock on the first
date of the offering period. Any funds not applied tward the
purchase of shares ave returned to the participant. A participant
may clect to terminate participation in the plan at any Llime,
Participation also will terminate il the participant’s employment
ceases, Upon termination of participation, all funds, including
interest, are returned to the participant withoul penalty. 'The sisth
(current) offering period began May 1, 2001, and ends June 3¢,
2003. The purchase price lor all shares uader this offering is $32.78.
The fifth offering period coded April 30, 2001, with 227,968 shares
purchased and the remaining eash distributed 1o the respeclive
participants. The total number of shares of commun stock issuable
under the Employee Stock Purchase amd Savings Pln may not
exceed 2 million shares.
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Activity far 2002, 2001, and 2000 for the LT1R, SOP, and Lmployee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan is sumnnarized as follows:

LTIP and SOP

Employee Stock Purchase
and Savings Plan

Shares Subject

Weighted- Average

Shares Subject

Weighted-Avera ge'

to Option Exercise Price to Opticn Exercise Price

Balance at December 31, 1999 6,187,249 827.17 35305 827.73

Options granted 1,329,800 24,39 - -

Options exercised (123.978) 23.50 (2,708} 27.73

Options forfeiled (402,200) 26,68 (76,261) 2773
Balance at December 31, 2000 6.990,871 26,77 280,326 27.73

Options granied 811,70 3390 199,793 3278

Options cxercised (273,393} 2439 {227.9681) 27.73

Options forfeited (79.400) 27.29 {73,826) 920
Balance at Decoember 31, 2001 7 447,778 2763 278,325 3178

Options granted 1,241,200 3227 - -

Options exercised (1,308,738) 23.96 (4,912) 32.78

Options forfeited {13,540) 3157 (55,243) 32,78
Balance at December 31, 2002 7,361,700 $29.06 218,170 $32.78
Opticns Exercisable? :

At December 31, 2000 3,195,191 526.20

At December 31, 2001 3,763,338 527.32

At December 31, 2002 3,744,420 $28.98

(13 The aptions under the Eniplayer Stock Purchase and Savings Phr ave ondy exercisable nt the end of the offering period.

(27 Options were ier granied pader the SOP doring 2002,
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The weighted-average fair value of options granted under the combined LTIP and the SOP plans was $4.93 in 2002, 3542 in 2001, and
$2.75 in 2000. The weighted-average fair value of options granted under the Employee Stock Purchase and Savings PMlan was $5.485 in 2001
(no options were granted in 2002 or 2000), The fair values of options granted were estimaled as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model and the following assumptions:

Employee Stock Purchase

LTIP and SOP1 and Savings Plan!?
2002 2001 2000 2001
Risk-free interest rate 3.92% 1.78% 6.57% 1.22%
Expected dividend yietd 5.66% 5.42% 7.32% 5.20%
Expected lives 5.42 yrs. 5.37 yrs. 486 yrs, 207 yrs.
Expected volatility 26.45% 25.01% 20.18% 3.67%

(1) Options were not granted wuder the SOP in 2002,
(2) Options were not granzed under the Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plast in 2002 or 2000.

Price ranges, along with certain other informaticn, for options outstanding under 1he combined CUP and SOP plans af December 31,
2002, were as follows:

Qutstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- Average Weighted-
Average Remaining Awverage
Exercise Number Exercise Contractual Nuinbcr Exercise
Price Range of Shares Price Life of Shares _ Price
$22.88 — 323.81 2,100,970 $23.69 6.33 yrs. 1.4433,890 52364
$23.88 — 332,65 2,492,830 $26.82 6.70 yrs. 768,330 525.63
$33.3]1 — 338.59 2,767,900 533.15 6.69 yrs. 1,542,200 535.62
(d) DIRECTOR, QFFICER, AND KEY EMPLOYEE (E) STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS
$TOGK PURCHASE PROGRAM In December 2001, Cincrgy Corp, issucd approxintely $316 mil-
In December 1999, Cinergy Corp. adopted the Director, Gfficer, lian notional ameount of cambined securitics, a compuonent of
and Key Employee Stock Purchase Program (Stock Purchase which was stock purchase contracts, These contracts abligaie the
Program). The purpose of the Stock Purchase Program is ta holder to purchase commen shares of Cinergy Corp. stock in,
facilitate the purchase and ownership of Cinergy Corpls common and/or before, February 2005, The number of shares 1o be issued
stock by its divectors, officers, and key cmployecs, thereby further is contingent npon the market price of Cinergy Carp. stock, bt
aligning their interests with those of its shareholders. subject to predetermined ceiling and floor prices. See Note 3 for
In February 2000, Cinergy Corp, purchased approximately further discussion of these combined sccuritics.

1.6 million shares of common stock on behalf of the participants
at an average price of $24.82 per share.

Participants had the option of financing the purchases
through a five-year credit facility arranged by Cinergy Corp. with
a bank. Each participant 1s obligated to repay the bank any loan
principal, interest, and prepayment fees, and each has assigned
his or her dividend rights on the purchased shares to the bank to
be applied to interest payments as due on the loan.

Services, and in part, Cincrgy Corp., have guaranteed
repayment to the bank of 100 percent of each participant’s loan
obligations and the associated interest, and each participant has
agreed to indemnify the guarantor for any payments made hy it
under the guaranty on the participant’s behalf. A participant's
obligations to the bank are unsecured and no restrictions are
placed on the participant’s ability to scll, pledge, or otherwise
encumber or dispese of his or her purchased shares.
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NOTE 3! PREFERRED TRUST SECURITIES
In December 2001, Cinergy Corp. issucd approximately 3316 mil-
lion notional amount of combined sccurities consisting of
[a} 6.9 pereent preferred trust securities, due February 2007, and
th) stock purchase contracts obligating the holders 1o purchase
between 9.2 and 10.8 million shares of Cinergy Corp. commaon
stock i, and/ar bebore, February 2005, A $50 preferred trust
security and stock purchase contract were sold together as a single
securily unit {Unit), The proceeds of $306 million, which is net
of approximately $10 million of issuance costs, were used to pay
down Cloergy Corp.s shori-term indebtedness. In February 2003,
the preferred trust securities will be remarketed and the dividend
rate reset, no lower than 6.9 percent, to vield $316 million in the
remarketing. The holders will use the proceeds from this remarket-
ing to fund their obligation to purchase shares of Ciergy Corp,
commeon stocl under the stock purchase contracl. The halders
will pay the market price for the stock at that time, subject to a
ceiling ot $34.40 per share and a floor of $29.15 per shave. The
number of shares to be issued will vary according to the stock
price., subject to the total proceeds equaling $316 million. These
preferred trust securities were issucd through a wholly-mwned
trust of Cincrgy Corp. and are recorded on our Consolidaled
Balance Sheets, net of discount and expense, as Comipany obiligated,
mantdatorily redecntable, preferred trist secnritios of subsidiary,
holding solely debt securities of the compiny, The [air value of the
stock purchase contracts was charged (o Puid-in capital with a
Other.

Fach Unit will receive quarterly cash payments of 9.5 percent
per annum of the notional amount, which includes the preferred

corresponding credit to Nen-Cuerrent Liabilities

trust security dividend of 6.9 percent and payment of 2.6 percent,
which represents principal and interest on the stock purchase
contracts, Upon delivery of the shares, these stock purchase
contract payments will cease,
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT

Refer to the Consolidated Statements of Capitalization for a
schedule of long-term debt {excluding long-term debt due
within one year, which is reflecied in Currenr Liahitirics on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets).

{3 January 2002, PS[ repaid ar maturity 523 miflion principal
amount of its Medium-term Notes, Series A, The securities were
not replaced by new issues of long-term delst.

In May 2002, an indirect, wholli-owned subsiciary of Glolal
Resaurces entered into & senior term loan and a junior term loan,
borrowing $13.8 million and $7.1 million, respectively. Each of the
leans have periodic principal reduction payments, with the senior
lean having a final maturity of March 15, 2019, and the junior loan
having a final maturity of March 13, 2012, The annual interest ratc
on the senior loan is fixed at 6.97 percent and the junior loan is
fixed at 6.35 pereent.

On September 1, 2002, CG&FE repaid at maturity $100 millian
principal amount of its First Mortgage Bonds, 7 /% Scries.

On September 10. 2002, CG&E borrowed the proceeds
from the issuance by (he Ohie Air Quality Development Authority
of 584 million principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality
Development Revenue Relunding Bonds 2002 Series A, due
September 1, 2037, The issuance consists of tivo $42 million
tranches, with the interest rate on one tranche being yeset every
33 days by anction and the interest rate on the ather tranche being
reset every seven days by auction, The mitial interesl rates for the
33-day and 7-day tranches were L0 percent and 1.33 pereent,
respectively. Praceeds from the borrowing were used on October 7,
2002 to redeem, al par, two 542 million Series 1983 A&D Air
Quality Development Authority State of Ohio Customized Purchase
Revermie Bonds, due December 1, 2015, The redeemed bonds had
been cassified in Notes payable and ether shori-term obligntions,

On September 12, 2002, I'S] borsewed the proceeds from the
issutance by the Indiana Development Finance Authority of 523 mil-
lion principal amount of its I'nvironmental Refunding Revenue
Bands Series 20024, due Afarch t, 2031, The inital interest rate
for the bonds was 1,40 percent. The interest rate rescts every 35 days
by auction. Proceeds from the burrowing were used on Octaber 1,
2002 to redeem, al par, the 323 million principal amount of Indiana
Development Finanee Authority Environmental Refunding Revenue
Bonds Series 1998, due August 1, 2028. The redeemed bonds had
bean classified in Notes payalde and other short-term obligntions.
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On September 12, 2002, PSI borrowed the proceeds from
the issuance by the Indiana Development Finance Authority of
$24.6 million principal amount of its Environmental Refunding
Revenue Bonds Series 2002B, due March 1, 2019, The initial
interest rate for the bonds was 1.35 percent. The interest rate
resets every seven days by auction. Proceeds from the issuance
were used on October 1, 2002 to vedeem, at par, the $24.6 millien
principal amount of City of Princeton, Indiana Pollution Control
Revenue Refunding Bonds 1996 Series, due March 1,2019. The
redeened bonds had been classified in Nates payable aud other
shori-teim obligations.

The holders of the newly issued Obiio Al Quality
Development Authority and Indizna Development Finance
Authority bonds mentioned above have the benefit of a financial
guaranty insurance policy that insures the payment of principal
of, and interest on, the bonds when due. CG&E and PSI have
each entered into an insurance agreement with the bond insurer
and have pledged first mortgage bonds to secure their respective
reimbursement obligations under such agreements.

On September 23, 2002, CG&E issued 5300 million principal
amount of its 5.70 percent Debentures due Septeraber 15, 2012,
Proceeds from the offering were used to repay short-term indebt-
edness incurred in connection with general corporate purposes
including capital expenditures related to environmental compliance
construction, and the repayment at maturity of $100 million
principal amount of CG&E's First Mortgage Bonds, 7'/:% Series.
[h July 2002, CG&E executed a treasury lock with a notional
amount of $250 million, which was desighated as a cash flow
hedge of 50 pereent of the forecasted interest payments on this
debt offering. With the issuance of the debt, the treasury lock
was settled. See Note 8(a) for additional information on this
treasury lock.

The fallowing table reflects the long-term debt maturitics
excluding any redemptions due o the exercise of call pravisions
or capital lease abligations, Catlable means the fssucr has the right
to buy back a given secarity [rom the holder at a spevified price
before maturity. Putable means the holder s the right 1o sell o
given security back to the issuer at a spevifivd price belove maturity.

Long-term

(1 anillipns) Debt Maturities

2003 S DIERE
2004 815
2005 2
2006 335
2007 371
Therealler 2,351
Total 54,270

provision beginning i juoe 203
(2) Intcludes bong-torn debt with put provisians of S150 million for GG
atied 330 mmillivn for PST.

Maintenance and replacement fund provisions conlained in
PSI’s fiest mortgage bond indenture vequire: {1} cash payments,
(2) bond retivements, or (3) pledges of unfunded property addi-
tions each year based on an amount related to PSPs net revenuoes,

NOTE 5! NOTES PAYABLE AND OTHER
SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Short-term obligations may include:

r short-term notes;

u commercial paper; and

u variable rate pollution control notes.

SHORT-TERM NOTES

Short-term borrowings mature within one year from the date

of issuance. We primarily use unsecared revolving lines of credit
and the sale of commercial paper for short-term borrowings. A
portion of our revolving lines is used o provide ceedit support for
commercial paper. When revolving lines are reserved lor commer-
cial paper or backiing letlers of credit, they are not available for
additional borrawings. The fees we paid to secure short-term
borrowings were immaterial during each of the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000.

Al December 31, 2002, Cinergy Corp. had $494 million remaining unused and available capacity velating to its 51 billion revolving

credit facilities. These revolving credit facilities include the following:

tin millions)

Cutstanding
Established and Unused and
Credit Pacility Expiration Lines Commitked Available
364-day senior tevolving April 2003
Direct borrowing S 3= s
Commercial paper support 473
Total 364-day facility 60 A73 127
Threc-ycar senior revolving May 2004
Direct borrowing 25
Commercial paper support -
Letter of Credit support L
Total three-vear facility 400 33 7
Total credit facilitics 51,000 8506 S49d
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In addition ta l'e\‘ol\'ing credit facilitics, Cinergy Corp.,
CG&E, and PS1 also maintain uncommitled lines of credit. These
facilities are noi guaranteed sources of capital and vepresent an
informal agreement to lend maney, subject (o availability, with
pricing to be determined at the time of advance. Cinergy Corp.,
CG&L, and PST have established uncommitted lines of 563 million,
$15 million, and 560 million, respectively, all of which remained
unused as of December 31, 2002.

COMMERCIAL PAFER

Cinergy Corp’s $800 million commercial paper program is
supported by Cinergy Corp.s §1 billion revolving credit tacilitics,
The cominercial paper program at the Ginergy Corp. level supports,
in parl, the short-1erm borrowing needs of CG&E and PS1and
eliminafes their need for separate commercial paper programs.

As of [ecember 31, 2002, Cinergy Corp. had $173 million in
commercial paper outstanding.

December 31, 2002

VARIABLE RATE POLLUTION CONTROL NOTES
CG&E and PSI have issued certain variable rate pollution control
notes (tax-exempi notes ablained to finance equipment er land
development for poflution control purposes]. Because the holders
of these notes have the right to have their notes redeemed on a
daily. monthly, or annual basis, they are rellected in Notes payabice
aitd other shove-rerm obligations on the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
In Ociober 2002, CGRE and PSI caused the redemnption
of cerlain series’ of variable rate pullution control notes with a
principal amount of S84 million and $47.6 million, respectively,
Holders of the notes had the option of having their notes redeemed
at various tnes ranging from any business day to annuaily. The
nutes were redecined with proceeds [tom the issuance of new
series” of variable rale pollution control notes that do not have
the redemption features mentioned above, and are therefore
classified as Long-teran debr obligations. See Note 4 lor further
discussion of these redemptions.
The following table suinmarizes our Notes pravable and other
stort-term obligations, at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

December 31, 2001

Weighted- Weighted-
Established Average Established Average

(it miftions) Lings Outstanding Rate Lines Cutstanding Rate
Cinergy Corp.

Revolving lines 31,000 $ 25 2.02% 81175 5 399 2554

Uncomimilted lines 63 - - 10 - -

Commercial paper'!® 800 473 1.81 800 125 e
Operating companies

Uncommitted lines 75 - - 75 ah 373

Pollution controi notes 147 1.82 259 210
Nan-regulated subsidiaries

Revolving lines 1 3.28 16 32 294

Short-term debt 22 22 2.93 49 44 1.81
“Total 668 1.86% 51,143 2.71%%

(1) The commecial paper program is supported by Ciuergy Corps revelving liries.
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In our credit facilities, Cinergy Corp, has covenanted to
maintain;
o a consolidated net worth of 52 billion; and
a a ratio of consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total
capitalization not in excess of 65 percent.

A breach of these covenants could resadl n the woymination
of the credit facilities and the acceleration of the related indebted-
ness. In addition to breaches of covenants, certain other events that
could result in the termination of available credit and acceleration
of the related indebtedness include:

a bhankrupicy;
a defaults in the payment of other indebtedness; and
a judgnicnts against the company that arc not paid or insured.

The latter tivo events, however, are subject to deilar-bascd
materiality thresholds.

NOTE 6: SALES OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
During 2001, our operating companies had an agreement to scll, on
a revolving basis, undivided percentage interests in certain of their
accounts receivable and the related collections up to an aggregate
maximum of $350 million. CG&E retained servicing responsibitities
for its Tole as a collection agent of the amoeunts due on the sold
receivables, However, the purchaser asswimed the risk of collection
on the sold receivables without recourse te our operating compa-
nies in the event of a loss. Proceeds from a portion of the sold
receivables were held back as a reserve to reduce the purchaser’s
credit risk. Our operating companies did not vetain any ownership
interest in the sold receivables, but did retain undivided interests
in their remaining balances of accounts receivable. The recorded
amounts of the retained interests were measured at net realizable
value. The accounts receivable on the Conselidated Balance Shects
were net of the amounts sold at December 31, 2001,

In Fcbruary 2002, aur operating companies replaced their
previous agreement to sell certain of their accounts receivable and
related collections. Cinergy Corp. formed Cinergy Receivabiles
Company, LLC (Cinergy Receivables) to purchase, on a revolving
basis, nearly all of the rctail accounts receivable and related collec-
tions of our operating companies. Cinergy Corp. does not consali-
date Cinergy Receivables since it meets the requirements to be
accounted for as a qualifying SPE. The sales of receivables are
accounted for under Statement 140,

The proceeds obtained from the sales of receivables are largely
cash but do inclede a subordinated note from Cinergy Receivables
for a partion of the purchase price {typically approximales 25 per-
cent of the fotal proceeds). The note is subordinate to senior loans
that Cinergy Receivables abtains from commercial paper conduits
controlled by unrelated financial institutions, Cinergy Receivables
provides credit enhancement related to senior loans in the form
of over-callateralization of the purchased receivables. However, the
over-collateralization is calculated monthly and does not extend to
the entire pool of receivables held by Cinergy Receivables at any
point in time. As such, these senicr loans do not have recourse to
all assets of Cinergy Receivables.

8¢

This subordinated nete is a retained interest (right to receive
a specified portion of cash fows [vom the sold assets) under
Statement 140 and is classificd within Noifes receivable on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Mo additien, Cinergy Corpls invesi-
ment in Cinergy Receivables constitutes a purchased beneficial
interest (purchased right to receive specified cash llows, in our case
residual cash flows), which is subordinale to the velained interests
held by ouwr operating compauies, Uhe carrying values ol the
retained interests are determined by allacating the carrying value
of the reccivables between the assets sold and the interests retained
based on relative fair value, The key assumptions in estimating fair
value are credit losses and sclection of discount rates. Because (o)
the receivables generalty tien in less than two monihs, (h) credit
losses are reasonably predictable due Lo our operating companivs’
bread customer base and lack of significant concentration, and (<)
the purchased beneficial interest is subordinate o all retained inter-
ests and thus would absorb losses first, the allocated hasis of the
subordinated notes are ot materially different than their face value,
Interest accrues 1o our operaling companics on the retained inter-
ests using the accretable yield method, which generally approxi-
uates the stated rate on the notes since the allocated hasis sl the
face value are nearly equivalent, We record fncome from Cinergy
Receivables in a similar manner. We record an impairment charge
against the carrying value of hoth the retained interests and pur-
chased beneficial interest whenever we determine that an ather-
than-temiporary impairment has occurred (vbich is unlikely unless
credit losses on the receivables Tar exceed the anticipated level).

The key assumptions used in measuring the vetzined interests
for sales since the inception of the new agreement are as follows (all
amounts are averages of the assumptions used in cach sale during
the period):

Anticipated credit loss Tate 0.6%
Discount rate on expected cash flows 54080
Receivables turnover rate’V! 12.9%

f1) Receivabiles at each month-cnet divided by anaalized sals for the monih,

The hypathetical elfect vz the fair value of he retained
interests assuming both a 10 pereent and 20 pereent unfavorable
variation in credit losses or discount rates is not nuerial due to the
short turnover of reccivables and historically low credit Toss history.

CG&E retains servicing responsibilitics for its role as a collee-
tion agent on the amonnts due on the sold receivables. Lowever,
Cinergy Receivabies assmues the risk of callection on the purchased
receivables without recourse to pur aperating companics in the
event of a loss, While no direel recovrse W our aperating compa-
nies cxists, these entitics risk loss in the event collections are not
sufficient to allow for full recovery of their retained interests,

No servicing asset or linbility is recorded since the servicing fee
paid to CG&E approximates a nacket rale.
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The following table shows the gross and net receivables sold,
retained interests, purchased beneficial interest, sales during the
peried, and cash flows during the peried as of Tecember 31, 2002,

tin millionsi

Receivables sold as of period end 3 83
less: Retained interesls 135
Net receivables sold as of period end S 38
Purchascd beneficial interests 5010
Sales during period
Receivables sold 53,233
Loss recognized on sale 32
Cash flows during period
Cash proceeds [rom sold receivables S3.184
Collection fees received 2
Return received on retained iiterests 16

A decline in the long-term senior unsecured credit ratings of
owr operating campanies belaw investmeni grade woutd result ina
terminatien of the sale program and discontinuance of fuare sales
af reecivables, and could prevent Cinergy Receivables [rom borrow-
ing additional funds from commercial paper conduits.

NOTE 7: LEASES

(a) OPERATING LEASES

We have entered inlo operating lease agreements (or varions facili-
tics and properties such as computer, communication and trans-
portation equipment, and office space. Total rental paynments an
operating leascs fur cach of the past three vears are detailed in the
table below. This table alse shows [ulure minimum lease payiments
required for operating leases with remaining non-cancelable lease
terins in excess of one year as of December 31, 2002:

is nillionsi

Actual Payments

2000 S 56
2001 s 6l
2002 % 64
Estimated Minimum Payments
2003 S -3
20044 33
2005 26
2006 22
2007 18
Alter 2007 32
lotal 5194

Q0

(b) CAPTTAL LEASES
In each ol the years 1999 through 2002, our operating companies
entered into capital lease agrecments to fund the purchase of gas
and electric meters. The lease terms are Lor 120 months commenc-
ing with the date ol purchase and contain various buyoul vptians
ranging [rom -18 to 105 months. It is our objective to own the
meters indcefinitely and the operating companies plan 1o exereise the
buyout aption at month 105, The cifective lease vates given the carly
huyout option at 165 months are 6,71 percent for the 1999 ledses,
6.09 percent for the 2000 leases, 6.00 percent for the 2001 leases,
and 448 percent for the 2002 leases. The meters are depreciated
at the samie rate as il owned by the operating companies. Gur
operating companies each recorded a capital lease obligation,
included in Non-Current Lialifities-Otlier.

The total minimum lease payments and the present viakues
for these capital lease items are shown below:

tin millions!

Total minimuam lease payments 835
Less: amount representing interest 12)

Present value of minimum lease payments

thraAnntal minirnon lease pacntents are innmaierial,

NOTE 8; FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{8) FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
\We have entered into financial derivative conuracts for the purpose
described below.

Interest Rate Risk Mansgeinent

Our current policy of managing exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates 1s Lo maintain approximately 30 percent of the total
amount of outstanding debt in floating interest rate debr instru-
ments. In maintaining this level of exposuce. we use interest rate
swaps, Under the swaps., we agree with other parties 1o exchange,
at specilicd intervals, the difference between fixed-rate and loating-
rate interest amounts calculated on an agreed notional amount.
COXE has an outstanding imterest ratle swap agreentent that
decreascd the percentage of floating-rate debt. Under the provisians
of the swap, which has a notional amount of S100 million, CG&L
pays a fixed-rate and receives a floating-rate through Getober 2007
This swap qualifics as a cash Oow hedge wnder the provisions of
Statement 133, As the terms of the swap agreement miyror the
terms of the debt agrecment thalt it is hedging, we anticipaie that
this swap will continue to be effective as a hedge. Changes in fair
value of this swap ave recorded in Acctvmdated otfwer comprehensive
incoure (fpss), beginning witlt our adoption of Staiement 133 on
January 1, 2001, Cinergy Corp, has three outstanding interest rale
swaps with a combined notional amount of $250 million. Under
the provisions of the swaps, Cinergy Corp, receives fixed-rate inter-
est pavments and payvs floating-rate interest pavments through
September 2004. These swaps qualily as fair value hedges under
the provisions of Statement 133, We anticipate that these swaps
will continue to be effective as hedges.
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Treasury locks are agreements that fix the yield or price on a
specified treasury security for a specified period, which we some-
times wse in connection with the issaance of fixed-vate debt, On
September 23, 2002, CG&E issued $500 million principal amount
senior unsecured debentures due September 15, 2012, with an
interest rate of 5.70 percent. In July 2002, CG&E executed a treasury
lock with a notional amount of $250 million, which was designated
as a cash flow hedge of 50 percent of the forecasted interest pay-
ments on this debt offering. The treasury lock effectively fixed the
benchmark interest rate (i.e., the treasury component of the interest
rate, but not the credit spread) for 50 percent of the offering from
July 2002 through the issuance date in order to reduce the cxposure
associated with treasury rate volatility. With the issuance of the
debt, the treasury lock was settled. Given the use of hedge account-
ing, this settlement is reflected in Accumudated other comprehensive
income {loss} on an after-tax basis in the amount of $13 million,
rather than a charge to net income. This amaunt will be reclassified
to [rierest expense over the 10-year life of the refated debt as
interest is accrued.

See Note 1{1) for additional information on financial deriva-
tives. in the future, we will continually monitor market conditions
to evaluate whether to madify eur level of exposure to fluctuations
T juterest rates.

(b} PAIR VALUE OF OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimated fair values of other financial instruments were as
follows (this information does not claim to be a valuation of the
company as a whole):

Decemnber 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Carrying Fair Carrying Eair

(in mitlions) Amount  Value Amount  Value
First mortgage

bonds and other

long-term debttt  $4,272 34,483 $3,745 83,805

(1) Includes amownts reflected as Long-ternt debt due within one year.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values of cach major class of instruments:

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Deposits,

and Notes Payable and Otfier Shore-rerm Obligations

Due to the short period to maturity, the carrving amounts
reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair
values.

(i) Long-term Debt

The fair values of long-term debt issues were estimated based
on the latest quoted market prices or, if not listed on the New York
Stack Exchange, on the present value of future cash flows, The
discount rates used approximate the incremental borrowing costs
for similar instruments.
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(C) CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the exposure to cconomic lass that would necur as
a result of nonperformance by counteeparties, pursuant o the
terms of their contractual obligations, Specific components of
credit risk include counterparty delault risk, collateral risk,
concentration risk, and set(lement risk.

(i) Trade Receivables and Physical Pewer Portjolio

Our concentration of credit visk with respect o trade
accounts receivable from clectric and gas retail costamers is limited,
The large munber of customuers and diversifted custonmer base ol
residential, commercial, and industrial customers significantly
reduces our credit risk. Contracts within the physical portfolio
of power marketing and trading operations are primarily with
the mradlitional electric cooperatives and nuicipalities and other
investor-owned utilities, At December 31, 2002, we helieve the
likelihood of significant losses associuted with credil risk in our

trade accounts receivable or physical power portlolio is remote.

(i) Energy Trading Credir Risk

Cinergy's extension of credit for energy macketing and tradimg
is governed by a Corporaie Credit Policy. Written gaidelines docu-
ment the management approval levels for credit limits, evaluation
of creditworthiness, and credit risk mitigation provedunres,
Exposures to credit risks are monitored daily by the Carporate
Credit Risk function. As of Pecember 31, 2002, approsimately Yo
percent of the credit exposure related to energy trading and market-
ing activity was with counterpartics rated Investment Gracde or the
counterparties’ obligations were guarantecd by o parent compaay
or other entity rated Investment Grade, Ne single non-investment
grade caunterparly accounts lor mere than vne pereent ol our total
credit exposure. Encrgy commodity prices can be cxtremely volatile
and the market can, at times, lack liguidity. Because of these issoes,
credit risk 18 generaily greater than with ether conunodity trading.

In December 2001, Lnron Corp, (Enren) liled for protection
under Chapter 11 of the U5, Bankrupley Code in the Southern
District of New York, WWe dec
Enron in the months prior te its bankruptey filing. We intend to

d aur rading activilies with

resolve any contract differcnces pursuant Lo the terms ol those
contracts, business practices, and the applicable provisions of (he
Bankruptey Code, as approved by the court, While we cannot pre-
dict the resolution of these matiers, we do not believe that any
exposure relating to those contracts wonld have a materfal impact
an our financial position or results of operations,

We continually review and monitor our eredit esposure to
all counterparties and secondary counterpartics. If appropriate,
we may adjust owr credit reserves to attempl Lo compensale for
increased credit risk within the industey, Counterparty credit limits
may be adjusted on a daily basis in response to changes ina coun-
terparty’s fimancial stalus or public debt ratings.

(iii) Financial Derivatives

Potential exposure te credit risk also exists from our use
of linancial derivatives such as currency swaps, forcign exchange
forward contracts, interest rate swaps, and easury locks. Because
these financial instraments are transacted with highty rated
financial institutions, we do not anticipale sonpertormance by
any ot the connterparties.
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NOTE 9! PENSION AND OTHER
POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

We provide benefits to our retirces in the form of pensions and

other postretivement henefits.

Our qualified defined bencfit pension plans cover
substantially all of our LS. employees meeting cevtaln minhnum
age and service requirements. A final average pay formula
determines plan benefits. These plan benefits are based on:

« vears of participation;
= age at retirement; and
a the applicable average Social Security wage base or benefit amount.

Qur pension plan funding policy for our U.S. emplovees
is fo contribute at least the amount required by the Finployee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, and up to the amount
deductible for income tax purposes, The pension plans” assets
consist of investiments in equity and fixed income securilies.

We provide certain health care and fife insurance benefits
1o our retired U5, employees and their eligible dependents. These
benefits are subject to minimuwn age and service requirements. The
health care benelits include medical coverage, denlal coverage, and
preseription drugs and are subject to certain limitations, such as
deductibles and co-pavments. With the exception of PSI, we do not
pre-fund our obligations {or these postretirement benefits. In 1999,
ST began pre-funding its obligations through a grantor trust as
authorized by the IGRC, This {rust, shich consists of equity and

fixed income seowrities, is not restricted ta the pavment of plan
bencefits and therefore, not considered plan assels under Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, Employers” Acconnting
Jor Postretirestient Benefits Oifier Thain Pensions, At December 31,

2002 and 2001, trust assets were approximately $32 million and
%33 million. respectively, and are refllected in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as Qthigr inivestinents,

I addition. we spenser non-qualiiicd pension plans (plans
that do not meet the criteria for tax renclitsy that cover officers,
certain other key emplovees, and non-employvee directors. We
hegan funding certain of these non-qualified plans through a rabbi
trust in 1999, This trust, which consists of equity and lixed income
securities, is not restricted to the paviment of plan benelits and
therefore, not considercd plan assets under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers’ Acconnling for Pensions,
At December 31, 2002 and 2001, Lrust assets were approximately
S8 million and are reflected iy the Consolidated Balance Sheets as
Other investinents.

n 2000 and 2002, Cinergy offered voluntary carly retirement
programs 1o cerlain individuals. In awccordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 88, Exployers” Accowniling for
Settfensenis and Curtailinends of Defied Bedielit Pension Plons and
Jor Tersmination Bearefis (Statement 88), wee recognized an expense
of 5128 million and $39.1 million in 2000 and 2002, respectively.

Our benefit plans’ couts for the past three years included the
foilowing components:

Qualified Non-Qualified Other
Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Postretiremnent Benefits

{in aniflions) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Service cost §273 S 279 5271 $ 27 52,1 520 $ 35 538 5 3.
Interest cost 79.2 773 73.0 5.1 L& 4.1 19.6 17.9 17.0
Expected return on plans assets (86.3) (81.9) (77.0) - - - (0.3} - -
Amortization of transition

{assct) Ub]igntinn (1.3) {1.3) (1,3] 0.1 0] 0l 5.0 5.0 0.0
Amortization of prior service cost 6.2 1.6 4.5 0.9 1.1 1.1 - - -
Recognived actuarial [gain) loss (5.4) (32 (2.4) 0.8 0.6 0.1 1.1 0.1 -
Voluntary earlv retirement costs

{Statement 85) 38.6 - 11.9 0.5 - DY - - -
Net periodic benefit cost H SS.i 5 23.6 $ 36.1 510.1 $8.7 58.3 $28.9 520.8 §35.0
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets over the two-year
period ended December 31, 2002, and a statement of the funded status as of December 31 of both years.

Qualified Non-Qualified Other
Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Postretitemeut Benefits

(i millions) 002 2001 002 2001 2002 2001
Change in benefit obligation
Benelit obligation at begimming of period $1,083.5 51,064.5 $ 709 5670 $2704 5247,
Service cost 273 79 27 2.1 35 3.8
[nterest cast 792 775 5.1 8 19.6 17.9
Amendments 433 18.0 4.5 (1.8) (12.3) -
Actuarial (gain) loss 156.5 (43.6) 20.6 4.3 80.2 17.9
Benefits paid (74.9) (60.8) (6.0) (5.5) (18.2) {16.3)
Benefit obligation at end of period 1,314.9 1,083.5 97.8 709 343.2 270.4
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 8754 11,0436 - - - -
Actual return on plan assets (48.0)  (108.1) - - - -
Employer contribution 4.0 0.7 6.0 3.5 18.2 16.3
Benefits paid (74.9) (60.8) (6.0) {5.5) (18.2} {16.3)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 758.5 575.4 - —~ o = -
Funded status (558.4)  (208.1) (97.8) (70.9) (343.2) (270.4)
Unrecognized prior service cost 48.4 30.0 13.5 10.2 - -
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss 196.2 (100.1) 37.6 17.7 125.5 15.7
Unrecagnized net transition (asset) obligation {1.9) (3.2) 0.1 0.1 335 50.8
Benefit cost at December 31 $(315.7) $(261.4) $(46.6)  4(42.9) $(184.2) 5(173.9)
Amounts recognized in balance sheets
Accrued benefit liability $(353.00 % (201.4) $(89.0)  s{ed.3) $(184.2) $(173.9)
Intangible asset 32.6 - 13.6 10.3 - -
Accumulated other comprehensive

income (pre-tax) 4.7 - 28.8 10.1 - -
Net recognized at end of period $(315.7) % (261.4) $(d6.6)  5(12.9) $(1842) 5(173.9)

(1) For 2002, ihe amousnts of $43.3 milfion and §4.3 million tuclude $38.6 million and 50.5 million, respectively of voltntary corly retivement exprenses in accondone

with Starenient 88, s previously discussed.

The following table provides the weighted-average actuarial assumptions.

Qualified Non-Quatlified Other
Pension Benefits Pension Bencfits Postretirement Benefits
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 6.75% 7.50% 7.50% 6.75% 7.50% 7.50% 6.75% 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of future compensation increase 4.00 4.00 4.50 4.00 4.00 4.50 NfA NIA N/A
Rate of return on plans’ assets 9.00 9.25 9.00 NIA NIA N/A N/A RALY NIA
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FFor measurement purpases, we ﬁSSllIﬂEd a seven p(_’i'C(.'Il[
annual rate of increase in the per capiln cost of covered health
care henelits for 2002, 1t was assumed that the rate would decrease
gradually to [ive percent in 2008 and remain at that level thereafter.
Assumed heatth care cost trend rates have a significant effect
on the amounts reparted for the health care plans. A one-percent-
age-point change i assumed health care cost trend rates would

We will file a consolidated federal income tax return for the
vear ended December 31, 2002, The current tax liability is allocated
among the members of the Cinergy conselidaled group, pursuant
Lo a tax sharing agreement filed awith the SEC under the PUHCA.

The following table summarizes federal and state income taxes
charged (credited) to income:

have the following effects: (i miflisns) 2002 2001 20060
Current Income Taxes
One-Percentage- One-Percenlage- Federal 5 133 51229 51873
{in millions) Point lncrease Point Decrease Slate (4.1) 9.3 16.9
Lllect on total of service and Total Current lnconie Taxes 9.2 132.2 204.2
interest cosl companents § 3.t 5 12.9) Deferred Income Taxes
Effect on postretirement Federal
benefit obligation 44.3 (38.7) Lyepreciation and
other property; plant,
During 2002, eligible cmployees were offered the opportunity and equipment-related
te make a one-time election, effective January 1, 2003, to cither items! ! l72.2 427 26.1
continue to have their pension benefit determined by the current Pension and other
deflined benefit pension formula or to have theiv benefit determined Lienefit costs (17.4) (11L& {21.3)
using a cash balance formula. Participants in the cash balance plan Deletred excise taxes - 14.5 -
may request a lump-swm cash payment based upon termination of Unrealized energy
their employment which may result in increased cash requirements risk management
lrom pension plan assets. transactions 9.0 HLO 10.9
Since 83 percent of cligible employees chose to continue with Fuel cosls (22.7) 3.7 28.7
the traditional pension formula, we do not believe the cash balance Purchascd power tracker 1.5 &5 -
features will have a material effect on cur financial position or Gasification services
results of operations. agreement buyout costs {2.6) 12.5 (0.1
Cther — nel {14.1) 16.1 11.0
Total Deferred Federal -
NOTE 10 INCOME TAXES Income Taxes 125.9 117.5 333
The following table shows the significant components ol aur State 30.4 15.4 1.7
nel deferred income tax liabilities as of December 31: Total Deferred Income Taxes  156.3 1324 57.0
Investment Tax Credits — Net  (8.2) (9.1) (9.6)
tist millions ) 2002 2001 Total Income Taxes §157.3 5256.0 5251.6
Deferred Income Tax Liability 1} e increase i deferred frvemre txes for deprociution amd other property,
Property, plant, and equipment $1,356.5 61720 plang, and equiprest-related ftems incedes a dange in aceotnting
Unamortized costs of reacquiring debt 13.9 13.4 micthed Jor tax pripuses relited (o capitalized cosis.
Deferred operating expenses and
carrving costs 4.4 10,3 Internal Revenue Code Section 29 provides a tax credil
Purchased power tracker il.6 9.7 {nonconventional fuel source credit) for qualified fuels produced
RTC 213.2 206.0 and sald by a taxpayer to an unrelated person during (he taxable
Net energy risk management assets 8.8 12,2 year, The nonconventional fuel source eredit reduced current
Amounts due from federal income tax expense $41.6 million and $1.1 million for 2002
customers-income kaxes 374 229 anch 2001, respectively.
Gasification services agreement Titernal Revenuc Code Section 45 provides a tax credit for
buyoul costs 89.8 923 electricity produced from certain senewable resources during the
Other 45,2 8.2 taxable vear. The renewable resource credit reduced current faderal
Total Deferred Income Tax Liability 1,780.8 1,587.0 income lax expense 54.1 million, $3.2 million, and 2.3 million lor
Deferred Income Tax Assel 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
Unamorlized investment tax credits 425 43.9
Accrued pension and other
postretirement beneiil costs 196.3 162,
Rural Utilities Service ebligation 28.2 .2
Cther 41.9 48.3
Total Dreferred Income Tax Asscl 308.9 285.0
Net Deferred Income Tax Liability %1,471.9 51,3020
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The following table presents a reconciliation of federal income
taxes (which are calculated by multiplying the staturory federal
income tax rate by book income before federal income tax) to the
federal income tax expense reparted in the Consalidated Statements
of Income:

{in miliions) 2002 2001 2000
Statutory federal income
tax provision $184.8 $235.6 $221.3
Increases (reductions) in
taxes resulting from:
Amortization of
investment
tax credits (8.2) (9.1) (9.6)
Depreciation and other
property, plang, and
cquipment-related
differences 0.2 3.2 17.7
Preferred dividend
requirements af
subsidiaries 1.2 1.2 1.6
Income tax credits (45.7) (4.3) (23)
Foreign tax adjustments 5.0 (1.3) -
Fmployee Stock Option
Plan dividend (3.0 - -
Other — net {3.3) 6.0 4.5
Federal Income Tax Expense  $121.0 5231.3 5233.0

NOTE 11! COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

(a) CONSTRUCTICON AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
Forecasted construction and other committed expenditures,
including capitalized financing costs, for the year 2603 and
for the five-year period 2003-2007 {in nominal dollars) are
$759 million and §3.1 billion, respectively,

This forecast includes an estimate of expenditures in
accordance with our operating companies’ plans regarding
nitrogen oxide (NOy) emission control standards and other
cuvironmental compliance (excluding implementation of the
tentative U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA} Agreement),
as discussed below.

(b) GUARANTEES

in the ordinary course of business, Cinergy cnters into various
agreements providing financial or performance assurances to thivd
parties on behalf of certain unconsolidated subsidiaries and joint
ventures. These agreements are entered into primarily to support
or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed to these
entitics on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of
sufficient credit to accomplish their intended commercial purposes,
The guarantees have vartous termination dates, from short-term
(less than ane year) to open-ended.

05

In many cases, the maxinmm potential amouwnt of an vul-
standing guarantee is an cxpress lermy, set forth in the puaranice
agreement, representing the maximum potential obligation of
Cincrgy under that guarantee (excluding, at times, cevtain legal
fees to which a guaranty beneficiary may be entitled). In those
€aAsCs \\']]C]'C t]'lCi’C iS no |11:1ximu|n Pﬂic\llii]] wncan| ‘.'XPI'L'SS])’
set forth in the guarantee agreement, we caleulate the mmaximum
potential amount by considering the ferms of the guaranteed
transactions, to the extent such amount is estimable.

Cinergy has guaranteed the payment ol $33 million as of
December 31, 2002, for unconsolidated subsidiaries” debl and
for borrawings by individuals under the irector, Officer, and
Key Employee Stock Purchase rogram {see Notwe 2{d} for Turther
information). Cinergy may he obligated 1o pay the debt’s principal
and any related interest in the evenl of an unexcused breach ol a
guaraniced payment abligation by the unconsolidated subsidiary
or an unexcused breach of guaranteed payment obligation by
certain directers, officers, and key employees. 'The majority of
these guarantees expire in thiee years.

Cinergy Corp. has also provided perlormance guarantees on
ehalf of certain nnconsolidated subsidinries and juinl yeriures.
These guarantees sapport perflormance under varieus agreements
and instruments {such as constiruction coniracts, aperations and
maintenance agreements and ¢netgy service agreements). Cinergy
Corp. may be liable in the event of an unexcusad breach ol a guar-
antced performance obligation by an unconsalidated subsidiary.
Cinergy Corp. has estimated its maximum potential amount to
be 5133 million under these guaranices as of December 31, 2002,
Cinergy Corp. may also have recourse 1o third partics for claims
required to be paid under certain of these guarantees, The majarity
of these guarantees expire at the completion of the underlying
performance agreciment, gencrally 15 1o 20 years,

Cinergy has entered into contracts that includle indemnifica-
tian provisions as a routine part of its business activities. Exanples
of these contracts include purchase and sale agreements and operat-
ing agreements. In general, these provisions indemnily the counter-
parly for matiers such as breaches of vepresentations and warrantics
and covenants contained in the contract, In some cases, particulacly
with respect to purchase and sale agreements, the potential lability
tor certain indemmification obligations is capped, in whole or in
part (generally at an aggregate amount nol exceeding the sale
price), and subject 1o a deductible amount before any payments
would become due. In other cases (such as indenmilicalions for
willful miscenduct of employees in a juint venture), the maximuom
potential amount is not estimable given that the magnitude of any
claims under those indemnifications would be a function of the
extent of damages actually incurred, which is not practicuble 1o esti-
mate unless and until the event occurs, Cinergy has estinnsted the
maximuin potential amount, where estimable, 1o be $131 million
under these indemnitication pravisions and considers the likelihowed
of making any material payments under these provisions to be
remote, The termination period for the majority of matters covered
under indemnification provisions in purchase ane sale agreements
generally ranges from two to seven years,

We believe the lkelihood that Cinergy would e reguired Lo
perform or othersise incwr any significant losses associated with
any or all of the guarantces deseribed in the preceding paragraphs

is remote.
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(c) 0ZONE TRANSPORT RULEMAKINGS

In June 1997, the Ozene Transport Assessment Gravp, which
consisted of 37 states, made a wide range of recommendations
to the LPA 1o address the impact of ozone transport on setious
non-attainment areas {geographic areas defined by the EPA as
nan-compliant with orone standards) in the Northeast, Midwest,
and South. Ozone transport refers 1o wind-blown movement of

ozong and vzone-causing materials across city and state boundaries.

{i) NOy State Implementation Plan (SIP) Call

In Qctober 1998, the LPA finalized its vzone transport 1ule,
also known as the NOy, SIP Call, It applied to 22 states in the
eastern half of the 115, including the three states inwhich our
electric utilities operate, and proposed a mode) NQ, emission
allowance trading program. This rule recommended thal siates
reduce NOy emissions primarily from Jadustrial and utility sources
to a certain fevel by May 2003,

Ohio, Indiana, a number of ather states, and various industry
groups (sume of which we are a member), filed legal challenges 1o
the NGy SIP Call with the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals [or Ure
District of Columbia [Couwrt of Appeals). In August 2000, the Court
of Appeals extended the deadline for WOy, recuctions to May 31,
2004. [n June 2001, the Court of Appeals remanded portions of
the Ny SIP Call to the EPA Tor reconsideration of how growth
was factored into the stale NOy budgets. On May 1, 2002, the EPA
published, in the Federal Register, a final rule reaffirming its growth
tactors and state NOy budgets, with additional explunation. The
states of West Virginia and 1llinois, along with various indusiry
groups (some ol which we are a member), have challenged the
growth facturs and state NCk budgets in an action filed in the
Court of Appeals. Itis unclear when the Courl of Appeals will
reach a decisien in this case, or whether this decision will result
in an increase o decrease in the size of the NOy reduction require-
ment, or a deferval of the May 31, 2004 compliance deadline.

The states of Indiana and Kentucky developed final NOy
SIP rules in response Lo the MOy 11 Call, through cap and tade
programs, in June and July of 2001, respectively. On November 8,
2001, the EPA approved Indiana’s SIP rules, which became effective
December 10, 2001 Qn April 11, 2002, the EPA proposed direct
final approval of Kentucky’s rules and they becane effective on
June 16, 2002, The state of Chio completed its NOy, SIP rules in
response 1o the NOy 5IP Cali on July 8, 2002, with an elfective dite
of Tuly 18, 2002. On January 16, 2003, the EPA proposed a direct
final rule 1o approve CGhio’s SIP. The vule will be effective March 17,
2003, assuming no adverse comments are received. Cinergy's
current plans tor compliance with the EPA's NO,, §12 Call would
also salisfy compliance with Indiana’s, Kentucky's, and Ohio's
SIP rules.
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On September 23, 2000, Cinergy announced a plan for
its subsidiaries, CG&E and PSIL w iuvest in pollution contral
cquipment and other metheds 1o reduce 8Oy, enssions, “T'his
plan includes the lellowing:

complete installation of nine sclective catalytic reduction units
at several different generating slations,

install other pollution control technologies, incnding new
computerized combustion controls, at all gencrating stalions;

make combustion improvements: and
utilize the NOy allowance markel to buy or sell NOy allowances

as appropriate.

The current estimate for additienal expenditures for this
investment fs approximately 5273 million and is in addition to
the 5378 millien already incurred 1o comply with this program.

(1) Section 126 Petitions

In Tebruary 1998, several noctheast states filed petijions
seeking the EPA’s assistnince In reducing ozowe in the castern 1.5,
under Section 126 of the Clean Air Act (CAA)L The EPA belicvey
that Section 126 petitions allow a state o claim that sources in
another statc are contributing to its air quality problem and request
thal the EPA require ihe upwind sources to reduce their emissions.

1In December 1999, the EPA gl‘allltcd four Section 126 p(‘ti[i(ms
relating to NOy emissions. This ruling alfected all of our Qhio
and Kentucky facilities, as well as some ol our Indiana Ficilitics,
and requires us to reduce our NOy emissions to a certain level
by May 2003, Tn Say 2001, the Court of Appeals substatitially
upheld a challenge tu the Section 126 requirements, and remanded
partions af the rule to the EPA for reconsideration of how growth
was [aclored inlo the emission limitations. On August 24, 2001,
the Court of Appeals temperarily suspended the Section 126
compliance deadline, pending the EPAs reconsideration of growth
[actors. On May 1, 2002, the EPA issued a linal rule extending
the Section 126 rule compliance deadline o May 31, 2004, thus
harmonizing the deadline with that for the N0y, SIP Cal,

The Section 126 rule will not apply, however, in states with
approved SHPs under the NOy §117 Call, which include the states of
Indiana and Kentucky. In addition, the EPA has issued a direct final
rule approving Ohio’s ST As a vesult of these actions, we anticipate
that the Section 126 rule will not alfect any of our facilitics.

(i) Sinte Ozone Plans

On November 15, 1999, the states of Indiana and Kentucky
talony with fetferson County, Kentucky) jointly filed an amend-
ment te their attainment demenstration an how they intend to
bring the Greater Louisville Area lincluding, Flevd and Clark
Counties in Indianar into altainmenl with the gne-howr gzone
standdard. The Greater Louisville Area has since attained the
onc-hour orone standard, and on October 23, 2001, the EPA
re-designated the area as being in attainment with that standard.
Previous SIP amendments called for, ameng other things, statewide
MOy reductions from utilitics in Indiana, Kentucky, and surround-
ing states which are less stringent than the EPA's NOy SIP Call. In
liew of continuing rulemakings for NOy emission reduclions under
this demonstration, the states completed more stringent NO
emission reduction regulatiens in response to the NOy I Cabl,
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Sce () below for a discussion of the tentative EPA Agreemnent,
the implementation of which could affect our strategy for compli-
ance with the final NOy SIP Call.

(d) NEW SOURCE REVIEW (NSR)

The CAA's NSR provisions require that a company oblain a
pre-construction permit if it plans to build a new stationary source
of pollution or make a major modification to an existing [acility,
unless the changes are exempt.

On Novemnber 3, 1999, the United States sued a number of
holding companies and electric utilities, including Cinergy, CG&E,
and PST, in various U.S. District Courts (District Court). The
Cinergy, CG&E, and PSI suit alleged violations of the CAA at
two of our generating stations relating to NSR and New Source
Performance Standards requirements. The suit sought {1) injunctive
relief to require installation of pollution control technology on each
of the generating units at CG&E's W.C. Beckjord Generating Station
(Beckjord Station} and at PSI's Cayuga Generating Station, and
(2) civil penalties in amounts of up to $27,500 per day for cach
violation. Since that tine, two amendments to the complaint have
been filed by the United States, alleging additional viclations of
the CAA, including allegations involving ditferent generating units.
In addition, three northeast states and two environmental groups
have intervened in the case.

On December 21, 2000, Cinergy, CG&E, and PSI reached
an agreement in principle with the parties in the litigation for a
negotiated resolution of the CAA claims in the litigation. See (f}
below for a discussion of the tentative EPA Agrecrnent.

On Qctober 4, 2002, the Indiana District Court issued a
Revised Case Management Plan in Cinergy's case that sets forth
the dates by which various events in the litigation, such as discovery
and the filing of dispositive inotions, must be completed.
Consistent with the plan, on October 9, 2002, the [ndiana District
Court set the case for trial by jury commencing on Qctober 4, 2004.

At this tune, it 15 not possible to predict whether a final agree-
ment implementing the agreement in principle can be reached. The
parties continue to negotiate. If the settlement is not completed, we
intend to defend against the allegations vigorously in court. In such
an event, it is not possible to determine the likelihoad that the
plaintiffs would prevail upon their claims or whether resolution
of thesc matters would have a materiai effect on our financial
position or results of operations.

(e) BECKJORD STATION NOTICE OF VIOLATION {NOV)
On November 30, 1999, the EPA filed an NOV against Cinergy
anx CO&E, alleging that emissions of particulate matter at the
Beckjord Station exceeded the allowable limit. The allegations
contained in this MOV were incorporated within the March 1, 2000
amended complaint, as discussed in {d) above. On June 22, 2000,
the EPA issued an NOV and a finding of viclation (FOV) alleging
additional particulate emission violations at Beckjord Station.
The NOV/FOV indicated the EPA may issue an administrative
compliance order, issue an administrative penalty order, or bring
a civil or eriminal action.

See (f) below for a discussion of the tentative EPA Agreement,
which relates to matters discussed within this note.
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(f) EPA AGREEMENT
©On December 21, 2000, Cinergy, CGSE, and P8I reached an
agrecnient in principle with the United States, three northeast
states, and bwo cnvironmental groups for o negetiated resolution
of CAA claims and other related matters brought against coal-fived
power plants owned and operated by Cinergy's operating sulb-
sidiaries. The complete reselution of these issues is comtingent upon
cstablishing a final agreement with the EPA and other partics. 1 a
final agreemient is reached with these parties, it would resalve past
claims of alleged NSR violations as well as the Beckjord Station
NOVS/FOV discussed previously under ) and {c).
In addition, the intent of the tentative agreement s that
we would be allowed to continue on-going activitics to maintain
reliability and availability without subjecting the plants o futare
litigation regarding federal NSR permilting requirements.
In return for resolution of claims regarliog past maintenance
activitics, as well as future operational certainty, we have tentatively
agreed tos
8 shut down or repower with natural gas, nine small coal-Hred
boilers at three power plauts beginning in 2604

o build four additional sultur dioxide (8O5) scrublbers, the livst
ol which must be operational by December 31, 2007,

o upgrade existing particulate conteol sysicis;

a phase in the operation of NOy reduction technology year-round
starting in 2004,

o reduce our existing Title [V S0 cap by 35 percent in 201 3;

@ pay a civil penalty of $8.5 million te the U5, government; and

s implenent $21.5 millien in envirenmental mitigation projects,
including retiring 30,000 tons of 8O3, allowances by 2005,

The estimated cost for these capilal expenditures is expecied
to be appraximately 5700 million through 2013, These capital
expenditures are in addition to gur previously announced commit-
ment 10 install NOy controls as discussed i (¢) above, hut does
include capital costs that Cinergy would expeet to spend regardless
of the settlement duc to new envitomeental requirements expected
in the second half of this decade.

Cinergy, CG&L, and PSI have acerued costs refated 1o
certain aspects of the tentative agreement. n reaching the wntative
agreement, we did not admit any wrangdeing and remain free 1o
continue our current maintenance practives, as well as implement
future projects for improved reliability.

At this time, it is not possible to predict whether a final
agreement implementing the agreement in principle can be
reached. The parties continue to negotiate. I the settlement
is not completed, we intend 1o defend against the allegations,
discussed in (d) and {e) above, vigoreusly in court. [n such an
event, it is not possible to determine the likelihood that the
plaintiffs would prevail upon their clatms or whether resolulion
of these matters would have a material effect on our financial
position or results of operations.
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(g) MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT (MGP) SITES

Prior to the 19305, gas was produced at MGP siies through a
process that invalved the heating of coal andfor oil. The gas pro-
duced from this process was sold far residential, commereial, and
industrial uses,

Coal tar residues, related hydrocarbans, and varigus metals
assoctated with MGP sites have been found at former MGP siles 1
Indiana, including at least 21 sites which 3] or its predecessors pre-
viously awned. PS] acquired four of the sites from NIPSCO in 1931,
Al the same time, P51 sold NIPSCO the sites located in Goshen and
Warsaw, Indiana. ln 1945, PSTsold 19 of these sites tincluding the
four sites it acquired from NIPSCO) to the predecessor of the
Indiana Gas Company, Inc. {1GCY. 1GC later sold the site located
in Rochester, Indiana to NTPSCO.

IGC and NIPSCO have both made claims against PSI, alleging
that P81 is a Potentially Responsible Party with respect fo the 21
MGP sites under the Comprehensive Enviranmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCTA)Y. The claims further
asserted that PS1was legally responsible for the costs of investigal-
ing and remediating the sites, In Angust 1997, NIPSCO filed suit
against PS1in federal court, claiming recovery (pursuant w
CERCLA) of NIPSCO's past and fulure costs of investigating and
remediating MGP-related contamination at the Goshen, Indiana
MGP site.

In Novernber 1998, N1PSCO, 1GC, and PST eatered inwo a
Site Paricipation und Cosl Sharing Agreement [Agreement), This
Agreement allocated CERCLA liability for past and Tuture costs at
seven MGI sites in Indiana among the three companies, As a result
of the Agreement, NIPSCO's Jawsuit against PS] was dismissed.
Similar agreements were reached between IGC and PSI that allocate
CERCLA lability at 14 MGP sites with swhich NIPSCO was not
mvolved. These agreements concluded all CERCLA and similar
claims between the three companics related wo MG sites. The par-
ties continue to investigate and remediate the sites, as appropriate,
under the agreemnents and applicable laws, The Indiana Department
of Environmental Management (1DEN) oversees investigation and
cleanup of some of the sites,

PSI notified its insurance carriers of the claims related o
NMGP sites raised by 1GC, NIPSCQ, and 1DEM, En April 1998, PST
filed suit in Hendricks County Cireuil Court in the state of Indiana
against its general lability insurance carriers, Sl sought a declara-
tory judgment to cbligate its insuance carriers to {11 defend MG
claims against PSL, or (2) pay PSDs costs of defense and compensate
PSI for its costs of investigaling, preventing, mitigating, and remedi-
ating damage to property and paying claims related to MG sites.
The Tawsuit was moved to the Tlendricks County Superior Court
{Superior Court) in July 1998, The trial courl issued a variety of
rulings with respect 1o the claims and defenses in the litigation.

PS50 has appealed certain adverse rulings to the Indiana Court of
Appeals, AU the present Uime, we cannot predict the cutcome of
this litigation, including the eutcome of the appeals to the Indiana
Court of Appeals.

’S) and CG&E, incduding its wiility subsidiaries, have acerued
costs for the sites related to investigation, remediation, and grogd-
waler monitoring 10 the extent such costs are probable and can
be reasonably estimated. PSI and CG&E, including its utility
subsidiaries, do not helieve they can provide an estimate of the
reasonably possible total remnediation costs for any sile hefore a
remedial investigation/feasibility study is performed. To the extent
remediation is necessary, the timing of the remediation activities
impacts the cost of remediation, Therelore, PST and CG&EE. includ-
ing ils utility subsidiarics, currently cannal determine the total costs
that may be incurred in connection with remediation of all sites,

i the extent that remediation is required. Until investigation and

remediation activitics have been completed on these sites, and the
extent of insurance coverage for these costs, if any, is determined.

we are unable 1o reasonably estimate the tolal costs and impact an
our financial position or resul(s of operations.

(h) ASBESTOS CLAIMS LITIGATION
CG&E and PSI bave been named in Javsuils related to Asbestos a
their electric generating stations. In these kvsuits, plaintifts clajm
Lo have been cxposcd o Asbestos containing products in the caurse
of their work al the CG&1E and PSI generating stations, The plain-
Lifls further claim that as the property owner of the generating
stations, CG&L and PSL should be held liable for thetr inpuries
and illnesses based on an alleged duty to warn and protect them
from any Asbestos exposure, A majerily of the lawsuits to date have
been brought against P81 The impact on our linancial position or
results of operations of these cases te date has not been material,
One specifie case filed against PSI has been tried to verdict.
Following a 10 week trial of the case entided Willion: Lec Roberis, Jr.
e Beverly Roberes v ACKRS, Inc., ot all, PSE Eaergyy [nc, Marion
Superior Court 2, on May 24, 2002, the jury returned a verdicy
against PSL in the amount of approxsimately $300,000 an a
negligence claim and for PS] on punitive damages. 5015 appealing
the judgment in this case, The toral damages were immaierial to;
PSIs financial position and resulis of operations. Flowever, lutare
verdicls inany of the pending lawsuits could be matertal. Al
this timg, we are nol able to predict the uliimate outcome of
these lawsuits or the impact on our lnancial position or resuiis

of operations,

(i) GAS CUSTOMER CHOICE

Ln January 2000, Investments sold Cinergy Resources, Inc.
{Resources), o farmer subsidiary, to Licking Rural Clectrification,
Inc., doing business as The Energy Cooperative {Energy
Cooperative ), In February 2001, Cinergy, CG&L, and Resourees
were named as defendants in three class action lawsuits bl'tmgln
by customers relating to Encrgy Couperative’s removal front the
Ohio Gas Customer Choice program and the failure to deliver
as [0 Cuslomers.
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Subsequently, these class action suits were amended and
consolidated into one suit. CG&E has been dismissed as a defendang
in the consolidated suit. In March 2001, Cinergy, CG&L, and
Investments were named as defendants in a lawsuit filed by both
Energy Cooperative and Resources. This Jawsuit concerns any obli-
gations or liabilities Investments may have to Energy Cooperative
following its sale of Resources. This lawsuit is pending in the
Licking County Common Pleas Court. Trial is anticipated te occur
in late 2003 or early 2004. In October 2001, Cinergy, CG&E, and
Investments initiated litigation against the Energy Cooperative
requesting indemmnification by the Energy Cooperative for the
claims asserted by former customers in the class action litigation.
‘This customer litigation is pending in the Haoulten County
Common Pleas Court. A trial date has not been set. We intend to
vigorously defend these lawsuits. At the present time, we cannot
predict the outcome of these suits.

(j) PSI FUEL ADJUSTMENT CHARGE

PSI defers fuel costs that are recoverable in future periods subject
to IURC approval under a fuel recovery mechanism, In June 2001,
the IURC issued an order in a PSI fuel recovery proceeding,
disallowing approximately $14 million of deferved costs. On

June 26, 2001, PSI formally requested that the [URC reconsider
its disallowance decision. In August 2001, the TURC indicated that
it would reconsider its decision. In August 2002, the [URC issued
its final ruling allowing PSI to fully recover the $14 million.

In June 2001, PSI filed a petition weith the TURC requesting
authority to recover $16 million in under billed deferred fuel
costs ineurred from March 2001 through May 2001. The ITURC
approved recovery of these costs subject to refund pending the
findings of an investigative sub-docket, The sub-docket was
opened to investigate the reasonableness of, and underlying
veasons for, the under billed deferred fuel costs. A hearing was
held in July 2002, and we aaticipate a decision in the first quarter
of 2003.

(k) PSI RETAIL RATE CASE

In December 2002, PSI filed a petition with the JURC seeking
approval of a base retail electric rate increase, PSUs proposed
increase reflects an average increase of approximately 16 to

19 percent over PSI's current retail clectric rates. If approved by
regulators, PSI estimates the rate request will become effective in
early 2004. PSI plans to file initial testimony in this case in March
2003. An [URC decision s expected in the first quarter of 2004,

(1) CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS (C“\’IP)
RATEMAKING TREATMENT FOR NO, EQUIPMENT
Draring the third quarter of 2001, PSI filed an application with the
[URC requesting CWIP ratemaking treatment for costs related to
NOy equipment currently being installed at certain PSI generation
facilities. CWIP ratemaking treatment allows for the recovery of
carrying costs on the equipment during the construction period.
PSI filed its case-in-chief testimony in January 2002. In July 2002,
the TURC appraved the application allowing PSI to commence
CWIP ratemaking treatment for its NOy equipment investments
made through December 31, 2001. Initially this rate adjustment
will result in approximately a one percent increase in customer
rates. Under the IURC’s CWIP rules, PSI may update its CWIP
tracker at six-month intervals. The [URC's July order also
authorized PSI w0 defer, for subsequent recovery, post-in-service
depreciation and to continue the accrual for AFUDC. Pursuant
to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 92, Regulated
Enterprises- Accounting for Phase-in Plans, the equity component
of AFUDC will not be deferred for financial reporting,

99

In October 2002, PST Aled its firsl six-month CWIP fracker
update with the IURC requesting approximately ST1 million of
additional vevenue associated with investments made January 3,
2002, through June 30, 2002, for NOy emission reduction equip-
ment. The TURC authovized the recovery ol these incremental
expenditures in an order issued on January 24, 2003, The
cumulative annual revenuge to he recovered under this racker
is 528 million.

(m) PURCHASED POWER TRACKER

Tn May 1999, PS1 filed a petition with the JURC secking approval
of a Tracker, This request was designed 1o provide for the recovery
of costs related te purchases of power necessary (woomeel native load
requirements 1o the extent such costs are not recovered through
the existing fuel adjustment clause.

A hearing was held before the [URC in February 2001, 1o
determing whether it was appropriate for PSI o continue the
Tracker for future periods. In April 2001, a lvorable order was
received extending the Tracker lor two years, theough the summer
of 2002, PSI is authorizcd to seck recovery of B0 percent ol ils
purchased power cxpenses through the Tracker (net of the displiced
energy partion recovered thraugh the fuel recovery process and
net of the mitigation credit portion), with the remaining 10 percent
deferred for subsequent vecovery in PSIs next general rate case. la
March 2002, PSI filed a petition with the TURC seeking approval to
extend the Tracker process beyond the summer of 2002, A hearing
wits held on January 16, 2003, We cannot predict the sutcome of
this proceeding at this time.

In June 2002, PSI also Gled a petition witly the JURC seeking
approval of the recovery threugh the 'Tracker of its actual summer
2002 purchased power costs. A hearing on this matter is scheduled
for the first quarter of 2003,

(n) CG&E GAS RATE CASE

In the third quarter of 2001, CG&E filed a retail gas rate case with
the PUCO secking Lo increase base rates for nataral gas distribution
service and requesting recovery through a tracking mechanism of
the costs of an accelerated gas main replacement program with an
estimated capital cost ol 5716 million aver the next 10 years, GG
entered into a settlement agrecment with most of the parties and

5

a hearing on this matter was held in April 2002, An order v
issied in May 2002, in which the PUCO approved the seitlenent
agreement and authorized a base rate increase of approximaltely
515 million, ar 3.3 pereent overall, to be effeclive on May 30, 2002,
In addition, the PUCO authorized CGE&L o implement the
ing mechanism to recover the costs of the aceelerated gas main

k-

replacement pragram, subject to certain rale caps that increase n
amount annually through Aay 2007, through the ellective date of
new rates in CG&Es next retail gas rate case, The PUCOY s order
was not appealed. In the fourth guarter of 2002, CG&E Qled an
application to increase its rates under the tracking mechawisom by
approximately 58 million or 2.4 pereent. The PUCO is investigaling
the application and we expect that the increase will becomie ¢lfective
in May 2003,
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{0) ULH&P GAS RATE CASE

In the second quarter of 2001, ULTT&P filed a retail gas rate

case with the KPSC seeking to increase base rates for natural gas
distribution services and requesting recovery through a tracking
mechanism of the costs of an accelerated gas main replacement
program with an estimated capital cost of $112 million over the
next 10 years. A hearing on this matter was held in November 2001
and an order was issucd in January 2002. In the order, the KPPSC
authorized a base rate increase of 52.7 million. or 2.8 percent
overall, (o be effective on January 31, 2002_ Tn addition, the KPSC
authorized ULH&P to implement the tracking mechanismt to recover
the costs of the accelerated gas main replacement program for an
initial period of threc vears, with the possibility of renewal for the
{ull 10 years. Per the terms of the order, the tracking mechanisin
will be set annually. The first filing was made in March 2002 and
was approved by the KPSC in an order issued in August 2002,
UTH&P filed an application for a certilicate of public canvenience
and necessity with the KPSC in November 2002, to do cast iron and
bare steel main replacement work in 2003 at an estimated cost of
$14.1 inillion. The Kentucky Atlerney General (Allorney General]
has appealed the KPSC’s approval of the tracking mechanism to the
Franklin Circuit Court [Court) and has also appealed the KPSC's
August 2002 order approving the new tracking mechanism rates.
The KPSC's August 2002 erder requires ULH&P to maintain
records of the revenues collected under the tracking mechanisim

to enable ULIT&P ta refumd such revenues, in case the Attorney
General's appeal is upheld and the KPSC orders a refund. Amounts
collected to date under this tracking mechanism are not material.
ULH&P filed an application for rehearing with the KPSC in
September 2002, in which ULH&P requested that the KPSC efimi-
pate this regquirement, In Geleber 2002, the KIPSC issued an order
granting ULH&P’s application for rehearing in part. The KPSC's
arder clarified that ULH&P must maintain its records ol the rev-
enues collected under the tracking mechanism in case a refund is
ordered at a later date; however, the KPSC’s order stated that it will
not address the issue of whether 1o order a refund unless the Court

rules that the KPSC lacked the requisite authority to approve the
tracking mechanism. As a result, ULH&P will not record these
reveniies as subject 1o refund unless the Counrt so rules. At the
present time, we cannol predict the outcome of this litigation,

(p) CONTRACT DISPUTES

Cingrgy, through a subsidiary ol luvestments, is currently involved
in negotiations to resolve a customer billing dispute. The primary
issue of contention between the parties relates 1o the delerminants
used in calculating the monthly charge billed for eleciricity. \We have
reserved for a portion of the amount billed based on our currem
cstimate of net realizable value.

Cinergy, through a subsidiary of Capital & Trading, is
invelved in a billing dispute with respect to billings for the supply
of wholesale natural gas to a customer. This dispule, il no satisfac-
torily resalved by the partics, is subject to arbitration. We have
reserved for a portion of the amount billed based on the current
estimate of net realizable vatue,

Although we cannot predict the outcome of these matters,
we believe the ulfimate impact on our (nancial position and resulls
of operations, beyond amounts reserved, will not be material.

NOTE 12! JOINTLY-OWNED PLANT
CGE&E, C5P, and DP&L jointly own eleciric generating units and
related transmission facilities. P81 is a joint-owner of Gibson
Station Unit No. 5 with Wabash Valley Power Association, Inc.
(WVPA), and Indiana Municipal Power Agency [INIPA).
Additionally. PSI s a joint-owner with WVPA and [MPA of certain
transmission property and local facilities, These facilities constitule
part uf the mtegrated transmission and distribution systems, which
are operated and maintained by PSIL The Consolidated Statements
of Incame reflect CG&E’s and 'SI's portions of alt operating cosls
associated with the jointly-owned facilities,

As of Decemlyer 31, 2002, CG&E's and PSTs investnents in
jointly-owned plant or facilities were as folows:

Froperty, Construction
Ownership Plant, and Accumualated Work in
tdetars in pillions) Share Equipmcent Depreciation 'rogress
CG&E
Produclion:
Miami Fort Station {Units 7 and 8) 6:+00%h 5 288 5133 534
Beclgord Station {Unit 6) 37.50 46 30 -
Sluart Station!: 39.00 293 i57 i
Conesville Slation (Unil 4) 40,00 i 43
Zimmer Station 46,30 1,239 402 23
East Bend Station 69.00 398 200 -
Killen Station 33.00 187 110 17
Transmission Various &3 18 -
PSI
Praduction:
Gibson Station {(Unit 3) 50.05 215 119 14
Transmission and lecal facilities 94.37 2 | -

{1) Station is not operated by CGEEL

1co
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NOTE 13: QUARTERLY FINANCIAL

DATA {UNAUDITED)
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Pl
/
First Second Third Fourth
{71t miltions, excepl per share amounts) Quarter Cuarter Quarter Quarter Total
2002
Results of Operations:
Operating Revenues $2,192 $2,471 $3,880 §3,417 $11,960
Operating Income 213 137 239 215 504
[ncome before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principte 95 45 131 125 397
Discontinued operations, net of tax 2 - - - (25} (25)
Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax® (11) - - - (1)
Net [ncome 5 85 § 45 3 131 $ 100 $ 361
Per Share Data:
EPS
Income before discontinued operations and cumulative
cffcct of a change in accounting principle 0.58 0.27 0.78 0.74 2.37
Discontinued operations, net of tax( — - - {0.15) (0.13)
Cuamulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax!¥ (0.08) - - - (0.06)
Met Income $ 0.52 $ 0.27 5 0.78 % 0,59 s 216
EPS — assuming dilution
Income before discontinued operations and cumulaiive
cffect of a change in accounting principle 0.58 0.26 0.77 073 234
Dhscontinued operations, net of tax ' - - - (0.15) (G.15)
Cumulative effect of a change in
B accounting principle, net of tax (0.06) - - - (0.05)
N Net Incone § 0.52 $ 0.26 $ 0.77 $ 0.58 s 213
2001
Results of Operations:
Operating Revenues( 53,715 53,654 53,3 52,788 512,997
Operating Income 249 178 278 23y 9444
Income before discontinued operations 121 82 130 120 439
Discontinued operations, net of tax@ (1) 1 (2) (15} s
Net Income 5 120 5 83 5128 S 111 5 A2
Per Share Data:
EPS
Income before discontinued operations 0.76 0.50 0.82 Q.81 2.88
Discontinued operations, net of tax - 0.01 {0.01) {0.10) 1wy
Net Income 50.76 5 0.51 $ 081 5 0.A % 278
EPS — assuming dilution
Income before discontinued operations 0.75 0.50 081 079 2.85
Discontinued operations, nei of tax@ - 0.01 {0.01) {0.10) .10
Net Income $ 0.75 § 0.51 5 0.80 5 D69 b 275
(1) EITF 02-3 will vequire thar ali gains and losses on energy trading derivatives be prescied on o net basis beginning January 1, 2003, Fhis willvesult in sebstantiol
redicctions in reported Operating Revennes, Frel and purchased and exclianged power expense, and Gas purchased cxpesise, However, Operating o il
Net hwone will net be affected by this change. For further information on EITE 02-3 see Note 1(q)(i).
(2) See Note 15 for further explanation,
(3) Upon implesentation of Statement 142, Cinergy recognized a non-cash hipairment charge of S11 million, net of tax, for soedhwitl refated s cortain internationad
assets. See Note 14 for further information.
N
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NOTE 14 EFFECTS OF A CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
Cinergy (inalized its transition goodwill impairment test, as
required by Statement 142, in the fourth quarter of 2002 and
recognized a non-cash impairment charge of S11 million {net
of tax} tor goodwill related to certain of our international assets.
This amount is veflected in the Consolidated Statements of [Income
as a Cumndative cffect of a change i accounting principle, net of
tax, While Statemient 142 did not require the initial lransition
impairment fest to be completed until December 31, 2002, it
does require any transition wmpairment charge to be reflected
as of January 1, 2002. 'I'he condensed financial results below
revise previously reported results of Cinergy Corp. as filed in
the Form H)-Q for the quarter ended MMarch 31, 2002, to reflect
the impairment charge as of January 1, 2002,

Year to Date
March 31, 2002

(in mitlions, except for EPS) (itandited) MNet [ncome EpPst
Reported results 596 5058
Cumulative effecl of a change

in accounting principle, net of tax {111 (0.06)
Revised results 585 §0.52

1 1) Represents EFS and EPS — asaoning dilution.

NOTE 15; MONETIZATION OF NON-CORE
INVESTMENTS
During 2002, Cinergy beyan taking steps Lo menclize certain
nan-core investments, including renewable and international
investments within the Energy Merchant business unit. During
the second hall ol the vear, Cinergy cither sold or imitiated plans te
dispose of generation and eleclric and gas distribution operations
in the Czech Republic, Estonia, and South Alvica. Cinergy also sold
investments, which were accounted for under the equity method,
in renewable fnvestments lecated in Spain and California. In 1otal,
Cinergy disposed of appreximately $125 million of investments
at a net loss of 37 million in 2002, Included in this net oss were
curnulative lorcign currency transktion losses of approximately
54 million.
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GAMNP requires different accounting freatiment for investment
disposals invelving entities which are consolidated and entities
which arc accounted for under the equity method. The consolidated
entitics have been presented as Discontinued aperations. net of tax
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, and prior
year consolidated financial statements have heen reclassilied 10
acconnt for these entities as such, The dispoasal of the entities
accounted for using the equity method are not allowed 1o be
presented as discontinued operations, A gain of approximately
$17 miltion on the sale of these entitics is included in Miscellnnecrs-
Ner i the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The table below reflects the assets and liabilitics of the
investments accounted for as discontinued operations as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of operalions
and the loss on disposal for the years then ended,

{in millions) 2002 2001
Revenues'" $30 538
Loss on Discontinued QOperations
L.oss on uperations §1 317
Loss on disposal'> 24 -
Total Loss on
Discontinued Operations $25 S17
Assets
Current assets § - S8
Property, plant, and equipment — nel - 45
Other asscts 1 g
Total Asscts $1 562
Liabilities
Current liabilities § 2 Sle
Total Liabilities §2 s16

(1) Presentedd [or inforinational purposes anly All results of operations are
reporicd net n onr Censolidated Starerenis of ficome.

12} Appraximaicty SUZ neiltion ol this emount vepresents @ write-dewn to fair
vatlue, less cost tu sell, on ossets classificd as hield for sale. The reminder
represents actual losses an completed sales, ndwded i the loss on
dispasal are crotudaiive foreign currcucy transtation losses of

approximately SO willion.

The losses included in discontinued operations primarily
pertain to two investments. ln one case, the primary customer of
a comnbined heat and poswer plant liled tor bankruptcy resulting in
a significant reduction in future expected revenues from the invest-
ment. In the second case, the retail market of a gas distribution
business did not develop as expected, and we have elected 1o exit
the business rather than jivest the additional capital which woulkl
Dbe required to reach a sustainable level ol market penctration.
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NOTE 16! FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
We conduct operations through our subsidiaries and manage
through the following three business units:
a Energy Merchant;
a Regulated Businesses; and
a Pawer Technology.

‘I'he following section describes the activities of our business
units as of December 31, 2002.

Energy Merchant manages wholesale generation and energy
marketing and trading of energy commeditics. Encergy Merchant
operates and maintains our regulated and non-regulated electric
generating planis, including some of our jointly-owned plants.
Energy Merchant is also responsible for our international opera-
tions and performs the fellowing activities:

o energy risk management;
o proprietary arbitrage activities; and
u customized energy solutions.

Business Units

Regulated Businesses consists of PSIs regulated, integrated
utility operaticns, and Cinergy's other regulated clectric and gas
transmission and distribution systems. Regulated Businesses pl.lns.
comstructs, operates, and maintains Cinergy’s transinission and dis-
tribution systems and delivers gas and electric energy Lo consumuers,
Regulated Businesses also carns revenures from wholesale customers
primarily by transinitting clectric power through Cinergys trans-
migsion system.

Power Technology primarily manages the developmen,
marketing, and sales of our non-regulated retail energy and
energy-related husinesses. This is accomplished through varieus
subsidiaries and joint ventures, Power Technology also manages
Cinergy Ventures, LLC (Venlures), a venture capital subsidiary.
Veniures invests in emerging energy technologics that can benefit
future business developmenl aclivities.

Following arc the [inancial results by business unit, Certain
amounts for prior years have heen restated ta reflect segmenm
restructuring, which includes the consolidation of all of our
international operations into Eonergy Merchanl. This restructuring
became effective January 1, 2002,

Financial vesults by business unit for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2001, are as indicated below:

2002
Cinergy Business Units
Energy Regulated Power Reconciling

{in millions) Merchant  Businesses  Technology Total  All Other™  Eliminations® Consolidated
Operating revenues —

External customers $9,283» $2,640 337 $11,960 5~ $ - $11,960

[ntersegment revennes ! 160 - - 160 - (160) -
Cost of sales —

Fuel and purchased and

exchanged power 4,054 458 - 4,512 - - 4,512

Gas purchased 4,436 233 - 4,669 - - 4,669
Depreciation ! 158 249 7 414 - - 414
Equity in earnings (losses) of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 20 5 (10) 15 — - 15
Interest e 103 133 14 250 - - 250
Income taxes 21 151 (15) 157 - - 157
Discontinued operations, net of tax (¢! (25) - - (25) - - (25)
Cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle, net of tax(® (1) - - {11) - - (11)
Segment profit (loss) 1o 126 270 {35) 361 - - 361
Total segment assets 5,703 7,284 227 13,214 93 - 13,307
Investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries 337 10 70 417 - - 417
Total expenditures for long-lived assets 188 68 1 §70 - - §70

(1) The All Other category represents miscellaneons corporate iteins, which e not allocated to busiiess wiits for purproses of scyntent perforiidnce mciswrenenl,

(2) The Reconciling Eliminations cntegory eliminates the interseginent revennes and expenses of Energy Merchant.

(3) hie decrease in 2002, as compared to 2001, is primarily due 1o the decrease in the average price realized on witolesale connmadity transiciions.,

(4) in conection with deregulation in Ohio, beginning in 2001, certain reveres, which were previowsly recorded trouglt interscgment transfor priciag, are iy

direcily recorded to the businiess segmenr.

(5) The compones of Depreciarion include depreciation of fixed assers amd anortization of intangibie asscts,

(6) Inlerest income Is decwed nnmaterial,

(7) The decrease in 2002, as compared ta 2001, in part reflects the effect of tax credits associated with production of syuthetie fucl beginning i July 20002,

(8) For further information, see Note 15.

{9) Upan implementation of Statement 142, Cinergy recognized o son-cash impairment charge of SU million, et of tax, for goodwitl welated o certain

international assers. See Note 14 for further informaiion.

(10} Management wtilizes Sequneant profiv (loss), after raxes, to evalunte segnrent perforinance,
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Business Units (cont.)

fist mniftions

2001

Cincrgy Business Units

Energy Regulated Power Reconciling
Merchant  Businesses  Technology Total  All Others  Eliminationsi2 Consolidated

Operating revenues —

Exlernal customers 510,245 32,703 S 49 512,907 5= L 12,997

[ntersegment revenues' ' 144 - .- 141 - (Eedey -
Cosl of sales -

Euel and purchused and

exchanged power 3,537 169 - 6,006 - - 6,006

Cas purchased 4,035 397 - 4,432 - - 4,432
Depreciation = 135 236 3 374 - - A
Equily in earnings (losses) of

unconsolidated subsidiaries g - (8] 1 - - i
[nterest > 114 143 14 266 - . 266
Iitcomne tases 206 169 9 136 - - 230
Discontinved operations, net of tax'™ {4 - - (17) - - {15
Segment profii (lossy * Y3 266 {197 4e12 — - 447
‘lotal segment assels 4,957 7,081 213 12,251 14 - 12,300
Iavesiments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries 230 - 76 332 — 332
Total expenditures tor long-lived assets 76e 633 - 1,397 - — 1,397

(11 The All Other coregory represeats miscellaneous corporate items, which ere not allocated to Dusiness units Jor purposcs af segioeat pertor nance mensieecntent,

12} The Reconciting Eliminations categery eliviinates the intersegment reveinies and expenses of Energy Merchan.

31 Fhe increage in 2000, as compared to 2000, is primariby due 1o the inciease in valuines and average price realized on witolesafe commoding: transactions.

£ I connection with deregndntion in Qllo, beghmring in 2007, verinin reventres, whicl were previowsty ocordod drougly intersegmient tesfer pricivg, are now

divecty recarsded to the business segurent.

151 The composents of Depreciation inelude depreciation of fixed assers qud amortizotion af iutangible asscts.

16 Iiterest inconte Js deemed innmaterial,
(71 For further informatien, see Note 15,

(&) Mereegenient urifizcs

Sewment profie flossh, after taxes, fo coaluafe segrmient performanve.
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Business Units (cont.)

2000 B
Cinergy Business Units a
Energy Regulated Power Recongiling

{int radtfions) Merchant  Businesses  Technology  Total Al Othertt  Eliminations' Consolidated
Operating revenues —

External customers 54,974 53,347 376 S 8,397 53— 3 .- S 8,397

Intersegment revenues 1,021 — - 1,021 - (1,021) -
Cost of sales —

Fuel and purchased and

exchanged power 2,725 414 - 3,139 - 3,139

Gas purchased 2,402 267 6 2,675 - - 2675
Depreciationt® 119 220 3 342 - - 342
Equity in carnings (losses) of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 7 - 48] [ - - 6
Interesti4 82 133 Bl 224 - - 224
Income taxes 93 166 (7) 252 - - 252
Discontinued operations, net of taxis (ny - - (1) - - (1)
Segment profit {loss)is! 157 255 (13) 399 - - 39y
Total segment assets 5,995 6,116 177 12,288 €2 - 12,330
Investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries 488 - 32 340 - - 540)
‘Total expenditures for long-lived assets 138 397 - 333 3 - 538

(1) The All Other category represents miscellanecus corporate items, which are not allocared 10 busitiess wisits for purpescs of scgnient peiformance smeasurciient.

(2) The Reconciting Elinninations category elimingles the intersegment revenues and expenses of Enevgy Merchani,

(3) The componests of Depreciation frclude depreciation of fixed assers and amortization of inrangible assets.

(4} Interest income is deemed fmminterial,

(5) For further information, see Note 15.

(6) Management utilizes Segment profit (loss), after inxes, to evaluate segment perfarmance,

(i auilliens)

Products and Serviges

Revenues -
Uhility Energy Marketing and Trading
Year Electric Gas Total Electric Gas Total __Other  Consolidated
2002 $2,197 $436 §2,633 $4,715 $4,481 5 0,196 £131 411,960
2001 2,101 595 2,696 0,151 4,068 10,222 7Y 12,997
2000 2,851 497 3,348 2,508 2,445 1,953 96 7_§,3‘)?
(i nillions) Geographic Areas
Revenues

Year Domestic International Consolidated
2002 $11,846 $114 $11,960
2001 12,860 137 12,997
2000 8,337 60 8,397

Long-Lived Assets
Year Domestic International Consolidated
2002 $10,276 $393 $10,662
2001 9,682 478 10,010
2000 8,267 290 8,557

105



NOTES to FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17: EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
A reconciliadon of EPS ta EPS — assuming dilution Is presented below-

vl .

tii thousmuds, excepr per shire amounts) Income Shares EP3S
Year ended December 31, 2002
EPS:
Incaome before discontinued operations and ciunulalive
effect of a change in accounting principle $396,903 $2.37
Discentinued operations, net of tax (25,428} {0.15)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax (10,899} s L (0.06)
Net income $360,576 T IG?,dll?_ YT
Effect of dilutive securities:
Common stock options 899
Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan 3
Directors’ compensation plans 169
Contingently issuable common stock 934
EPS — assuming dilution: I
Met incame plus assumed conversions $360,576 169,052 $2.13
Year ended Decentber 31, 2001
EPS:
Income before discontinued eperations and cumulative
eftect of a change in accounting principle SI58.826 S 288
Discontinued operations, net of tax 116,347 10.10}
Nel income 5112,279 139710 §2.58
Lifect ol dilutive securities:
Common stock options v7s
1Jirectors’ compensation plans 152
Conlingcmly wssuable common stack 810
LEPS — assuming dilution:
Net income plus assumed conversions 142,279 161.047 §2.73
Year ended Decomber 31, 2000
L&
Income belore discontinued eperations and cumularive
effect of a change in accounting princple 100,333 5252
Discontinued operations, net of tax {1,069) (9.00)
Net income T 5399466 15893 &2
Effect of dilutive securities:
Common stock options 491
Direclors” compensation plans 177
Coitingently issuable common stock 262
EPS — assuming dilution: o
Net income plus assumed conversions 5399,466 159.868 52.50
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Optiens to purchase shares of common stock are excluded
from the calculation of EPS — assuming dilution when the exercise
prices of these options are greater than the average market price
of the common shares dering the period. For the years 2002, 2001,
and 2000, approximately 3 million, 2.1 million, and 1.9 million
shares, respectively, were excluded from the EPS — assuming
dilution calculation.

Also excluded from the EPS — assuming dilution calculation
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, are up to 10.8 mil-
lion shares issuable pursuant to the stock purchase contracts associ-
ated with the preferred trust securities issued by Cinergy Corp. in
Decernber 2001, These stock purchase contracts would impact EPS
— assuming dilution only to the exient that the average stock price
were 10 exceed $34.40 per share, which is the maximum price
payable by the holders of the stock purchase contracts, during
any period for which earnings per share are presented. As discussed
in Note 2(e), thc number of shares issued pursuant 1o the stock
purchase contracts is contingent upon the market price of Cinergy
Corp. stock in February 2005 and could range between 9.2 and
10.8 million shares.

NOTE 18: OHIO DEREGULATION

Om July 6, 1999, Ohio Governor Robert Taft signed Amended
Substitute Senate Bill No. 3 (Electric Restructuring Bill), beginning
the transition to electric deregulation and custorner cheice for the
state of Ohio. The Electric Restructuring Bill created a competitive
electric retail service market effective January 1, 2001. The legisla-
tion provided for a market development period that began January
1, 2001, and ends no later than December 31, 2003,

Om May 8, 2000, CG&E reached a stipulated agreement with
the PUCO staff and various other interested parties with respect to
its proposal to implement electric custamer choice in Ohio etfective
January 1, 2001. On Aungust 31, 2000, the PUCO approved CG&E's
stipulation agreement. The major features of the agreement include:
= Residential customer rates are frozen through December 31, 2005;
» Residential customers veceived 3 five-percent veduction in the

generation portion of their electric rates, effective January 1, 2001;
a CG&E will provide $4 million from 2001 1o 2005 in support of
energy efficiency and weatherization services for low income
customets;
CG&E will provide shopping credits to switching customers;
The creation of a RTC designed to recover CG&E's regulatory
assets and other transition costs over a 10-year period;
Authority for CG&E to transfer its generation assets to one or

L

more, non-regulated affiliates o provide flexibility te manage its
generation asset portfolio in a manner that enhances opportuni-
ties in a competitive marketplace;

Authority for CG&E to apply the proceeds of transition cost
recovery to costs incurred during the transition pevied, including
implernentation costs and purchased power costs that may he
incurred by CG&E to maintain an operating reserve margin
sufficient to provide reliable service to its customers;

Authority for CG&E to adjust the amortization of its regulatory
asscts and other transition costs to reflect the effects of any

shopping incentives provided to customers; and

CG&F will provide standard offer default supplier service {(i.c.,
CG&E will be the supplier of last resort, so that no customer will
be without an electric supplier).
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Subsequent to the PUCO's approval of CGELEs slipulalion
agreemend, twa pavtics filed applications fov rehearing with the
PUCO. In October 2000, the PUCO denicd these applications. QOne
of the parties appealed ta the Ohio Supreme Court in the fourth
quarter of 2000 and CG&E subsequently intervened in thal case,
In April 2002, the Ohio Supreme Courl affirmed the PUCs
stipulated agreement with CG&E with respect to implementing
clectric customer choice. The Ohie Supreme Court ruling leaves
CG&F's transition plan entirely intact,

Under CG&Ts transition pla, retail customers contimue to
receive transportation services from CG&L, but muay purchase
electricity from anether supplier. Retail customers that purchase
electricity from another supplicr receive shopping credils from
CG&E. The shopping credits gencrally reflect the costs of clectric
generation included in CG&Es [rozen rates. FHowever, shapping
credits for the first 20 percent of clectrivity usage 13 cach customer
class to switch suppliers arc higher than CG&E's electric generation
costs in order to stimulate the development of the competilive retail
clectric service market,
wition costs

CG&E recovers its regulalary assets and other 1
through a RTC paid by all retail customers. As the RTC is coltected
from customers, CG&E amortizes the deferred balance of regulatory
assets and other transition costs. A portion of the RTC collected
from customers is recognized curcently as a et on the delerred
balance of regulatory assets and other transition costs and as reim-
bursement for the difference in the shopping credits provided 1o
customers and the wholesale revenues from switched generation,
The ability of CG&F to recover its regulatory assets and other
transition costs is dependent on several fuctors, including, but not
limited 1o, the level of CG&E’s eleciriv sales, prices in the wholesale
power markets, and the amount of customers switching to ather
electric suppliers.

On January 10, 2003, CG&E filed an application with the
PUCO for approval of a methadology te establish how market-
Based rates for non-residential customers will be determined when
the market developmen! pertad ends. In the filing, CGRE secks 1o
establish a market-based standavd servive offer rate for von-yesi-
dential customers that do not switch suppliers and a provess for
establishing the competitively-hid generalion service option
requived by the Electric Restructuring Bill. As of December 31,
2002, more than 20 percent of the load in cach of CG&Es non-
residenttial custonrer classes has switched to other clecteic supplicrs,
Under its transition plan, CG&E may end the market development
period for those classes of customers once 20 percent swilching
has been achieved; however, PUCO approval of the standard
service offer rate and competitive bidding process is reguired
Lefore the market development peried can be ended, CG&E is
not requesting to end the market development period for non-
residential customers at this time. CGEE is unable to predict the
outcome of this proceeding.
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Tin its transition plan, CG&F proposed to transfer its generating
stations and their relaled assets and obligations to an Exempt
Wholesale Generator (EWG) afliliate, subjecet to receipt of FERC,
SKEC, and applicable third-party approvals and consents, 'To facilitate
this transfer, the generation assets of CG&T, as of August 2000, were
released from the [irst mortgage indenture lien allowing them to
move ungncumbered to the TWG affiliate. Generation assels added
afler August 2000 remain subject 1o the lien of CG&LE's lirst mortgage
bond indenture and would require release at some Riture date prior

NOTE 190 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

to being translerred. A FERL order, that was efTeetive April 2002,
allowed Cinergy to juintly dispatch the regulated generating assels
ol P81 in conjunction with the deregulated generating assets of
CG&E. FERC has also authorized the transfer of the CUKE generat-
ing assets to a non-regulated affiliate. However, we have determined
that we can realize the benefits of the new jpint dispatch agreciment
without translerring CGEE's generalion assels o an EWG alliliate,
and therefore we do not plan o transler CG&E’s generation assets
o a non-regulated atfiliate in the foreseeable future.

The elements of Compreliensive inconre and their related ax effects for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 are as follows:

Comprehensive Tncoime

2002 2001 2000
Tax Tax Tax
Before-tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax Before-tax {Expense) MNet-of-Tax  Before-tax (Fxpensc) Net-of-Tax
{in thotrsands) Amount  Benefit  Amount Amount Benefit Amount Amount  Benefit  Amount
Net income 5518840 S(138,264) $360,576  S6Y7.785 S5(233,506) S2,279  $631,023 ${231.557) S399.166
Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Foreigh currency
Lranslatien adjustment 35574  {14,034) 21,540 4,996 (3,355) 1,641 721 1,333 2074
Reclassilication
adjustments 4,377 - 4,377 - - - - - -
Total foreign currency
translation adjustment 39,951 (14,034) 25,917 1,996 {3,335) 1.041 72 1,333 2074
Minimum pensicen liability
adjustment (23,031) 9,268 (13,763) (2,030} 1,481 (1,333] {1,852) 753 (1,099)
Unrealized gain (loss) on
ivestiment Lrusts (8,637} 3,360 (5,277} (1,315} 3044 {841 [2,778%) 649 2,129)
Cumwlative effect of change
in accounting principle - - - 14,0261 1,326 12,5001 - - -
Cash flow hedges (32,663) 12,915 (19,748) (0770 1,698 (2,779 - - -
Toral other comprehensive
income (loss) (24,380) 11,509 (12,871) (7,188) 1,454 (6,034) (3,909 2755 {1,154}
Total comprehensive
income $494,460 $(146,735) $347,705 $6910,297  $(254,052) 5436245 607,114 S(248,802) 5398,312
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The after-tax components of Acciwnuilated other comprehensive isicome (loss) as of December 31,2002, 2001, and 2000 are as follows:

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss} Classification

Total
Foreign Minimum Unrealized Accumulated
Currency Pension Gain (Loss) Other
Translation Liability on Investment  Cash Flow Comprehensive
(in thousands) Adjustment Adjustment Trusts Hedges lncome {Loss)
Balance at December 31, 1999 $(8,146) § (3,681) § 2,086 D - 5 (9,741
Current-period change 2,074 (1,099) (2,129) - (nisd
Balance at December 31, 2000 $(6,072) § (4,780) § {43 S - s(10.895)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle - - - {2,5300) (2,501
Current-period change 1,641 (1,553) (841 {2,779) (3,334)
Balance at December 31, 2001 S(4,431) § (6,333) S (881 § {5,279) S(16,929
Current-period change 25,917 (13,763) (5,277} (19,748)  (12,871)
Balance at December 31, 2002 $21.,486 5(20,098) §(6,161} $(25,027) $(29,300)

NOTE 20 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) SALE OF COMMON STOCK

On January 13, 2003, Cinergy Corp. filed a registration statement
with respect to the issuance of common stock, preferred stock, and
other securities with an aggregate amouwut of $750 million. On
February 5, 2003, Cinergy sold 5.7 million shares of Cinergy Corp.
common stock with net proceeds of approximately 3175 million
under this registration statement. The net proceeds from the trans-
action will be used to reduce short-term debt of Cinergy Corp. and
for other general corporate purposes.
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{b) TRANSFER OF GENERATING ASSETS

On Ecbruary 4, 2003, the FERC issued an erder under Section 203
of the Federal Power Act authorizing 'SDs propescd auquisition

of the Henry County, Indiana and Butler County, Ohio gas-Jired
peaking power plants from two non-regulated alliliates, This action
was the final regulatory approval needed for the transfer, which
accurred on February 3, 2003, [n December 2002, the ITURC
approved a settlement agreenment ameng PS1L the Indiana Office

of the Utility Consumer Counsclor, and the [URC Festimonial
Staff authorizing PSUs purchase of the plants,



ELEVEN YEAR STATISTICAL SUMMARY

2002 2001
Operating Revenues fin tHhousardsj'a 511,960,081 512,997,009
Earnings Before Inconie Taxes (in ilousands) 795,067 068,549
Farnings Before Income ‘laxes, Depreciation, and Amortization rin thousines) 1,209,071 1,342,948
Income Before Discontinued Operations and Cumulative Effect
of a Change in Accounting Principle (in thousamds) 396,903 58,826
Discontinued Qperations, net of EaxX (in tiousands? {25,428) {16,347)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax tin thousands) (10,899) —
Net Income (in thousasids) 360,576 442 279
Total Asscts (i tTousamds) 13,307,028 12,299,813
Construction Expenditures (including AFUDICY 1in thorsands) 869,965 867,498
Capitalization iin thowsands)
Common Equily 3,293,476 2,941,159
Preferred Stock
Subject to Mandatory Redemption - -
Mot Subject to Mandatory Redemption 62,828 62,832
Preferred Trust Securilies 308,187 06,327
Long-lerm Debtt 4,080,768 3,594,730
‘lotal Capitalization % 7,745,259 $ 6,907,349
Other Common Stock Data
Avg. Shares Quistanding tin millions) 167 159
Avg, Shares Quistanding — Assuming Dilution rin wilfions! 169 61
Earnings Per Share
[ncome Before Discontimued Operations and Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 2.37 5 2.88
Discontinued Operations, net of tax (0.15) (0.10)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax (0.06)
Larnings Per Share Net Income $ 2,16 5 278
Larnings Uer Share — Assuming Dilution
Inceme Before Discontinued Operations and Cumulative Eftect of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 2,34 5 285
Discomtinued Operations, net of ax (0.15) (0.10)
Comulative Effect of @ Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax (0.06) -
Earnings Per Share — Assuming Dilution 8 2,13 3 273
Dividends Declared Per Share $ 1.80 3 1.80
Payout Ratio — Assuming Non-Dilution 83.3% 6:1.7%
Book Value Per Share yedi-end! 3 19.53 3 18,45
Degree Day iXata
Service Territory fAvg.s TTeating (10 vear average — 3,163} 5,093 828
Cooling {10 year average — 1,088) 1,357 1,013
Employee Data
Number of Emplovees (rear-end) 7,823 8,709
Gas Operations
Gas Revenues (in thousads) Residential § 253,470 S 349,346
Commercial 100,553 148,206
[ndustrial 17,214 28,761
Other 14,946 20,846
Total Retail 386,183 347,159
‘Transportation 46,616 39,833
Wholesale 4,481,280 4067939
Other 2,840 7085
‘Total Gas Revenues $ 4,916,919 5,662,916
Gas Sales (nef) Residential 35,615 35,211
Commercial 15,249 16,235
indusirial 2,927 3,330
(hher 2,461 2,421
‘Total Retall 56,243 57,213
Transportation 35,172 32,290
Whaolesale 1,252,783 1,007,367
Total Gas Sales 1,344,198 1,097,070
Gas Custoners {Arp.} Residential 408,307 427,158
Commercial 38,942 41,772
industrial 1,562 I,7406
Cther 1,524 1,360
Transportation 48,630 23,120
Total Gas Custemers 498,972 495,356
Avg, Cost Per Mcf Purchased (cents)’= 395,59 677016

Certair aimonnis i prior vears have been reclassified fo conform (o the 2002 prescntation,
1al Emerying [ssues Task !

Issue 02-3, Acceunting for Contraces lnvolved jn Evergy Tradimg omd Risk Munagemiont Acifvities, will require that all gains ol fogees

on enckgy frading derivatives e presenited on a et basis begimming fonwary 1, 2603, This will vestdr in substaatial veductions in reported Operating Revesues,
Fael wid purchased and exchianged power expeuse, and Gas prrchused expense. However, Operarinug Income aind Net Incosize will it be affected by this change.
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2000 1999 1998 1997 1995 1995 1994 1993 1992
$ 8,397,080 $5,953,192 85,778,291 4,387,101 $3,276,187 53,023,431 52,888,417 52,8330 52,612,821
§79.273 848,853 628,259 715,126 772,316 818,788 595,539 468,638 661,147
1,221,200 1,169,931 927,114 1,004,203 1,035,079 1,098,537 889,95 747,340 919,185
400,535 401,692 260,968 253,238 334,797 347,182 191,142 62,3470 170,805
(1,069) 1,949 - - - - - . -
399,466 403,641 260,968 253,238 334,797 347,182 191,142 62,5471 270,805
12,329,728 9,616,948 9,687,381 8.858,153 8,724,934 8,103,242 8,037,422 7,696,489 7,132,475
537,709 437,927 370,277 328,153 324,238 326,869 486,734 563,333 521,716
2,788,961 2,653,721 2,541,231 2,339,200 2,584,454 2,548,843 2,414,271 2,221,681 2,316,904
- - - - - 160,000 210,000 210,000 210,000
62,834 92,597 92,640 177.989 194,232 227,897 267,929 307,949 207,071
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
2,876,367 2,989,242 2,604,467 2,150,902 2,326,378 2,346,766 2,615,269 2,545,213 2,346,540
$ 5,728,162 $5,735,560 $5,238,338 $4,868,091 §5,105,064 $5,283,506 55,307,464 $3,284,883 53,280,960+
159 159 158 158 158 157 147 1441 142
160 5 139 159 159 158 |18 143 NA
5 2,52 5 2.33 $ 1.65 $ LELD  § 2000 % 2.22 5 130 & o438 1.91
(0.01) 0.01 - - - - - - -
g 2.51 5 2.54 5 1.63 s 1614 % 2000 S 2.22 5 1.30 $ 03§ 1.91
P 251 $ 2.52 $ 1.63 s .55 § 199§ .20 5 1,29 $ A3 NA
; ’ {0.01} 0.01 - - - - - - -
$ 2.30 5 2.53 S 1.65 S 15914 § 199§ 2.20 § 1.29 3 .3 NA
$ 1.80 5 1.80 s 1.80 § 1.80 S 1,74 5 1.72 8 1.50 5 146 5 1.39
71.7% 70.9% 109.1% 111.8% 87.0% 77.5% 115.4% 339.5% 72.8%
$ 17.54 S 1670 S 16.06 S 16.10 S 1639 S 1617 $ 1536 s 1517 5 1621
5,298 4,814 4,361 3,476 5,751 5,451 3,066 3,191 5,023
938 1,151 1,243 361 933 1,215 1,042 1,106 726
8,362 8,950 8,794 7,609 7,973 8,602 3,868 v,227 9,19y
$ 287,753 8 210,557 s 240,297 S 284,516 S 272,303 S 237,576 S 2424415 § 269,681 S 220,140
110,329 85,169 87,583 121,345 118,954 99,708 114,854 114,957 99,827
17,784 13,797 17,320 31,168 30,409 28,979 43,490 47,403 42,091
13,351 10,203 11,539 16,734 18,730 18,654 22,077 20220 1702t
429,217 319,726 356,739 453,763 440,436 384,917 422,936 432,260 379,082
56,055 54,895 41,050 32,456 27,679 20,934 13,196 11,331 10,809
2,453,579 1,221,756 699,085 30,212 1,403 1,086 1,306 1,353 917
2,902 3,769 2,755 3,106 4,517 3,915 4,600 1,548 3,152
$ 2,041,753 $1,596,146 $1,099,629 $ 518,537 S 474,035 $ 410,852 S M98 $ 6Y,296 5 393,970
38,230 32,790 36,256 41,846 44,721 43,153 39,065 43,514 19,754
15,829 14,474 13,999 19,141 21,199 19,664 20,070 20,370 30,142
2,770 2,646 2,941 35,240 5,746 6,624 9,025 10,011 10,091
2,139 2,388 2,150 2,813 3,595 4,305 1,507 3,996 3,940
58,268 52,298 55,346 69,040 75,261 73,746 72,667 77,891 73,927
41,186 39,568 57,381 53,448 48,360 40,543 12,579 28,593 25,372
590,317 530,258 353,353 9,372 352 279 296 307 286
690,471 622,124 466,580 131,860 124,173 114,568 105,542 106,791 99,583
395,799 387,769 404,417 407,128 307,660 389,165 379,953 373,194 367,999
39,058 38,033 30,332 41,915 41,499 40,897 40,545 103,348 39,952
1,447 1,457 1,569 1,960 1,961 1,959 2,076 L1760 2,228
1,327 1,147 1,226 1,504 1,517 1,557 1519 1,471 1447
TN 45,506 43,642 15,626 1,205 §29 599 56 - -
- 483,137 472,048 462,170 453,712 443,466 434,177 424,149 AL7,189 111,626
436.90 304.78 364,43 380,41 326.50 277.92 135.60 35374 300,95

(0} Excliudes amounits due within one year.

(c) Incindes 5.12 per share for the cost of reacquiring 90%% of CGS-E's preferred stack through o tesder offer.

(d) ncludes 5.69 per shave Jor an extraordinary ftem (Midlads windfall profit tax),
(e} Exchudes wholesale mumbers.
() Tncludes wrire-off of a pertion of Zbwnier Station.
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ELEVEN YEAR STATISTICAL SUMMARY

2002 2001
Electric Operations
Electric Revenes (v thousands!
Residential $1,188,161 S1L,087.638
Commoercial 776,846 8282
Industrial 699,971 71,387
Qther 106,339 110,883
Total Retail 2,771,317 2,691,393
Transportation 13,560 2794
Wholesale 3,969,716 30181,063
Other 157,756 79,993
Total Flectric Revenues $6,912,349 58,233,847 B
Electric Sales iailiion kv
Residential 17,088 15,794
Commercial 13,161 13,607
Indusirial 17,473 18,022
Other L&l 1,720
‘Total Retail 49,533 19,142
‘Transportation 2,592 613
Wholesale 138,897 119,938
Total Flectric Sales T 191,022 169,69 T
Electric Customers (inclnding Transportation) ravg o
Residential 1,340,398 £.329,708
Commercial 164,657 163,528
Industrial 6,468 6,362
Other 8,178 7,601
‘Tetal Electric Customers 1,519,701 1,507,399 T
System Capability — Winter (Avi» o
Energy Merchant 7,107 7,081
Regulated Businesses 6,004 6,004
Llectricity Qutput rwmillion kv
Generated — Net
Encrgy Merchant 27.363 24,953
Regulated Businesses 33,060 33,027
Source of Energy Supply (Capacity oni T
Energy Merchant
Coal 58.90% 39,100,
Oil & Gas 41.10% 10908,
Regulated Businesses
Coal 92.90% 92.908,
Qil & Gas 6.35% 6350y
Hydro 0.75% 0.750
Fuel Cost
Encrgy Merchant
Per MiiBtn $1.32 51,39
Regulated Businesses
Per MMDBtu 51.35 51.31

Certafee nsonnts i prioe years iave been reclassified 1o conforn o the 2002 preseniaiion,
tay Inctiedes ametones 1w be purchased, subjeet o mvailabificy, pursuant t agreements with other wtilitics.
10 1993 reflects the refund of $31 million applicable to the TURC's April 1990 rote orver.


file:///Vliolesale

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
51,088,998 51,127,289 51,028,314 $984,891 5996,939 $965,278 $898,763 $893,019 §789,933
775,201 754,965 722,292 689,091 673,181 661,496 626,333 G087 562,329
720,610 725,641 702,208 669,464 657,563 637,090 598,126 584,342 533,540
106,899 117,284 100,017 111,867 110,003 118,458 96,217 68,3600 48,560
2,691,708 2,725,179 2,552,831 2,455,313 2,437,706 2,382,322 2,219,469 2,154,212 2,004 6otk
2,615,195 1,554,927 2,031,059 1,367,897 296,600 197,043 194,734 177,754 171,229
52,455 49,035 46,399 38,488 34,400 32,314 31,846 32,118 12,938
$5,359,358 $4,329, 141 $4,630,289 3,361,698 $2,768,706 $2,612,570 52 446019 5236414400 52,218,551
15,633 16,069 14,551 14,147 14,703 14,366 13,578 13,818 12,526
13,596 13,102 12,524 12,034 11,802 11,648 11,167 10,963 10,310
19,008 18,830 18,093 17,321 16,503 16,264 15,547 14,860 1,200
1,891 1,939 1,815 1,825 1,811 1,795 1,723 1,732 el
50,128 49,940 46,983 45,327 45,121 44,073 42,015 41,373 38,710
69,831 49,883 77,759 57,454 12,399 7,768 7,801 7,063 7,267
119,959 99,823 124,742 102,751 57,520 51,842 19,816 18,436 a3.977
1,304,893 1,280,658 1,257,853 1,236,974 1,215,782 1,195,323 1,174,705 1,160,513 1,117,943
159,965 156,897 153,674 151,093 149,015 147,888 144,766 142,707 140,847
6,507 6,486 6,473 6,472 6,470 6,424 6,315 6,263 6,165
7,060 6,639 6,395 6,280 6,184 5,935 5,733 5,678 3,697
1,478,425 1,450,680 1,424,395 1,400,819 1,377,451 1,355,590 1,331,519 1,315,221 1,A00,652
2N NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
11,249 11,221 11,221 11,221 11,221 11,351 11,181 11,18] 10,779
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
63,010 50,389 56,920 54 850 52,659 52,458 30,330 19,078 AL I

NA Na Na WA NA NA NA NA NA
MNA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

86.80% 86.77% 85.77% 86.77% 86,77% 85.78% 83.57%% 85.37% 88.75%

12.80% 12.83% 12.83% 12.33% 12.83% 13.82% 141034 14,03% 10.83%

0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.10% 0.A0% 0.42%
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
$1.25 $1.26 $1.25 $1.31 $1.30 51.40 S144 51,47 5151
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GLOSSARY of TERMS

CG&E
and ULH&P’s accelerated program replacing aging

Accelerated Main Replacement Program

cast-iron and bare-steel natural gas main pipelines.
The program will improve the reliability and
safety of the natural gas distribution system.

Administrative & General (A&G) Expenses  Costs
necessary for operations but not directiy associated
with developing a product or praviding a service,

Balance Sheet
company’s financial cendition at a specific point

A quantitative summary of a

in time, including assets, liabilities and net worth.
The first part of a balance sheet shows all the
productive assets a company owns, and the
secand part shows all the financing methods
{such as liabilities and shareholders” equity).
Balanced Integrated Portfolio A generation,
transmission, distribution and marketing business
model that maintains balance between regulated
and nonregulated gencration supply, and customer
requirements,

Bcf Abbreviation for one billion cubic feet, usually
applied to natural gas.

Blocking-and-Tackling  Basic, fundamental skills.

Capacity The amount of electric potver available
from a generator, turbine, transformer, transmission
circuit, station or system as rated by the manufacturer,
Capacity Factor 'The ratio of the total energy actually
generated by a generating unit for a specified period to
the maximum possible energy it could have generated
it operated at the maximum capacity rating for the
same specified period, expressed as a percent, Not to be
confused with availability, which addresses how often
that same plant could have generated such energy.
Cogeneration  Preduction of electricity from
steam, heat or other forms of energy produced as

a by-product of another process. (Cinergy Solutions
is Cinergy’s cogeneration business.)
Construction Work in Progress (CWIP) The balance
shown on a utility's balance sheet for construction
work not yet completed but in progress.

Corporate Governance  Cinergy’s definition has three
key components: board independence, processes and
practices that foster solid decision-making by both
management and the board of directors, and balancing
the interests of all of our stakeholders — our investors,
customers, cmployecs, the communities we serve and

the euvironment.

Counterparty  An energy comumodity trading partner
and/ecr the person or company on the other side ol a
two-party contract or position.

Custamer Qrigination  Adding new wholesale encrgy
customers, such as municipal-owned utilitics, member-
ship co-ops, investor-owned utilities (IOUs}, and large
industrial companies, and expanding relationships
with existing whelesale customers and providing

both with product and scrvice soluticns,

Customer Portfolios  The mix of retail and wholesale
custoniers served by generation supply.

Diluted  Earnings per share, including common stock,
preferred stock, unexercised stock options, unexercised
warrants and some convertible debt. Tn companies
with a large amount of convertibles, warrants and
stock options, diluted carnings per share arc usually a
more accurate measuive of the company’s real carning
power than earnings per share.

Energy Merchant
energy (power and/or nalural gas) along a delivery
grid for wholesale producers and consuniers of energy,

A company that physically moves

and financially manages the price risk of those
cammodities for themselves and others,

Forward Price Exposure A utilily’s dependency on

future commaodity prices.

Free Cash Flow
itemis minus capital expenditures and dividends, Free

Operating cash flow plus non-cash

cash flow is the amount of cash a company has left
aver after all of its operating and capital expenses.

Fuel Clause Adjustment
schedule that provides for an adjusiment o the

A provision in a rate

custoimer’s bill if the cost of fuel at the suppher
aries from a specitied unit cost.
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GLOSSARY of TERMS (confined)

Investment-Grade Debt issuances that aye rated
in the four highest categories: AAA, AA, A and
BBB (or equivalent) by the credit rating agencies.

Liquidity
converted to cash.

The amount of assets that can be casily

Mandatorily Convertible Securities  Securities
which can be exchanged for a specified amount
of another, related security, at the option of the
issuer and/or the holder.

Margins Revenues less cost of goods sold.
Market-to-Book Ratio
value price per share compared to the equity book

The ratio of the equity market
value price per share.

Mark-to-Market (Fair Value) Accounting Pricing
mechanism based on valuing a commodity or contract
at its immediate resale value.

Megawatt  One million watts (MW).
Mid-Market The wholesale customer segment

where the contract term for standard physical and
financial power and natural gas products is 30 days.

Mmef Abbreviation for one million cubic feet,
usually applied to natural gas.

Net Generation  Gross generation minus plant use
from all electric utility-owned plants.

New Source Review The New Source Review
program is a part of The Clean Air Act that was
adopted in 1977. Because the Act requires extensive
controls on new facilities, such facilities have to

g0 through elaborate permitting processes before
construction can begin.

Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) One of the emissions
commion in the combustien of coal,

Non-Core Assets
of Cinergy’s strategically core businesses of regulated

Assets or business lines not part

operations and energy merchant.

Non-Fuel Operating Expenses  The operation and
maintenance expenses associated with the production
of electricity, other than fuel expense such as coal,
natural gas and fuel oil.

One-Time Charges  Costs that atter a company’s
earnings during a given reporting peviad and which
are a part of the company’s normal activitics hut
may be unusually arge or infrequent.

Operating Cash Flow The sum ol net profit plus non-

cash items, such as depreciation ane working capilal.

Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Lxpenses  The
expenses arising in the normal course ol running and
maintaining the business, including labor (salaries
and benefits), materials and supplics, utility costs, ctc.
Pay Station  An authorized retailer that accepls
Cinergy bill payments. A retail store associate accepls
a customer’s payment and records it in one of

two ways: by processing the bill stub or entering

the customer’s account number in a terminal at

the counter.

Peaking Plant A power plant with geperating units
designed to eperate during periods ol maximum
demand for electricity, as opposed to (he units of a
baseload plant, which usually operate continucusly.

Physical An actual commuodity (electricity, natural
gas, coal) delivered in the spot market to a commadity
contract buyer at the completion of the contrac term.,

Price/Earnings Ratio  The price of a stock divided
by its earnings per share, The P/E ratio may cilher
usc the reported earnings from the latest year, trailing
P/E, or a forceast of next year’s carnings. Also called

a P/E multiple.

Provider of Last Resort (POLR)  The term used Lo
define the entity that is responsible for providing
electricity or matural gas in a retail choice envirenment
to any customers who have not chosen an aliernative
supplier or to customers who have chosen an alier-
nafive supplier but whose alternative supplier cannot
petform. In Ohio, the local distribution utilities

(such as CG&E) serve as the provider of last resort,
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GLOSSARY Of TERMS (continued)

Purchased Power Tracker A clause in a rate schedule
that provides for adjustments to the bill when eneray
from another electric system is acquired and the

price varies [rom the specitied unit base amount.

Rate Adjustiment Rider
whereby customer price increases or decreases

A ratemaking mechanism

to cover capital infrastructure improvements are
automatic each year.

Reserve Margin - The amount of unused available
capability of an clectric power system at peak load
for a utility svsteni. Expressed as a percentage ol
total capability. Such eapacity may be maintained
lor the purpose of providing eperational flexibility
and for preserving system reltability.

Retail Customers Lnd-use customers ol a local
distribution utility (whether efectric or natural gas).
They do not resell energy.

Retail Markets  Sales of energy to cnd-use customers,

Revalver Capacity The amount a bank or other
lender agrees to lend a corporation in an agreciment
that allows the amount to be borrowed again once
it has been repaid. Also called revolving credit,

Risk Management  The sct of skills and processes for
identifying, quantifying, controlling and mitigaling
risk far determining the appropriaie capital alloca-
tion across business activilics, consistent with the
company’s business strategy,

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 The Act
named for its Senate and House co-spansors:
Sen. Paul Sarbanes, (D) — Md. and Rep. Michacl
Oxley, (R} — Ghio. Congress passed the Act on
July 38, 2002, in responsc 1o recent high-profile
incidents of corporate and securitics fraud.
The Act and its related SEC regulations include
new disclosuve requirements, stricter corporate
governance standards, more timely reporting
deadlines, additional regulation of the audit
process, creation of an audit oversight commitiec,
registration requirements for audit firms, and
stronger penallics for violations,

Shared Services
support services by combining and consolidating

A model lor delivering commen

the services Lrom the business units and corporate
center into a distinet, market-cilicient segment with
a strong internaf customer and service focus.

Skin in the Game  For this repart. Cinergy employees’
personal stake in the company’s success through
direct ar indirect ownership of Cinergy stock.

Stock Options
asset 15 the commean stock of a corpaoration, giving

An option in which the underlving,

the hialder the right to buy or sell its stock at a
specitied price by a specific date,

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
an investment, including income trom dividends

The relurn on

and interest, as well as appreciation or depreciation
in the price of the security, over a given time periad,
usually a year.

Transmission & Distribution (T&D)  The “wires”
part of an electric ulility’s operations. Transmission
refers to the high veliage lines that transmit power
over long distances. Distribution refers to the
lower voltage system that distributes power within

comimuniiies to end-use customers.

Trouble Call/Outage Management System
state-ot-the-art, graphically based computer system

Cinergy’s

that analyzes customer outage call information o

pinpoint outage localions for faster trouble response.

Value-at-Risk (VaR)
assct could be impacted by a change in energy
market prices.

How much the value of an

Wholesale Matkets
who purchase large quantilies of power, fuel or

Markels consisting of custoners

natural gas for resale Lo retail customers.

Select defiaitions were provided by InvestorWords.com
Located at hitp/fwwaniinrestenvords. corit

Copyright © 1997-2003 by \eblinance fne. All Rights
Reserved, Unauthorized duplication, in whole or in

part, is strictly prolibited.

Useel with permission,
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DESIGN & TYPOGRAPEY! PROWOLFE PARTNERS

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

QUARTERLY S$TOCK DATA

Quarter 1Ist Ind 3rd 4th
2002

High $35.75  $37.19  $3621 $34.19
Close 35.75 35.99 31.43 33.72
Low 31.00 3425 2540  28.25
Dividends per share 45 A5 45 A5
2001

High $35.15 $35.60 $35.00 $33.85
Close 33.55 3495 30.87 3343
Low 2881 3220 28.00 2816
Dividends per share 45 45 A5 45

GORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Cinergy Corp.

139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, QOhio 45202

Web site: www.cinergy.com

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of

shareholders will be held at the
Northern Kentucky Convention Center
Ballrooms D & E

One West Rivercenter Boulevard
Covington, Kentucky

on Tuesday, April 22, 2003,

at 9:00 a.m. Eastern Daylight Time.

COMMON STOCK

Cinergy’s common stock, traded under the ticker
symbo} CIN, is listed on the New York Stock Exchange.
Cinergy has unlisted trading privileges on the Boston,
Chicago, Cincinnati, Pacific and Philadelphia exchanges.
As of Dec. 31, 2002, there were 55,815 comman stock
shareholders of record.

FORM 10-K

Shareholders may obtain a copy of Cinergy’s annual report
to the Securities and Exchange Commission {Form 10-X),
without charge, by contacting Investor Relations or by
visiting our Web site at: www.cinergy.com/investors.

REINVESTMENT PLAN INQUIRIES
National City Bank

Reinvestment Services-Loc, 5352

P.O. Box 94946

Cleveland, Ohio 44101-4945

Toll-free phone: 1-800-325-2945

Fax: (216) 257-8367

OTHER SHAREHOLDER AGCCOUNT INQUIRIES
National City Bank

Shareholder Services—Loc. 5352

P.O. Box 92301

Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900

Toll-free phone: 1-800-325-2945

Fax: (216) 257-8508

E-mail address for all services:
shareholderservices@nationalcity.com

INVESTOR CONTACT

Steven E. Schrader

Vice President, Investor Relations
139 East Fourth Street 26AT
Cincinnati, Chio 45202

{513) 287-1083

Fax: (513) 287-1088

E-mail; sschrader@cinergy.com

DIRECT S$TOCK PURCHASE AND
DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
Cinergy’s Direct Stock Purchiase and Dividend
Reinvestment Plan provides investors with & convenient
methaod to purchase shares of Cinergy Corp. common
stock and to reinvest cash dividends in the purchase
of additional shares of Cinergy Corp. common stock,
without incurring brokerage fees. Shareholders may auto-
matically reinvest all or a portion of their cash dividends
in Cinergy commeon stock at prevailing market prices.
Shareholders may atso purchase additional shares
by making payments of at least $25 at any one tine, but
not more than $100,000 per calendar year. Currently, there
are about 31,850 sharcholders participating in the plan.
The plan is open to anyone wisling to participate,
Those who do not currently own shaves on the company’s
records must complete an enrollment form and make
an initial minimum investiment of $250, An clection form
must be completed by anyone who wishes to change
dividend reinvestment participation,
Complete details about the plan are contained in
the plan’s prospectus. To receive a copy of the prospectus
and an enrollment form, contact Natiena) City Bank.

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS

Shareholders can have their dividends clectronically
transferred to their checking or savings accounts. To
receive an enrollment form, contact National City Bank.

OTHER INFORMAYTION

Transfer agent and registrar for Cinergy Corp.
common and CG&E and P51 preferred shares:
Maticnal City Bank

Stock Transfer Dept—Loc. 5352

P.O. Box 92301

Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900
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CINERGY CORP. HAS A BALANCED, INTEGRATED PORTIOLIQ CONSISTING OF TWO CORE BUSINESSES:
REGULATED OPERATIONS AND ENERGY MERCHANT. CINERGY OWNS REGULATED DELIVERY OQPLERATIONS
IN OHIO, INDIANA AND KENTUCKY TIIAT SERVE 1.5 MILLION ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS AND ABOUT
500,000 GAS CUSTOMERS. IN ADDITION, I''S INDIANA REGULATED GPERATIONS OWN 7,000
MEGAWATTS OF GENERATION, CINERGY'S ENERGY MERCHANT BUSINESS 1S A MIDWEST LEADER

IN LOW-COST GENERATION OWNING 0,300 MEGAWATTS OF CAPACITY WITH A PROFITABRLE BALANCE
OF STABLE EXISTING CUSTOMER PORTFOLIOS, NEW CUSTOMER ORIGINATION, MARKETING AND
TRADING, ANI} INDUSTRIAL-SITE COGENERATION, THE “INTO CINERGY” POWER-TRADING [IUL IS

THE MOST LIQUID TRADING HUB I[N THE NATION.

CINERGY,

the power of change

CINBRGY CORP, 139 BEAST FOURTILI STRELT CINCINNATI, O1110 45202 WIWW.CINERGY.COM WWIW.CINERGY.COMGOVERNANCE


http://WWW.CINIiRGY.COM
http://WWW.CINF.UGY.COM/gOVIJRNANC

